
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes Book 
 

Tuesday 21 February 2017 
  

 
  



Page 2 

 

  
Minutes of Committees 

 

October 2016 – February 2017 
 

Meeting Date Page Nos. Chairman (Cllr) 

Cabinet and Cabinet Committees 

Cabinet 15 November 2016 5 - 12 Baroness Scott 

Cabinet 13 December 2016 13 - 24 Baroness Scott 

Cabinet 17 January 2017 25 - 28 Baroness Scott 

Cabinet 7 February 2017 29 - 36 Baroness Scott 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 15 November 2016 37 - 42 Baroness Scott 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 17 January 2017 43 - 62 Baroness Scott 

Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 1 November 2016 63 - 68 Simon Killane 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3 January 2017 69 - 76 Simon Killane 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 1 February 2017 77 - 82 Simon Killane 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14 February 2017 To follow Simon Killane 

Children's Select Committee 11 October 2016 83 - 90 Jon Hubbard 

Children's Select Committee 6 December 2016 91 - 98 Jon Hubbard 

Environment Select Committee 25 October 2016 99 - 106 Bridget Wayman 

Environment Select Committee 13 December 2016 107 - 120 Bridget Wayman 

Health Select Committee 27 September 2016 121 - 128 Chuck Berry 

Health Select Committee 15 November 2016 129 - 136 Chuck Berry 

Regulatory Committees 

Strategic Planning Committee 14 September 2016 137 - 184 Andrew Davis 

Strategic Planning Committee 28 September 2016 185 - 230 Andrew Davis 

Strategic Planning Committee 14 December 201 231 - 240 Andrew Davis 

Northern Area Planning Committee 5 October 2016 241 - 266 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 26 October 2016 267 - 278 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 16 November 2016 279 - 284 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 7 December 2016 285 - 288 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 4 January 2017 289 - 348 Tony Trotman 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 17 November 2016 349 - 360 Charles Howard 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 5 January 2017 361 - 364 Charles Howard 

Southern Area Planning Committee 13 October 2016 365 - 380 Fred 
Westmoreland 



Page 3 

 

Southern Area Planning Committee 3 November 2016 381 - 392 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Southern Area Planning Committee 12 January 2017 393 - 414 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Southern Area Planning Committee 2 February 2017 415 - 422 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Western Area Planning Committee 12 October 2016 423 - 432 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 2 November 2016 433 - 438 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 439 - 446 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 14 December 2016 447 - 464 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 11 January 2017 465 - 470 Christopher 
Newbury 

Other Committees 

Standards Committee 26 January 2017 471 - 472 Paul Oatway 
QPM 

Audit Committee 26 October 2016 473 - 478 Tony Deane 

Staffing Policy Committee 2 November 2016 479 - 484 Allison Bucknell 

Staffing Policy Committee 4 January 2017 485 - 490 Allison Bucknell 

Joint Committees 

Joint Strategic Economic Committee (SWLEP) 12 October 2016 491 - 494 Baroness Scott 

Joint Strategic Economic Committee (SWLEP) 15 December 2016 495 - 498 Baroness Scott 

Health and Wellbeing Board 22 September 2016 499 - 504 Baroness Scott 

Health and Wellbeing Board 15 December 2016 505 - 512 Baroness Scott 

Local Pension Board 20 October 2016 513 - 522 Mr Howard 
Pearce 

Pension Fund Committee 29 September 2016 523 - 530 Tony Deane 

Pension Fund Committee 13 October 2016 531 - 534 Tony Deane 

Pension Fund Committee 15 December 2016 535 - 542 Tony Deane 

Police and Crime Panel 1 September 2016 543 - 548 Richard Britton 

Police and Crime Panel 1 December 2016 549 - 554 Richard Britton 

Police and Crime Panel 11 January 2017 555 - 560 Richard Britton 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 

Councillors wishing to ask a question on the Fire Authority minutes are required to give written 
notice no later than five clear days before the council meeting - 5pm on 13 February 2017 
please contact Yamina Rhouati, 01225 718024, yamina.rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk  

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 14 September 2016 561 - 568 Rebecca Knox 

mailto:yamina.rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk


Page 4 

 

(Dorset) 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 15 December 2016 569 - 576 Rebecca Knox 
(Dorset) 



 
 
 

 
 
 

CABINET 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 15 NOVEMBER 2016 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband 

Cllr Laura Mayes Cabinet Member for Children 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe 

Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property 

Cllr Jonathon Seed Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure, Libraries and 
Flooding 

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and 
Waste 

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler Cabinet Member for Hubs, Heritage and Arts, Governance 

and Support Services 
Cllr Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 
Cllr Jerry Wickham Cabinet Member for Health 

 

 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Alan MacRae, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Glenis 
Ansell, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Simon Killane, Cllr 
Gordon King, Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Bill Moss, Cllr Stephen Oldrieve and Cllr Horace 
Prickett 
  

 
125 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE who had 
recently suffered the bereavement of a close family member. 
 

126 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 11 October 2016. 
 

127 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

128 Leader's announcements 
 
The Deputy Leader announced that the meeting would be recorded in order to 
test a repositioning of the webcasting equipment. 
 

129 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
In response to a question made by Councillor Bob Jones MBE, the Deputy 
Leader stated that he would ask officers to investigate the matter of the length 
of the period for which poppy collection can be made, as to whether it was in 
line with other authorities, and to give a written reply. 
 

130 Developing Integrated Urgent Care 
 

 Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which sought 
authorisation to proceed with the inclusion of Wiltshire Council’s Urgent Care 
services within a Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) led 
procurement for Integrated Urgent Care Services. 
 
Issues discussed during the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the desire to include Wiltshire within a procurement project that involves 
Wiltshire, BANES and Swindon areas; that the contract should be valued at 
between £13 and £16m a year over 5 years; that the project would be subject to 
official European procurement procedures; that Wiltshire’s  proportion of the 
project should be around £2m; how Wiltshire’s interests are protected through 
the process; and the timetable for the process;  
 
Councillor Gordon King, expressed concern over the issues of maintaining 
Wiltshire’s interest, and whether the proposed integration would lead to a 
meaningful change resulting in more effective service for Wiltshire’s residents. 
In response, Councillor Wickham stated that he was assured, so far, that the 
contract was right for Wiltshire Council and its residents, and that a further 
report would be discussed in January 2017.  
 
In response to questions raised by Councillor Glennis Ansell, Councillor 
Wickham stated that he was also keen that the project did not expose the 
Council to any unnecessary additional financial risk, nor that the partnership 
would result in a slip in performance. In addition he expected that the project 
would result in a reduction in management costs overall. 
 
Resolved 
 
a) To approve the participation of Wiltshire Council in a joint 

commissioning exercise with Wiltshire CCG, in partnership with 
B&NES CCG and Swindon CCG, of urgent care services. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

b) To approve the inclusion of a range of services currently 
commissioned by Wiltshire Council (as set out in paragraph 7 
below) in that joint commissioning arrangement. 
 

c) To note that a Memorandum of Understanding is being prepared 
which establishes the governance of the commissioning decisions 
in relation to the tender exercise. 
 

d) To note that an update on the joint procurement will be brought back 
to Cabinet in January 2017, providing an opportunity to agree the 
timetable for the decision to award the tender. 
 

e) To approve the exemption to the extension of the existing Council 
contract with Medvivo for Urgent Care at Home for 2017-18, on the 
basis that it can then be included in the joint commissioning 
exercise. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The Council has a number of contracts for services which may be classified as 
Urgent Care. These are set out in paragraph 7 below.  The Council would need 
to recommission these services over the next year. 
 
Wiltshire CCG, in partnership with B&NES CCG and Swindon CCG has 
commenced a recommissioning process for Urgent Care services as 
detailed in the report presented.   

There is scope to improve the delivery of urgent care services, reduce 
duplication and identify efficiencies by commissioning services jointly. 
 

131 Adoption of the Supplementary Planning Document 'Waste storage and 
collection: guidance for developers' 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which: updated Cabinet on the 
results of the consultation on the draft Supplementary Planning Document 
’Waste storage and collection: guidance for developers’ (hereafter ‘draft waste 
guidance SPD’) (Appendix 1); presented the revised draft waste guidance SPD 
(Appendix 2) to Cabinet for their approval to recommend that full Council adopts 
the document; and sought a decision to delegate to the Cabinet Member for 
Strategic Planning, Property, Waste and Strategic Housing a future decision to 
update the draft waste guidance SPD to account for operational changes 
brought about by the new Lot 5 Contract for waste collection services. 
 
Issues discussed during the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the guidance should ensure the efficient collection of waste is enshrined in 
planning guidance; that the collection of s106 monies would be strengthened; 
and that consultation has been undertaken.  
 

Page 7



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
(i) To recommend that full Council adopts the revised document 

‘Waste collection and storage: guidance for developers’ (draft 
waste guidance SPD) (Appendix 2) as a Supplementary Planning 
Document 

 
(ii) To delegate to the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Property, 

Waste and Strategic Housing a decision to approve future changes 
to the draft waste guidance SPD, limited to items which take 
account of the new services delivered under the Lot 5 Contract for 
waste collection services awarded by Cabinet in January 2016 
without the recourse to a further consultation with planning 
professionals, as described further in paragraph 15. 

 
Reason for Decision: 

 

To enable the Council to: 
 

(i) Improve service delivery for residents in new developments 
 

(ii) Increase the efficiency and safety of waste collection operations at 
new developments 
 

(iii) Demonstrate that it is taking steps to manage its statutory duty in 
relation to the health and safety of its employees and the public 
 

(iv) Provide clarity for property developers and agents in respect of 
the Council’s requirements as the waste collection authority 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 
(v) Increase the recovery of Section 106 contributions where it is 

considered lawful to do so. 
 

132 Ultrafast Broadband 
 

 Councillor John Thomson presented the report which provided an update 
on the progress towards implementing a procurement solution to deliver 
Ultrafast broadband; and sought Cabinet approval to delegate the authority to 
deal with all contract documentation in relation to the Ultrafast Broadband 
project, part of the Wiltshire Online programme, and to delegate the decision 
to enter into the Contract, sign all relevant NDA documents and enter into the 
BDUK Grant Agreement and SWLEP Match Funding Agreement to the 
Corporate Director of Children's Services, and Adults’ Social Services (acting) 
in consultation with the Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Communities, Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Issues discussed during the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that central government and SWLEP grant monies had been secured without 
the need for match funding from Wiltshire Council;  and that there was a focus 
on Wiltshire industrial estates. 
 
Councillor Simon Killane, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, highlighted the engagement of Scrutiny, and invited Councillor 
George Jeans as the project board member to speak on the matter. Councillor 
Jeans expressed his support and congratulations for securing the extra funding. 
  
Councillor John Thomson thanked Cllr Jeans for his positive contribution 
towards the project. 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the progress made towards delivering the ‘Wiltshire Online 

Project’. 
 
ii) To note the progress of the Ultrafast procurement. 
 
iii) To make an in principle decision to award and enter into the 

Contract or contracts for the provision of Ultrafast Broadband 
services. 

 
iv) That following the tender process, to delegate the authority to 

enter into the Contract or Contracts for the provision of Ultrafast 
Broadband services to the Corporate Director of Children's 
Services and Adults’ Social Services (acting), in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Communities, Campuses, Area Boards 
and Broadband 

 

v) To delegate the authority to enter into and to sign all other 
relevant documents including Non-Disclosure agreements, 
Grant agreements and Match Funding agreements to the 
Corporate Director of Children's Services and  Adults’ 
Social Services (acting). 

 

vi)  To agree that the Corporate Director of Children's Services and 
Adults’ Social Services (acting), be nominated as Authority 
Representative for the purposes of the Contract. 

 
Reason for Decision: 

 
Wiltshire Council has recently successfully secured £2m from Broadband 
Delivery UK (BDUK), Department of Culture, Media and Sport to extend our 
broadband footprint across Wiltshire with an additional £1m match funding 
from the Swindon Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership.  The Invitation to 

Page 9



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Tender (ITT) will total £3m and approval was given to proceed on the ITT 
by the Procurement Board on July 19 2016. 
 
Other reasons as per the report. 

 
133 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items. 
 

134 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

Resolved 

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following item of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 

Reason for taking the item in private: 

Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings  

No representations had been received as to why this item should not be held in 
private 

 
135 Update on Mobilisation of Future Waste Management and Collection 

Services (Part II) 
 

 Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report for Cabinet’s consideration 
and determination which was exempt from publication. 
 
The Deputy Leader emphasised, to those present, that the report was 
confidential and subject to legal professional privilege and should not be 
disclosed outside the meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 
That Cabinet approves the recommendations contained in the report 
presented.  
 
Reason for Decision: 
 

Page 10



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To enable the council to maintain service delivery for residents, to comply with 
its statutory duties to collect and dispose of waste and to continue to progress 
towards achieving statutory targets 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 9.56 am) 

 

These decisions were published on the 16 November  2016 and will come into 
force on 24 November 2016 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

CABINET 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2016 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Dick Tonge, Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Stuart Wheeler and 
Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr Jerry 
Kunkler, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones 
MBE, Cllr Simon Killane, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Magnus Macdonald and Cllr Horace Prickett 
  

 
136 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Laura Mayes and Councillor Jonathon 
Seed. 
 

137 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 15 November 2016. 
 

138 Minutes - Capital Assets Committee 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016. 
 

139 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

140 Leader's announcements 
 
The Leader thanked those officers and councillors who had sent messages and 
given their support recently. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
141 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 

 
Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe stated, in response to a question raised by 
Councillor Jon Hubbard, that she was also disappointed with the outcome of the 
Ofsted inspection into the Adult and Community Learning Service. It was 
acknowledged that the officers in the service had worked hard, but that given 
the limited resources available, consideration should be given as to how best to 
deliver the service in the future. 
 

142 Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q2 2016/17 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which provided an update on 
second quarter outturns against the measures and activities compiled and 
reported through the council’s website via the Citizens’ Dashboard and other 
key measures, as well as the latest outturns on the council’s strategic risk 
register. Councillor Tonge invited other Cabinet Members to highlight areas 
within their respective portfolios. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
that the claimant rate is below and the employment rate is above the national 
average; that incubation centres have proved a success; that the ultrafast 
broadband tender is being published and further funding had been secured to 
help reach hard to reach areas, and that it is hoped to see a range of potential 
providers bidding for the contract; that the Council is also lobbying the 
Government to help provide 100% coverage for broadband. 
 
Also that use of libraries in Wiltshire is going up, in a large part due to 
colocation of services; the rate of policy change nationally has made life difficult 
for planning officers; that the amount of waste diverted from landfill target had 
been met despite some disruption; that a successful prosecution had been 
made for a flytipper; that there had been a 50% increase in registration to use 
the MyWiltshire App, with a reduction in costs attributed to its use, and that it 
can be used for a range of other services; that GCSE results would be 
published soon. 
 
With regard to Health & Social Care: that the Council were inviting people for 40 
plus health checks; that with regard to homecare that the national picture was of 
an average cost per hour of over £16, but that Wiltshire was third highest payer 
with  £19.10 per hour on average; the increase in the use of leisure services; 
that the recruitment and retention of social workers showed continued good 
progress and vacancy rate is reducing; and how volunteers can be used to 
support a range of services. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Simon Killane, Councillor Richard 
Gamble stated that whilst there was a risk regarding school infrastructure, 
Wiltshire had a good track record and working relationship with the academies 
in Wiltshire. 

Page 14



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
In response to a question from Councillor Simon Killane, Councillor Jerry 
Wickham stated that Wiltshire Council pays travel time for home carers in part 
in recognition of the rural nature of the county.  
 
Councillor Dick Tonge went on to outline the Risk Register including: how risk is 
defined and the approach to measuring risk; the major changes in the register, 
including the number of looked after children that had increased due to the 
recent number unaccompanied asylum seekers presenting at the County; the 
increased risk on Information Governance, and the fines have increased for 
failures. 
 
Councillor Glenis Ansell, Chair of the Scrutiny Task Group, stated that they had 
reviewed the Risk Register and were content with it.  In response to a specific 
issue to Calne, Councillor Jerry Wickham stated that he had been aware of a 
maintenance issue, now addressed, with an air quality measurement device in 
Devizes but would investigate the issue in Calne. 
 
In response to an issue raised by Councillor Chuck Berry, the Leader stated 
that no announcement had been made about any extra money for social care, 
and the final settlement for Wiltshire Council had not been made yet in any 
event.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the updates and outturns: 
 

1. Against the measures and activities ascribed against the council’s 
key Outcomes; and 
 

2. The strategic risk register. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The performance framework compiles and monitors outturns in relation to the 
outcomes laid out in Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan. The framework is 
distilled from individual services’ delivery plans. In doing so, it captures the main 
focus of activities of the council against each outcome. 
 
The strategic risk register captures and monitors significant risks facing the 
council: in relation to significant in-service risks facing individual areas, in 
managing its business across the authority generally and in assuring our 
preparedness should a national risk event occur. 
 

143 Public Health Annual Report 2015/16 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which informed the Cabinet 
members of Public Health activity in Wiltshire during 2015/2016. 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
impact of the proportionately older population; the focus on preventative work; 
that life expectancy, especially for men, had improved; the decrease in teen 
pregnancies; the participation in the Big Pledge; the increase in the participation 
in the Dementia Friendly scheme; the adoption of the Purple Flag scheme; how 
incidents, such as anthrax, were dealt with; the information and training made 
available with Parishes as part of emergency planning; and how Areas Boards 
may be able to provide links across community groups.  
 
In response to an issue raised by Councillor Simon Killane, that whilst there was 
a role for the Adult Safeguarding Board in holding NHS partners to account over 
the issues raised in the CQC report into the way NHS trusts, nationally, review 
and investigate the deaths of patients in England, but that it was not a direct 
responsibility for the Council. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the Public Health Annual Report 2015/2016  
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To formally present the Annual Report to Cabinet and provide an opportunity to 
express any views. 
 

144 Commissioning of Carers Services 
 

 Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which set out a 
recommissioning plan for those services and sought approval for that plan. The 
report proposed a plan for the future commissioning of carers’ support in 
Wiltshire.  
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that services for carers over 18 and under were contracted separately, and that 
the Council wanted to be able to have one contact that can be commissioned; 
the joint funding provided from CCG and Wiltshire Council for services provided; 
and how mergers between some carers centres have reduced costs. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the recommissioning plan for carers’ services set out below: 
 

a) Approve the exemption of the extension to the current partnership 
arrangement to March 2018 

 
b) Approve the commencement of a competitive tender process for a 

new carers’ support service during 2016-17, ready for 
implementation 1st April 2018 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
c) Delegate authority to award a new contract commencing 1st April 

2018 to the Corporate Director for Children's Services and Adults 
Social Services following consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Health (including Public Health) and Adult Social Care, the 
Associate Director, Finance, the Associate Director, Legal and 
Governance and the Associate Director Corporate Function, 
Procurement and Programme Office. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The Partnership arrangement with Carers Support Wiltshire has existed since 
2010 and has never been tendered. This paper outlines a plan to allow for the 
recommissioning of the service within two stages. 
 
Stage 1: Continuing with the partnership as it currently stands will enable CSW 
to continue in their role as an influential partner for carers at a time when we will 
be embarking on a number of key commissioning initiatives that will directly 
impact on carer service provision. The partnership arrangement will permit the 
flexibility required in order to pilot new approaches and embed new service 
processes prior to embarking upon a full tender activity. 
 
Stage 2: To approve the commissioning of carers support services ready for 
commencement on 1 April 2018. 
 

145 Direct Payment Support Service 
 

 Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which detailed the 
procurement exercise that had commenced in October 2016 to recommission 
the Direct Payment Support Service to allow for a seamless transition; and 
recommended that delegated authority be agreed by Cabinet to award the 
contract. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
legislative requirements to provide direct parents; and how payments are used 
to support people who need care, to allow them to take ownership of their own 
care plans. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve delegated authority to award a contract to the preferred 
provider/s identified as a result of the tender process to Associate 
Director for Adult Care Commissioning and Housing, following 
consultation with Councillor Jerry Wickham, Cabinet Member for Health 
(including Public Health) and Adult Social Care; the Associate Director, 
Finance; and the Associate Director, Legal and Governance. 
 
Reason for Decision: 

Page 17



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Direct payments give customers the ability to take control of social care services 
and commission the support they want to meet their identified eligible needs. 
The re procurement of a direct payment support service will provide a cost 
effective means to meet some of the Council’s statutory responsibilities under 
the Care Act 2014. Giving delegated authority will ensure the timely 
procurement of this service. 
 

146 Council Tax Base 2017/2018 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which asked Cabinet to consider 
and approve the Council Tax Base 2017/2018. In moving his recommendation, 
Councillor Tonge proposed to amend the second recommendation as outlined 
in the report. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how exempt properties are classified and identified; how the MOD estate pay 
council tax separately; how the collection rate is calculated; and how bad debts 
are provided for. 
 
In response to a question raised by Councillor Gordon King, the Leader stated 
that Wiltshire politicians had lobbied hard to express their concern regarding the 
proposed cap to Parish and Town Council’s precept, and that no announcement 
had yet been made. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To consider and approve the Council Tax Base 2017/2018. 
 

2. To note that the recommended collection rate adjustments are set 
at the same level as 2016/2017, that is 99.75% and 82.50% where 
local council tax support reductions (discounts) in respect to 
working age claimants was applied. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
Before the Council Tax can be set by the Council in February 2017 a calculation 
has to be made and approved of the Council Tax Base, which is an annual 
requirement as laid out in the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 

147 Proposal to change the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2017 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which asked Cabinet’s to 
recommend to the meeting of Council that it agree proposals to make changes 
to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTR) with effect from April 2017. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
suggestion to bring the process more in line with other regulations for other 

Page 18



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

benefits; the responses to the consultation; the number of households who 
receive support; that the changes would not affect pensioners, but just working 
age people; the principles applied for the review; that there is a scheme that can 
be accessed to assist people who may get into financial difficulties. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Councillor Glenis Ansell, Councillor Tonge 
stated that they had considered how the changes may affect those individuals 
and families already in debt, and that the Council does work carefully with 
vulnerable families in particular. 
 
Resolved 
 
To recommend to Council to agree changes to the council tax reduction 
scheme as set out at section 18 of this report, with effect from April 2017. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
It is an annual requirement for the council to review its local Council Tax 
Reduction (CTR) scheme and make recommendations for change as required. 
 
Since its introduction in April 2013 the scheme has been ‘refreshed’ annually to 
take account of minor data changes, but the core elements have been retained. 
 
However in the last 18 months there have been some changes to the national 
housing benefit scheme and it was felt that without timely intervention the 
schemes would drift apart causing both administrative difficulties and confusion 
for the customer. With further reductions in funding it was felt that the scheme 
should also be reviewed, in comparison with other local authorities. 
 

148 Report on Treasury Management Strategy 2016-17 – Third Quarter ended 
30 September 2016 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which summarised the quarterly 
performance against the agreed Treasury Management Strategy. In giving his 
presentation, Councillor Tonge highlighted: that the Strategy had been adhered 
to, and that the Strategy itself would be reviewed and considered by Cabinet in 
the New Year. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note that the contents of this report are in line with the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To give members an opportunity to consider the performance of the Council in 
the period to the end of the quarter against the parameters set out in the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy for 2016-17. 

Page 19



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
149 Revenue and Capital Budget - Budget Monitoring Reports Period 7 

2016/2017 
 
The meeting considered the following reports: 
 

149(a)   Revenue Budget Report 

 Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which advised members of the 
revenue budget monitoring position as at the end of period 7 (end of October 
2016) for the financial year 2016/2017 with suggested actions as 
appropriate. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the impact of the revaluation of NNDR, and how it was managed; that a 
briefing note would be published to make the financial position clearer; the 
proposals to increase some charging which will increase income; the costs 
for transporting children for education, and the options that seek to address 
this. 
 
Councillor Glenis Ansell, Chair of the Task Group, stated that efforts to 
address projected overspends were being made, but that concerns 
remained over the use of reserves to address a proportion of this. 
 
In response to an issue raised by Councillor Jon Hubbard, it was noted that 
with regard to the budget for agency costs in relation to Children’s services, 
that the financial predictions had been realistic but that there had been an 
unexpected rise in numbers of looked after children. 
 
The Leader stated, in general terms, that it was worth noting that the 
Council’s budgets were large and complex; that it was therefore hard to 
predict and plan budgets; that it would be very unusual if there were no 
movements; and that the Council would always have to take actions to 
monitor them throughout the year. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the outcome of the period 7 (end of October) budget 
monitoring and to approve all budget virements outlined in the 
report.  

 
2. To approve the increase in leisure fees and charges, as set out 

at Appendix E in the report presented, from 1 February 2017. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To inform effective decision making and ensure a sound financial control 

Page 20



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

environment. 
 

149(b)   Capital Budget Monitoring 

 Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which informed Cabinet on the 
position of the 2016/2017 Capital Programme, as at Period 7 (31 October 
2016), including highlighting budget changes. In presenting his report, 
Councillor Tonge highlighted: how additional budgets had been added to the 
programmes; and how some budgets had been reduced or reprogrammed to 
take place in the following year. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital 
programme shown in appendices A and B; including 
reprogramming of £43.635 million between 2016/2017 and 
2017/2018. 

 
2. To note the position of the capital programme in Appendix A. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2016/2017 capital programme as at 
Period 7 (31 October 2016), including highlighting any budget changes. 
 

150 Procurement of a new temporary agency supplier 
 

 Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report sought approval to award the 
contract to the supplier as detailed in Appendix 1 of this report. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how the contract tender process has been run; the specialist skills available 
from outside providers; that three tenders had been submitted for the three year 
period; and the movement in agency costs and the desire to reduce costs 
further. 
 
Resolved 
 
To delegate to the Associate Director for People and Business Services 
following consultation with the Cabinet member for Finance and the 
Associate Director for Legal and Governance, the authority to approve: 
 

1. The extension of the current contract with Comensura until 31 
August; and 

 

Page 21



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

2. The award of contract for an initial three year period and the 
authority to exercise the option to extend the contract for one year 
subject to satisfactory performance. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The council has an ongoing requirement for agency staff to deliver its business 
and a contract to deliver temporary agency services meets this need. 
 

151 Castle Works, Castle Road Salisbury 
 

 Councillor Fleur de Rhé Phillipe presented the report sought approval to 
enter a joint sale agreement with Five Rivers Eco Homes Limited in respect of 
the Castle Works site, Castle Road, Salisbury (“Castle Works”). 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
relative complexity of the project; the benefits to the council from a capital 
receipts, the provision of new houses, and employment. 
 
Resolved 
 
To enter into a joint sale agreement with 5 Rivers Ecohomes for the 
disposal of Castle Works Salisbury on terms to be agreed by the 
Associate Director People and Business following consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, Strategic Transport 
and Strategic Property and the Associate Directors for Legal and 
Governance and Finance. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
A disposal will generate a capital receipt, safeguard employment in Wiltshire, 
and deliver affordable housing provision in line with policy. 
 

152 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

153 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

Resolved 

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighed the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 

Page 22



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Reason for taking the item in private: 

Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

No representations had been received as to why this item should not be held in 
private 

 
154 Procurement of a new temporary agency supplier (part ii) 

 
The Cabinet considered the information contained in the exempt report. 
 
Resolved 
 
That, in addition to the resolution at minute no. 150 above, to award the 
contract to the supplier as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report presented. 
 

155 Castle Works, Castle Road Salisbury (part ii) 
 
The Cabinet considered the information contained in the exempt report. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 11.48 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 
 
 

 
 

CABINET 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 17 JANUARY 2017 AT 
THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Dick Tonge, Cllr Jerry Wickham, 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Alan MacRae, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Glenis 
Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Chris Caswill, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Simon Killane and Cllr 
Gordon King 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies as all members of the Cabinet were in attendance.   
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 13 December 2016. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4 Leader's announcements 
 
The Leader welcomed everyone to the meeting, including David Godfrey visiting 
from the Department for Communities & Local Government. 
 
The Leader aslo announced that the meeting would be webcast. 
 
 

5 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Leader invited those wishing to make representations, to do so under the 
item to which they related. The Leader also explained that, as usual at meetings 
of Cabinet, she would be more than happy to hear from any member of the 
public present on any of the items on the agenda. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
6 Housing Repairs Contract Extension 

 

 Councillor Jonathon Seed presented the report which sought approval for 
an extension to the responsive repairs and voids contract with Emmdee (MD) 
Building Services Ltd to 31st March 2018. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that extending the contract would give the Council more time to consider 
options for combining different contracts; the involvement of Scrutiny; the 
provision for funding made within the Housing Revenue Account; the viability of 
bringing some services in-house; and how further changes would be reported. 
 
In response to questions from Councillor Glenis Ansell and Councillor Gordon 
King, it was stated that service improvements had been made, and that tenant 
complaints had fallen as a result 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the extension of the current contract with MD Building 
Services Ltd to 31st March 2018. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
To enable the Housing Service to have sufficient time to analyse and explore 
future service delivery options and procure a new service with limited impact to 
service performance and to bring the housing repairs and voids contract in line 
with the other contracts relating to maintenance of the housing stock. 
 

7 Army Basing LGA Peer Review 
 
The Leader presented the report which provided members with an update on 
the LGA Peer Review of Army Basing and recommended way forward. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
contribution made by Scrutiny members to the programme and the review; the 
thanks offered by the Cabinet to officers for working hard to ensure the success 
of the programme, particularly Kevin Ladner from the Economy & Planning 
Team; the opportunities for the Council to share best practice with colleagues in 
other authorities; the impacts of the programme on health and school 
programmes, and how the Council works with partners to identify solutions. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the Peer Review of the council’s role in the Army Basing 

Programme and its recommendations 
 

Page 26



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

2. To endorse that officers continue their work in supporting the Army 
Basing Programme, and that the Peer Review be publicised as an 
example of best practice nationally at an LGA seminar in May 2017 
 

3. To send a letter of thanks to James Coote for his contribution to 
making the Army Basing Programme a success. 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
Supporting the Army Basing Plan is fundamental to key action 7 of the council’s 
Business Plan. The council, MOD and Army have been working together to 
make sure that military growth is accommodated while continuing to maintain 
balanced communities with opportunities for veterans, military personnel, and 
their families, and the right services such as skills, education, and health. The 
LGA has recommended to the council that it publicise the findings of the review 
and use it as an exemplar programme which will help ensure that optimal 
solutions can be delivered across MOD sites both in Wiltshire and nationally. 
 
 

8 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

9 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighed the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 

 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
No representations had been received as to why this item should not be held in 
private 
 

10 Housing Repairs Contract Extension 
 
The Cabinet considered the information contained in the exempt report. 
 
Resolved 

Page 27



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
That the report be received and noted. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 9.57 am) 

 

These decisions were published, earlier, on the 19 January 2017 and will 
come into force on 27 January 2017 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati, of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

 

Page 28



 
 
 

 
 
 

CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 7 FEBRUARY 2017 AT 
THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Dick Tonge, 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr 
Richard Clewer, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Simon Killane and Cllr 
Horace Prickett and Cllr Macdonald 
  

 
11 Apologies 

 
There were apologies received as all members of the Cabinet were in 
attendance. 
 

12 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 17 January 2017. 
 

13 Minutes - Capital Assets Committee 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2017. 
 

14 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

15 Leader's announcements 
 
The Leader confirmed that this meeting would be webcast live.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Leader announced that with the consent of the meeting, she would be 
leaving the meeting early, at which point, the Deputy Leader would assume the 
Chair.  The Leader also explained that the item on the Wiltshire Council’s 
Financial Plan 2017/18 would be taken at the start of the agenda immediately 
after Public Participation. 
 

16 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
Councillor Jon Hubbard offered his thanks, and those of two of his local 
constituents, to Councillor Jerry Wickham for his and his officers’ efforts in 
becoming only the second area in the County to have signed, jointly with the 
Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), the Motor Neurone Disease 
charter. 
 
Councillor Wickham thanked Councillor Hubbard for raising the issue with him, 
and that he was very pleased to have the CCG involved as it would make the 
signing of the charter more impactful. 
 
There were no questions from members of the public and the Leader explained 
that anyone present, elected members or public could raise issues relating to 
items on the agenda.  
 

17 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan 2017/18 
 
The Leader presented the report which outlined the draft proposals to Council at 
its budget meeting on 21 February 2017 for the adoption of Wiltshire Council’s 
Financial Plan 2017/18. In addition, the Leader presented amendments to these 
proposals, circulated at the meeting and available as a supplement.  
 
It was noted that the amendments had been considered by the relevant officers 
and judged to be vires and deliverable, would do not impact adversely on the 
substantive proposals as they would not change the net budget requirement, 
the level of Council Tax or reserves proposed. 
 
The Leader invited Councillor Dick Tonge to present the budget report and 
other Cabinet Members to highlight any proposals within their respective 
portfolios. 
 
The Leader invited Councillor Simon Killane and Councillor Glenis Ansell to 
comment on the scrutiny process. The report of the Financial Planning Task 
Group chaired by Cllr Ansell held on 27 January and the report of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Management Committee chaired by Cllr Killane held on 1 February 
as published were referred to. The Leader thanked scrutiny for its input into the 
budget process. The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee would at 
its meeting on 14 February consider any opposition amendments to the budget. 
The Leader suggested that this would be an opportunity for Scrutiny to consider 
the Administration’s amendments presented and this was agreed by Cllr Killane.  
 

Page 30



 
 
 

 
 
 

The s151 Officer confirmed that there had not been final confirmation from the 
Government as to the financial settlement, and that any movement would be 
dealt with from reserves. 
 
Resolved  
 
To recommend that Council:  
  
a. Endorses the update of the Financial Plan for 2017/18.  
 
b. Approve the investment and savings proposals summarised at 
Sections 7 and 9 respectively of this report and at Appendix 1, to provide 
a net revenue budget for 2017/18 of £311.351 million.  
 
c. To vote separately:  
 
i. Set the Council’s total net expenditure budget for 2017/18 at £311.351 
million.  
 
ii. Revise the Social Care Levy proposed to Council in October 2016 and 
propose a further 1% increase to 3%, with the Council Tax increase 
remaining in line with Council’s October decision, at 1.99%  
 
iii. Approve the Capital programme proposed at Appendix 1E of this 
report.  
 
iv. Set the changes in fees and charges set out in detail at Section 8 of 
and at Appendix 1G of this report.  
 
v. Set a 1% reduction for social dwelling rents.  
 
vi. Set the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget for 2017/18 as set out 
at Appendix 1F of this report.  
 
vii. That all other service charges related to the HRA be increased by CPI 
plus 1%, including garage rents. 
 
d. That the following amendments be incorporated into the 

recommendation: 
 
i) Visit Wiltshire – to limit the reduction in the grant funding to 

£50,000. 

ii) Wiltshire Parent Carers Council (WPCC), increase investment by 

£50,000. 

iii) Extend the opening hours at Salisbury (Churchfields), Chippenham 

(Stanton St Quintin) and Trowbridge (Canal Road) Household 

Recycling Centres (HRCs) by one day per  week from April to 

October by investing an additional £175,000. 

Page 31



 
 
 

 
 
 

iv) Additional £100,000 investment in the development of staff. 

To be funded from: 

v) Marketing and communications to find £175,000. 

vi) To fund £200,000 of Preventative Property Maintenance from Whole 

Life Capital funding. 

e.     That the above mentioned amendments to the budget be referred to 

the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee at its meeting on 

14 February 2017 for consideration and comment.  

  
Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable Council to:  
 
Set its revenue, capital, housing revenue accounts, fees and charges, levels of 
reserves and resultant Council Tax and Social Care Levy for 2017/18, as well 
as to issue Council Tax and rent bills.  
 
Provide the Council with a strong business and financial plan for sustainable 
delivery for 2017-18.  
  

18 Revenue Budget Monitoring 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which advised members of the 
revenue budget monitoring position as at the end of period 9 (end of December 
2016) for the financial year 2016/2017 with suggested actions as appropriate. In 
presenting the report, Councillor Tonge outlined the variances and the actions 
taken to address overspends. 
 
The Leader thanked Councillor Tonge for the report and commended Cabinet 
Members and officers for working hard to address these issues. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the outcome of the period 9 (end of December) budget 
monitoring. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To inform effective decision making and ensure a sound financial control 
environment. 
 

19 Capital Budget Monitoring 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which informed Cabinet on the position of 
the 2016/2017 Capital Programme, as at Period 9 (end of December 2016), including 
highlighting budget changes. A budget monitoring report to members is taken to 

Page 32



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee quarterly in September, December, February and 
June. The report presented focused on major variations in the budget. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital programme shown 

in appendices A and B; including reprogramming of £14.142 million between 
2016/2017 and 2017/2018. 
 

2. To also note the position of the capital programme in Appendix A of the 
report presented. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 

To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2016/2017 capital programme as at 
Period 9 (and of December 2016), including highlighting any budget changes. 
 

20 Treasury Management Strategy 2017-18 
 
Councillor Dick Tonge presented the report which requested Cabinet to 
consider and recommend that the Council approve the Prudential and Treasury 
Indicators, together with the Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/2018. In 
presenting the report, Councillor Tonge explained that the Icelandic bank debt 
had fallen to the point where it was now being dealt with as part of the normal 
debtors processes. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Glenis Ansell, the s151 Officer 
confirmed that the local authorities did not have a separate credit rating. 
 
Resolved 
 
To recommend that the Council: 
 
a) adopt the Prudential and Treasury Indicators (Appendix A) of the 

report presented. 
 

b) adopt the Annual Investment Strategy (Appendix B) of the report 
presented.  

 
c)      delegate to the Associate Director, Finance the authority to vary the 

amount of borrowing and other long term liabilities within both the 
Treasury Indicators for the Authorised Limit and the Operational 
Boundary; 

 
d)  authorise the Associate Director, Finance to agree the restructuring 

of existing long-term loans where savings are achievable or to 
enhance the long term portfolio; 

 
e)  agree that short term cash surpluses and deficits continue to be 

managed through temporary loans and deposits; and 
 

Page 33



 
 
 

 
 
 

f)  agree that any surplus cash balances not required to cover 
borrowing are placed in authorised money-market funds, 
particularly where this is more cost effective than short term 
deposits and delegate to the Associate Director, Finance the 
authority to select such funds. 

 
Reason for Decisions 
 
To enable the Council to agree a Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/2018 
and set Prudential Indicators that comply with statutory guidance and reflect 
best practice. 
 

 
Councillor John Thomson, Deputy Leader in the Chair 

 
21 Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy 

 
 Councillor Jonathon Seed presented the report which considers the 

background and context to the development of the Council’s first Playing Pitch 
Strategy, which comprised four documents; the Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy; 
the Action Plan; the Community Area Profiles; the full needs assessment. 
Cabinet was requested to formally adopt the Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy 
and associated documents that would be used in decision making and to inform 
the development of planning policy.  
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Seed stated that: the document and maps 
would be updated as further information was received; that the link between 
sport and health was key; and that he would be happy to consider any specific 
issues raised by Members as part of this process. 
 
Resolved 
 
a) To formally adopt the Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy, Action Plan, 

Community Area Profiles and Needs Assessment to inform decision 
making and policy development. 

 
b) That the Strategy Development Steering Group is to evolve into the 

body overseeing the Playing Pitch Strategy on behalf of the Council 
and reporting to the relevant Cabinet officers on an annual basis, 
with an annual report to be provided to Environment Select 
Committee.  This group to be renamed the Wiltshire Playing Pitch 
Strategy Implementation Group.  
 

Reasons for Decisions: 
 
A Playing Pitch Strategy for Wiltshire is an important document that underpins 
the core strategy and provides robust evidence for organisations such as Sport 
England who are statutory consultees in the planning process. Whilst not a 
statutory requirement in itself, the Playing Pitch Strategy is vital in providing an 

Page 34



 
 
 

 
 
 

informed evidence base for the protection and future development of formal 
outdoor space. 
 
The Playing Pitch Strategy will help to influence a variety of local authority 
functions, policy development and decision making in respect of the community 
playing pitch stock, including planning policy and planning applications, 
educational provision, funding, facility and asset management, development of 
pitch based sports, public health and the management and maintenance of 
provision. 
 
The presence of a Playing Pitch Strategy is seen as best practice by the 
Department for Culture Media and Sport and Sport England. 
 

22 School Admission 2018/19 
 
Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which presented the four elements 
of the Admissions Policy which, following consultation, were required to be 
determined by Cabinet. Councillor Mayes, in presenting her report, commended 
the staff for their hard work and commented on the increase in the number of 
parents accessing the service online. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve: 
 

a) the proposed scheme for the co-ordination of admission to 
secondary schools for 2018/19. 
 

b) the proposed scheme for the co-ordination of admissions to 
primary schools for 2018/19. 
 

c) the proposed admission arrangements for Voluntary Controlled & 
Community Secondary Schools for 2018/19. 
 

d) the proposed admission arrangements for Voluntary Controlled & 
Community Primary Schools for 2018/19. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The Local Authority has a statutory duty to have a determined admission policy 
for 2018/19 in place on or before 28 February 2017. 
 

23 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

24 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 35



 
 
 

 
 
 

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following item of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighed the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
No representations had been received as to why this item should not be held in 
private. 
 

25 Procurement of housing related support contract 
 

 Councillor Jonathon Seed presented a report which sought to obtain 
delegated approval to proceed with the procurement exercise to recommission 
housing related support services to meet the identified needs of a range of 
customer groups within the approved budget. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To approve the commencement of re-commissioning of housing 
related support services ensuring that there is a balance of housing 
related support services provided across all customer groups 
which will reflect the up to date needs;  and  

 
2. To delegates authority to the Associate Director for Housing, 

following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Leisure, Libraries and Flooding and the Cabinet for Finance, to 
award contracts within the approved budget 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 10.46 am) 

 
These decisions were published, earlier, on 10 February 2017 and will come into 

force on 20 February 2017 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718024, e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 36



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES of a MEETING held in THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN on Tuesday, 15 November 2016. 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe 

Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property 

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and 
Waste 

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband 

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance 
 
Also in Attendance: Cllr Philip Whitehead 

Cllr Jerry Wickham 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve 
Cllr Bridget Wayman 
 

 
Key Decisions   Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council’s Forward 

Work Plan are shown as  

 
53 Apologies and Substitutions 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE who was 
substituted by Cllr Stuart Wheeler. 
 

54 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting heldl 
on 13 September 2016. 
 

55 Leader's Announcements 
 
There were no leaders announcements. 
 

56 Declarations of interest 
 
Upon receipt of advice from the Monitoring Officer, Councillor Thomson 
confirmed that being the division member for the Sherston area did not 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

constitute a personal interest and therefore he confirmed he had no disclosable 
interest in the Sherston land proposals. 
 

57 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
It was noted that no requests for public participation had been received. The 
Deputy Leader did however explain that, as usual at meetings of Cabinet and its 
committees, he would be more than happy to hear from any member of the 
public present on any of the items on the agenda. 
 

58 Sherston: Land North of Sopworth Road 
 

 Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe presented the report which sought an 
agreement that, in the event that the Sherston Neighbourhood Plan, support 
be given to the allocation of development of the land north of Sopworth 
Road, Sherston, and to seek authority to enter into and complete a land 
transaction with the owner, a condition of which will be the provision of land 
for a replacement GP Surgery. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
desire to support local parish and community in acquiring land for health 
facilities; and that the decision would give flexibility if other conditions are met. 
 

Resolved 
 
That in the event that the Neighbourhood Plan is made and it allocates 
land north of Sopworth Road, Sherston for development to: 
 

1. Enter into and complete a land transaction with the owner to 
enable development to take place in accordance with the 
Neighbourhood Plan on terms to be agreed, subject to 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property. 

 
2. Include in the transaction an area of land sufficient to 

provide a GP Surgery. 
 
In the further event that the CCG confirms long-term funding 
provision for the GP Surgery in Sherston to: 

 
3. Sell the land for the replacement GP Surgery to a developer, the 

doctors themselves, or some other third party, with the sale 
agreement providing for the construction of the facility. 

 
4. Review the decision in 5 years’ time in the event that the 

construction of the replacement GP Surgery has not been 
secured. 

 

Page 38



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To support the ambitions of the Sherston community in the preparation of 
its Neighbourhood Plan and, in the event that the ‘made’ Neighbourhood 
Plan includes the development of the land north of Sopworth Road 
Sherston, to facilitate its delivery. 
 

59 East Wing Redevelopment Proposal 
 
Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe presented the report which provided an update 
to the Committee on the options being explored for future redevelopment of the 
East Wing site and sought approval for the proposed approach for further work. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
what options had been explored on the sites; that Wiltshire Council was aware of 
the community’s wishes; the implications of the one public estate programme; 
and that further approvals may be required further into the project. 
 
At the invitation of the Deputy Leader, the Rev Dearlove spoke about the desire 
of Breakthrough project in developing facilities in Rothermere House. He 
expressed concern that any proposals may lead to the demolition of the building. 
 
In response, Councillor de Rhé-Philipe clarified that the impetus for purchasing 
the site was to secure the control of access for the wider site, and that there 
were no current plans to demolish the older part of the Rothermere House. She 
also instructed officers to liaise with Rev Dearlove to seek further information 
about his proposals and to keep him updated. 
 
Councillor Steve Oldrieve emphasised the concerns of the Trowbridge Area 
Board expressed at its meeting on 10 November that it had not been appraised 
of the contents of the paper and that this had been communicated in a letter 
from Cllr Graham Payne, Chairman of the Area Board. 
 
In response, the Deputy Leader explained that he  had appraised  the Area 
Board of the project proposals and progress when he attended the Area Board 
meeting in July. Furthermore, he considered that he had heeded the view from 
the Area Board, expressed to him at that time, to expedite the project without 
delay.  Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe reminded the Committee that of course 
the report presented for this item was accessible by all members of the Council.  
 
Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director clarified that he had offered to meet with 
Cllr Payne to brief him on the proposals and this offer was declined.  
  
In response to further questions, Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe stated that she 
did not think that any of the options, included in more detail in the part ii paper, 
were in conflict with the Trowbridge Masterplan which had been the subject of 
extensive proposals. 
 

Page 39



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
(i)             To notes the work completed to date on exploring the 

redevelopment opportunities for the East Wing site. 
 
(ii)           To approve the recommended approach for taking the work 

forward as set out in Table 1 and in the Next Steps section of this 
report (from paragraph 30). 

 
(iii)         To delegate authority to the Associate Director People and 

Business in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, 
the Associate Director Economic Development and Associate 
Director Finance, to complete negotiations for the acquisition of 
Rothermere House in line with the approach set out in Appendix B 
of the part ii paper, and subject to acceptable financial terms. 

 
(iv)         To delegate authority to the Associate Director Economic 

Development and Planning, in consultation with the Associate 
Director Finance and Cabinet Member for Economic Development, 
Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, to progress the 
project as detailed; to be brought back to Cabinet for key updates 
and decisions, as required. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To provide an update on progress and seek Cabinet’s support for the 
recommended approach to progress work in relation to the redevelopment of 
the East Wing site. 
 

60 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

61 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 

Page 40



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
No representations have been received as to why this item should not be held 
in private. 
 

62 East Wing Redevelopment Proposal 
 
The meeting noted the content of the report. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.09 am) 

 
 

 

These decisions were published on the 16 November 2016 and will come into force 
on 24 November 2016. 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935 or e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk   
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES of a MEETING held in THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN on Tuesday, 17 January 2017. 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe 

Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property 

Cllr Baroness Scott of B
ybrook OBE 

Leader of the Council 

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and 
Waste 

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband 

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance 
 
 
Also in Attendance: Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cllr 

Philip Whitehead, Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr 
Simon Killane, Cllr Chris Caswill, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard 
Gamble, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE and Cllr Alan 
MacRae 
 

 
Key Decisions   Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council’s Forward 

Work Plan are shown as  

 
 

63 Apologies and Substitutions 
 
There were no apologies as all members of the Committee were in attendance.   
 

64 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 15 November 2016. 
 

65 Leader's Announcements 
 
The Leader announced that the meeting would be webcast today. 
 

66 Declarations of interest 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

67 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Leader invited Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe to respond verbally to the 
questions received from Councillor John Knight, Richard Hames, Anne 
Henshaw, Kim Stuckey, Nick Murry and Stephen Eades. 
 
A copy of the questions and responses is appended to these minutes.  
 

68 Schools Capital Infrastructure Update Report 2016 - 2019 
 

 Councillor Laura Mayes presented the report which asked the meeting to 
agree the Schools Capital Investment Programme for 2017- 2020. In giving her 
presentation, Councillor Mayes thanked the officers for their hard work. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
progress made with the current programme; the limited funding available from 
central government; how officers maximise contributions from developers; and 
how work is prioritised. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the status of March 2014 approved school capital schemes 
as shown at Appendix A (all complete). 
 

2. To note the updated (previously approved) School Capital 
Programme as shown at Appendix B. 

 
3. To consider and approve the proposed new Basic Need schemes 

subject to planning approval and completed S106 negotiations as at 
Appendix C. 
 

4. To approve the Schools Planned Maintenance Programme totalling 
£2.5M for 2017/18 as outlined at Appendix D and to agree that a 
further £2.0M be held pending identified priorities for 2018/19. 
 

5. To approve the Condition (Improvements) and Mobile Classroom 
Replacement Programme for 2017/18 as outlined at Appendix E. 
 

6. To authorise the Corporate Director for Children Services to invite 
and evaluate tenders for the projects described in this report, and, 
following consultation with the cabinet member, to award the 
contract for the project (subject to approval of any necessary 
statutory proposals) and to authorise, in consultation with the Head 
of Strategic Asset & FM (or the Asset Portfolio Manager (Estates), in 
accordance with the relevant scheme of sub-delegation (under 

Page 44



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

paragraph 7 of Part 3B of Wiltshire Council’s constitution)), the 
acquisition of all land (and the completion of any legal 
documentation) reasonably required in order to facilitate the 
Schools Capital Investment Programme. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to provide sufficient school places to meet the 
demand arising across Wiltshire, whether from demographic or population 
change, strategic housing development growth and the Army Re-Basing 
programme. The approved Wiltshire School Places Strategy 2015- 2020 and its 
Implementation Plan identifies the priority basic need schemes requiring capital 
investment in the short, medium and longer term and this updated proposed 
Schools Capital Investment Programme will enable the priority works to be 
progressed. The Council also has Landlord responsibilities for the effective 
management and maintenance of the schools (for which the Council is 
responsible) estate and the investment programme will enable urgent and 
priority repairs and maintenance projects to proceed. 
 

69 Declaration of Sedgehill Estate as Surplus so that it can be sold on the 
open market 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought approval for officers 
to add the rural estate property in the Sedgehill area to the list of properties 
scheduled for disposal on the open market. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
condition of the property; the current use of the property; and whether the 
investing in the property was preferable to its sale.  
 
Resolved  
 

1. To declare the rural estate property in Sedgehill area as Surplus so 
that it can be sold on the open market. 

 
2. To further delegate specific decisions on the lotting of the property, 

method of sale, negotiations with outgoing tenants and interim 
management arrangements to the Associate Director for People and 
Business in consultation with Cabinet Member for Strategic 
Planning, Development Management, Strategic Housing, 
Operational Property and Waste. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To enable the sale of the Council’s rural estate property in the Sedgehill area as 
Surplus in order to generate capital receipts which will contribute to the 

Page 45



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Council’s Capital programme and Treasury Management Plan and to divest the 
Council of assets which have a high cost repairing liability in relation to their 
revenue potential. 
 

70 Assets to be declared surplus 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe presented the report which asked the meeting to 
consider whether to declare seven assets surplus and authorise their sale at or 
above market value. 
 
The Leader invited any additional questions regarding the specific assets. 
In response to a question from Councillor Chris Caswill, Councillor 
Fleur de Rhé-Philipe stated that the decision today was to place sites on the 
surplus list, and that any subsequent decision to sell any of the sites would be 
subject to the normal due diligence procedures at which time further 
consultation. Furthermore, if the land with the cycle track was to be sold, it 
would remain a public right of way and any decision to alter this would remain 
with the Council as Highways Authority. 
 
In response to questions from Councillor Alan Macrae and Andrew Hall, the 
Leader stated that officers were reviewing the status of the Martingate asset 
and would be in touch with parties in due course. Mr Hall further reiterated his 
company’s commitment to refurbishing the site, and maintaining the car park, 
but stated that this would only be possible if they owned the freehold. 
.  
Resolved 
 
1. That members declare the seven assets listed in the report as assets 

held for sale. 
 

2. To authorise the Associate Director for People and Business, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, 
Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance, to dispose of the assets at or above market 
value. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To declare assets surplus so that they can be sold in order to generate capital 
receipts in support of the council’s capital programme. 
 

71 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

72 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 

Page 46



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3  and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5 - information subject to legal privilege 
 
No representations have been received as to why this item should not be held 
in private. 
 

73 Declaration of rural estate property near Sedgehill as Surplus so that it 
can be sold on the open market 
 
The meeting noted the content of the report. 
 

74 Assets to be declared surplus - Part ii 
 
The meeting considered the content of the report. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the recommendations contained in the report presented with 
the exception of the recommendation for site two which was not adopted. 
 

75 Castledown Business Centre - Innovation Suite 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe presented the report which: provided an update to the 
committee on negotiations with the parties involved in the design and 
construction of the Business Centre relating to the remediation of the glazed 
façade; asked the Committee to consider the options available to remediate the 
glazed façade and propose a preferred option; and, on the basis of the 
preferred option, sought delegated authority to proceed with implementation of 
the remedial works required to ensure full operation of the Business Centre. 
 
Resolved 
 
To delegate authority to the Associate Director for People & Business, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, to appoint contractors to 

Page 47



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

deliver the remedial works required for the glazed façade at Castledown 
Business Park, and subsequently recoup these costs from the insurers of 
the designers. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To expedite delivery of the required remedial works to enable full operation of 
the council’s business centre at Castledown, Ludgershall, thereby maximising 
the benefit of the council’s existing investment and helping boost the local 
economy in line with council’s Business Plan 2013-17 Outcome 1. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00  - 11.00 am) 

 
 

 

These decisions were published on the XXXX and will come into force on XXXXX 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935 or e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk   
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

(b)   

Page 48



Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA SUPPLEMENT (2) 
 

Meeting: Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

Place: The Kennet Room - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN 

Date: Tuesday 17 January 2017 

Time: 10.00 am 
 

 
The Agenda for the above meeting was published on 9 January 2017. Additional 
documents are now available and are attached to this Agenda Supplement. 
 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713935 or email 
william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
 

5   Public Participation and Questions from Councillors (Pages 3 - 14) 

 
Responses to written questions received. 

 
 
 DATE OF PUBLICATION:  17 January 2017 

Page 7

Minute Item 67

Page 49

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8Page 50



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Councillor John Knight, Trowbridge Central Division 

Questions 

1. Could the retained area of the car park be free car parking for the first 30 

minutes to allow the public to collect prescriptions from the proposed new 

pharmacy and assist with short visits to the adjoining park? 

 

2. Could officers investigate how to mitigate the loss of car parking during 

construction as the pharmacy may well require the retained area of the car park 

as a builders compound, supplies deliver and turning. Possibly using land 

forming part of the park either immediately adjoining the car park or the area 

formerly occupied by the youth centre at Innox Road/Linden Place? 

 

3. What arrangements will be made for existing parking permit holders? 

 

4. Has the company considered that there already pharmacies nearby at Shires 

Gateway and Wingfield Road? 

Responses 

1. Parking Services will consider the request although such arrangements do not 
generally prevail elsewhere in similar circumstances 

 
2. If Members are minded to approve the recommendation then officers in 

Strategic Assets & Facilities Management together with those in Amenities & 
Leisure will discuss with the pharmacy how best to mitigate any inconvenience 
to the public both in respect of car parking and enjoyment of the adjoining park. 

 
3. It is anticipated that these will be suspended for the period of the construction 

works. However officers will investigate opportunities to mitigate any 
inconvenience. 

 
4.  The company has done so but believes this site would best serve the local 

community.  
 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

Page 9Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10Page 52



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Richard Hames 

Questions 

1. Could you please explain why the council consider six days is sufficient time for 

the public to read the agenda, understand what is behind the agenda and then 

comment on it. The agenda was published on 11 January and the meeting is on 

17 January. I would hope in future you would agree that in order to be 

transparent and democratic a longer period should be given. 

 

2. Could you please explain why you are selling and whether it is linked to 

potential development at Rawlings Green? 

 

3. How is the price determined? Can you confirm that it will be widely publicised 

and unless there is a good reason the highest price will be accepted. Will 

anyone other than the developer be interested in purchasing it?  

 

4. What guarantees will there be that the current public right-of-way continues? 

 

5. Who will maintain the land after the sale? 

 

6. As you are aware Rawlings Green is being looked at by the inspector and the 

current planning application has been referred to the Secretary of State. 

Therefore it seems totally premature to consider any such sale until the 

inspector has reported, the planning decision made either for or against, and 

the Secretary of State has given his approval to whatever the decision is. 

Responses 

1. The agenda was in fact published on 9 January and within the legally 
prescribed timescale giving 5 clear (working) days’ notice of the meeting.  In 
addition, notice that the Committee intended to consider the item ‘Assets to be 
declared Surplus’ was first published in the Council’s Forward Work Plan for the 
Cabinet Capital Assets Committee on 19 December 2016.  

 
2. As part of the process we are declaring this site as an asset held for sale, 

surplus to operational requirements 
 

Page 5Page 11Page 53



 The recommendations refer to a whole series of assets surplus to council 
requirements therefore it is listed and if asset is decided to be put up for 
disposal due diligence will be undertaken.  

 
 Yes, it is linked to Rawlings Green 
 
3. If we decide to sell then the site would be evaluated in accordance with council 

obligations under section 123 of the local government act 1972 
 
4. If we decide to sell any such issues will be picked up as part of due diligence. 
 
5. This question presupposes a sale refer back to response to question 2 
 
6. As is usual practice, the Council is able to consider the disposal of any assets 

in advance of planning permission and ensure that any disposal only takes 
place if planning permission is granted.  

 
 The Secretary of State has only directed the Council not to grant permission on 

the application without his specific authorisation. This is to enable him to 
consider (emphasis added) whether he should direct that the application be 
referred to him for determination. As his letter points out, the direction does not 
prevent the Council from considering the application and forming a view as to 
its merits, nor does it prevent the Council from refusing permission.  

 

 

 

Page 6Page 12Page 54



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Anne Henshaw 

Question 

Please inform me whether this could lead to any possible change in the status or 

nature of this track and its immediate surrounds in the future.  As a much valued 

public path between Calne and Chippenham we would certainly lodge objections if 

this were to be the case? 

Response  

The council recognises the important role of the North Wiltshire Rivers Route. If we 

decide to sell, we recognise the value of the cycle path and due diligence would 

cover issues such as these. 

 

 

Page 7Page 13Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14Page 56



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Kim Stuckey 

Question 

I have only today found out the detail of the Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

meeting next Tuesday 17th January, and in particular Site 2 – Land at Darcy Close. 

I am very concerned not about the strip of land as titled at Darcy Close, but the 

hatched area at the top of the plan, being the old dismantled track bed and 

embankment of the disused Chippenham-Calne railway. 

This is used as a cycling and walking link between National Cycle Route 403 and 

Chippenham Station, avoiding a steep hill at Black Bridge Road and is a vital part of 

the sustainable transport  infrastructure in Chippenham. I have and continue to use 

this route for cycling. 

If this area of land is being sold off, what restrictions are being put on purchasers to 

keep in place the cycle track and maintain it? Will it remain open as a right of way? 

Have discussions taken place with Sustrans about the implications of this sale? At a 

time where the issue of sustainable transport is so important to the public and indeed 

the Council, could it be made clear about the guarantees about the future use of this 

route, rather than just being a hatched area on a map and an asset sale? 

Response  

The council recognises the important role of the North Wiltshire Rivers Route. If we 

decide to sell, we recognise the value of the cycle path and due diligence would 

cover issues such as these. 

 

 

 

Page 9Page 15Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16Page 58



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Nick Murry 

Question 

I would be grateful if you would inform me whether the rights of way on the footpath 

and cycle path will be in any way affected by this proposed sale? 

If use of the footpath and/or the cycle path are in any way affected, currently or in the 

long term, I wish to strongly object to the inclusion of the footpath and/or cycle path 

as part of this proposed sale and for my objection to be registered at the forthcoming 

meeting referenced above. 

Response  

The council recognises the important role of the North Wiltshire Rivers Route. If we 

decide to sell, we recognise the value of the cycle path and due diligence would 

cover issues such as these. 

 

 

Page 11Page 17Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18Page 60



Wiltshire Council 

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee 

17 January 2017 

 

Questions from Stephen Eades 

Question 

I am chair of N. Wiltshire Friends of the Earth.  We would like to enquire whether the 

selling off by Wiltshire Council of land which it currently owns at Rawlings Green, 

Chippenham, which is part of the old railway and is now part of the the footpath and 

cycle path from Chippenham to Calne, will result in the footpath and cycle path being 

in any way being compromised in the future for this specific use ? 

Could you please inform us? 

If its use as a footpath will be affected, we would like to register in writing – which 

this email would now constitute – a formal objection to this proposal at the Council 

meeting on 17th January 

Response  

The council recognises the important role of the North Wiltshire Rivers Route. If we 

decide to sell, we recognise the value of the cycle path and due diligence would 

cover issues such as these. 

 

 

Page 13Page 19Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20Page 62



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice 
Chairman), Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Simon Killane (Chairman), 
Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Stephen Oldrieve, Cllr Tony Trotman, 
Cllr John Walsh, Cllr Bridget Wayman, Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Substitute) and 
Cllr Philip Whalley (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr John Thomson and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
93 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Howard Greenman and Christine 
Crisp, substituted by Councillors Phillip Whalley and Paul Oatway QPM 
respectively. 
 

94 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes from the ordinary meeting held on 6 September 2016 and the 
special meeting held on 10 October 2016 were presented for consideration, and 
it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record. 
 

95 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

96 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

97 Public Participation 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

98 Forward Work Programme 
 
Updates were received from Select Committee Chairmen on recent activity and 
proposed forward plans including the following: 
 
Environment Select Committee 
It was stated that due to meeting cancellations the Highways and Streetscene 
Task Group had been unable to conclude its work on performance indicators, 
that it was proposed Cllr Linda Packard be replaced on the Passenger 
Transport Review Task Group by Cllr Peter Evans and that it was suggested 
the proposed work on the Investment Team as suggested by the Corporate 
Director did not need to take place given the pressure on resources. Details 
were also provided on recent updates including on the Flood Management 
Strategy and Highways Maintenance. The Committee also advised several 
items on the plan should be confirmed or removed as items of interest. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To support changing the membership of the Passenger Transport Review 
Task Group as proposed, and removing the Investment Team item from 
the Forward Plan, and to note the other updates from the Environment 
Select Committee. 
  
Health Select Committee 
Updates were provided on work the Health Select Committee had undertaken 
for future scrutiny of Clinical Commissioning Group services, and poor grades 
received at Wiltshire hospitals. The Committee had also received updates and 
provided comment on changes to Minor Injury Unit opening hours and the 
South West Ambulance Service, and that there would be major work on the 
Sustainability and Transport Plan moving forward. 
 
During discussion from the Committee it was requested the Health Select 
Committee continue to monitor the situation regarding Minor Injury Units (MIUs) 
and potential impacts on out of hours doctor’s being unable to see patients due 
to the lack of other staff present overnight now the MIUs would be closed 
overnight. It was also confirmed the Better Care Plan Task Group final report 
would be received in early 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Health Select Committee. 
 
Children’s Select Committee 
It was detailed that the Children’s Select Committee had received a briefing on 
the Child and Adult Mental Health Service (CAMHS), reporting details of a youth 
project to provide a qualified online counselling service for young people, and 
that work on recommissioning the CAMHS service was progressing. Work was 
also being identified where topics required major work which would be 

Page 64



 
 
 

 
 
 

recommended for the next Council, including Special Educational Needs, in 
particular in relation to passenger transport. The final reports of the Child 
Sexual Exploitation and Safeguarding Children and Young People Task Groups 
would be completed shortly. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Children’s Select Committee. 
 
 

99 Management Committee Task Group and Project Board Updates 
 
Written updates were provided from the Management Committee Task Groups, 
along with verbal updates as follows: 
 
Financial Planning Task Group (FPTG) 
The recent work of the FPTG scrutinising the Medium Term Financial Plan was 
noted, and consideration was given to the approved recommendation of the 
Task Group to investigate establishing a Task Group to specifically focus on the 
One Public Estate Programme, which involved partners working together to 
maximise the efficient use of their capital assets, from which significant savings 
had been predicted. 
 
The Committee discussed the most appropriate level of scrutiny involvement, 
taking into account the nature of the programme involving multiple external 
partners and the closeness to the unitary elections in 2017, as well as the 
possibility of establishing a Task Group or Rapid Scrutiny at a later date if 
appropriate, with a scrutiny member on the programme Project Board able to 
update the Committee moving forward, while not providing the same level of 
scrutiny as a Task Group at this stage. 
 
After debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To seek expressions of interest from all non-executive members to serve 
on the Project Board for the One Public Estate programme, and delegate 
the appointment to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 
Military Civilian Integration Partnership Task Group (MCIP) 
It was stated the 5th Battalion, The Rifles (5 Rifles) had completed their transfer 
to Wiltshire from Germany, involving approximately 670 soldiers with 
approximately 475 spouses and children. The amount was significant although 
a minority of the total planned numbers, and would be used to assess how well 
the transfers were planned and lessons to be learned. 
 
Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership Task Group (SWLEP) 
It was noted that the Task Group had taken some while to begin proper scrutiny 
work but that work was now progressing and the Director of the SWLEP had 

Page 65



 
 
 

 
 
 

praised the role of the Task Group and was keen for it to continue in its role 
post May 2017. 
 
MyWiltshire System Task Group 
Task Group members expressed some concern that it was intended a contract 
be awarded for the progression of the MyWiltshire System within a few months, 
but the Task Group would continue to comment and challenge the work as 
appropriate. It was raised that it was presently unclear which Cabinet Member 
had overall responsibility for the development of the system. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updates from the Task Groups 
High Speed Broadband Project  
A report was received from Councillor George Jeans, Scrutiny member on the 
High Speed Broadband Project Board, as detailed in agenda supplement 1. 
Contributions were also made by Councillor John Thomson, Deputy Leader of 
the Council. 
 
Details were provide on current uptake levels, discussions with British Telecom 
(BT) to embed a BT staff member with the council to deal with customer 
complaints, and a £3.3million underspend due to good management of phase 1 
of the project, which would be reinvested into the later phases. Comments in 
discussion included whether BT acknowledged adequate Broadband as an 
essential service, and the expectation 95% coverage for the county would be 
achieved. 
 
The Committee drew particular attention to the report that BT were willing to 
commit to provide infrastructure for high speed broadband for all developments 
over 30 houses, should the developers request this, and requested a briefing 
note be prepared to that effect. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

100 South West Overview and Scrutiny Network 
 
An update was provided on the South West Overview and Scrutiny meeting 
held on 18 October 2016 attended by the Chairman, Councillor Simon Killane, 
and Henry Powell, Senior Scrutiny Officer. Details were provided on 
presentations regarding scrutiny inquiry days held at some councils, improved 
links being sought with the Care Quality Commission and comment upon 
Wiltshire and other Authority scrutiny work. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

101 Overview and Scrutiny Legacy 2013-17 

Page 66



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
As detailed in the agenda the Committee were updated on proposals for the 
Overview and Scrutiny Legacy process ahead of unitary elections in May 2017, 
which would include workshops for members, reports to each select committee 
and a final report from the Committee commenting upon overview and scrutiny 
work between 2013-2017 and proposed scrutiny priorities for the new Council. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

102 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 3 January 2017. 
 

103 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.35 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail 

kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 3 JANUARY 2017 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, 
COUNTY HALL. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr Alan Hill (Vice Chairman), Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Jacqui Lay, 
Cllr Stephen Oldrieve, Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr John Walsh, Cllr Anna Cuthbert 
(Substitute), Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Substitute) and Cllr Ian Thorn (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Chris Caswill, Cllr John Thomson and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Glenis Ansell, Simon Killane, Howard 
Greenman, Jon Hubbard and Bridget Wayman. 
 
Councillor Wayman was substituted by Councillor Paul Oatway QPM. Councillor 
Hubbard was substituted by Councillor Ian Thorn. Councillor Greenman was 
substituted by Councillor Anna Cuthbert. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes for the meeting held on 1 November 2016 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
As item 8 – Request for Scrutiny Review of an Officer Decision – related to 
public conveniences, Councillor Chuck Berry clarified for information that he no 
longer worked in the public convenience industry. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Details were provided for the Overview and Scrutiny Legacy Workshop to be 
held for members on 17 January 2017 from 2-4pm in the Council Chamber, 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

County Hall. The workshop formed part of the approved learning and 
development programme, and would provide an opportunity for members to 
reflect on the Overview and Scrutiny approaches, successes and challenges 
during the 2013-2017 council period. Attendees would be asked to consider 
what messages and recommendations should be made to the succeeding 
2017-2021 council as it established its priorities. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

6 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Forward Work Programmes for the Select Committees and updates on 
previous work was received. Additional updates were received as follows: 
 
Health Select Committee 
Particularly attention was drawn to the meeting on 15 November 2016 and 
monitoring of developing urgent integrated care. AN update had been received 
from the Clinical Commissioning Group and further updates would follow in 
March 2017, along with further information from Great Western Hospital 
responding to the recent disappointing Care Quality Commission report. It was 
also reported the Better Care Plan Task Group would be meeting to complete 
their final report on 3 January 2017. 
 
Children’s Select Committee 
The Committee was informed of recent activity, including a briefing on the 
Health Schools scheme which councillors were encouraged to raise with 
schools in their area, as well as an update from the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth 
representative, also a member of the Wiltshire Youth Parliament, who had 
attended the Houses of Parliament where discussion of mental health among 
young people had been raised as a priority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To receive the updates from the Select Committees and approve the 
Forward Work Programme. 
 

7 Management Committee Task Group Updates 
 
The written update from the Task Groups was received. Additional updates 
were received as follows: 
 
Military-Civilian Integration Partnership Task Group 
The Task Group was awaiting updates from partners and would formulate a 
recommendation to the forthcoming Council once received. 
 
Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) Task Group 
A meeting with the new Chairman of the SWLEP, Mr John Mortimer, would take 
place within the month. 

Page 70



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
MyWiltshire System Task Group 
At the request of the Task Group the committee considered proposed changes 
to the terms of reference as a result of an extension to the timescale for the 
implementation of the new system to accommodate the development of the 
council’s digitisation strategy. It was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Committee approve in principle to amend the terms of reference 
of the Task Group to include monitoring development of the council’s 
digitisation strategy, and to received proposed wording to that effect at 
the next meeting. 
 

8 Request For Scrutiny Review Of An Officer Delegated Decision: 
Demolition Of Former Public Conveniences On Bath Road, Chippenham 
 
Under Paragraph 1 of Part 3D(1) of the Constitution (Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers), it states ‘any member of the Council may request that decisions taken 
under delegated powers are scrutinised by the appropriate overview and 
scrutiny committee’. 
 
On 3 December 2016 the council’s Designated Scrutiny Officer received such a 
request from Councillor Chris Caswill, Chippenham Monkton Division, relating 
to officer delegated decisions to demolish a block of former public conveniences 
situated on Bath Road, Chippenham, which lies within his electoral division. 
 
A report from Paul Kelly, Head of Corporate Support (Democracy and 
Performance) and Designated Scrutiny Officer was prepared for the Committee 
in response to the request. The report set out the constitutional authority for the 
request, details of the officer delegated decisions that had been taken and their 
context in relation to agreed council policy, and set out Councillor Caswill’s 
argument as to why scrutiny should be taken in respect of the decisions and the 
initial officer response to that argument.  
 
It was also noted that the request was the first of its kind that had been received 
by the council, and the process for consideration by the Committee had been 
developed by the Designated Scrutiny Officer and Monitoring Officer in 
consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee. Further, it was clarified in the report that a 
request for scrutiny of officer decisions did not halt progression of a decision as 
with formal ‘call-in’ of Executive decisions taken under Part 8 of the Constitution 
(Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules). 
 
The background to the decisions in question had been the approval of the 
Financial Plan 2015/16 by Full Council on 24 February 2015, which included the 
transfer of the cleaning and securing of unmanned/attended public 
conveniences to town and parish councils. On 15 March 2016 Cabinet resolved, 
among other things as detailed in the report, to transfer public conveniences to 
towns and parishes that wished to manage them following undertaking of cost 

Page 71



 
 
 

 
 
 

benefit analyses, and to authorise specific Associate Directors in consultation 
with the relevant Cabinet Member to enter into formal arrangements as 
necessary to carry out the resolved actions. 
 
Councillor Caswill was invited to detail to the Committee why he believed 
decisions taken by Barry Pirie, Associate Director, People and Business, 
required further scrutiny. 
 
Councillor Caswill began by clarifying that while he believed the evidence 
showed some serious mistakes had been made in the process of the decisions, 
he had no concerns about his interactions with officers throughout the process, 
which had been courteous throughout. He also clarified that an element of the 
issues related to planning, and while the Committee could not and should not 
become involved in any aspect of determining planning applications relating to 
the officer decisions in question, decisions leading up to those planning 
applications required scrutiny. 
 
It was stated that the Cabinet decision from March 2016 had been clear that the 
primary intention was that public conveniences should, where possible, be 
delegated to towns and parishes. It was not disputed that initially Chippenham 
Town Council indicated they did not have a wish to take on these particular 
conveniences. However, Councillor Caswill contended that there had been 
considerable contention locally about the decisions, and proper processes had 
not been followed, particularly in relation to a changing situation. 
 
On 7 July 2016 a newsletter from the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport, Cllr Philip Whitehead announced the conveniences in questions 
would be demolished, but as local member Councillor Caswill had not received 
any prior notification. Having been told the newsletter was in error, a planning 
application for the demolition emerged which had been dated 23 June 2016. Cllr 
Caswill’s contention was that the decision to demolish had been taken prior to 
any cost benefit analysis being undertaken, and that in addition to this the 
failure to keep him informed was a failure to abide by Protocol 1 of the 
Constitution (Councillor-Officer Relations). The application was submitted again 
later in September 2016 but was not included on the weekly list of applications 
circulated to members. Councillor Caswill challenged the application with 
officers and it had to be withdrawn due to errors, which he felt showed that as a 
result of the haste and lack of consultation with members, a significant error had 
been made, and that the decision was not proportionate, one of the principles of 
decision making for the council. 
 
Chippenham Town Council had objected to the proposed demolition and on 23 
October set up a working party to advise Wiltshire Council they were 
reconsidering the matter. CllrCaswill argued that as the Cabinet decision was 
aimed, where possible, at transferring rather than demolishing public 
conveniences, the officer decision to demolish should have been withdrawn as 
a result. However, officers informed him that they were proceeding as the 
demolition was necessary for marketing of the site, which he contested. The 
Business Improvement District have also subsequently indicated they might 

Page 72



 
 
 

 
 
 

contribute to keeping the conveniences open. Nevertheless, despite this the 
officers indicated they would proceed. 
 
Cllr Caswill stated he had also been informed that the process of determining 
what should be done in this matter had involved officers consulting Cabinet 
through a body termed Cabinet Liaison, which was not a public body. He 
considered private consultation was not open and accountable and the views of 
Cabinet Liaison should not be dominant over the only public decision, which 
was to prioritise keeping as many conveniences open as possible, and if it could 
not be that decision should be made publicly. 
 
In summary, he felt the decisions undertaken in relation to Bath Road, 
Chippenham, required additional scrutiny because there had demonstrably 
been errors of process and failures of required consultation, which had already 
resulted in one application being withdrawn. Secondly, the decisions were being 
made following private consultations and therefore were not challengeable as 
all decisions should be. Thirdly, as a matter of common sense the application 
for demolition should be suspended while the issues were sorted out. 
 
In response to a query on the report stating the Town Council confirming on 16 
December 2016 they did not wish to take over the public conveniences, Cllr 
Caswill stated this had been true, but this had followed a letter from Dr Carlton 
Brand, Corporate Director, informing the Town Council it was unrealistic to 
prepare a new lease for them to take over the site, and he maintained the latter 
decision was contrary to Cabinet policy and they had only been responding on 
that point. 
 
Dr Brand then commented upon the request from Cllr Caswill. He welcomed the 
democratic challenge as an indication of the strong member-led culture of the 
council, which had been upheld with guidance sought from members throughout 
the process. 
 
He stated there had been in essence two decisions in relation to this matter. 
One was whether to continue operating such public conveniences, falling under 
the Cabinet Member for Highways, and the second relating to what to do with 
the buildings, which fell to the Associate Director. The site had been on the 
market for 10 years and was a principle site for the town, with feedback from the 
market being that without the toilet block the site would sell much more readily. 
He also stated his letter to the Town Council had simply laid out the situation for 
them, as they had gone back and forth on whether they wanted to take the site 
on or not. 
 
Cllr Philip Whitehead was invited to comment, and he stated that two processes 
had been followed. A Cabinet decision taken in line with the Financial Plan had 
been to transfer conveniences where possible, but Chippenham had twice 
confirmed they did not wish to take on the site, stating they had a sufficient 
complement of public conveniences. In the absence of a budget to maintain the 
site, and the Town Council wishing to take them on, demolition had been the 
only option, particularly as the conveniences required significant investment to 
bring them up to standard. 

Page 73



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Committee then debated the request for scrutiny of the decisions that had 
been taken in relation to the Bath Road public conveniences. 
 
Some members felt that the evidence that a series of consultations had taken 
place from officers following the appropriate decision and delegation from 
Cabinet. The Town Council had indicated several times they did not wish or 
could not take on management of the public conveniences, and officers had 
acted in good faith to progress matters in the only way possible following those 
indications. Authority to do so had been granted to the Associate Director, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member, and it was therefore appropriate that the 
matter had been discussed at Cabinet Liaison, an informal gathering of cabinet 
members and corporate directors to discuss council business. 
 
Other members felt that there was evidence there had been a confused 
situation in relation to the decisions being taken, as well as indications of errors 
of process and consultation and the extent of that should be looked at further to 
ensure the processes were sufficient and appropriate, noting that if the primary 
aim of a decision had been to encourage transfer of assets, if that was not 
possible and demolition was then decided upon, that decision perhaps could 
have been more public and therefore accountable. It was also raised that 
decisions being progressed and assessed only in an informal committee such 
as Cabinet Liaison required clarity on its functions and how much influence the 
informal body had.  
 
There was also concern local members were often not kept as informed of 
matters within their divisions as the constitution required. Some also considered 
that scrutiny of an officer decision had not been undertaken within the span of 
Wiltshire Council, and there might be a benefit to testing out the process fully. 
 
The Committee was in agreement that there was no reason given why 
demolition applications should not appear on the weekly list of applications to 
members, and recommended they be added. 
 
At the conclusion of debate Cllr Caswill summarised by stating it was clear that 
he as local member had not been adequately consulted on several occasion, 
but the most critical issue was there had never been a public decision to 
demolish taken by members, and the only public decision was from Cabinet in 
March 2016 which did not state demolishing was council policy, and therefore 
an officer decision had, in his view, superseded that of the Cabinet.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the officer delegated decisions in respect of the Bath Road public 
conveniences not be scrutinised further. 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 
 

 
 
 

9 Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) Annual Conference 1 December 2016 
Update 
 
The written update from the Chairman of the Committee on his attendance at 
the Centre for Public Scrutiny Conference (CfPS) Annual Conference on 1 
December 2016 was received in the agenda supplement. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

10 Dates of Future Meetings 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 1 February 2017 to scrutinise 
the administration budget proposals. A meeting had also been arranged for 14 
February 2017 to scrutinise any opposition budget proposals that were 
submitted. 
 

11 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.55 am) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail 

kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 1 FEBRUARY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY 
HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice 
Chairman), Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Simon Killane (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King, 
Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Stephen Oldrieve, Cllr Tony Trotman and Cllr Bridget Wayman 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr 
Jonathon Seed, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Dick Tonge, Cllr Stuart 
Wheeler and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
12 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Glenis Ansell, Stuart Dobson and 
John Walsh. 
 

13 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

14 Chairman's Announcements 
 
It was stated that the meeting would be live broadcast and recorded. 
 

15 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

16 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 14 February 2017 at 1100 at 
Monkton Park, Chippenham. 
 

17 Procedure of Meeting 
 
The procedure for the meeting was noted. 
 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

18 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan Update 2017/18 
 
The draft Wiltshire Council Financial Plan Update for 2017/18 was presented by 
Councillor Richard Tonge, Cabinet Member for Finance, and Michael Hudson, 
Associate Director of Finance, ahead of its submission to Cabinet on 7 February 
and Full Council on 21 February 2016. 
 
It was noted that Council on 18 October 2016 had approved a Medium Term 
Financial Plan and Efficiency Statement 2017-2020, an agreement with central 
government to secure details of four years of funding settlements, with the 
council committing to specific efficiency targets. The Committee had considered 
details of that plan on 10 October 2016, which included assumptions of 1.99% 
annual rise in Council Tax and 2% Social Care Levy. The proposals for 2017/18 
were considered within the framework previously agreed, though since the 
agreement it had been stated councils could bring forward an additional 1% 
increase in the Social Care Levy, which it was proposed be accepted.  
 
Details of the income and proposed expenditure were provided. It was 
confirmed under the proposals the council would set a balanced budget. A 
report from the Financial Planning Task Group was also received and 
considered. 
 
The Committee, along with other members in attendance including all members 
of the Executive, discussed the proposed budget, and clarification was sought 
on many issues from the attending Cabinet Members and Corporate Leadership 
Team, with details contained in the report as appended to these minutes. 
Particular focus was given to service budget proposals, how proposed savings 
would be achieved, impacts upon staffing levels, community grants and adult 
social care along with other topics as detailed in the appended report. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was,  
 
Resolved: 
 

a) To thank the Financial Planning Task Group for its report and for its 
work throughout the year monitoring and scrutinising the finances of 
the council; and, 
 

b) To note that the process for scrutiny of the budget had been robust and 
added value.  

 

19 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.45 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer) of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail 

kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 78



Wiltshire Council         APPENDIX to the Minutes of 1 February 2017
  
Cabinet 7 February 2016 
 
Council 21 February 2016 

 
Special Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  

Report on the Draft 2017/18 Financial Plan 
 
Purpose of report 
 

1. To report to Cabinet and Full Council a summary of the main issues discussed at the 
special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 1 
February 2016. 

 
Background 
 

2. The special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee provided 
an opportunity for non-executive councillors to question the Cabinet Member for 
Finance and the Associate Director for Finance on the draft 2017/18 Financial Plan 
before it is considered at Cabinet on 7 February 2017 and Full Council on 21 February 
2017. 

 
3. The Cabinet Member for Finance, supported by the Associate Director of Finance, 

was in attendance along with the Leader of the Council and all members of the 
Executive and the Corporate Leadership Team to provide clarification and answers to 
issues and queries raised by the Committee. 
 

4. In addition to the draft Financial Plan available on the website a briefing from the 
Cabinet Member for Finance open to all members was held on 24 January 2017. 
 

5. Details had included: 
 

• Council Tax to be increased by 1.99%, plus a 3% Social Care Levy, a 1% increase 
from the Medium Term Financial Plan approved by Council on 18 October 2016. 

• The continuing reductions in grant funding from central government, being a further 
17.6% reduction for the next financial year. 

• Increases in investment to protect vulnerable children and adults, and investing in 
the environment and roads. 

• Details of service changes required to achieve the £13.331m savings proposed. 
 
Main issues raised during questioning and debate 
 

6. The Chairman invited the Chairmen of the Select Committees to lead off discussion, 
with a focus on budget proposals and their implications for services relating to those 
committees, before opening to general queries. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Minute Item 18

Page 79



Financial Planning Task Group 
 

7. The report of the Task Group on the proposals was received and noted, in addition 
to thanks to its members for their work monitoring and scrutinising the council’s 
finances throughout the year.  
 

8. The report would be forwarded for attention at Cabinet and Full Council along with 
the report of the Management Committee itself. 
 

Environment Select Committee 
 

9. In relation to the council’s key actions within its business plan details were sought on 
highways investment, and in response it was confirmed that while Wiltshire was due 
to receive £2.946m of the National Productivity Investment Capital Fund aimed to 
reduce congestion at key locations and improve maintenance of local highway 
assets, the conditions around using the grant had not yet been clarified. 

 
10. Details were sought on proposed efficiencies in services including Leisure, Parking 

provision and Planning consultation in respect of town and parish councils. 
 

11. The £1.003m savings required under Waste services was discussed, with a 
suggestion the Environment Select Committee might need to consider further 
scrutiny to monitor the changes proposed. 
 

12. In response to queries on reviewing the model for community support it was stated 
the review would include the management structure for area boards, and details 
were sought on the proposed £0.400m savings through a review of Voluntary 
Community Social Enterprise (VCSE) partnership arrangements and whether there 
would be reductions to payments to all partners. The Cabinet Member agreed to 
provide a list of VCSE groups along with details of current arrangements and 
proposed reductions for each. 
 

13. Other topics discussed included the reduction in the subsidy for councillor ICT 
provision, details of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and that no funds being 
allocated for carbon reduction. 
 

Children’s Select Committee 
 
14. The Committee discussed the increasing pressures regarding children with special 

educational needs and adults with learning disabilities, in part from new statutory 
requirements for the 18-25 age group. £1.000m of the increased pressures related to 
children transitioning into Adult Care. It was reported that when a young person 
transferred from children’s to adults’ services their funding moved with them and 
there was consequently a need to ensure the Children’s services budget was not 
disadvantaged. 
 

15. It was noted that a lot of work had been undertaken on the council’s School 
Improvement Strategy, and that £0.500m was being invested to support this 
Strategy. 
 
 

Page 4Page 80



 
16. Details were sought on budgets for Safeguarding and Early Help services with the 

intention to record internal meetings electronically rather than recruit dedicated 
minute-taking staff to save £0.100m.  
 

17. In response to queries it was stated details would be provided to members on the 
number of local authority schools which would be running deficit budgets for the next 
financial year. 
 

18. It was confirmed that the £0.050m total reduction in area board youth funding would 
apply to all area boards, not only those which had not utilised their full previous 
allocation of youth funding.  
 

19. It was also stated by the chair of Children’s Select Committee  that figures showing 
young people’s engagement with area board-funded youth activities could not be 
directly compared with previous years as the methodology for calculating these had 
changed.  
 

Health Select Committee 
 

20. The increasing pressures on Adult Social Care was discussed, with the 6% increase 
in investment noted. Details were sought of the £1.510m of savings that would still 
be required, with a focus on preventative work to reduce demand and changes to 
working practices. It was noted that a significant amount of the growth in investment 
related to the effect of the National Living Wage on adult services contracts. 
 

21. The £1.000m of savings identified from a review of the Learning Disabilities service 
for adults was highlighted and it was suggested that the Health Select Committee 
might monitor the review and any impact upon this group.  
 

22. Further details were also sought on the review of services in Public Health and 
Public Protection, and the £0.175m of savings identified across that service 
identified. 
 

General Enquiries and Observations 
 

23. Other issues discussed included clarifying the number of staff posts that were likely 
to be removed under the Financial Plan, approximately 200. It was confirmed some 
had already been identified within service budgets while others remained to be 
identified, and it was hoped that removing vacant posts would minimise the need for 
redundancies. 
 

24. Details were also sought on the number of apprenticeships at the council, 
approximately 30, and efforts to increase this, as well as assessment of the use of 
dedicated reserve funding and health and wellbeing centre funding allocations. It 
was confirmed that potential movements in the rate of inflation and the impact of 
central government’s reform of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) presented a 
level of financial risk, as set out in the General Fund Reserve Risk Assessment. 
 

25. At the conclusion of the debate it was resolved that the budget scrutiny process had 
been robust, in-depth and had added value to the draft budget proposals. 

Page 5Page 81



 
 
Proposal 
 

26. That Cabinet and Council take into account the comments from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee in considering the update to the Financial Plan 
2017/18. 
 

Councillor Simon Killane 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Report Author: Kieran Elliott, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 01225 718504 or 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 6 February 2017  

Page 6Page 82

mailto:kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 11 OCTOBER 2016 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Jon Hubbard (Chairman), Cllr Jacqui Lay (Vice Chairman), Cllr Pat Aves, 
Cllr Mary Douglas, Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr Ricky Rogers, Cllr James Sheppard, Rev Alice Kemp, Dr M Thompson, 
Miss Cathy Shahrokni, Wilkins, Cllr Stewart Dobson (Substitute) and Cllr Bill Moss 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Laura Mayes and Cllr Richard Gamble 
 
  

 
73 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Mary Champion (who was 
substituted by Cllr Stewart Dobson), Cllr Helen Osborn, Cllr Philip Whalley (who 
was substituted by Cllr Bill Moss), Miss Sarah Busby, Miss Tracy Cornelius and 
Mr John Hawkins.    
 
 

74 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 July 
2016. 
 
 

75 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 
 

76 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements:- 

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Cabinet Items 
 
On 11 October 2016 Cabinet considered the following item: 
 

 Care Leavers Report – an update on the progress made in improving 
services for care leavers since Ofsted judged the service as requires 
Improvement during the inspection in June 2015. 

 
 

77 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or Councillors’ questions. 
 
 

78 Troubled Families Programme 
 
Consideration was given to a report by Carolyn Godfrey, Corporate Director, 
which presented an update on the work of the Troubled Families programme.   
 
The Committee was reminded that in December 2011 the Government 
announced funding for local authorities to work with partners to radically 
transform the lives of the country’s most troubled families. Wiltshire was 
allocated 510 families to “turn round” before March 2015. The criteria for this 
phase were families who: 
 

 Were involved in crime or anti-social behaviour. 

 Had a child who had been excluded or was persistently absent from 
school. 

 Were in receipt of out of work benefits. 

 Had a high cost to the public purse. 
 
This was a payment by results (PBR) scheme and Wiltshire had achieved 100% 
success, making a difference to all 510 families.  
 
The Committee was informed that Wiltshire was now into the second year of 
phase 2 of the programme and the following new criteria had been set: 
 

 Parents and children involved in crime and antisocial behaviour. 

 Children who have not been attending school regularly. 

 Children who need help. 

 Adults out of work or at risk of financial exclusion or young people at risk 
of worklessness. 

 Families affected by domestic violence and abuse. 

 Parents and children with a range of health problems. 
 

Page 84



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was explained that funding was provided through an Attachment Fee of 
£1,000 per family and Payment by Results of £800 per family where significant 
and sustained progress had been made or there had been a move into 
continuous employment. 
 
It was reported that last year 477 families were brought into the programme and 
14 families were claimed for, this being in line with other authorities in the South 
West. There had been changes in the Income Deprivation Affecting Children 
Index resulting in Wiltshire receiving an allocation of an extra 100 families from 
2017.  This would take the total number of Wiltshire families to 1990 for the five 
years of the programme. 
 
The Committee was informed that there were two main ways of identifying 
families as eligible for help and support through this Programme, namely: 
 

 Via the Gateway Panel which gave access to intensive family support, 
and 

 Families receiving effective help from children’s centres, early help or 
social care teams. 

 
A claim could be made for Payment by Results if a family had: 
 

 Achieved significant and sustained progress, compared with all their 
problems at the point of engagement, or 

 An adult in the family had moved off benefits and into continuous 
employment for at least 13 weeks. 

 
It was noted that just over 100 payments by results claimed had been made in 
September 2016 and more claims would be made in January 2017.  
 
The Committee was pleased to note that Wiltshire had been recognised by 
Central Government as having delivered the first phase of the Troubled 
Families Programme very successfully and that the work had been commented 
on favourably within the last Ofsted safeguarding inspection. 
 
During discussion it was recognised that the challenge now was to develop a 
programme further through better information sharing, increased engagement 
with other partners such as housing and generally improved working. The focus 
needed to be on better outcomes and reducing the overall cost to a range of 
services and agencies of supporting troubled families.  
 
It was suggested that this programme be brought to the attention of Councillors 
by the sharing of success stories in their divisions but without breaking 
confidentiality. This could be provided using data on a postcode basis and also 
by sharing the information at community area level.   
 
It was requested that the data criteria submitted to a National Impact Study 
managed by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) be circulated to the 

Page 85



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

members of the committee. The study worked with national databases to create 
a rich understanding of the profile of families across the country. This was 
supplemented by Family Progress Data, which was collected every six months. 
 
It was reported that the Programme had a further three years left at which point 
the Government would need to decide how to proceed. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the contents of the report. 
 
(2) To request an update on the Troubled Families Programme in due 

course setting out the outcomes achieved in Wiltshire.  
 
 

79 SEND Strategy 
 
  The Chairman reported that at the meeting he attended with Wiltshire 
Council’s Executive Member for Children’s Services and officers, SEND 
transport assistance for schools was noted as an important and broad area for 
scrutiny consideration.  
 
Scrutiny input had been welcomed to help improve the service in the light of 
budgetary restrictions and accordingly a report was being presented to this 
meeting which provided an overview of the Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) Strategy 2016 – 2019. 
 
In receiving the report, the Head of SEND Service explained that the SEND 
Strategy set out the vision and key priorities for provision of services and 
support for children and young people aged between 0 and 25 years with 
special educational needs and/or disability (SEND) in Wiltshire. The Strategy 
set out the broad range of provision available and a clear strategic direction for 
the future and was approved by the Children’s Trust Commissioning Executive 
in May 2016 and then subsequently published in June 2016.     
 
The Strategy was developed following consultation with a wide range of 
professionals, parent carers, children, young people, local authority officers, 
health colleagues and other stakeholders and its scope included: 
 

 Parent carer participation 

 Children and young people’s voice and influence 

 The Local offer 

 SEND service 

 Short breaks 

 Health services 

 Early years 

 Preparing for adulthood 

Page 86



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Autism 

 SEND transport 

 SEND funding. 
 
It was pointed out that the focus of the SEND Strategy was on provision for 
children and young people outside of school.  Information regarding in-school 
provision was available in Wiltshire SEN Strategy Supporting Schools 2015-18.  
 
The Head of SEND Service informed the Committee that there had been 
considerable overspending on transport, especially associated with out of 
county placements.  There had been a huge effort to reduce the number of 
referrals outside the county as the overall cost of these placements to the 
Council was considerably greater than providing the services within Wiltshire. 
 
The Committee noted that much work was being undertaken to prepare people 
for adulthood and Members were pleased to be informed that more young 
people post 16 were attending local facilities, with particular support from 
colleges. 
It was noted that the number of post 16 high needs learners had increased by 
51% over the last three years to 373 in 2015-16, this being due to a number of 
factors including the raised participation age, a better understanding of high 
needs and more accurate record keeping by local colleges.  Furthermore, the 
Government had been suggesting that young people with high needs would be 
supported in education until the age of 25.  However, it was pointed out that, 
despite the rise in numbers, the total amount spent on post 16 high needs 
provision had decreased by 30% (from £6,199,988.58 in 2013-14 to 
£4,356,809.94 in 2015-6).  
 
Members expressed concern at this Government proposal, bearing in mind that 
at present young people with high needs were supported up to the age of 19.  
However, there was clearly a need for this age to be extended to 25 years but 
the problem arose as to how the additional finance would be met.  Members 
requested the Officers to bear this in mind and report back when further 
information was forthcoming from the Government.    
 
The Committee was pleased to note that Officers from Adult and Children’s 
Services were working together on developments to housing and housing 
related support for young people with SEND aged 16 to 25.  Since May 2016 a 
Housing Support Commissioning Group had been formed and was currently 
gathering information and analysing housing support across a number of 
service areas. Following further analysis this would lead to consultation in 2017 
and recommendations for housing support solutions for adults and young 
people. 
 
Members emphasised the importance of apprenticeships and considered that 
more work should be undertaken to promote this form of help for young people 
in their search for employment. The Head of SEND Service advised the meeting 
that there was a need for further work to be undertaken in recruiting more 

Page 87



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

employers to employ apprentices.  However, it was pointed out that not all 
apprenticeships led to full time employment. Members appreciated the support 
that Wiltshire Council was giving by establishing apprenticeships and 
considered that the Council should act as a trail blazer and do all it could to 
promote the scheme.   
 
The Committee noted that the SEND transport budget was short by £6 million 
and it was suggested that the Officers gain information from other local 
authorities as to how they provided this service.  Attention was drawn to a 
national study which was being carried out in which all councils were being 
asked to participate and provide statistical data. 
 
After further discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the contents of the report.  
 
(2) To hold a rapid scrutiny exercise on the provision of SEND transport 

when the results of the national study were available.        
 
 

80 Executive Response to the Final Report of the Positive Leisure Time 
Activities for Young People Task Group – 12 month review 
 
Consideration was given to a report setting out the response of the Deputy 
Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, Area Boards & Broadband and 
the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services to the report of the Positive Leisure 
Time Activities for Young People Task Group which had been presented to this 
Committee at its meeting on 19 July 2016.  It was noted that the Youth Service 
had been moved from Children’s Services to Community Services.  
 
During discussion, Members requested information about the number of 
Locality Youth Facilitators (LYF) currently in post and it was reported that at 
present there were seven community areas that did not have access to a LYF.  
However, Cabinet was about to take a look at this provision as part of an overall 
financial review and possibly pass more responsibility to Area Boards. 
 
Members considered that it would be useful to ascertain how many young 
people were participating in this service and how this compared with that 
previously provided. It was reported that a new series of Joint Strategic 
Assessment (JSA) meetings were about to take place within the community 
areas and young people were being encouraged to attend these meetings and 
put forward their views on how the youth service might develop.  
 
Cllr Ricky Rogers informed the meeting that in his experience the new 
arrangements in Salisbury were working well and in fact seemed to be an 
improvement on the previous youth service arrangements.  It was considered 

Page 88



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

that any good practice should be shared with other community areas in 
Wiltshire and in particular by publishing details on Wiltshire Our Community 
Matters websites.   
 
The Chairman said that it was of paramount importance that young people felt 
that they were wanted and had a safe environment in which to talk about their 
problems. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Executive Response provided to the recommendations of the 
Final Report of the Positive Leisure Time Activities for Young People Task 
Group. 
 
 

81 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education - 
 
The Committee received an update from Carolyn Godfrey, Corporate Director, 
on developments relating to children’s services arising from the Department for 
Education from July to September 2016 as follows:- 
 

 Early Years Funding Consultation 

 Summary of Government Consultation Document Schools That Work For 
Everyone. 

 Identifying children missing from education 

 Statement on schools funding 

 Academies update 

 Consultation on reporting suspected abuse and neglect 

 Knowledge and Skills Statement for Achieving Permanence 

 Care Leaver Strategy 

 DfE research report Independent evidence review of post-adoption 
support interventions 

 Future of social care inspection consultation 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update provided.  
 
 

82 Task Group Updates 
 
The Committee received an update on the activity of the following Task 
Groups:- 
 

 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Task Group 

 SEND Task Group 

 School Improvement Strategy Task Group 

Page 89



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on task group activity provided. 
 
 

83 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Committee received a document showing the relevant items from the 
Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Programme for this Committee.  
 
 

84 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting of this Committee was scheduled 
to be held on Tuesday 6 December 2016 at County Hall, Trowbridge, 
starting at 10.30am. 
 
 

85 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  2.45  - 4.35 pm) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

 

Page 90



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 6 DECEMBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Jon Hubbard (Chairman), Cllr Jacqui Lay (Vice Chairman), Cllr Pat Aves, 
Cllr Mary Douglas, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Philip Whalley, Dr M Thompson, Mr J Hawkins, Wilkins and 
Cllr Chuck Berry (Substitute) 
 
  

 
86 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Sue Evans 
(who was substituted by Cllr Chuck Berry), Cllr Helen Osborn, Cllr Ricky 
Rogers, Rev Alice Kemp, Miss Sarah Busby and Miss Cathy Shahrokni (who 
was substituted by Ms Ellen Plowman).   
 

87 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 
October 2016. 
 

88 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

89 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements:- 
 
Cabinet Items 
 
On 17 January 2017 Cabinet was due to consider the following item:- 
 

 Adoption Agency Six Month Report. 
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 12



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

90 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or Councillors’ questions. 
 

91 Exclusion Zones for Fast Food Outlets 
 
The Committee received a report by Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Property, Waste & Strategic Housing which set out his response to 
Recommendation 12 of the Final Report of the Obesity and Child Poverty Rask 
Group, which read:- 
 
“The Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet 
Member for Planning, Property, Waste and Strategic Housing, to advise if the 
council currently seeks to influence the proliferation of fast food outlets 
(particularly near schools) through the planning process and, if not, whether 
there are plans to consider doing so.” 
 
Cllr Sturgis informed the meeting that the Council considered each application 
on its own merits, taking into account of all the material considerations. The 
planning role was to consider the suitability of each proposal’s location, and, in 
so doing, matters such as highway safety and residential amenity were normally 
the more critical issues where there were policies in place. He went on to 
explain that proximity to a school might be considered but would by itself rarely 
be a determining factor in a planning application in the absence of any planning 
policy setting out such criteria.  
 
The Committee noted that there was currently no specific policy within the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy that would enable the provision of new fast food outlets 
to be restricted near to schools and college campuses.  
 
Public Health and Public Protection were working together to research local 
data and evidence in order to establish if there were any areas in Wiltshire 
where there appeared to be a proliferation of fast food outlets near to schools 
and colleges.  Discussions were also taking place with other local authorities to 
learn from their experiences in restricting fast food outlets near schools through 
the planning system.    
 
During discussion, Members enquired if representations should be made to the 
Secretary of State for Communities & Local Government for some control on 
the establishment of new fast food outlets near schools and colleges could be 
included in the National Planning Policy Framework.  Cllr Sturgis stated that any 
change to planning policy would need to be evidence based and it was 
generally agreed that schools and parents should be encouraged to take more 
action in educating children to eat healthily. 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the executive response to Recommendation 12 of the Final 

Report of the Obesity and Child Poverty Task Group.  
 
(2) To consider this as a possible legacy issue at the March 2017 

meeting of this Committee. 
  

92 Activities of the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY) 
 
The Chairman presented James Wilkins, Children’s & Young People’s 
representative, with an Annual Young People’s Award for his outstanding 
contributions to the provision of services for youth in Melksham. 
 
The Committee then received an update on the activities of the WAY during the 
period July to November 2016, which was presented by James Wilkins, 
assisted by Ed Northeast, another representative from WAY. 
 
He explained that WAY organised its activities in relation to its Agenda for 
Action which had five priorities as follows:- 
 

 Priority 1: Improve emotional wellbeing and mental health support for 
young people.  

 

 Priority 2: Personal, Social, Health and Economic Education 
 

 Priority 3: Bullying 
 

 Priority 4: Public Transport 
 

 Priority 5: Environment 
 

With regard to mental health support, the Committee was informed that a 
Children and Young People’s Reference Group had been set up, which would 
include two members from WAY.  This Reference Group would be involved in 
the commissioning of a new child and adolescent mental health service across 
Wiltshire, Swindon and BANES.  Participation of children and young people 
across these areas would be coordinated by the Reference Group and would 
take place between January and June 2017.   
 
James Wilkins drew attention to a meeting at which WAY members had met 
with the Chief Constable who had invited contributions about the role of the 
police. The WAY representatives had raised issues relating to drugs, cyber-
bullying and mental health and had suggested that the police work on 
intervening earlier to prevent cyber-crime.  They also suggested that 
programmes be drawn up on education around computer awareness, malware 
checks, using correct settings to prevent cyber-bullying and cyber-crime.  The 
Chief Constable agreed to give consideration to these ideas and finding ways to 

Page 93



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

invest in policing methods that would prevent crime.  It was considered that 
young people who had suffered in particular from cyber-bullying should be 
encouraged to come forward and explain their bullying experiences which would 
really help focus on the problems. 
 
Members requested that updates be provided for the Committee on a regular 
basis and in particular, what progress was being made by the Police in assisting 
to overcome these problems. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the report from WAY. 
(2) To receive regular updates from WAY. 
 

93 UK Youth Parliament House of Commons Debate 
 
The Committee received a presentation from James Wilkins and Ed Northeast  
on the UK Youth Parliament’s debate in the House of Commons. 
 
It was noted that members of the Youth Parliament aged 11 to 18 take part in 
an annual debate in the House of Commons chamber, chaired by the Speaker 
of the House of Commons, the Rt. Hon. John Bercow MP.  Five issues are 
debated chosen by a ballot of young people from across the UK and then voted 
to decide which two issues become the UK Youth Parliament’s priority 
campaign for the year ahead. 
 
Members were informed that debates in the Youth Parliament were chosen 
from the top five issues recorded by ballot, these being:- 
 
1. A curriculum to prepare us for life  

Schools should cover topics including finance, sex and relationships and 
politics in the curriculum 
 

2. Tackling racism and religious discrimination, particularly against 
people who are Muslim or Jewish 
All young people should work together to combat racism and other forms 
of discrimination, and ensure we know the dangers of such hatred 

 
3. Transport 

Make public transport cheaper, better and accessible for all.  
 
4. Votes at 16  

Give 16 and 17 year olds the right to vote in all elections/referendums.  
 
5. Stop cuts that affect the NHS 

Funding that affects the NHS shouldn’t be cut. We must keep up vital 
services to protect young people 

  

Page 94



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Following the debates it was agreed by vote that the campaigns for 2017 should 
be as follows:- 
 
UK Campaign – Votes at 16 
 
England Campaign – Curriculum for Life 
 
On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman thanked James Wilkins and Ed 
Northeast for their interesting and informative presentation. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the presentation on the UK Youth Parliament House of Commons 
debate. 
    

94 Corporate Parenting Panel Bi-Annual Report 
 
The Committee received a bi-annual update on the progress and achievements 
of the Corporate Parenting Panel. 
 
It was noted that in January 2016 the Corporate Parenting Panel approved their 
Corporate Parenting Strategy for 2016-18, which consisted of seven strategic 
strategies which they would ensure delivery of as follows:- 
 
(1) Strengthen the Corporate Parenting Role and Corporate Parenting 

function across Wiltshire Council as a whole. 
 
(2) Continue to improve timeliness of permanency for looked after children 

across the range of permanency options. 
 

(3) Ensure that there is sufficient accommodation for looked after children 
within Wiltshire which meets the needs of those children. Prioritise 
placement within Wiltshire. 

 
(4) Improve care leavers journey by ensuring an enhanced offer to care 

leavers across all areas: education, employment and training, independent 
living, housing options and health. 

 
(5) Improve the educational outcomes for looked after children; closing the 

gap between looked after children and other children in the County. 
 

(6) Ensure that looked after children are protected from the risk of child sexual 
exploitation and reduce the frequency with which some looked after 
children and care leavers currently go missing. 

 
(7) Ensure that looked after children and care leavers have timely and easy 

access to mental health services.   
 

Page 95



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Cllr Laura Mayes, as Chairman of the Corporate Parenting Panel thanked its 
members for their enthusiastic contributions to the work of the Panel but did 
stress that, although much work was being undertaken, there was still much to 
do and in particular, assistance for care leavers looking for employment. 
Apprenticeship schemes were proving to be popular but more such schemes 
were required to meet these needs.  The Council had been establishing a 
number of these schemes which were proving to be both popular and 
successful.  
 
It was also noted that more work was required in assisting young care leavers 
with suitable accommodation and this was being regarded as a key priority. 
 
Cllr Mayes also reported that a smaller working party had been established to 
find out the level of services that were being provided by other local authorities 
as a comparison. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the bi-annual update report of the Corporate Parenting Panel and 
to thank the Panel for the valuable work which was being undertaken.     
 

95 Final Report of the Child Sexual Exploitation Task Group 
 
Consideration was given to a report which presented the conclusions and 
recommendations of the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Task Group. 
 
Cllr Jacqui Lay as Chairman of the Task Group, introduced the report and 
explained that it had been established in October 2014 and that it started its 
work by receiving a comprehensive briefing on all the CSE work being 
undertaken.  The Task Group submitted an interim report to this Committee on 
26 January 2016 and the Committee was now being asked to endorse the final 
report of the Task Group and refer it to the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services for response at the Committee’s next meeting. 
 
During her presentation, Cllr Lay explained the findings of the Task Group and 
highlighted a number of the recommendations contained in the report.  During 
discussion, reference was made to the serious problem of missing children and 
it was noted that work was being undertaken to ensure as far as possible that 
this did not happen.  
 
It was acknowledged that further consideration should be given to appropriate 
training and especially for all members of the Council after the Local Elections 
in May 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
(1) To endorse the report of the Child Sexual Exploitation Task Group 

and refer it to the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services for 
response at the Committee’s next meeting.   

 
(2) To thank members of the Task Group for the valuable in-depth work 

they had undertaken.    
 

96 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education 
 
The Committee received an update from Carolyn Godfrey, Corporate Director, 
on developments relating to children’s services arising from the Department for 
Education from October to November 2016 as follows:- 
 

 30 hour free childcare entitlement delivery model: Government 
consultation response 

 Level 3 early years education: numeracy and literacy requirements  

 Primary education 

 Constitution of governing bodies of maintained schools 

 Induction for newly qualified teachers (NQTs) 

 Academies update 

 Participation of young people: education, employment and training 

 Technical and Further Education Bill 

 New apprenticeship funding 

 Social work reform policy and proposed changes to the Children and 
Social Work Bill 

 Children’s Social Care Innovation Programme  

 Knowledge and skills statement for achieving permanence 

 Extension of the Inter-agency Adoption Fee Fund  
 
It was noted that further information on several of these items, including the role 
of the local authority with 30 hour free childcare entitlement delivery model and 
also with school improvement proposals would be provided when available. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update provided.   
 

97 Task Group Updates 
 
The Committee received an update on the activity of the following Task 
Groups:- 
 

 SEND Task Group 

 School Improvement Strategy Task Group 

 Safeguarding & Young People Task Group 

Page 97



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Committee also received an update on the activity of the Education 
Transformation Board from the Children’s Select Committee representative, Cllr 
Philip Whalley. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on task group and Education Transformation Board 
activity provided. 
 

98 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Committee received a document showing the relevant items from the 
Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Programme for this Committee. 
 

99 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting of this Committee was scheduled 
to be held on Tuesday 24 January 2017 at County Hall, Trowbridge, 
starting at 10.30am. 
 
(Note:  Since this meeting the date of the next meeting has been changed.  
It will now take place on Tuesday 31 January 2017, starting at 2.00pm at 
County Hall, Trowbridge.) 
 

100 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 98



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 
OCTOBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Dennis Drewett, Cllr Peter Edge (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Jacqui Lay, 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman 
and Cllr Bridget Wayman (Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr Alan MacRae, Cllr 
Jonathon Seed, Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr John Thomson 
  

 
51 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Rosemary Brown. 
 
Apologies were also received from Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport, Councillor Philip Whitehead. Councillor John Thomson, Deputy 
Leader of the Council, would update the Committee as appropriate. 
 

52 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2016 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

53 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

54 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair it was announced that discussions had been held regarding 
plans to revise the existing Waste Strategy. Workshops would take place for 
councillors from Spring 2017. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
55 Public Participation 

 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

56 Highways Major Maintenance Programme - Annual Report 
 
In October 2013 Cabinet agreed to increase highway maintenance funding to 
£21 million for six years. This was subsequently included in the Council’s future 
budget, and forms the basis of the ‘Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 
2020’. The increased investment in highways maintenance has enabled a large 
number of schemes to be progressed to improve the condition of the network 
and its infrastructure. 
 
The previous Highways and Streetscene Contract was with Balfour Beatty 
Living Places (BBLP) and started in June 2013. In July 2015 Cabinet agreed to 
the early termination of the contract following a review of the potential benefits 
for the Council. The progress on terminating the previous contract and the 
procurement of the new contract was regularly reported to the Environment 
Select Committee. Arrangements were made for the Council to take over some 
of the existing sub-contracts between BBLP and specialist suppliers in key 
service areas, including grass cutting, litter picking and major road resurfacing. 
A procurement exercise was undertaken for a new Wiltshire Highways Contract 
for the other services, which was awarded to Ringway Infrastructure Services 
earlier this year and started in April 2016. 
 
Councillor John Thomson, Deputy Leader of the Council, and Peter Binley, 
Head of Highways Assets and Commissioning, presented a report on the 
annual review of the Highways Service. Details of highways maintenance in 
each community area were provided, along with an indicative list of 
maintenance schemes for 2017/18 and other statistics as detailed in the 
agenda. It was stated the performance of contractors had been very good since 
the early termination of the previous contract. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, seeking details of the allocation of the £21 
million highways investment, which included some funding from central 
government. Queries were raised on the proposed schemes for 2014/18, and in 
respect of the A350 proposals, it was stated the route was the busiest under the 
council’s responsibility in Wiltshire, and that funding for further dualling of the 
route was being sought from the Local Enterprise Partnership. 
 
The Committee was informed Area Boards would be consulted on the proposed 
list of maintenance to be undertaken in the next year, and it was confirmed that 
Community Area Transport Groups could propose additional schemes, although 
this would mean other schemes could not be addressed, and it would be 
beneficial to list the schemes by priority, though some members raised 
examples of high priority schemes that had been left undone across several 
years. Other topics raised included identifying the need for traffic signalling prior 
to upgrading the network, working closely with parish councils to monitor need 
for work, customer reporting and emphasising pedestrian and cycling 
improvements to reduce pressure on Highways. 

Page 100



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the following: 
 
(i) Good progress has been made on implementing the ‘Local 

Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 2020’, and there has been a 
substantial improvement in road conditions in Wiltshire.  

 
(ii) The performance of all of the contractors currently delivering the 

highways service is good, and the transition to the new highways 
contract with Ringway Infrastructure Services has gone smoothly. 

 
(iii) The new Parish Steward Scheme has been launched. The operation 

of the scheme will be monitored and reported to this Committee 
next year. 

 
(iv) The Highways Consultancy contract was awarded to Atkins in 

December 2012. Performance has been good and they are being 
awarded an 18 month extension in accordance with the provisions 
of the contract. Performance will continue to be monitored and will 
be reviewed again next year regarding a further six month 
extension of the contract. 

 
(v) A Performance Management Framework has been developed to 

help monitor future performance of the highways service and 
support good asset management.  

 
(vi) An annual review of the highway service will be undertaken and 

reported to this Committee next year, which will include reporting 
on progress on implementing the ‘Local Highways Investment Fund 
2014 – 2020’, and on the introduction of the Parish Steward 
Scheme. 

 
57 Wiltshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Annual Report 

 
The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 requires Wiltshire Council to act as 
Lead Local Flood Authority, and to develop a Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy (LFRMS). Councillor Jonathon Seed, Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Leisure, Libraries and Flooding, supported by Councillor Richard Clewer, 
Chairman of the Salisbury Operational Flood Working Group (OFWG) was in 
attendance to update the Committee on management of flood risk in Wiltshire. 
 
It was emphasised that two years prior the county, particularly in Salisbury, had 
been at severe risk of a major event, and preparations had been put in place to 
improve the situation, although it was noted in some areas it would never be 
possible to eliminate flood occurrence completely. Details were provided of the 
parish emergency assistance scheme to provide emergency signage and 

Page 101



 
 
 

 
 
 

sandbags for communities, of grants received from the Wessex Coastal 
Committee and development of flood plans. 
 
The Committee congratulated the councillors and officers for their work and 
discussed the annual report as detailed in the agenda, with details sought on 
work with the Environment Agency on modelling flooding in Wiltshire and the 
type of projects that were viable, with a drainage scheme list for each area to be 
provided by the end of the financial year 
 
Resolved 
 
To note that: 
 

i. The Operational Flood Working Groups have proved to be a 
successful way of managing flood risk. They are particularly 
effective at working with local communities, the Environment 
Agency and other organisations to manage flood risk in Wiltshire. 

ii. Local communities are encouraged to prepare Flood Plans and 
appoint Flood Wardens, and there are currently 82 communities 
with Flood Plans and 177 Flood Wardens. 

iii. The Council’s Parish Emergency Assistance Scheme (PEAS) 
continues to provide sand bags and equipment to local town and 
parish councils so that they can store these locally, and deploy 
them as necessary. There are 97 communities taking part in the 
scheme. 

iv. The Council carries out a large programme of flood alleviation and 
drainage projects which are managed and co-ordinated through the 
Operational Flood Working Groups. 

 
58 Highways Service - Peer Review Action Plan 

 
In November 2016, Cabinet agreed to an independent review of the highways 
service through the Highways Maintenance Efficiency Programme (HMEP) 
Strategic Peer Review process. The review took place in February 2016 and 
involved interviews with focus groups of members, staff, customers and 
partners, and individual interviews with Cabinet Members and senior managers, 
as well as reviewing service strategies and operational plans.  
 
Peter Binley, Head of Highways Assets and Commissioning, presented the 
report, which noted the outcome of the Peer Review had been very positive, 
and that an action plan had been developed, with project teams set up to take 
forward the improvements identified as detailed in appendix 1 of the report. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, congratulating the service for the positive 
outcome of the peer review, as well as seeking details on the potential role of 
Community Area Transport Groups and transformation of the Winter 
Maintenance Service. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 

Page 102



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To note: 
 

i. The positive results of the HMEP Peer Review earlier this year, and 
that progress is being made on implementing its recommendations. 

ii. The progress on implementing the Action Plan will be reported to a 
meeting of this Committee next year. 

 
59 Municipal Waste Management Strategy 

 
Wiltshire’s Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy was prepared by the 
Wiltshire Waste Partnership and adopted by the four district councils and the 
county council in 2006. This was then updated in 2012 following the formation 
of the Wiltshire Council unitary authority to reflect emerging legislation and 
changing council priorities. 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and Waste, supported 
by Tracy Carter, Associate Director for Waste and Environment, presented a 
report explaining that due to legislative and policy changes the Strategy would 
need to be developed, and that an updated version of the current strategy had 
been prepared until that new draft, which would take place in 2017. 
 
The Committee discussed the update and the effectiveness of the existing 
strategy. In response to queries it was confirmed the present recycling rate in 
the county was 47%, less below target than in the report, as the figure 
fluctuated from month to month, but that the new Waste Contract would 
introduce greater recycling range for plastics to help improve the figure. Details 
were also sought on encouraging people to sign up to Green Waste collection 
of compost green materials locally.  
 
It was also noted that encouraging commercial operators to recycle was a 
challenge as there was no statutory duty for them to do so, and that potential 
implications arising from exiting the European Union, potentially the 
requirements of existing Directives, were being explored. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the updated Wiltshire Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy 2016. 
 

60 Executive Response to the Waste Task Group's Final Report 
 
On 13 September 2016 the Committee endorsed the final report of the Waste 
Service Changes Task Group and referred its recommendations to the relevant 
Cabinet Member, as detailed in the agenda papers. Councillor Toby Sturgis, 
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development Management, Strategic 
Housing, Operational Property and Waste, was in attendance to present the 
Executive Response to the final report and its recommendations. 

Page 103



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
In relation to recommendation 4 and whether the Churchfields Depot could be 
included on the Regulation 123 list and funded through the Community 
Infrastructure Levy it was stated this was being considered, but that a priority list 
would be prepared in the new year.  In relation to recommendation 12 regarding 
a communication strategy to raise public awareness of what can and cannot be 
disposed of and the cost of abusing the system, it was raised whether area 
boards were required to fund covert cameras to catch abuse. It was stated the 
service had no plans to purchase new cameras, but that did have access to 
some and officers would consider all requests. It was also confirmed that it was 
difficult to prosecute fly tippers as that required people to make witness 
statements, not merely report incidents. 
 
At the end of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Executive Response. 
 

61 Task Group Update 
 
Updates from the Committee’s Task Groups were provided as detailed in the 
agenda and as provided verbally at the meeting.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To note the update on task group activity. 
2) That Cllr Linda Packard be replaced on the Highways and 

Streetscene Task Group by Cllr Peter Evans. 
 

62 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Forward Work Programme for the Committee as detailed in the agenda 
was received. It was noted the Wholly Owned Subsidiary proposal had still not 
reached a point where it could progress. 
 
Following discussions with the Executive and Officers, it was also proposed that 
a Rapid Scrutiny Exercise be undertaken in respect of the Planning Service, 
with the focus to be confirmed at a later date. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updated Forward Plan. 
 

63 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 13 December 2016. 
 
 
 

Page 104



 
 
 

 
 
 

64 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.20 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 
DECEMBER 2016 AT KENNET ROOM- COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JQ.. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Peter Edge (Vice Chairman in the Chair), Cllr Trevor Carbin (Substitute), 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Dennis Drewett, Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Jose Green, 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman 
and Cllr Philip Whalley (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, Cllr Alan MacRae and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
65 Apologies 

Apologies were received from Chairman Cllr Bridget Wayman who was 
substituted by Cllr Philip Whalley. 
 
Apologies were also received from Cllr Rosemary Brown who was substituted 
by Cllr Trevor Carbin.  
 
Further apologies were also received from Cllr Mike Hewitt and Cllr Jacqui Lay.  
 

66 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
The minutes from the last meeting of Tuesday 25th October 2016 were 
presented to the committee for consideration and they were agreed as a true 
and accurate account.  
 
Resolved 
 
Minutes were signed by the Vice Chairman Cllr Peter Edge.  
 

67 Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

68 Chairman's Announcements 
The Chairman informed the committee of the adoption of the Supplementary 
Planning Document 'Waste storage and collection: guidance for developers' 
was considered at the 15th November Cabinet meeting. Further questions on 
the document were asked to be directed towards the relevant officers. 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

69 Public Participation 
There were no public speakers.  
 

70 Progress on Social Housing Developments 
The Committee was provided with a progress report on the council house 
building programme. 
 
In September 2015, the Cabinet Capital Assets Committee approved a 
programme of new council house building funded with a combination of Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) reserves and borrowing with other sources of capital 
including Right to Buy (RTB) receipts, commuted sum funding from planning 
gain and grant funding secured by bidding to the Homes and Communities 
Agency (HCA). 
 
The delivery of new affordable council homes across Wiltshire, including homes 
for older people and adapted homes, aims to meet a number of the council’s 
priorities, objectives and outcomes outlined in the council’s business plan. 
 
The Committee was asked to note the update report. 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer gave a verbal update on the programme. It was stated that 
it was proceeding on track, despite the usual setbacks expected in planning. It 
was also mentioned that the new Housing and Planning Act 2016 was close to 
being enacted and, whilst they would proceed with current strategy, they had to 
be open to the changes, to be brought about by the new legislation.  
 
The Chairman invited technical questions on the report.  
 
During questioning, it was clarified by that the strategy sought to respond to 
need where possible and gave the example of the ongoing development of 
social housing bungalows in Devises. It was also clarified that all major Housing 
Associations would be taking part in the Right to Buy Schemes.  
 
A question was asked about pledges to cut social housing rental costs of 1% for 
3 years. It was confirmed that this was still the policy for Wiltshire Council but 
that the new Housing Bill could change that.  
  
Councillors then discussed the application of shared equity to social housing. It 
was noted that it has become increasingly popular and could become almost 
30% of all social housing.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the progress report on social housing developments. 
 

71 Housing Strategy – Final Draft 
The Committee was provided with a copy of the final Housing Strategy in 
preparation for it going to formal consultation. 
 

Page 108



 
 
 

 
 
 

The strategy has been developed in partnership with key stakeholders including 
Housing Associations, landlords, developers and tenants, as well as elected 
members, and has been approved by Cabinet Liaison to commence formal 
consultation. 
 
The strategy sets out a joint vision for Wiltshire whereby everyone in Wiltshire 
should be able to live in a decent and safe home they can afford. 
 
The Committee  was asked to review and comment upon the 5 year Housing 
Strategy that sets the priorities and strategic direction for Housing for the next 5 
years. 
 
The report was introduced by Cllr Richard Clewer. He explained that it was a 
Housing Partnership Strategy and that it had 4 main aims of facilitating housing 
need, making best use of existing house stock, meeting accommodation needs 
and taking a lead in housing provision. He then referred to committee to the 
details of the report.  
 
The Chairman invited technical questions about the strategy.  
 
It was asked what was being done to address homelessness. Cllr Clewer 
explained that work was being done under the housing strategy along with other 
bodies to offer support. The committee discussed some of the issues regarding 
homelessness and barriers in offering them support.  
 
Plans to introduce increased charges for those families in social housing owning 
over £31,000 were queried. Cllr Clewer said the exact details of the plan were 
not known at this time and that members would have to wait for the final draft of 
the Housing Bill for answers.  
 
Technical questions were also asked about some of the definitions and 
percentages listed in the report. Cllr Clewer pointed out that the strategy was 
going to public consultation and that more of the details would become known 
at that time.  
 
A further question was raised as to the numbers of empty homes versus those 
on the waiting list for affordable housing. The Housing Officer explained that 
Wiltshire Council did all they could to promote effective use of properties and 
that compared to the rest of the country, the percentages of empty homes was 
comparatively low.  
 
Finally, there was some criticism of the selling off of Council owned housing, as 
after questioning Cllr Clewer revealed that “not enough” is made in selling a 
council home to build another one.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the final draft of the Wiltshire Council Housing Strategy 2017-2022 
along with comments from the committee raised during discussion. 
 

Page 109



 
 
 

 
 
 

To investigate the establishment of a Re-Commissioning of Housing 
Service Support Contracts rapid scrutiny exercise to look at the approach 
to procuring new services. 
  

72 Parking Services Update 
The Committee received a report updating members on the actions taken since 
the Car Parking Strategy Review in March 2015. This included details on the full 
implementation of charges that were approved, updates on the types of asset 
transfers that have occurred to local communities, the introduction of new 
technologies, and the predicted income shortfall following the proposed 
charges.  
 
The Committee was asked to note and comment on the actions to date 
following the Parking Review and make any comments on the proposed 
approach. 
 
Cllr Philip Whitehead introduced the report and explained that the Parking 
Review had reduced charges across the county. He observed that this meant 
that Wiltshire had gone 6-7 years without increased charges, in contrast to the 
rest of the country.  
 
Cllr Whitehead spoke of identified parking issues and strategies in Chippenham. 
He informed the committee that there was a shortage of parking in Chippenham 
and that this was creating issues for the shopping centres. He explained that he 
had been asked to reduce charges but determined that would further 
exacerbate the problem, with workers taking up spaces rather than shoppers. 
He spoke of some initiatives being looked into such as Free parking days and 
other incentives. He praised the “Free after 3 pm” policy in Salisbury, stating 
that it had benefited the shops, and said that it was being considered for other 
areas. 
 
Cllr Whitehead then sought to inform members on the plans for the 
introductions of new technologies. He said that he was in re-negotiations for 
cashless payments, via mobile phones, after explaining that excessive charges 
had been incurred by customers. He said that he was looking for an 
arrangement whereby there were no such charges on “mobile” payments. He 
addressed concerns that some members of the community, such as those who 
were vulnerable, disabled or elderly, may not be able or willing to use the 
cashless system. He said that they would seek to trial cashless payments in 
smaller car parks near to larger car parks, still operating a cash payment 
system, in case they are unable to pay via phone. He said that it was part of a 
long term strategy with the ultimate aim of making savings and efficiency.  
 
Cllr Whitehead also informed members that the cash machines in car parks 
were going to need updating due to the pound coin being changed in 2017. 
This, he said, was to reduce fraud but it would be at a considerable cost to the 
Parking budget in the short term.  
 
The chairman invited technical questions on the Parking Review.  
 

Page 110



 
 
 

 
 
 

Questions were asked regarding the application of paperless tickets to 
residential permits. Cllr Whitehead explained that it was similar to paperless tax 
disks and presented no issue being electronically managed.  
 
A question was asked about maintenance of car parks and whether regular 
works would be done by Wiltshire Council. Cllr Whitehead replied by saying 
“there is only one budget” and that with a reduced budget they were limited on 
what they could do. He did, however, say that when it came to matters of safety, 
Wiltshire Council would be responsible for maintenance.  
 
A member asked whether asset transfers of car parks were being considered, 
particularly to local Town and Parish Councils, whereby funds could still be 
made to Wiltshire Council. Whilst they were aware of  this as an option , it was 
not seen  as an immediate solution, or as part of the current strategy.  
 
Finally, it was asked how much money was collected parking fines and the 
figure was given, by the Parking Services Officers, as between £800,000 and 
£1,000,000. Although, it was clarified that this was revenue and not profit, as 
you have to factor in running costs.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the reported actions to date following the Parking Review. 
 

73 Playing Pitch Strategy Update 
A Wiltshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy is currently being developed to 
support the Wiltshire Core Strategy and the need for a single Wiltshire-wide 
open spaces standard. 
 
Cllr Jerry Kunkler presented to the draft Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy to the 
committee and invited them to comment and give its endorsement to the draft. 
 
Questions were asked as to why certain, less well known sports, such as touch 
rugby and walking football had not been included in the strategy. The Strategy 
Officers explained that no- contact sports, such as those listed, were included in 
the strategy but did not feature in the formal statistics because they are 
generally non-competitive sports. 
 
It was also noted by committee members that some playing pitches and clubs 
had been missed out, specifically, Wilton Playing Pitch. The Officers noted 
these points and said that they would look at including Wilton Playing Pitch and 
any others brought to their attention. 
 
A technical question was asked on the application of the strategy to when 
Councils are looking at applications for other leisure schemes and use of open 
spaces, for example development or Performing Art Centres. The Officers 
explained that the strategy gives guidance for applications of that nature and it 
gives a baseline for looking at the needs of a particular community. The Officers 
assured members that there was a steering group, with dedicated staff, looking 

Page 111



 
 
 

 
 
 

into community leisure needs and they could be contacted with any specific 
issues or questions.  
 
After further questions, it was made clear that Wiltshire Council were willing to 
do all that they could to support sport and would work with any club that was 
willing and able to build their resources.  
 
 
Resolved 
 
To endorse the draft Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy with comments 
made. 
 
For the Environment Select Committee to receive annual updates on the 
development of the Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy. 
 

74 Task Group Update 
Councillors from the task group were in attendance and stated that there was 
no formal update from the group, as it was still under consideration and work 
was being done to progress the priorities of the group.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the task group update. 
 

75 Forward Work Programme 
Members noted the Forward Working Plan in the reports but there were no 
updates forthcoming.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note the forward work programme. 
 

76 Date of Next Meeting 
The date of the next meeting was agreed as Wednesday 22nd February 2016. 
 

77 Urgent Items 
There were no urgent items.  

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 3.50 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718504059, e-mail Edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk   

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 112

mailto:Edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 
OCTOBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Dennis Drewett, Cllr Peter Edge (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Jacqui Lay, 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman 
and Cllr Bridget Wayman (Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr Alan MacRae, Cllr 
Jonathon Seed, Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr John Thomson 
  

 
51 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Rosemary Brown. 
 
Apologies were also received from Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transport, Councillor Philip Whitehead. Councillor John Thomson, Deputy 
Leader of the Council, would update the Committee as appropriate. 
 

52 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2016 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

53 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

54 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair it was announced that discussions had been held regarding 
plans to revise the existing Waste Strategy. Workshops would take place for 
councillors from Spring 2017. 

Page 7

Minute Item 66

Page 113



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
55 Public Participation 

 
There were no questions or statements submitted. 
 

56 Highways Major Maintenance Programme - Annual Report 
 
In October 2013 Cabinet agreed to increase highway maintenance funding to 
£21 million for six years. This was subsequently included in the Council’s future 
budget, and forms the basis of the ‘Local Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 
2020’. The increased investment in highways maintenance has enabled a large 
number of schemes to be progressed to improve the condition of the network 
and its infrastructure. 
 
The previous Highways and Streetscene Contract was with Balfour Beatty 
Living Places (BBLP) and started in June 2013. In July 2015 Cabinet agreed to 
the early termination of the contract following a review of the potential benefits 
for the Council. The progress on terminating the previous contract and the 
procurement of the new contract was regularly reported to the Environment 
Select Committee. Arrangements were made for the Council to take over some 
of the existing sub-contracts between BBLP and specialist suppliers in key 
service areas, including grass cutting, litter picking and major road resurfacing. 
A procurement exercise was undertaken for a new Wiltshire Highways Contract 
for the other services, which was awarded to Ringway Infrastructure Services 
earlier this year and started in April 2016. 
 
Councillor John Thomson, Deputy Leader of the Council, and Peter Binley, 
Head of Highways Assets and Commissioning, presented a report on the 
annual review of the Highways Service. Details of highways maintenance in 
each community area were provided, along with an indicative list of 
maintenance schemes for 2017/18 and other statistics as detailed in the 
agenda. It was stated the performance of contractors had been very good since 
the early termination of the previous contract. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, seeking details of the allocation of the £21 
million highways investment, which included some funding from central 
government. Queries were raised on the proposed schemes for 2014/18, and in 
respect of the A350 proposals, it was stated the route was the busiest under the 
council’s responsibility in Wiltshire, and that funding for further dualling of the 
route was being sought from the Local Enterprise Partnership. 
 
The Committee was informed Area Boards would be consulted on the proposed 
list of maintenance to be undertaken in the next year, and it was confirmed that 
Community Area Transport Groups could propose additional schemes, although 
this would mean other schemes could not be addressed, and it would be 
beneficial to list the schemes by priority, though some members raised 
examples of high priority schemes that had been left undone across several 
years. Other topics raised included identifying the need for traffic signalling prior 
to upgrading the network, working closely with parish councils to monitor need 
for work, customer reporting and emphasising pedestrian and cycling 
improvements to reduce pressure on Highways. 

Page 8Page 114



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the following: 
 
(i) Good progress has been made on implementing the ‘Local 

Highways Investment Fund 2014 – 2020’, and there has been a 
substantial improvement in road conditions in Wiltshire.  

 
(ii) The performance of all of the contractors currently delivering the 

highways service is good, and the transition to the new highways 
contract with Ringway Infrastructure Services has gone smoothly. 

 
(iii) The new Parish Steward Scheme has been launched. The operation 

of the scheme will be monitored and reported to this Committee 
next year. 

 
(iv) The Highways Consultancy contract was awarded to Atkins in 

December 2012. Performance has been good and they are being 
awarded an 18 month extension in accordance with the provisions 
of the contract. Performance will continue to be monitored and will 
be reviewed again next year regarding a further six month 
extension of the contract. 

 
(v) A Performance Management Framework has been developed to 

help monitor future performance of the highways service and 
support good asset management.  

 
(vi) An annual review of the highway service will be undertaken and 

reported to this Committee next year, which will include reporting 
on progress on implementing the ‘Local Highways Investment Fund 
2014 – 2020’, and on the introduction of the Parish Steward 
Scheme. 

 
57 Wiltshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Annual Report 

 
The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 requires Wiltshire Council to act as 
Lead Local Flood Authority, and to develop a Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy (LFRMS). Councillor Jonathon Seed, Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Leisure, Libraries and Flooding, supported by Councillor Richard Clewer, 
Chairman of the Salisbury Operational Flood Working Group (OFWG) was in 
attendance to update the Committee on management of flood risk in Wiltshire. 
 
It was emphasised that two years prior the county, particularly in Salisbury, had 
been at severe risk of a major event, and preparations had been put in place to 
improve the situation, although it was noted in some areas it would never be 
possible to eliminate flood occurrence completely. Details were provided of the 
parish emergency assistance scheme to provide emergency signage and 

Page 9Page 115



 
 
 

 
 
 

sandbags for communities, of grants received from the Wessex Coastal 
Committee and development of flood plans. 
 
The Committee congratulated the councillors and officers for their work and 
discussed the annual report as detailed in the agenda, with details sought on 
work with the Environment Agency on modelling flooding in Wiltshire and the 
type of projects that were viable, with a drainage scheme list for each area to be 
provided by the end of the financial year 
 
Resolved 
 
To note that: 
 

i. The Operational Flood Working Groups have proved to be a 
successful way of managing flood risk. They are particularly 
effective at working with local communities, the Environment 
Agency and other organisations to manage flood risk in Wiltshire. 

ii. Local communities are encouraged to prepare Flood Plans and 
appoint Flood Wardens, and there are currently 82 communities 
with Flood Plans and 177 Flood Wardens. 

iii. The Council’s Parish Emergency Assistance Scheme (PEAS) 
continues to provide sand bags and equipment to local town and 
parish councils so that they can store these locally, and deploy 
them as necessary. There are 97 communities taking part in the 
scheme. 

iv. The Council carries out a large programme of flood alleviation and 
drainage projects which are managed and co-ordinated through the 
Operational Flood Working Groups. 

 
58 Highways Service - Peer Review Action Plan 

 
In November 2016, Cabinet agreed to an independent review of the highways 
service through the Highways Maintenance Efficiency Programme (HMEP) 
Strategic Peer Review process. The review took place in February 2016 and 
involved interviews with focus groups of members, staff, customers and 
partners, and individual interviews with Cabinet Members and senior managers, 
as well as reviewing service strategies and operational plans.  
 
Peter Binley, Head of Highways Assets and Commissioning, presented the 
report, which noted the outcome of the Peer Review had been very positive, 
and that an action plan had been developed, with project teams set up to take 
forward the improvements identified as detailed in appendix 1 of the report. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, congratulating the service for the positive 
outcome of the peer review, as well as seeking details on the potential role of 
Community Area Transport Groups and transformation of the Winter 
Maintenance Service. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 

Page 10Page 116



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
To note: 
 

i. The positive results of the HMEP Peer Review earlier this year, and 
that progress is being made on implementing its recommendations. 

ii. The progress on implementing the Action Plan will be reported to a 
meeting of this Committee next year. 

 
59 Municipal Waste Management Strategy 

 
Wiltshire’s Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy was prepared by the 
Wiltshire Waste Partnership and adopted by the four district councils and the 
county council in 2006. This was then updated in 2012 following the formation 
of the Wiltshire Council unitary authority to reflect emerging legislation and 
changing council priorities. 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and Waste, supported 
by Tracy Carter, Associate Director for Waste and Environment, presented a 
report explaining that due to legislative and policy changes the Strategy would 
need to be developed, and that an updated version of the current strategy had 
been prepared until that new draft, which would take place in 2017. 
 
The Committee discussed the update and the effectiveness of the existing 
strategy. In response to queries it was confirmed the present recycling rate in 
the county was 47%, less below target than in the report, as the figure 
fluctuated from month to month, but that the new Waste Contract would 
introduce greater recycling range for plastics to help improve the figure. Details 
were also sought on encouraging people to sign up to Green Waste collection 
of compost green materials locally.  
 
It was also noted that encouraging commercial operators to recycle was a 
challenge as there was no statutory duty for them to do so, and that potential 
implications arising from exiting the European Union, potentially the 
requirements of existing Directives, were being explored. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the updated Wiltshire Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy 2016. 
 

60 Executive Response to the Waste Task Group's Final Report 
 
On 13 September 2016 the Committee endorsed the final report of the Waste 
Service Changes Task Group and referred its recommendations to the relevant 
Cabinet Member, as detailed in the agenda papers. Councillor Toby Sturgis, 
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development Management, Strategic 
Housing, Operational Property and Waste, was in attendance to present the 
Executive Response to the final report and its recommendations. 

Page 11Page 117



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
In relation to recommendation 4 and whether the Churchfields Depot could be 
included on the Regulation 123 list and funded through the Community 
Infrastructure Levy it was stated this was being considered, but that a priority list 
would be prepared in the new year.  In relation to recommendation 12 regarding 
a communication strategy to raise public awareness of what can and cannot be 
disposed of and the cost of abusing the system, it was raised whether area 
boards were required to fund covert cameras to catch abuse. It was stated the 
service had no plans to purchase new cameras, but that did have access to 
some and officers would consider all requests. It was also confirmed that it was 
difficult to prosecute fly tippers as that required people to make witness 
statements, not merely report incidents. 
 
At the end of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Executive Response. 
 

61 Task Group Update 
 
Updates from the Committee’s Task Groups were provided as detailed in the 
agenda and as provided verbally at the meeting.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To note the update on task group activity. 
2) That Cllr Linda Packard be replaced on the Highways and 

Streetscene Task Group by Cllr Peter Evans. 
 

62 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Forward Work Programme for the Committee as detailed in the agenda 
was received. It was noted the Wholly Owned Subsidiary proposal had still not 
reached a point where it could progress. 
 
Following discussions with the Executive and Officers, it was also proposed that 
a Rapid Scrutiny Exercise be undertaken in respect of the Planning Service, 
with the focus to be confirmed at a later date. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updated Forward Plan. 
 

63 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 13 December 2016. 
 
 
 

Page 12Page 118



 
 
 

 
 
 

64 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.20 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 13Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14Page 120



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
27 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King (Vice Chairman), Cllr Chris Caswill, 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, 
Cllr John Knight, Cllr Paul Oatway QPM, Diane Gooch, Steve Wheeler, Cllr Peter Evans 
(Substitute) and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
  

 
61 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Mary Champion, Stakeholder - Irene 
Kohler and Councillor Mary Douglas who was replaced at the meeting by 
Councillor Peter Evans. 
 

62 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The meeting considered the minutes of the Health Select Committee meeting 
held on 21 June 2016. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 21 June 2016 for 
signing. 
 

63 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

64 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman drew the meeting’s attention to information circulated to 
Members relating to the Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership. 
 

65 Public Participation 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 15



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman invited Brian Warwick to address the meeting under the HTLAH 
item. 
 

66 Great Western Hospitals - CQC inspection report 
 
In April 2016 the Care Quality Commission (CQC) undertook a focused 
inspection on the GWH Trust to follow up on concerns identified in a Section 
29A Warning Notice served in December 2015. This followed a comprehensive 
inspection of the trust in September 2015. The resulting report was published 
on 8 August 2016 and can be viewed at this link. 
 
Dina McAlpine, Director of Quality at Wiltshire CCG, will attend to provide an 
overview of the report’s findings. 
 
In the course of the presentation and discussion, the issues highlighted 
included: that some area require improvement; that good multi-disciplinary 
working had been identified; that a good culture existed for reporting serious 
incidents; the culture of good, caring, compassionate staff; that occupancy rates 
were running high and impacting on safety and effectiveness; the warning 
notice in relation to A&E; that some staffing levels were of concern; that some 
safeguarding training needed improvement; that some concerns over the way 
that risk registers linked together, and how can share issues be addressed 
properly; that Trust was re-inspected in April to address warning notice issues; 
that the action plan was acknowledged as being comprehensive but that 
improvements needed to be quicker. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the CQC inspection report following the inspection 

undertaken in April 2016 and the overall grading of ‘Requires 
Improvement’. 

 
2. To ask the CCG and GWH to attend the Committee’s next meeting 

and provide a thematic overview of progress with delivering the 
improvements required by the CQC report. 

 
3. To receive a briefing on NHS finances, including the funding of acute 

hospitals, at a future meeting. 
 

67 Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - CQC inspection report 
 
In December 2015 the Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspected this trust as 
part of its programme of comprehensive inspections. The team inspected the 
standard eight core services as well as the spinal service. 
 

Page 122

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAF7357.pdf


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Overall, this trust was rated as requiring improvement. CQC rated it as requiring 
improvement for safety, being responsive to patients needs and for being well 
led and good for providing effective care and being caring. 
 
The resulting report was published on 4 April 2016 and can be viewed at this 
link. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Dina McAlpine, Director of Quality at Wiltshire CCG, 
who attended the meeting to provide an overview of the report’s findings. 
Lorna Wilkinson, Director of Nursing, from Salibury Trust, also attend to answer 
any questions at the meeting. 
 
In the course of the presentation and discussion, the issues highlighted 
included: that the trust had received an overall rating of ‘requires improvement’, 
with specific issues that were good and others that required further work; that 
report stated that staff provided compassionate care; that positive culture 
existed amongst staff, and that senior management were visible; the strong 
culture of reporting and learning from incidents; that the bereavement suite 
facilities, and midwife care were noted as an outstanding; the good 
communication between teams in the hospital; that areas of improvement 
included staffing levels, maintaining single sex accommodation in particular 
units; and that an action plan had been agreed to address issues for 
improvement.  
 
The Chairman thanked the officers for their attendance. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the CQC inspection report, the overall grading of ‘Requires 
Improvement’, the plans in place for addressing the challenges identified, 
and the many areas of success. 
 

68 South West Ambulance Service Trust (SWAST) Performance in Wiltshire 
 
The meeting received a report which outlined performance information relating 
to the ambulance service's performance in Wiltshire. Representatives from 
SWAST attend the meeting to introduce the report and answer members’ 
questions. 
 
In the course of the presentation and discussion, the issues highlighted 
included: that previously the Trust’s performance was scrutinised by the Joint 
SWAST Committee, which included Wiltshire and a number of other councils in 
the South West; that in Autumn 2015 a proposal was circulated for participating 
councils to disband the joint committee in favour of making local arrangements 
and in March 2016 the Health Select Committee supported this proposal; that it 
had been agreed to provide annual reports to the Committee on the 
performance of the ambulance service in Wiltshire; that an invited had been 
extended to Councillors to visit facilities that trust covers a fifth of England 

Page 123

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAF1301.pdf


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

geographically; the different methods of treating patients including over the 
phone; the number of patients dealt with remotely; the performance of treating 
people in homes and not to hospital – only 43% to A&E; the need to focus 
resources on those most in need; the role of community first responders; how 
performance is measured and how it can be improved to measure quality better; 
how steps were taken to address recruitment issues; the links to the defibrillator 
scheme; how the region copes with seasonal visitors and large events such as 
Glastonbury; and how Council’s can work to support the ambulance service. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note: 
 

1. the information provided on the ambulance service's performance 
in Wiltshire and to thank the Trust for providing a clear report. 

 
2. the challenges faced by the ambulance service in meeting certain 

response time targets due to the geography of the county. 
 

3. the benefits of having defibrillators available in public places and to 
request a list of where defibrillators are currently located in 
Wiltshire. 
 

4. the challenges faced nationally in recruiting sufficient staff to 
deliver ambulance services. 
 

5. the work underway to reduce the number of inappropriate referrals 
to the ambulance service. 

 
69 'Help to Live at Home' service commissioning 

 
On 14 June Cabinet received a report (attached) providing an update on the 
outcome of the recent ‘Help to Live at Home’ (HTLAH) tender process; 
requested approval to award to the preferred provider(s); and sought 
authorisation to extend two contract lots with an incumbent Provider. Following 
discussion, it was resolved, 
 

1. That the contracts with Somerset Care Ltd are extended for the full 
extension available, West 2 until September 2018 and North 2 until April 
2019 

 
2. That following the recent tender process that the contracts currently held 

by Mihomecare and Leonard Cheshire for HTLAH are awarded to the 
preferred provider(s) identified through the current tender process. 

 
3. That authority is delegated to the Corporate Director and Associate 

Director for Adult Services, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Health (including Public Health and Adult Social Care), to finalise the 

Page 124



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

terms of the contracts and to agree the extension with Somerset Care 
Ltd. 

 
Following this, it was requested that the item appear on the agenda for the next 
meeting of the Health Select Committee.  
 
In a response to a question from Councillor Caswill, James Cawley state that he 
was believed the Council had appointed Mears as the best provider, and 
remained confident that they will be able to meet the contract. Furthermore, the 
contractor paid above the national minimum wage which would help them to 
recruit people. It was acknowledged that there remained some workforce issues 
that are common to health care providers across the county, which is a low 
unemployment area. James Cawley confirmed that he had spoken to chief 
executive of Mears recently to continue to address issues. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Mr Brian Warwick, the Chairman asked that 
the Cabinet Member Councillor Jerry Wickham and the officers look into the 
matters raised. James Cawley also offered to include the Vice-Chairman in 
officer meetings. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the urgent decisions taken by Cabinet on 14 June regarding 

the tendering of ‘Help to Live at Home’ contracts. 
 
2. To note the concerns expressed by Brian Warwick about aspects of 

the Help to Live at Home service and to ask the Cabinet Member and 
officers to bring information back to the Committee regarding how 
these are being dealt with.  

 
3. To ask the Vice-Chairman to attend the officers group and report back 

any non-confidential matters to the Committee. 
 

70 Minor Injury Units 
 
Douglas Blair and Ted Wilson attended the meeting to outline proposals to 
change the opening ours of the Trowbridge and Chippenham Minor Injuries 
Units (MIU). 
 
In the course of the presentation and discussion, issues raised included: that 
Wiltshire Health & Care (WHC) manages both Trowbridge and Chippenham 
Minor Injury Units (MIU) as part of their Wiltshire Adult Community Services 
contract; that the Trowbridge MIU is currently open 24hrs and Chippenham is 
open between 7am and 1am; that both MIUs are experiencing difficulties in 
maintaining appropriate and safe staffing levels throughout the night. Patient 
attendances overnight are also historically very low with an average of 2.3 
patients per night at Trowbridge supported by two senior nurses at a cost per 
patient of £117 overnight compared with £21 per patient during the day; 

Page 125



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Chippenham has even less attendances; that the proposal is to revise the 
opening times for both MIUs so that they are consistently open from 7am to 
11pm 7 days per week; that the benefits of this change are hoped to be: no 
more unplanned closures at night time, better use of existing resources, less 
reliance on agency and bank staff and a standardisation of service provision will 
provide greater clarity for the public on what services are available and when.  
 
It was noted: that any savings that may accrue from this change would be 
reinvested back into the provision of community services; that urgent Out of 
Hours services remain unchanged and potential patients can get appointments 
as appropriate via NHS111; that there would be a minimal, if any impact on 
neighbouring Accident and Emergency departments as the numbers are so low 
and many of these overnight patients are minor illness not minor injury.  
 
Resolved 
 
To note and support the proposal from Wiltshire Health & Care and 
Wiltshire CCG to amend the opening hours of Trowbridge and 
Chippenham Minor Injury Units to 7am to 11pm with a review being 
undertaken at the end of the financial year. 
 

71 Non-elected representation on Committee 
 
The Chairman stated that in the light of the Overview & Scrutiny Management 
Committee’s impending review of engagement, it would be premature to 
consider the issue of non-elected representatives on the Health Select 
Committee. Therefore, he was not proposing any changes to the arrangements. 
 

72 Task Group Update 
 
The meeting received an update regarding the work of their task groups as 
follows: 
 
Better Care Plan Task Group 
 
That the task group had met on 12 September and considered the following: 

 Outcomes from the task group meetings with Salisbury Foundation Trust, 
Camelot Care Home, MEARS care provider and Bradford-on-Avon 
Integrated Team. 

 Update on the Better Care Plan performance dashboard 

 Update on Workforce issues 

 Update on the Single View project 
 

The task group would next meet on 3 October when it will consider its final 
report, prior to bringing it to the Committee on 15 November. 

Obesity  and  Child  Poverty  Task  Group  (Joint  With  Children’s  Select 

Page 126



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Committee) 
 
That on 31 May the Children’s Select Committee had received the executive 
response to the task group’s final report. In considering this, the committee 
recommended that the Task Group reconvene to consider and comment on the 
implementation plan prior to final adoption by Cabinet on 19 July 2016. 
 
A report of the task group’s comments to Cabinet can be viewed here. 
 

73 Forward Work Programme 
 
The meeting noted the forward work programme. 
 

74 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

75 Date of Next Meeting 
 
15 November 2016. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.00  - 4.59 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 127

http://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s120126/Appendix%206%20-%20Further%20Report%20of%20the%20Obesity%20and%20Child%20Poverty%20Task%20Group.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
15 NOVEMBER 2016 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King (Vice Chairman), Cllr Chris Caswill, 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr John Knight, Cllr Paul Oatway QPM, Cllr John Walsh, Diane Gooch, 
Irene Kohler, Steve Wheeler, Cllr Graham Wright and Cllr Atiqul Hoque 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham 
  

 
76 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

77 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the Health Select Committee meeting 
held on 27th September 2016. 
 
Note: The resolutions for the Salisbury Foundation Trust and Great Western 
Hospital CQC report items were mistakenly exchanged with each other in an 
earlier draft. This was corrected in the subsequent draft agreed. 
 

78 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

79 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman gave the following updates: 
 
a) The Homecare Deficit Report, October 2016 
 
The Chairman drew the meeting’s attention to the agenda pack includes a link 
to this report. 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 16



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Following an issue raised, it was agreed; 
 
To receive an update on the review of Help to Live at Home’s provision 
within sheltered accommodation. 
 
b) Introducing Health and Social Care: A Development Session for 

Scrutiny 
 
The Chairman provided a brief update on the conference attended by Vice-
Chairman and himself. 
 

80 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions  or statements. 
 

81 Developing Integrated Urgent Care 
 
Jo Cullen, Director of Primary and Urgent Care at Wiltshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, presented the report which provided an update on the 
point to jointly procure with Wiltshire Council an Integrated Urgent Care service 
for Wiltshire.  The CCG report presenting the proposals to its governing body 
was included in the agenda packs and a link to that morning’s Cabinet report 
was also provided. 
 
Issues discussed included: that the Committee’s members had received a pre-
meeting briefing on the topic; that the CCG Governing Body had now given its 
approval to go to the market to secure the service from March 2018, and that 
the Cabinet had agreed that morning that Council-commissioned services will 
also be included. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for bringing the update. Following a proposal from 
the Chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To thank the CCG for the briefing provided and receive an update on the 
development of the pilot in March. 
 

82 Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) - update 
 
James Scott, Chief Executive of Royal United Hospital and Nominated Lead for 
the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) programme, and David 
McClay, its Programme Director, attended to introduce the update on progress 
made in developing the STP. 
 
It was noted that in December 2015 all NHS organisations were asked to 
produce two separate but interconnected plans: that each covered: 
 

Page 130



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

1. A local health and care system ‘Sustainability and Transformation Plan’, 
which cover the period October 2016 to March 2021; and 
 
2. A plan by organisation for 2016/17. This will need to reflect the emerging 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan. 
 
Issues discussed included: the priorities emerging from the plan; the concern 
from the public about visibility of the plan; that the local STP would be for the 
Bath & North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire areas; that significant 
public and workforce engagement would take place, once the emerging plan 
was published, to finalise the future design of our health and social care 
services; that a broader coalition of partners had been working together to work 
on the emerging plan; that the intention was to start working with partners and 
the public on co-designing how the plan has focused on areas that need action 
and to which the plan can effect change; the opportunities to share property, 
personnel and back office issues; how a small minority of complex cases take 
up a large amount of resources; the implications of the geography in the area; 
how certain specialisms can work better across the STP area; how the STP 
board will move to become a partnership responsible for implementing plan. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for bringing the update. Following a proposal from 
the Chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update on the development of the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan and to continue to receive updates at appropriate 
milestones. 
 

83 Great Western Hospital - action plan following CQC inspection 
 
Hilary Walker, Director of Nursing at Great Western Hospital (GWH), attended 
the meeting to give presentation to the board on progress in their action plan 
devised following a recent Care Quality Commission (CQC). 
 
Issues discussed included: that in April 2016 the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) undertook a focused inspection on the Great Western Hospital Trust to 
follow up on concerns identified in a Section 29A Warning Notice served in 
December 2015; that the resulting report was published on 8 August 2016, and 
that the CQC awarded a grading of “Requires Improvement”; that in September 
Health Select Committee considered the CQC inspection report and resolved to 
ask GWH to attend the Committee’s next meeting to provide a thematic 
overview of progress with delivering the improvements required by the CQC 
report; how workforce issues were being addressed; the areas of progress and 
those requiring more focused attention. 
 
In response to a question, it was agreed that figures showing the percentage 
increase of nurses in A&E would be circulated. 

Page 131



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chair thanked officers for bringing the update. Following a proposal from 
the Chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the information provided on GWH’s improvement programme 
following their CQC inspection report published in August 2016. 
 

84 Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Annual report on progress 
 
Frances Chinemana, Associate Director for Public Health, attended the meeting 
to present an update on progress on the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
Issues discussed included: that success made against the six overarching 
outcomes of the Strategy; that the Committee had received the Strategy at their 
meeting April; how the report used statistics showing the delivery of strategic 
targets; that the report would also be considered by the Health & Wellbeing 
Board; the success of specific schemes and organisations, such as Active Plus, 
it reaching target groups such as ex-service personnel, and how the Committee 
and Area Boards may receive more information about their activities. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for bringing the update. Following a proposal from 
the Chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update on the delivery of targets within the Mental Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

85 Developing the role of Pharmacists 
 
Officers attended the meeting to present a written update on the development of 
a training programme for pharmacists in Wiltshire. A short promotional video 
was also shown. 
 
Issues discussed included: how the programme was aimed at maximising the 
contribution of pharmacists to the local health care system; the links to Better 
Care Plan and the Health and Well Being Plan in Wiltshire, specifically 
supporting the aim to provide more care in a community setting and people’s 
homes; the role of improved communications in getting the message out to the 
public; the risks and benefits from increasing the responsibilities of pharmacists; 
the potential cost savings to the health system; the role of the Health Select 
Committee in initiating discussions regarding how we could use pharmacists 
better; and the intention to bring further updates back to committee as things 
develop 
 

Page 132



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Chair thanked officers for bringing the update. Following a proposal from 
the Chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the update on the development of a training programme for 
pharmacists in Wiltshire and support the proposals as outlined in 
the report.  

 
2. To support the raising of public awareness and confidence in the 

contribution that pharmacists can make to the healthcare system.  
 

86 Health and Wellbeing Groups - update 
 
Following a request from the Committee in April, the meeting received a table 
setting out how each Area Boards had used their Health and Wellbeing funding 
delegated following the decision not to extend the council's Good Neighbours 
Scheme contract with Community First.  
 
Issues discussed included: whether the right balance was being struck between 
diversity and consistency of approach between the different community areas; 
the relative levels of activity in each area, and whether this was effective; and 
how best to disseminate the information in the table for the benefit of the Area 
Boards. 
 
Following a proposal by the chair, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To circulate the summary of Health and Wellbeing Group activity to Area 
Board Chairmen. 
 

87 Local Government Association Commissioning for Better Outcomes Peer 
Challenge 
 
The meeting received a written update on the Council’s forthcoming LGA 
Commissioning for Better Outcomes Peer Challenge due to take place in 
January 2017. 
 
Issues discussed: the scope and scale of the review; the lessons learnt from the 
approach taken to other reviews of a similar nature; and how the Health Select 
Committee may be involved. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the information contained in the report and the offer of Scrutiny 
involvement in the peer review. 
 

Page 133



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

88 Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2015/16 
 
Chairman of the Safeguarding Adult’s Board, Richard Crompton, attended the 
meeting to introduce the Board’s Annual Report. 
 
Issues discussed included: that the Care Act 2014 set out a legal framework for 
how the Council and its partners should protect adults at risk of abuse or 
neglect; that under this framework the Council gained new safeguarding duties, 
including the establishment of a Safeguarding Adults Boards to bring together 
the local authority, NHS and police, to develop, share and implement a joint 
safeguarding strategy; that this year’s annual report reflects the first year in post 
for a new independent Chairman, Richard Crompton; the methods how people 
can contact the Board to report concerns, and how the Board seeks information; 
how the Health Select Committee would like to be kept informed of the work of 
the Board. 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To note the publication of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board 
Annual Report 
 

2. To support the work of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board 
 

3. To invite the Chairman of the Board to a future meeting to provide 
information on ongoing actions to deliver the Board’s 2016/17 
priorities. 

 
89 Public Health Annual Report 2015/16 

 
Frances Chinemana, Associate Director for Public Health, attended the meeting 
to present the Public Health Annual Report and to answer any questions. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officer for attending to present the report. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the information contained in the Public Health Annual Report 
2015/16. 
 

90 Task Group Update 
 
The meeting received the written update regarding the activities of the Task 
groups. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update. 
 

Page 134



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

91 Forward Work Programme 
 
The meeting considered the forward work programme circulated with the 
agenda. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the forward work programme 
 

92 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

93 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted that the next meeting would be at 10.30am, Tuesday 10th January, 
County Hall, preceded by an informal briefing at 9.30am. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.30  - 5.01 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 14 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis (Chairman), Cllr Tony Trotman (Vice Chairman), Cllr Glenis Ansell, 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Charles Howard, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Bridget Wayman and Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Chris Caswill, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Howard Greenman and Cllr Nina Phillips 
 
  

 
54 Apologies for Absence 

 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Terry Chivers and Cllr 
Christopher Newbury. 
 
 

55 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2016 as a 
correct record. 
 
 

56 Declarations of Interest 
 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 
 

57 Chairman's Announcements 
 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 17



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Chairman reminded members of the public that whilst they had the 
opportunity to make representations on the applications under consideration 
today and to contact and lobby their local member and any other members of 
the planning committee before today’s meeting, he would not allow any last 
minute lobbying of members once the debate has started, including the 
circulation of new information, written or photographic which had not been 
verified by the Council’s planning officers. He respectfully asked Members and 
members of the public to please bear this in mind.  
 
 

58 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
 
Cllr Chris Caswill referred to the planning process and considered that 
engagement with the public needed some attention.  He mentioned that some 
members of the public had experienced difficulties in navigating the Council’s 
website to find the site dealing with planning applications. He also suggested 
that rather more information be included in reports to committee about 
representations received.       
 
 

59 15/11153/OUT- Land at Forest Farm Chippenham, South of Pewsham Way 
& West of the A4, London Road, Chippenham, SN15 3RP- Mixed Use 
Development Including the Construction of up to 200 Dwellings Including 
Affordable Housing, B1 Employment, Community Building, Creation of 
New Vehicular Access, Footways, Cycleways and  Bus Stop Lay-bys, 
Ancillary Road Infrastructure, Public Open Space, Children's Play Areas, 
Landscaping, Pumping Station and Surface Water Attenuation Facilities 
 
 
The following person spoke in favour of the proposal 
 
Mr Martin Miller, the agent 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application. It was noted that the applicant had 
submitted an appeal in respect of this application on grounds of non-
determination and, as a consequence, no formal decision could be made in 
respect of the application. However, in order to progress with the appeal, 
officers were seeking the opinion of the Committee in respect of the application 
had they been in a position to determine it and on what grounds the Committee 
wished to contest the scheme at appeal, if at all. 
 
The Case Officer also brought to the attention of the Committee late 
representations from Chippenham Town Council and the agent. 
 

Page 138



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard a statement from the agent expressing his views regarding the planning 
application. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To agree that had the Committee been able to determine the 

application, planning permission be refused.  
 

(2) To authorise the officers to contest the appeal for the following 
reasons (including the delegated authority to negotiate potentially 
satisfactory outcomes that may address reason for refusal 4 prior to 
that appeal taking place): 

 
1. The proposal is unacceptable when having regard to the 
principles of polices CP1 and CP2 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(2015), saved Policy H4 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011, as 
well as the principles set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
2. A development of this size and general scale, in this location, 
would have an unacceptably harmful effect on the landscape 
character of this rural area of countryside which generates a 
number of harmful landscape and visual impacts. Despite the site’s 
close proximity to the existing edge of Chippenham large scale 
urban expansion at this location will undermine the valued 
countryside transition and setting to the town and breech the 
existing effective visual containment provided by mature trees and 
woodland. This development will also reduce the rural separation 
between individual settlements which is also considered to be 
harmful. The proposal is therefore contrary 
to the provisions of policies CP10, CP51 (i), (ii) and (iii) and also 
CP57 (i), (ii), (iii) and (vi) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
3. The development is considered to harm the setting of a number 
of heritage assets because the rural character would be eroded, the 
agricultural land that many of the heritage assets were constructed 
to be associated with will be lost and the peaceful 
setting urbanised. The harm caused would be less than substantial 
but that the harm cannot be outweighed by the public benefit. The 
proposals would therefore be contrary to Core Policy 58 of the 
WCS, NPPF section 12, as well as section 16(2) and 72(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990. 
 
4. The proposed development fails to provide and/or secure 
adequate provision for necessary on-site and, where appropriate, 

Page 139



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

off-site infrastructure. Such infrastructure shall include (but not be 
limited to) affordable housing, educational facilities, public 
open space, play equipment and footpath connections to the town, 
public transport provision and directly related highways work, 
waste collection and measures for future maintenance of the site. 
The application is therefore contrary to Core Policy 3 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
 

60 14/11556/FUL- Land North of A350, West Cepen Way, Chippenham, SN14 
6YG- Storage & Distribution Centre (B8) & Service Yards, Parking, 
Landscaping & Associated Development. Retail Unit (A1) with Mezzanine 
Floor & Outside Garden Centre Area, Including Service Yards, Parking, 
Landscaping, Access & Associated Development 
 
 
The following people spoke against the proposal: 
 
Mr Stephen Eades, representing Allington Action Group 
Mr Paul Frobisher, representing Cepen Park North Residents’ Association 
Cllr Howard Ham, representing Chippenham Without Parish Council 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that the 
application be refused. The Case Officer also brought to the attention of the 
Committee late representations received.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
received statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the proposal. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Howard Greenman and Cllr Nina Phillips, 
local Members, objecting to the proposal. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
  
To refuse permission for the following reasons:-  
 
1. The proposed development by virtue of scale, form, location, works of 
construction and inadequate mitigation would result in substantial harm 
to below ground archaeological remains that are the subject of a 
Scheduled Ancient Monument designation. The proposals are contrary to 
CP57 criterion I and CP58 criteria i & iii Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015 
and paras 17 & 132 of the NPPF. 
 

Page 140



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

2. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate mitigation would result in harm to the setting of various listed 
buildings (including Bolehyde Manor (Grade II*), Allington House, The 
Pitts, Manor Farm, Ivy Cottage and The Cottage). The proposals are 
contrary to CP57 criteria i and CP58 criteria iii Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 
2015; paras 17, 128, 132, 134 and 137 of the NPPF; and Section 66 (1) of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
3. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate mitigation would result in harm to the setting of the Allington 
Conservation Area. The proposals are contrary to CP57 criteria i and CP58 
criteria iv Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015; paras 17 128, 132, 134 and 137 
of the NPPF; and Section 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
4. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate mitigation would result in harm to protected species of fauna 
and their habitats. In addition the proposed development is not informed 
by sufficiently detailed and robust information to fully assess the impact 
on all protected species of fauna and their habitats. The proposals are 
contrary to CP50 Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015 and paras 17 & 118 of 
the NPPF. 
 
5. The proposed development taking direct access from the A350 national 
primary route outside of a built-up area, and for which no overriding need 
has been established, would be contrary to adopted Core Strategy Policy 
62 Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015. 
 
6. The proposed development would lead to unacceptable traffic 
conditions, with additional congestion, delays, and hazardous conditions 
at nearby roundabouts and the proposed site access contrary to policy 
CP62. The proposed development would be detrimental to road user 
safety and convenience on the important A350 national primary route. The 
submitted traffic assessments of nearby roundabouts and the site access 
have been inadequately validated to reflect current observed traffic 
conditions and are therefore insufficient to enable the traffic effects of the 
development to be properly assessed. The development would be 
contrary to adopted Core Strategy policies CP60, CP61 and CP62 Wiltshire 
Core Strategy Jan 2015 and to NPPF paras 30 and 32. 
 
7. The proposed development without good, direct, safe and useable 
pedestrian / cycle links to nearby facilities, the town centre and residential 
areas, would not accord with policies that development should be 
sustainable. The proposed development would depend heavily on the 
private car for access, and would be contrary to policies CP60 & CP61 
Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015 and National Planning Framework paras 
9, 17, 30, 34 and 35. 
 

Page 141



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

8. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate supporting information fails to demonstrate application of the 
sequential test to site selection and will result in harm to the vitality and 
viability of Chippenham Town Centre through trade diversion. The 
proposals are contrary to CP38 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015 
and paras 28 of the NPPF. 
 
9. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate mitigation would result in harm to the character, appearance 
and visual amenity of the landscape and the locality. The proposal 
conflicts with CP51 criteria i, ii, iii, vi & vii and CP57 criteria i, ii, iii & vi 
Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015; Saved Policy NE14 of the North 
Wiltshire Local Plan; and paras 17 & 61 of the NPPF. 
 
10. The proposed development by virtue of its scale, form, location and 
inadequate and unclear supporting information fails to demonstrate that 
the development is required to benefit local economic and social needs. 
Further to reasons for refusal 1 through 9 above the proposals do not 
meet sustainable development objectives, are not consistent in scale with 
their location, adversely affect the surrounding area and are not 
supported by adequate infrastructure. The proposal conflicts with CP34 
criterion v, vi, vii and ix Wiltshire Core Strategy Jan 2015 and paras 7, 14 & 
17 of the NPPF. 
 
 

61 16/03515/OUT- Langley Park, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1GE- Outline 
Application for the demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment to 
provide up to 400 units (C3); a 69 bed hotel (C1) with cafe (A3) up to 199 
sqm; a discount foodstore (A1) of up to 1,741 sqm; B1, B2 & B8 
floorspace (up to 13,656 sqm) and highway improvements to the Little 
George and the B4069/Pew Hill junctions with all matters (except access) 
reserved. 
 
 
The following people spoke against the proposal: 
 
Mr Michael Bryant, representing Eagle Retail 
Ms Kirsten Wilson, a local resident 
 
The following person spoke in support of the proposal: 
 
Mr Clive Wilding, Property Director, Langley Properties 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal 
agreement and the imposition of appropriate conditions within six months of the 
date of this Committee decision.  

Page 142



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required Section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the Head 
of Development Management to refuse planning permission. 
 
The Case Officer also brought to the attention of the Committee late 
representations received.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
received statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the proposal. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Chris Caswill, the local Member, in which 
he generally welcomed and supported the application but did express some 
concerns as follows:- 
 

 The need to recognise the costs involved in dealing with a huge amount of 
contamination at the sight. 

 Concerns of local residents at the increased amount of traffic resulting 
from the opening up of Hawthorn Road. 

 The need for a residents’ parking scheme at Langley Park and to request 
the developer to make a contribution towards this scheme. 

 Disappointment at the failure to secure a contribution towards the 
provision of a third left at Chippenham railway station for those members 
of the public who were unable to access the railway bridge from Langley 
Park. 
 

After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To authorise the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal agreement 
and the imposition of the following conditions within six months of the 
date of the resolution of this Committee. 
 
 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Area Development Manager to refuse planning permission for the 
following reason:- 
  
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing; Waste; Air Quality 
Management and is therefore contrary to Policies CP3 CP43 & CP55 of the 

Page 143



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Wiltshire Core Strategy Adopted January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework March 2012. 
 

Conditions 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before 

the expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or 
before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the 
last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
following matters (in respect of which approval is expressly 
reserved) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority: 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON:  The application was made for outline planning 

permission and is granted to comply with the provisions of 

Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 

Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

3 An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters 
shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

4 Prior to the commencement of the development a phasing plan 
shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority. The phasing plan shall identify, amongst other 
things, at what stage during the proposed road alterations at 
the Langley Road site access, the realignment of Foundry Lane, 
the provision of the link road (between Langley Road and the 
realigned Foundry Lane) and the improvement of the Little 
George junction will be secured, as well as access to individual 
units of development. 
REASON; In order to ensure that all parts of the development 

are afforded reasonable access to the local road network, and 

Page 144



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

that a choice of access is available at an early stage. 

5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in broad 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans and 
documents as listed below: 
LP-01 H 
MP-01 Z 
PMP-01 C 
PMP-02 G 
PMP-03 F 
PMP-04 J 
PMP-05 J 
PMP-06 C 
PMP-07 D 
PMP-09 B 
Design and Access Statement- July 2016 
REASON: to ensure the development is carried out in 

accordance with the approved plans. 

6 The internal floor area of the discount food store shall be no 
greater than 1,741sqm with the net sales area no greater than 
1,254 square metres. 
There shall be no more than 400 residential units (C3) 
There shall be no more than 13,565m² new employment (B1/ 
B2/B8) floor space; 
The Café (A3) shall have gross floorspace of not more than 
199m²; 
The hotel (C1) shall have no more than 69-bedrooms; 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of 

proper planning. 

7 The landscaping scheme(s) for each phase of the development , 
as required by condition 2, the shall include:-  
o location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land;  
o details of any  trees or hedgerows to be retained, together 
with measures for their protection in the course of 
development;  
o a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting   sizes and planting densities;  
o finished levels and contours;  
o means of enclosure;  
o car park layouts;  
o all hard and soft surfacing materials;  
o minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 
refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);  
o proposed and existing functional services above and below 
ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 

Page 145



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc);  
o retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant.  
The above details shall be provided prior to the buildings in that 
phase of the development being brought into use 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important 

landscape features.  

8 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of 
phasing of landscaping has been approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The landscaping shall be carried out 
in the first planting and seeding season following occupation of 
the building(s) or the completion of the development, whichever 
is the sooner within that particular phase; any trees or plants 
which within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become 
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of a similar size and species.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development. 

9 The detailed landscaping plans to be submitted pursuant to 
condition no. 4 shall include a plan at not less than 1:200 scale, 
showing the position of any trees proposed to be retained and 
the positions and routes of all proposed and existing pipes, 
drains, sewers, and public services, including gas, electricity, 
telephone and water. Notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order, 1995 (or of any Order revoking and re-enacting or 
amending that Order with or without modification), no services 
shall be dug or laid into the ground other than in accordance 
with the approved details. 
REASON: To ensure the retention of trees on the site in the 

interests of visual amenity.  

10 No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, 
stems or roots, other than in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars , without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. All tree works should be carried out 
in accordance with BS5837:2005 (Recommendations for Tree 
Work).  

Page 146



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure the 
satisfactory appearance of the development. 
 

11 No phase of development shall be occupied or bought into use 
until a scheme for the provision of adequate water supplies and 
fire hydrants, necessary for fire fighting purposes within that 
phase, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. That phase of development shall not 
then be occupied or bought into use until the scheme has been 
implemented. 
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory fire fighting facilities are 

incorporated into the site. 

12 No phase of development shall commence, until a Construction 
Method Statement for that phase has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period of that Phase.  
The Statement shall provide for: 
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development; 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 
decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
v. wheel cleaning facilities; 
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction; 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 
demolition and 
construction works; 
viii. measures to control noise during construction; 
ix. a signage strategy for construction traffic. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of 

local residents. 

13 No phase of development shall commence on site until a 
scheme for the discharge of foul water from the site, including 
any on/off site improvements to provide capacity to serve the 
site and allowing clearances to existing sewers or diversions, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
No building within the phase of development shall be first 
occupied until foul water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 

Page 147



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

drained 
 

14 No phase of development shall commence on site until a 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the site 
(including surface water from the access / driveway), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details together with 
permeability test results to BRE365; full details of attenuation 
including ownership and maintenance regimes to ensure that 
not increase  (and preferably a decrease) in current storm water 
flows to public storm sewers and removing current storm to 
foul connections has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.   
That phase of development shall not be first occupied until 
surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance 
with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 

drained.  

15 No development shall commence on site (other than that 
required to be carried out as part of a scheme of remediation 
approved by the Local Planning Authority under this condition), 
until steps (i) to (iii) below have been fully complied with. If 
unexpected contamination is found after development has 
begun, development must be halted on that part of the site 
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent 
specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until step 
(iv) has been complied with in full in relation to that 
contamination. 
 
Step (i) Site Characterisation:  
 
An investigation and risk assessment must be completed to 
assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, 
whether or not it originates on the site. The investigation and 
risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons 
and a written report of the findings submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report of the 
findings must include:  
- A survey of the extent, nature and scale of contamination on 
site;  
- The collection and interpretation of relevant information to 
form a conceptual model of the site, and a preliminary risk 
assessment of all the likely pollutant linkages;  
- If the preliminary risk assessment identifies any potentially 
significant pollutant linkages a ground investigation shall be 
carried out, to provide further information on the location, type 
and concentration of contaminants in the soil and groundwater 

Page 148



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

and other characteristics that can influence the behaviour of 
the contaminants;  
- An assessment of the potential risks to:  
 
• human health,  
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops,  
livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,  
• adjoining land,  
• groundwater and surface waters,  
• ecological systems,  
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management 
of Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative 
guidance.  
 
Step (ii) Submission of Remediation Scheme:  
 
If any unacceptable risks are identified as a result of the investigation 
and assessment referred to in step (i) above, a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use 
must be prepared. This should detail the works required to remove 
any unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property 
and the natural and historical environment, should be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site 
management procedures.  
 

Step (iii) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme:  
 
The approved remediation scheme under step (ii) must be 
carried out in accordance with its requirements. The Local 
Planning Authority must be given at least two weeks written 
notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works.  
Step (iv) Reporting of Unexpected Contamination:  
In the event that contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously 
identified it should be reported in writing immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment 
should be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of 
step (i) above and where remediation is necessary, a 
remediation scheme should be prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of step (ii) and submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Step (v) Verification of remedial works: 

Page 149



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

  
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report should be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority. The report should demonstrate 
the effectiveness of the remedial works.  
A statement should also be provided by the developer which is 
signed by a person who is competent to confirm that the works 
detailed in the approved scheme have been carried out (The 
Local Planning Authority can provide a draft Remediation 
Certificate when the details of the remediation scheme have 
been approved at stage (ii) above).  
 
The verification report and signed statement should be 
submitted to and approved in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Step (vi) Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance:  
 
If a monitoring and maintenance scheme is required as part of the 
approved remediation scheme, reports must be prepared and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval at the relevant 
stages in the development process as approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in the scheme approved pursuant to step (ii) 
above, until all the remediation objectives in that scheme have been 
achieved.  
 

All works must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and 
the Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the 
Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other 
authoritative guidance.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, to ensure that risks from land contamination to the 

future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, 

together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be 

carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 

neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

16 Prior to the commencement of development of the foodstore 
(A1) a scheme of external lighting, including the measures to be 
taken to minimise sky glow, glare and light trespass, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Page 150



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Authority.  The external lighting scheme shall be designed so 
as to meet the criteria for Environmental Zone E3 as defined by 
the Institute of Lighting Professionals 'Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light' 2012. The approved scheme shall 
be implemented before the development is first brought into 
use and shall be maintained in effective working order at all 
times thereafter.  
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 
residential amenity 
 

17 (i) No deliveries shall be made to or collections made from the 
development hereby approved except between the hours of 
06:00am and 22:00pm Monday to Saturday and 07:00am and 
17:00pm on Sundays.  
(ii)There shall be no use of reverse beepers on delivery or 
collection vehicles between 06:00am and 07:00am Monday to 
Saturday and between 07:00am and 09:00am on Sundays. All 
deliveries between these approved hours shall be direct via the 
loading and unloading dock shown on the approved plans. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 

residential amenity and prevent undue disturbance 

18 The foodstore (A1) unit hereby permitted shall not be open to 
the public except between the hours of 08:00am to 22:00pm on 
Monday to Saturday, 09:00am to 18:00pm on Sunday & Public 
Holidays.  
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on residential 

amenity. 

19 No development of the foodstore (A1) shall take place until full 
details of all proposed fixed plant installed on the building 
and/or site (and including all mitigation measures screening) 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such details shall include confirmation that 
the plant will not exceed -5dB below the lowest background 
noise level and that noise rating not exceed 37dB when 
measured at the nearest residential properties. Development 
shall be carried out in complete accordance with such details 
so agreed. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on residential 

amenity. 

20 The foodstore shall not commence development until details of 
secure covered cycle parking for both customers and staff have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These facilities shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved details and made available for 

Page 151



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

use prior to the first occupation of the development hereby 
permitted and thereafter retained. 
REASON: In the interest of highway safety and to promote 
alternative and sustainable transport.  
 

21 The foodstore (a1) shall not be opened for trade until the car 
park circulatory aisles, the car parking spaces, the disabled 
spaces and the parent and child spaces have been provided, 
surfaced and marked out in accordance with the a parking plan 
that shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These vehicle parking spaces shall 
thereafter be retained for their designated users. 
REASON: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure that 

sufficent off street parking is provided.  

22 The Foodstore shall not open for trade until a Green Travel Plan 
relating to the Foodstore has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The 
results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results. 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 

traffic to the development  

23 Development of the Foodstore shall not commence until details 
of the provision for the loading and unloading of goods 
vehicles servicing the Foodstore have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Foodstore shall not be first brought into use until such 
provision has been made. This space shall be maintained for 
such purpose at all times thereafter.  
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for 

loading/unloading within the site in the interests of highway 

safety. 

24 Development of the Foodstore shall not commence until details 
of the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, 
street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, 
surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 
visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients and drive 
gradients car associated with the Foodstore including the 
timetable for provision of such works, have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Foodstore 
shall not be first brought into use until the estate roads, 
footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, 

Page 152



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, carriageway gradients and drive gradients, 
associated with the Foodstore have all been constructed and 
laid out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner.  

25 Development of the Foodstore (A1) shall not commence on site 
until details of the design, external appearance and decorative 
finish of all railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other 
means of enclosure associated with the Foodstore have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the Foodstore brought into use. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

26 Development of the Foodstore shall not commence on site until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs of the foodstore  within that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

27 No development of a residential phase shall commence until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs of dwellings within that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

28 Prior to the commencement of  development of the residential 
units details of the design, external appearance and decorative 
finish of all railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other 
means of enclosure within that phase have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to any dwellings within the phase being 
occupied  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

Page 153



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

29 Prior to the commencement of the residential phase of 
development details of the estate roads, footways, footpaths, 
verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining 
walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang 
margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and street 
furniture, including the timetable for provision of such works, 
relating to that phase have been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority.  
No phase of residential development shall be first occupied 
until the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, 
street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, 
surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 
visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive 
gradients, car parking and street furniture associated with that 
phase have all been constructed and laid out in accordance 
with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 
in a satisfactory manner. 
 

30 No dwelling in a residential phase shall be occupied until a 
Green Travel Plan addressing that phase of residential 
development has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall include 
details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The 
results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results. 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 

traffic to the development. 

31 Development of the Hotel shall not commence on site until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs of the Hotel within that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

32 Development of the Hotel shall not commence until details of 
the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street 
lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface 
water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 
visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive 
gradients and car parking, associated with the Hotel including 

Page 154



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the timetable for provision of such works, have been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Hotel 
shall not be first brought into use until the estate roads, 
footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, 
drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, and car 
parking associated with the Hotel have all been constructed 
and laid out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner.  

33 Development of the Hotel shall not commence until details of 
the provision for the loading and unloading of goods vehicles 
servicing the Hotel have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Hotel shall not be 
first brought into use until such provision has been made. This 
space shall be maintained for such purpose at all times 
thereafter.  
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for 

loading/unloading within the site in the interests of highway 

safety.  

34 The Hotel shall not be opened for trade until a Green Travel 
Plan relating to the Hotel has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The 
results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results.  
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 

traffic to the development. 

35 Prior to the commencement of development of the Hotel a 
scheme of external lighting, including the measures to be taken 
to minimise sky glow, glare and light trespass, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The external lighting scheme shall be designed so 
as to meet the criteria for Environmental Zone E3 as defined by 
the Institute of Lighting Professionals 'Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light' 2012. The approved scheme shall 
be implemented before the development is first brought into 
use and shall be maintained in effective working order at all 
times thereafter.  
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 

residential amenity  

Page 155



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

36 No development of the Hotel shall take place until full details of 
all proposed fixed plant installed on the building and/or site 
(and including all mitigation measures screening) has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include confirmation that the plant 
will not exceed -5dB below the lowest background noise level 
and that noise rating not exceed 37dB when measured at the 
nearest residential properties. Development shall be carried out 
in complete accordance with such details so agreed. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on residential 

amenity. 

37 The Hotel shall not be opened for trade until the car park 
circulatory aisles and the car parking spaces  have been 
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the a 
parking plan that shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. These vehicle parking spaces 
shall thereafter be retained 
Reason: In the interest of Highway Safety.  

38 The Hotel shall not be opened for trade until a Green Travel 
Plan relating to the Hotel has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The 
results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results.  
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 

traffic to the  development. 

39 Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not commence 
on site until details and samples of the materials to be used for 
the external walls and roofs of buildings within that phase have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the 
development 
 

40 Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not commence 
until details of the design, external appearance and decorative 
finish of all railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other 
means of enclosure associated with the of the B1, B2 & B8 
floorspace have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

Page 156



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

development being brought into use. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area.  

41 Development of the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
shall not commence until details of the estate roads, footways, 
footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, 
retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle 
overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients and car parking, 
associated with the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
including the timetable for provision of such works, have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
The Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not be 
first brought into use until the estate roads, footways, 
footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, 
retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle 
overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients, and car parking 
associated with the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
have all been constructed and laid out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner.  

42 Prior to the commencement of development of the B1, B2 & B8 
floor space  a scheme of external lighting, including the 
measures to be taken to minimise sky glow, glare and light 
trespass, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The external lighting scheme shall be 
designed so as to meet the criteria for Environmental Zone E3 
as defined by the Institute of Lighting Professionals 'Guidance 
Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light' 2012. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented before the development is first 
brought into use and shall be maintained in effective working 
order at all times thereafter.  
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 

residential amenity. 

43 Development of the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
shall not commence until details of the estate roads, footways, 
footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, 
retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle 
overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients and car parking, 
associated with the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
including the timetable for provision of such works, have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 157



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not be 
first brought into use until the estate roads, footways, 
footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, 
retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle 
overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, 
carriageway gradients, drive gradients, and car parking 
associated with the Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace 
have all been constructed and laid out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner.  

44 Development of the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not commence 
until details of the provision for the loading and unloading of 
goods vehicles servicing the B1, B2 & B8 floorspace have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The B1, B2 & B8 floorspace shall not be first brought 
into use until such provision has been made. This space shall 
be maintained for such purpose at all times thereafter.  
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for 

loading/unloading within the site in the interests of highway 

safety.  

45 Only B1(b) and (c) (Research & Development and light 
industry), B2 & B8 land uses as defined by the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes ) Order 1987 shall be permitted. 
REASON: To ensure trip generation levels are within the realm 

of those identified in the TA and considered for SRN traffic 

impact  

46 Prior to the occupation of any dwellings on the site, access for 
pedestrian and cycle users between the site and Tugela Road 
and Hawthorn Road shall be provided in accordance with 
details which shall first have been submitted to and approved 
by the local planning authority. The details for Hawthorn Road 
shall include for the provision of a vehicle turning facility at the 
end of the existing road, and shall show measures to restrict 
movement of motorised vehicles to or from the development 
site. The works shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: In the interests of sustainable transport, and to 

secure direct links to the site from adjacent land.  

47 The detailed layout shall make provision to accommodate a 
landing ramp for a bridge for non motorised users crossing 
between the site and the south side of the railway. The design 
shall identify the route which potential future users of the 
bridge may use as a right of way between the prospectively 

Page 158



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

maintainable highway and the bridge. 
REASON: In order to secure a future sustainable transport 

route via the site to the south side of the railway.  

48 Except where otherwise agreed by the local planning authority, 
car parking provision shall be in accordance with the minimum 
standards set out in Wiltshire Council's Car Parking Strategy 
for all new dwellings provided on the site, and in accordance 
with the Strategy's maximum car parking standards, adjusted in 
accordance with the provisions of the Strategy, for all other 
land uses on the site hereby permitted 
REASON: To ensure adequate provision of car parking space is 
made for residential development on the site, and to ensure that 
over-provision is not made for traffic attracting land uses other 
than residential. 
 

  

 

 
  
 
 

62 16/04273/FUL- Langley Park, Foundry Lane, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 
1GE- The Demolition of Existing Buildings and Redevelopment to Provide 
a 69 Bed Hotel with Cafe (A3) of 199sqm and 22 Residential Units (Class 
C3), Car Parking, Foundry Lane Access Works and Other Associated 
Works. 
 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation to delegate 
authority to the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal agreement and the 
imposition of appropriate conditions within six months of the date of this 
Committee decision.  
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required Section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the Head 
of Development Management to refuse planning permission. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard the views of Cllr Chris Caswill, the local Member in which he generally 
welcomed and supported the application. 
 
After some discussion, 
 

Page 159



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to grant 
planning permission, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal 
agreement and the imposition of appropriate conditions within six months 
of the date of the resolution of this Committee. 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Area Development Manager to refuse planning permission for the 
following reason:- 
  
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing; Waste; Air Quality 
Management and is therefore contrary to Policies CP3 CP43 & CP55 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy Adopted January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework March 2012. 

 
Conditions 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 

2 Prior to the commencement of the development a phasing plan 
shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority. The phasing plan shall identify, amongst other things, 
at what stage  the improvement of the Little George junction will 
be secured, as well as access to individual units of 
development. 
REASON; In order to ensure that all parts of the development 

are afforded reasonable access to the local road network, and 

that a choice of access is available at an early stage.  

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
SL02 P2 
LP02 A 
ML02 P2 
RL02 P1 
SE_SV-01 B 
G-APT.e1 P3 
G-APT.e2 P3 
G-APT.p1 P1 

Page 160



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

G-APT.p2 P1 
G-APT.p3 P1 
G-APT.p4 P1 
G-APT.p5 P1 
G-APT.p6 P2 
TL.e1 E 
TL.e2 E 
TL.p1 J 
TL.p2 E 
TL.p3 E 
TL.p4 E 
TL.p5 E 
DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT ADDENDUM DOCUMENT 
July 2016 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 

proper planning. 

  
4 Prior to any phase of development being brought into use the 

access roads and parking and servicing areas for that phase 
shall have been completed in accordance with details. 
REASON: To ensure proper provision is made for access and 
parking. 
 

5 Visibility for drivers emerging from site access for each phase 
of development shall be provided from a set-back distance of 
2.4m from the nearside carriageway edge to points 43m distant 
on the nearside kerbline in both directions. The visibility 
envelope shall not be obstructed at a height more than 600mm 
above the footway level. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety  

6 The landscaping scheme(s) for each phase of the development 
shall include:-  
o location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land;  
o details of any  trees or hedgerows to be retained, together 
with measures for their protection in the course of 
development;  
o a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting   sizes and planting densities;  
o finished levels and contours;  
o means of enclosure including gates and barriers to car parks, 
railings, fences, gates, walls & bollards;  
o car park layouts;  
o all hard and soft surfacing materials;  
o minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 
refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);  

Page 161



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

o proposed and existing functional services above and below 
ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc);  
o retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant.  
The above details shall be provided prior to the buildings in that 
phase of the development being brought into use 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape 

features.   

7 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of 
phasing of landscaping has been approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The landscaping shall be carried out 
in the first planting and seeding season following occupation of 
the building(s) or the completion of the development, whichever 
is the sooner within that particular phase; any trees or plants 
which within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become 
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of a similar size and species.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development.  

8 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding season following the first occupation of the building(s) 
or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner;  
All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 
stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance 
with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape 

features.  

Page 162



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

9 No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, 
stems or roots, other than in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars , without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. All tree works should be carried out in 
accordance with BS5837:2005 (Recommendations for Tree 
Work).  
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure the 

satisfactory appearance of the development.  

10 No phase of development shall commence, until a Construction 
Method Statement for that phase has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout then 
construction period of that Phase.  
The Statement shall provide for: 
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development; 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 
decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
v. wheel cleaning facilities;  
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction; 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 
demolition and 
construction works; 
viii. measures to control noise during construction; 
ix. a signage strategy for construction traffic. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of 

local residents. 

11 No phase of development shall commence on site until a 
scheme for the discharge of foul water from the site, including 
any on/off site improvements to provide capacity to serve the 
site and allowing clearances to existing sewers or diversions, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
No building within the phase of development shall be first 
occupied until foul water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 

drained. 

12 No phase of development shall commence on site until a 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the site 

Page 163



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(including surface water from the access / driveway), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details together with 
permeability test results to BRE365; full details of attenuation 
including ownership and maintenance regimes to ensure no 
increase  (and preferably a decrease) in current storm water 
flows to public storm sewers and removing current storm to 
foul connections has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.   
That phase of development shall not be first occupied until 
surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance 
with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately 

drained. 

13 No phase of development shall be occupied or bought into use 
until a scheme for the provision of adequate water supplies and 
fire hydrants, necessary for fire fighting purposes within that 
phase, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. That phase of development shall not 
then be occupied or bought into use until the scheme has been 
implemented. 
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory fire fighting facilities are 

incorporated into the site. 

14 No development shall commence on site (other than that 
required to be carried out as part of a scheme of remediation 
approved by the Local Planning Authority under this condition), 
until steps (i) to (iii) below have been fully complied with. If 
unexpected contamination is found after development has 
begun, development must be halted on that part of the site 
affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent 
specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until step 
(iv) has been complied with in full in relation to that 
contamination. 
 
Step (i) Site Characterisation:  
 
An investigation and risk assessment must be completed to 
assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, 
whether or not it originates on the site. The investigation and 
risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and 
a written report of the findings submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report of the 
findings must include:  
- A survey of the extent, nature and scale of contamination on 
site;  
- The collection and interpretation of relevant information to 
form a conceptual model of the site, and a preliminary risk 

Page 164



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

assessment of all the likely pollutant linkages;  
- If the preliminary risk assessment identifies any potentially 
significant pollutant linkages a ground investigation shall be 
carried out, to provide further information on the location, type 
and concentration of contaminants in the soil and groundwater 
and other characteristics that can influence the behaviour of the 
contaminants;  
- An assessment of the potential risks to:  
 
• human health,  
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops,  
livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,  
• adjoining land,  
• groundwater and surface waters,  
• ecological systems,  
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management 
of Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative 
guidance.  
 
Step (ii) Submission of Remediation Scheme:  
 
If any unacceptable risks are identified as a result of the investigation 
and assessment referred to in step (i) above, a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use 
must be prepared. This should detail the works required to remove 
any unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property 
and the natural and historical environment, should be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site 
management procedures.  
 

Step (iii) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme:  
 
The approved remediation scheme under step (ii) must be 
carried out in accordance with its requirements. The Local 
Planning Authority must be given at least two weeks written 
notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works.  
Step (iv) Reporting of Unexpected Contamination:  
In the event that contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously 
identified it should be reported in writing immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment 
should be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of 
step (i) above and where remediation is necessary, a 

Page 165



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

remediation scheme should be prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of step (ii) and submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Step (v) Verification of remedial works: 
  
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report should be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority. The report should demonstrate 
the effectiveness of the remedial works.  
A statement should also be provided by the developer which is 
signed by a person who is competent to confirm that the works 
detailed in the approved scheme have been carried out (The 
Local Planning Authority can provide a draft Remediation 
Certificate when the details of the remediation scheme have 
been approved at stage (ii) above).  
 
The verification report and signed statement should be 
submitted to and approved in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Step (vi) Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance:  
 
If a monitoring and maintenance scheme is required as part of the 
approved remediation scheme, reports must be prepared and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval at the relevant 
stages in the development process as approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in the scheme approved pursuant to step (ii) 
above, until all the remediation objectives in that scheme have been 
achieved.  
 

All works must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and 
the Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the 
Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other 
authoritative guidance.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, to ensure that risks from land contamination to the 

future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, 

together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be 

carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 

Page 166



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

15 No part of the development shall be occupied or first brought 
into use until all the existing buildings on site have been 
permanently demolished and all of the demolition materials and 
debris resulting therefrom has been removed from the site.  
REASON:  In the interests of the character and appearance of 

the area and neighbouring amenities.  

16 (i) No deliveries shall be made to or collections made from the 
Hotel hereby approved except between the hours of 06:00am 
and 22:00pm Monday to Saturday and 07:00am and 17:00pm on 
Sundays. 
(ii)There shall be no use of reverse beepers on delivery or 
collection vehicles between 06:00am and 07:00am Monday to 
Saturday and between 07:00am and 09:00am on Sundays. All 
deliveries between these approved hours shall be direct via the 
loading and unloading dock shown on the approved plans. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 

residential amenity and prevent undue disturbance. 

17 Development of the Hotel shall not commence until details of 
the provision for the loading and unloading of goods vehicles 
servicing the Hotel have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Hotel shall not be 
first brought into use until such provision has been made. This 
space shall be maintained for such purpose at all times 
thereafter. 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for 

loading/unloading within the site in the interests of highway 

safety. 

18 No works on the hotel phase of development shall commence 
on site until details of all external window and door joinery have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include depth of 
reveal, details of heads, sills and lintels. The works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 

appearance of the area. 

Page 167



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

19 Development of the Hotel shall not commence on site until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs of the Hotel within that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area. 

20 Development of the Hotel shall not commence until details of 
the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street 
lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface 
water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 
visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive 
gradients and car parking, associated with the Hotel including 
the timetable for provision of such works, have been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Hotel 
shall not be first brought into use until the estate roads, 
footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, 
drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, and car 
parking associated with the Hotel have all been constructed and 
laid out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner. 

21 The Hotel shall not be opened for trade until a Green Travel Plan 
relating to the Hotel has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The 
results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results.  
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular 

traffic to the development. 

22 Prior to the commencement of development of the Hotel a 
scheme of external lighting, including the measures to be taken 
to minimise sky glow, glare and light trespass, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The external lighting scheme shall be designed so as 
to meet the criteria for Environmental Zone E3 as defined by the 
Institute of Lighting Professionals 'Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light' 2012. The approved scheme shall 
be implemented before the development is first brought into 
use and shall be maintained in effective working order at all 

Page 168



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

times thereafter.  
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on adjacent 

residential amenity. 

23 No development of the Hotel shall take place until full details of 
all proposed fixed plant installed on the building and/or site 
(and including all mitigation measures screening) has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include confirmation that the plant 
will not exceed -5dB below the lowest background noise level 
and that noise rating not exceed 37dB when measured at the 
nearest residential properties. Development shall be carried out 
in complete accordance with such details so agreed. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on residential 

amenity. 

24 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until 
evidence has been issued and submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority certifying that this level 
or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable 

development equal or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 

of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are achieved.  

25 No development of a residential phase shall commence until 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external 
walls and roofs of dwellings within that phase have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 

and appearance of the area. 

26 Prior to the commencement of the residential phase of 
development details of the estate roads, footways, footpaths, 
verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining 
walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang 
margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway 
gradients, drive gradients, car parking and street furniture, 
including the timetable for provision of such works, relating to 
that phase have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
No phase of residential development shall be first occupied 
until the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, 
street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, 
surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 

Page 169



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive 
gradients, car parking and street furniture associated with that 
phase have all been constructed and laid out in accordance 
with the approved details.  
REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed 

in a satisfactory manner. 

  
27 No development of the Hotel shall take place until full details of 

all proposed fixed plant installed on the building and/or site 
(and including all mitigation measures screening) has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include confirmation that the plant 
will not exceed -5dB below the lowest background noise level 
and that noise rating not exceed 37dB when measured at the 
nearest residential properties. Development shall be carried out 
in complete accordance with such details so agreed. 
REASON: To limit the impact of the development on residential 

amenity. 

28 No works on the residential phase of development shall 
commence on site until details of all external window and door 
joinery have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include 
depth of reveal, details of heads, sills and lintels. The works 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 

enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 

permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 

Local Planning Authority before development commences in 

order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 

manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 

appearance of the area. 

  

(The Committee adjourned from 13:15 until 14:00) 
 
  
 
 
 

63 15/12351/OUT- Land at Rawlings Farm, Cocklebury Lane, Chippenham, 
SN15 3LR- Outline Permission for up to 700 Dwellings, Including 4.5ha 
Employment Space and Primary School. Up to 10ha New Public Open 
Space, Landscaping, Stormwater / Drainage Works, Substation and 
Associated Works. Access Using Parsonage Way, Darcy Close and from 
Cocklebury Lane (for Cycling and Pedestrian Only). 

Page 170



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
The following people spoke against the proposal: 
 
Mr Patrick Moss, representing Messrs Moss Naylor Young 
Mr Nick Murray, a local resident 
Mr Fionn Pilbrow, a local resident 
Cllr Ian James, representing Bremhill Parish Council 
 
The following person spoke in support of the proposal: 
 
Mr Peter Frampton, Planning Director, Messrs Framptons  
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation to delegate 
authority to the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal agreement and the 
imposition of appropriate conditions within six months of the date of this 
Committee decision.  
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required Section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the Head 
of Development Management to refuse planning permission. 
 
The Case Officer also brought to the attention of the Committee late 
representations received.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
received statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the proposal. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Chris Caswill and Cllr Howard Greenman, 
local Members, in which they both objected to the proposal. Cllr Caswill 
considered that: 
 

 The application site lay outside the existing settlement which should be 
preserved. 

 The residents of Rawlings Farm Cottage, situated in the midst of the 
proposed development site, had not been notified of the receipt of the 
application and had been informed by neighbours. 

 The impact of the proposed development on Cocklebury Lane and Station 
Road had not been sufficiently considered. 

 An application for a new bridge over the railway line at Rawlings Green 
had not been received and might not be approved.  The bridge needed to 
be completed after the first 200 houses had been built and occupied. 

 The Air Quality and Landscape and Visual Impacts of the proposed 
development had not been sufficiently considered. 

 

Page 171



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Cllr Greenman explained that although he had no issue in principle with the 
proposed development, he was firmly of the opinion that a bridge over the 
railway at Rawlings Green should be provided before further houses, after the 
first 200, could be built and occupied. 
 
The Case Officer explained that the application was for outline permission and 
that all detailed matters were reserved and would follow in due course. He 
stated that many of the issues raised had been covered in his report but drew 
attention to the highway issues, which had been fully assessed and approved 
by the Council’s Highways Officer. 
 
After discussion,  
 
Resolved:   
 
To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to grant 
planning permission, subject to the completion of a Section 106 legal 
agreement and the imposition of appropriate conditions within six months 
of the date of the resolution of this Committee. 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the Area 
Development Manager to refuse planning permission for the following reason:- 
 
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and required 
Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential development 
including Affordable Housing; Waste; Air Quality Management and is therefore 
contrary to Policies CP3 CP43 & CP55 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy Adopted 
January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
March 2012. 

 
Conditions 

 
1. No development shall commence on site until details of the following 

matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) of each relevant 
phase of development pursuant to condition 7 below have been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority: 

 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON:  The application was made for outline planning permission and is 
granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

Page 172



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved 
matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 

3. An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be made to 
the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the 
date of this permission. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
 

4. Applications for the approval of the reserved matters shall be in accordance 
with the principles and parameters described and identified in the Design and 
Access Statement and approved Parameter Plans. A statement shall be 
submitted with each reserved matters application which demonstrates that 
the application proposals comply with the Design and Access Statement or, 
where relevant, explaining why they do not.  
 
REASON: So as to provide certainty and clarify the expectations for the form 
of development to take place on the site. 
 
Limits of Permission 

 
5. The residential element of the development hereby granted planning 

permission shall not exceed 700 dwellings.  
 
REASON: To define the limits of the planning permission and to set the 
maximum number of dwellings to be constructed on the application site. 
 

6. The total gross retail floorspace available for use by customers (excluding 
toilets and other ancillary facilities) of all premises falling within Class A1 of 
the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or 
in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) shall not exceed 200 
sqm.  
 
REASON: To define the limits of development and to ensure retail 
development on the site does not adversely impact upon the town centre. 
 
Phasing 
 

7. As part of the first reserved matters application a phasing plan for the whole 
site shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing. 

Page 173



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The phasing plan shall include details of the intended number of market and 
affordable dwellings for each phase of development together with general 
locations and phasing of key infrastructure, including surface water drainage, 
green infrastructure, community facilities, Local Centre, commercial uses and 
access for pedestrians, cyclists, buses and vehicles. Development shall take 
place in complete accordance with the phasing plan so agreed.  
 
REASON: So as to ensure a balanced development for the benefit of future 
residents and Chippenham town as a whole. 

 
Ecology 

 
8. No later than the submission of a reserved matters application, an Ecological 

Mitigation and Enhancement Framework shall be submitted to an approved 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved Framework shall: 
 

 Include up to date ecological survey information on habitats and 

protected species including bats, badger, reptiles and 

invertebrates; 

 Identify features of nature conservation value to be protected 

during the construction phase and retained within the detailed 

layout; 

 Establish minimum parameters, general location and acceptable 

land uses / landscaping of ecological buffers to be incorporated 

into the detailed layout; 

 Clearly show dark corridors to be retained within the scheme 

including general locations, minimum widths, and maximum light 

levels to be achieved through the detailed layout and lighting plans; 

 Identify minimum areas, locations types of habitat to be created and 

enhanced as part of the soft landscaping scheme and long-term 

management of the site; and 

 Establish the minimum number, distribution and type of bat / bird 

boxes to be incorporated into the buildings on the site. 

The approved Framework should demonstrate that the development will 
achieve an overall net gain for biodiversity.  All reserved matters 
applications shall be in accordance with the approved Framework. 
REASON: To satisfactorily mitigate the ecological impact of the 
development. 
9. Applications for approval of reserved matters application shall be 

accompanied by detailed lighting plans (where necessary) to demonstrate 
how dark corridors identified in the approved Ecological Mitigation and 
Enhancement Framework shall be achieved within the proposed detailed 

Page 174



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

layout.  The lighting plans shall include details of luminaires, heights and 
positions of fittings, and modelled lux plots to show the effects of light spill 
on the dark corridors.   
 
All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications 
and locations set out in the approved lighting plans, and these shall be 
maintained thereafter in accordance with the plans. Under no circumstances 
should any other external lighting be installed without prior consent from the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To satisfactorily mitigate the ecological impact of the development 
 

10. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 
shall commence on site until A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan 
(LEMP) for that phase of development has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the  
development. The content of the LEMP shall include, but not necessarily be 
limited to, the following detailed information: 

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed; 
b) Landscape and ecological trends and constraints that might 
influence management; 
c) Aims and objectives of management; 
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives; 
e) Prescriptions for management actions; 
f) Preparation of a work schedule; 
g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation 
of the plan; 
h) A schedule of ongoing monitoring, reporting, and remedial 
measures; 
i) Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be 
communicated to future occupiers of the development. 
The LEMP shall also demonstrably have regard to the principles and 
approach set out in the approved Ecological Mitigation Framework, 
and demonstrate a net gain in the overall biodiversity of the site in the 
long-term. 
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding 
mechanism by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be 
secured by the developer with the management bodies responsible for 
its delivery. 
The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show 
that the conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being 
met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, 
agreed and implemented. Details of monitoring and any remedial 
action taken shall be reported to the Local Planning Authority as set 
out in the approved monitoring schedule, or on request. 
Upon commencement of development the LEMP shall be implemented 
in full in accordance with the approved details. 

REASON: To satisfactorily mitigate the landscape and ecological impact 
of the development. 

Page 175



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
11. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site, until details of a wildlife sensitive lighting scheme 
for roads and footpaths within that phase of development, and any lighting 
for the areas of public open space, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out only 
in accordance with the approved details. 
 

REASON: To satisfactorily mitigate the ecological impact of the development. 
 
 
Landscape 
 

12. The landscaping details to be submitted pursuant to condition 1 above shall 
include, but are not confined to, the following: 

i) a written specification clearly describing the species, plant sizes, 
proposed numbers/densities and giving details of cultivation and 
other operations associated with plant and grass establishment; 
ii) finished levels and contours; 
iii) the position, design and materials of all means of enclosure; 
iv) vehicle and pedestrian circulation areas; 
v) all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
vi) minor artefacts and structures (eg play equipment, street 
furniture, refuse storage areas, signage etc). 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter 
is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

 
13. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site development, including any works of site clearance 
shall begin unless and until a scheme for the ongoing management and 
maintenance of that landscaped area, other than private domestic gardens 
and open space covered by the planning obligation, including long term 
design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with approved 
details. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 
14. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site, including any works of site clearance or ground 
preparation, until a plan showing all trees and hedges to be retained shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. No tree 
or hedgerow identified as being retained in the approved details shall be cut 
down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be topped or lopped 

Page 176



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the 
written approval of the local planning authority. Any topping or lopping 
approved shall be carried out in accordance with BS3998:2010 Tree Work – 
Recommendations, or other arboricultural techniques where such have been 
demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practice. If any 
retained tree or hedgerow is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another 
tree or hedge shall be planted at the same place and that tree or hedge shall 
be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be 
specified in writing by the local planning authority. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 
15. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site, including any works of site clearance or ground 
preparation, until an Arboricultural Method Statement specifying the 
measures to be put in place during the construction period of that phase of 
development, for the protection of those trees and hedgerows to be retained, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
The Method Statement shall be prepared in accordance with the principles 
set out in BS5837:2012 – Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction: Recommendations. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with approved Method Statement. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 
Contamination 
 

16. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 
shall commence on site until (other than that required to be carried out as 
part of a scheme of remediation approved by the Local Planning Authority 
under this condition), steps (i) to (iii) below have been fully complied with. If 
unexpected contamination is found after development has begun, 
development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until step (iv) has been complied with in full in relation to 
that contamination.  
 
Step (i) Site Characterisation:  
 
An investigation and risk assessment must be completed to assess the 
nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it 
originates on the site. The investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
report of the findings must include:  
 
A survey of the extent, nature and scale of contamination on site;  
The collection and interpretation of relevant information to form a conceptual 
model of the site, and a preliminary risk assessment of all the likely pollutant 
linkages; If the preliminary risk assessment identifies any potentially 

Page 177



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

significant pollutant linkages a ground investigation shall be carried out, to 
provide further information on the location, type and concentration of 
contaminants in the soil and groundwater and other characteristics that can 
influence the behaviour of the contaminants; An assessment of the potential 
risks to  
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.  
Step (ii) Submission of Remediation Scheme:  
 

 human health,  

 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops,  

 livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,  

 adjoining land,  

 groundwater and surface waters,  

 ecological systems,  

 archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
 

 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.  
 
Step (ii) Submission of Remediation Scheme: 
 
If any unacceptable risks are identified as a result of the investigation and 
assessment referred to in step (i) above, a detailed remediation scheme to 
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use must be prepared. 
This should detail the works required to remove any unacceptable risks to 
human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical 
environment, should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of 
works and site management procedures.  
 
Step (iii) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme:  
 
The approved remediation scheme under step (ii) must be carried out in 
accordance with its requirements. The Local Planning Authority must be 
given at least two weeks written notification of commencement of the 
remediation scheme works.  
 
Step (iv) Reporting of Unexpected Contamination:  
 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it should be 
reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 
investigation and risk assessment should be undertaken in accordance with 
the requirements of step (i) above and where remediation is necessary, a 
remediation scheme should be prepared in accordance with the requirements 

Page 178



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

of step (ii) and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Step (v) Verification of remedial works:  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme a verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) must 
be produced. The report should demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
remedial works.  
 
A statement should also be provided by the developer which is signed by a 
person who is competent to confirm that the works detailed in the approved 
scheme have been carried out (The Local Planning Authority can provide a 
draft Remediation Certificate when the details of the remediation scheme 
have been approved at stage (ii) above).  
 
The verification report and signed statement should be submitted to and 
approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Step (vi) Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance:  
 
If a monitoring and maintenance scheme is required as part of the approved 
remediation scheme, reports must be prepared and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval at the relevant stages in the development 
process as approved by the Local Planning Authority in the scheme 
approved pursuant to step (ii) above, until all the remediation objectives in 
that scheme have been achieved.  
 
All works must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.  
 

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and 
other offsite receptors. 
 
Archaeology 
 
17. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until until a written programme of archaeological 
investigation, which should include details of on-site work as well as the 
analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved programme of 
archaeological work shall be carried out in complete accordance with the 
approved details.  
 

REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest. 
 
Drainage 
 

Page 179



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

18. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 
shall commence on site until until details of the works for the disposal of 
sewerage including the point of connection to the existing public sewer have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
No dwelling or unit shall be first occupied within that phase of development 
until the approved sewerage details have been fully implemented in 
accordance with the approved plans.  
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a satisfactory means of 
drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding or pose a risk to public 
health or the environment. 
 

 
19. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface water 
from the site, incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. That phase of 
development shall not be first brought into use or occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 

 
20. Prior to any reserved matters approval a site masterplan shall be submitted 

to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The masterplan 
shall be in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment (PFA Consulting, 
December 2015, Ref: K113, dated 17.12.2015) to include details to 
demonstrate that all built development (all houses as shown on the 
illustrative masterplan) is positioned on land above a level of 48.5 metres 
AOD, and all development including drainage infrastructure is positioned on 
land outside the 1 in 1000 year modelled flood extent. The development shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved masterplan. 
 

REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future 
occupants. 
 
Highways 

 
21. No development shall commence until a site phasing plan has been 

submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The phasing plan 
shall include, inter alia, the timing of the delivery of (a) a junction 
improvement at Station Hill and New Road, (b) a new road link into the site 
through an alteration and extension of Darcy Close, including a junction 

Page 180



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

alteration on Cockleury Road, (c) the delivery of a new road over railway 
bridge to connect the site to Parsonage Way, and to include a completed link 
road between Cocklebury Road and Parsonage Way via the site, (d) the 
completion of an internal distributor road to allow for future extension, via a 
bridge to the east of the river and (e) off-site junction improvements at Birch 
Grove and The Little George junction (if not already undertaken by others), (f) 
provision of footpath and cycletrack links between the site and existing local 
pedestrian/cycle routes. For the avoidance of doubt, the phasing plan shall 
include provision for the road connection by bridge over the GWR mainline to 
Parsonage Way shall be completed, and connected to Cocklebury Road, and 
available for use prior to the occupation of more than 200 dwellings on the 
site. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plan. 
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate transport infrastructure is provided at 
appropriate stages of the development and  to mitigate severe impacts on traffic 
conditions in the town centre. 

 
22. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until (including any works of demolition), until a 
Construction Method Statement for that phase of development, which shall 
include the following details: 
 

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 

d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 

appropriate; 

e) wheel washing facilities; 

f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction; 

g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works;  

h) detailed measures for the protection of semi-natural habitats and 

priority / protected species (as identified in the approved Ecological 

Mitigation and Enhancement Framework); and 

i) hours of construction, including deliveries. 

j) details as to routeing arrangements for lorries delivering to the site 

during the identified phases of the development and how they will 

be signed to the site 

k) A specific section of the plan shall address the construction traffic 

arrangements in relation to the construction of the proposed GWR 

mainline railway bridge 

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 

Page 181



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
REASON: To mitigate the impact of the construction work on the 
amenities of nearby residents and those using nearby public rights of 
way. 

 
23. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until details of the estate roads, footways, footpaths, 
verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service 
routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, 
visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car 
parking and street furniture, including the timetable for provision of such 
works for that phase of development, have been submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. The carriageway width of the connecting 
road through the site between Parsonage Way and the east side of the site 
shall be not less than 7.3 m; the link to Cocklebury Road from this road shall 
not be less than 6.2m carriageway width.  
 
Each Phase of the development shall not be first brought into use or 
occupied for trading until the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, 
junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, 
surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility 
splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and 
street furniture for that phase of development have all been constructed and 
laid out in accordance with the details approved and in accordance with the 
provisions of the approved site phasing plan. 
 

REASON: To ensure that the roads are laid out and constructed in a satisfactory 
manner, and to allow for adequate width for large goods vehicles and buses. 

 
24. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until a scheme of safe pedestrian and cycle routes, 
and details of secure covered cycle parking and changing and shower 
facilities in respect of the non-residential use classes has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such facilities shall 
be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to any part of the 
development being first occupied and maintained thereafter. 
 

REASON: In pursuit of sustainable transport objectives. 
 
25. No development within any individually approved phase of the development 

shall commence on site until Travel Plans for the various land uses 
(residential, employment and education) permitted have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan 
shall include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The results of the 
implementation and monitoring shall be made available to the Local Planning 
Authority on request, together with any changes to the plan arising from 
those results. 

 

Page 182



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic to the 
development. 
 
26. Car parking provision for all phases of development shall be in accordance 

with the required standards set out in the Wiltshire LTP3 Car Parking 
Strategy. Garages to be counted towards car parking provision shall have 
minimum internal dimensions of 3m x 6m. 
 

REASON In order to ensure an adequacy of site parking provision and to avoid 
inappropriate levels of on-street parking. 

 
 
 

64 Urgent Items 
 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.00 am - 3.50 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis (Chairman), Cllr Tony Trotman (Vice Chairman), Cllr Trevor Carbin, 
Cllr Terry Chivers, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Charles Howard, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Bridget Wayman and Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Roy While 
 
  

 
65 Apologies 

 
 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Glenis Ansell. 
 
 

66 Declarations of Interest 
 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 
 

67 Chairman's Announcements 
 
 
It was reported that this meeting had been originally scheduled to be held the 
previous Wednesday at 10:30am in Trowbridge. 
  
Unfortunately, the meeting had to be postponed as it was discovered the day 
before that the notification letters and e-mails that are sent to advise those who 
have made representations on the applications of the date and time of the 
meeting had inadvertently not been sent. Whilst the meeting had been 
publicised in the local press, it was not certain that all those who had 
commented on the applications were aware of the meeting. The difficult 
decision was therefore taken to postpone the meeting at short notice to ensure 

Page 185

Agenda Item 18



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

that everyone who should have been was notified of the meeting and been 
given the opportunity to attend. 
 
The meeting had been re-arranged at the earliest possible date which was only 
fair to the applicants who were expecting their proposals to be discussed the 
previous week and who submitted their applications many months ago.   It was 
appreciated that the timing of the meeting was not ideal for some, being aware 
of the clash with the Chippenham Town Council meeting, although this was not 
apparent at the time of rescheduling the meeting.  It was likely that whatever 
day was chosen would have been difficult for some parties.  
 
The Chairman and Committee apologised for the inconvenience that this had 
caused, and they were grateful to those who had made the extra effort to turn 
out to be present at this meeting. As to be expected, the Council’s procedures 
for notification of committee meetings had been reviewed in order to avoid any 
re-occurrence of such an event in the future.     
 
 
 

68 Public Participation 
 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. He then explained the rules 
of public participation and procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
 

69 N/13/00308/OUT - Land at Showell Farm, Patterdown Road, Chippenham - 
Outline Application for Employment Development Comprising 50,000sqm, 
Incorporating Class B1(b), Class B1 (c), B2 with Ancillary B1 (a), B8 and 
Ancillary B1 (a) Uses Including Means of Access, Car Parking, Servicing, 
Associated Landscaping and Works 
 
 
The following person spoke against the proposal: 
Mr Tony Peacock, Showell Protection Group Coordinator 
 
The following person spoke in favour of the proposal: 
Mr Des Dunlop, the agent 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted subject to the signing of a Section 106 legal agreement 
within six months of the date of this meeting and to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 

Page 186



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

their views regarding the planning application.  
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to grant 
planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement covering the highway matters, 
within six months of the date of the resolution of this Committee. 
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Head of Development Management to refuse planning permission on the 
grounds that the proposal fails to secure the necessary highway 
mitigation works required to make the development acceptable. 
 
Conditions 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 
2 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
following matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) 
have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority: 
 
(e) The scale of the development; 
(f) The layout of the development; 
(g) The external appearance of the development; 
(h) The landscaping of the site; 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON:  The application was made for outline planning permission and 
is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 3(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995. 
 

Page 187



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

3 All access to the site for clearance, construction or other works in 
connection with this permission shall be from the proposed roundabout 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highways safety. 
  
4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
parameters plan submitted on 26th August 2016 and the written 
addendum dated 25th February 2013 with a maximum height of 8.5m in 
plot 300; 12m on plot 400 and 15m on plots 100 and 200. 
 
Reason: To protect the setting of the heritage assets nearby and the 
landscape character of the area 
 
 
5 No development shall commence within the site until: 
 
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 
 
b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON:  To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 
 
6 No development shall commence on site until an investigation of 
the history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of 
the existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been 
undertaken and until:  
 
a) The Local Planning Authority has been provided with written 
confirmation that, in the opinion of the developer, the site is likely to be 
free from contamination which may pose a risk to people, controlled 
waters or the environment. Details of how this conclusion was reached 
shall be included. 
b) If, during development, any evidence of historic contamination or 
likely contamination is found, the developer shall cease work immediately 
and contact the Local Planning Authority to identify what additional site 
investigation may be necessary. 
a) In the event of unexpected contamination being identified, all 
development on the site shall cease until such time as an investigation 
has been carried out and a written report submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority, any remedial works recommended in that 
report have been undertaken and written confirmation has been provided 
to the Local Planning Authority that such works have been carried out. 

Page 188



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Construction shall not recommence until the written agreement of the 
Local Planning Authority has been given following its receipt of 
verification that the approved remediation measures have been carried 
out.  
REASON:  To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately 
prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
7 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a 
full lighting scheme for the development shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the countryside and local 
residents. 
 
8 All fixed plant and machinery shall be so sited and designed in 
order to achieve a rating level of -5dB below the lowest measured 
background noise level, determined at each of the nearest noise sensitive 
receptors ie Holywell Guest House, Showell Cottages and Showell Farm. 
 
Reason: To protect residential amenity. 
 
9 The parking provision for all individual units on the site shall be in 
accordance with the requirements of the Wiltshire local Transport plan 
(LTP3) Car Parking Strategy, with quantum of parking not below the 
minimum standard for the appropriate planning use class, and areas of 
parking used for no other purpose. 
 
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for car parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
10 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
stopping up of all existing accesses, both pedestrian and vehicular, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. That stopping up shall take place in accordance with the 
approved details within one month of the first use of the approved access. 
No later than one month after the first occupation of the development, the 
sole means of vehicular and pedestrian access to the development shall 
be as shown on the plans hereby approved. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
11 No development shall commence on site until details of the estate 
roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, 
drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle 
overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway 
gradients, drive gradients, car parking and street furniture, including the 

Page 189



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

timetable for the provision of such works, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall not be occupied until these details have been constructed and laid 
out in accordance with the approved details, unless an alternative 
timetable is agreed in the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience. 
 
12 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
provision for the loading, unloading and parking of goods vehicles within 
the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No part of the development hereby approved shall be 
first brought into use until provision has been made. this space shall be 
maintained for such purpose at all times thereafter. 
 
 
Reason: To ensure adequate provision is made for loading/unloading and 
lorry/van parking within the site in the interests of highway safety.  
 
13 The buildings hereby permitted shall not be greater in height than 
the following parameters: Plot 300 8.5m; plot 400 10m and plots 100 & 200 
12m as indicated on drawing DR-411-102 Rev 01. 
 
Reason: To protect the setting of the nearby listed buildings and the open 
character of the surrounding landscape. 
 
14 Prior to the first occupation of any of the development hereby 
permitted, the cycle/path along Patterdown Road as indicated on the 
approved plans, shall be provided in accordance with details to have first 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, 
unless and until the cycleway/footway linking to the town centre,  through 
the remainder of the South West of Chippenham Strategic Allocation in 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy, is provided. 
 
Reason: To ensure that sustainable routes to the town centre are 
provided. 
 
15 Prior to submission of a reserved matters application for the site, 
an Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan shall include the following 
elements: 
• A framework demonstrating how and where the ‘Ecological 
Management and Enhancement Measures’, as set out in Table 4-1 of the 
submitted ‘Ecological Summary Report’ (Ref. eg12459TP), shall be 
implemented across the site 

Page 190



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

• A scheme for the translocation of the existing species-rich 
hedgerow (where this cannot be retained) to landscaped areas within the 
site 
• A programme for monitoring the ecological effects of the 
development 
The approved Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan shall set a 
framework for all reserved matters applications, which shall only be 
permitted where in accordance with the approved Ecological Monitoring 
and Management Plan, and will include timescales for implementing the 
approved measures.  The site shall be managed in accordance with the 
approved Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan in perpetuity 
unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and monitoring 
reports shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in accordance 
with the monitoring programme therein. 
 
Reason: To maintain and enhance biodiversity and protected species in 
accordance with NE10, NE11, NE14 and Circular 06/2005 
 
16 Any reserved matter application shall be supported by a lighting 
plan for that phase of development (including a lux plot).  Any approved 
lighting plan shall demonstrate that light spill will be minimised through 
sensitive lighting design and timers, and that light levels shall be 
maintained at current lux levels or below 1 lux in the following parts of the 
site, as identified in the Ecological Monitoring and Management Plan or 
through any subsequent ecological survey reports: 
• Confirmed bat roosts / flight lines / foraging areas; 
• Bat boxes; and  
• Darkened corridors to be maintained through the site. 
Lighting levels shall be maintained across the site in accordance with the 
approved lighting plan(s), unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: Circular 06/2005 and the Habitats Regulations (2010). 
 
17. No more than 6000sqm gross floor area of the land use class 
B1(b)/B1(c)/B2 industrial , 930sqm of B8 distribution and 5,100sqm of B8 
warehousing (or a variation on these levels of development so as not to 
exceed 78 two-way vehicle movements in the AM peak (0800-0900) and 84 
two way vehicle movements in the PM peak (1700-1800) based on trip 
rates set out in the Peter Brett Associates Transport Assessment 
(December 2012) in table 6.1 (B1(b)/B1(c)/B2) , table 6.2 (B8 distribution) 
and table 6.3 (B8 warehousing) shall be occupied until the M4 J17 
Improvement scheme as shown on Atkins drawing numbers WHCC_OS-
ATK-HGN-T07178-DR-D-001Revision P01.5 dated 14/01/16 and WHCC_OS-
ATK-HGN-T07178-DR-D-0002 Revision P01.4 dated 14/01/16 is completed 
and open to traffic. 
 

Page 191



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Reason: To ensure the safe and effective operation of the strategic road 
network. 
 
                                                                                                 
 
 

70 14/12118/OUT - Rowden Park, Patterdown Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire - 
Mixed Use Urban Extension Comprising Residential (Class C3), Local 
Centre (Classes A1-A5) and (Classes D1 and D2), Primary School, Public 
Open Space Including Riverside Park and Allotments, Landscaping, 4 
Vehicular Accesses, Site Roads and Associated Infrastructure 
 
 
The following person spoke against the proposal: 
Mr Tony Peacock, Showell Protection Group Coordinator 
Ms Helen Stride, a local resident 
Mr Peter Fennell, a local resident 
 
The following person spoke in favour of the proposal: 
Mr Des Dunlop, the agent 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that authority 
be delegated to the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission subject to the signing of a Section 106 legal agreement within six 
months of the date of this meeting and to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application.  
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to grant 
planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement covering the following heads of 
terms, within six months of the date of this meeting: 
 

 Minimum 30% Affordable Housing. 

 Contribution of £385,000 to improvements to cycle and pedestrian 

routes. 

 Contribution of £438k for bus service for years. 

 Contribution to access works including roundabouts and right 

turning lanes; securing SLR route; £35k for link between north and 

south areas across Pudding Brook; 50k for Rights of Way 

Page 192



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

improvements to Lackham College; monies for RoW conversions 

and diversions; monies for Bridge Centre Gyratory, A420 Marshfield 

Rd and New Rd/Station Hill. 

 £4,788,078 (plus indexation) for primary school places. Land for 

building of primary school. Early Years contribution. 

 Playing pitch and indoor sports provision contribution £823,304 for 

off-site improvements. 

 Provision of Riverside Park. 

 Public Art Contribution of £300 per dwelling and £3 per square 

metre of commercial development with no more than 10% being 

spent on a public art plan. 

 Provision of 0.71 ha of allotment land. 

 provision of waste and recycling containers for each residential 

unit. 

In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Head of Development Management to refuse planning permission on the 
grounds that the proposal fails to secure the necessary highway 
mitigation works required to make the development acceptable. 
 
Conditions 
 
1. No development shall commence on site until details of the following 
matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority:  
 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 
. 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON:  The application was made for outline planning permission and 
is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
 

Page 193



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, relevant 
infiltration tests carried out in accordance with BRE365 and full 
justification to support results of flood risk calculations given in the FRA, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until details of the works for 
the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to the existing 
public sewer have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first occupied until the approved 
sewerage details have been fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and/or 
[DELETE as appropriate] the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that 
the proposal is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and does 
not increase the risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the 
environment. 
 
5. No development shall commence on site until details of the works for 
the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to the existing 
public sewer have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first occupied until the approved 
sewerage details have been fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 

Page 194



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
 
6. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
Prior to the commencement of the non-residential development hereby 
permitted details of how the developer will achieve BREEAM Very Good 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
authority. The development shall be carried out in the agreed 
methodology. 
 
REASON: To ensure the proposals comply with relevant guidance and 
CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
7. No development shall commence within the all areas except fields 4, 6, 
7 and 8 until:  
 
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority;  
 
b) A detailed archaeological mitigation strategy is required for 
these areas; and 
 
c) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of 
archaeological interest. 
 
8. No more than 140 dwellings shall be occupied unless, and until the M4 
J17 improvement scheme as shown on Atkins drawing numbers 
WHCC_OS_ATK- HGN-T07178-DR-D-ooo1 revision P01.5 dated 14/01/16 
and WHCC_OS-ATK-HGN-T07178-DR-D-0002 revision P01.4 dated 14/01/16 
are completed and open to traffic. 
 
REASON: 
To ensure the safe and effective operation of the strategic road network. 
 

Page 195



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

9. No development shall commence until a scheme to demonstrate that all 
finished floor levels are set at least 300mm above the typical adjacent 
modelled 1 in 100 annual probability flood level to take into account a 30% 
allowance for climate change, has been submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority. Thereafter the development shall be 
carried in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To reduce the impact of flooding on the proposed development 
and future occupants. 
 
  
10. No development shall commence until a scheme to ensure adequate 
floodplain compensation provision has been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. The construction of the part of the 
northern access road which encroaches into flood zone 3 must not 
commence until the floodplain compensation scheme has been 
completed. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved scheme and any subsequent amendments shall be agreed in 
writing with the local planning authority. 
 
REASON: To minimise the impact of the development on the floodplain. 
 
11. No development shall commence until a surface water management 
scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an 
assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the 
development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The submitted details shall clarify the intended future 
ownership and maintenance provision for all drainage works serving the 
site. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details before the development is complete. 
 
REASON: 
To prevent the increased risk of flooding and ensure future maintenance 
of the surface water drainage system. 
 
 
12. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan, incorporating pollution 
prevention measures has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall subsequently be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details and agreed 
timetable. 
 
REASON: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
13. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a 
scheme for water efficiency shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented 

Page 196



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

concurrently with the occupation of the development and permanently 
maintained thereafter. 
 
REASON: 
In the interests of sustainable development and climate change 
adaptation. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The attention of the applicant is drawn to the contents of the attached 
letter from the Environment Agency on 22nd January 2015.. 
 
14. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted  
details of the following shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority: 
1. Tree retention and removal plan. 
2. A plan showing the retained trees and Root Protection Areas (RPAs) on 
the proposed layout. 
3. A plan showing strategic hard and soft landscape design, including 
species and location of new tree planting. 
4. An arboricultural Impact Assessment. 
5. A detailed Arboricultural Method Statement. 
6. Details of all engineering within the RPAs and other relevant 
construction details. 
7. Alignment of all utility apparatus. 
8. A dimensioned tree protection plan. 
9. Schedule of works to retained trees eg Acess facilitation for pruning. 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON: To protect the trees on site and ensure their health and vitality. 
 
15. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

Page 197



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
16. No dwelling shall be occupied, until details of screen walls and/or 
fences have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and the screen walls and/or fences in respect of each 
dwelling have been erected in accordance approved details. The approved 
screen walls and/or fences shall be retained and maintained as such at all 
times thereafter.  
 
REASON: To prevent overlooking & loss of privacy to neighbouring 
property. 
 
17. No railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other means of 
enclosure development shall be erected in connection with the 
development hereby permitted until details of their design, external 
appearance and decorative finish have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the development being 
occupied / brought into use.    
 
REASON:  In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
18.  All plans submitted for approval as part of the reserved matters (as 
set out in Condition 1), shall be in accordance with the ecological 
mitigation measures set out in:  
1)Chapter 5 of the Environmental Statement and relevant appendices 
(specifically 5.1 - 5.3) 
2)Green Infrastructure Strategy (DRG No. 2513-09O) 
3)Lighting Strategy (Peter Brett, Project Ref: 20399/3003 | Rev: Final | 
Date: December 2014) 
All development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: To ensure that ecological impacts are avoided and mitigated as 
far as possible through detailed design, in accordance with CP50 
 
19. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority 
before commencement of the development. The content of the LEMP shall 
include, but not necessarily be limited to, the ecological mitigation 
measures set out in Chapter 5 of the Environmental Statement (and 
associated appendices), including the following detailed information: 
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed; 
b) Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site that might 
influence management; 
c) Aims and objectives of management; 
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives; 
e) Prescriptions for management actions; 

Page 198



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

f) Preparation of a work schedule; 
g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of 
the plan; 
h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; 
i) Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be 
communicated to future occupiers of the development. 
The LEMP shall also demonstrably have regard to the principles and 
approach set out in the submitted 'Providing Net Biodiversity Gain' 
document (Engain, December 2015), and that it should demonstrate a net 
gain in the overall biodiversity of the site. 
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism 
by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the 
developer with the management bodies responsible for its delivery. 
The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that 
the conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how 
contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and 
implemented. 
Upon commencement of development the LEMP shall be implemented in 
full in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to be fully 
implemented by landscaping management and maintenance staff or 
enforced by the Local Planning Authority in order to ensure that that the 
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate 
ongoing protection, mitigation and compensation for protected species, 
priority species and priority habitats throughout the lifetime of the 
development. 
 
20. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
e) wheel washing facilities; 
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works;  
h) detailed measures for the protection of semi-natural habitats and 
sensitive species (as broadly set out in Chapter 5 of the Environmental 
Statement and associated appendices); and 
i) hours of construction, including deliveries. 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 

Page 199



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be implemented by construction staff or enforced by the Local 
Planning Authority in order to ensure that the development is undertaken 
in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 
the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
21.  The applicant must undertake an Air Quality Assessment (AQA) to be 
approved by the LPA prior to commencement of construction. This must 
quantify the effect of the development on existing local authority air 
quality monitoring locations and sensitive receptors as well as the 
proposed development. It must also identify and make adjustments for all 
core strategy based development in the Rowden Park locality. The effect 
of any proposed mitigation must be quantified in terms of its contribution 
to the reduction of oxides of nitrogen and PM 2.5 in the Calne locality. Use 
of CURED data in the AQA is expected along with any other currently 
accepted approaches to AQA. 
 
Reason: Core Policy 55; Development proposals, which by virtue of their 
scale, nature or location are likely to exacerbate existing areas of poor air 
quality, will need to demonstrate that measures can be taken to effectively 
mitigate emission levels in order to protect public health, environmental 
quality and amenity. 
 
22. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling on site full details must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
specifying a scheme of air quality mitigation measures that will contribute 
to the reduction of oxides of nitrogen and PM 2.5 in the Rowden Park 
locality or at least an air quality neutral outcome. This must include but 
not be limited to the provision of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging 
infrastructure. Within 6 months of the occupation of 90% of the dwellings, 
monitoring of air quality within the site and immediate locality (as 
identified in Chapter 9 of the submitted Environmental Statement) must be 
undertaken and the results submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
LPA, demonstrating that the above mitigation has made a contribution to 
air quality improvement. Should the submitted reports not demonstrate an 
air quality neutral outcome a programme of mitigation must be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the LPA and the actions carried out in 
accordance with that plan. 
 
Reason: Core Policy 55; Development proposals, which by virtue of their 
scale, nature or location are likely to exacerbate existing areas of poor air 
quality, will need to demonstrate that measures can be taken to effectively 

Page 200



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

mitigate emission levels in order to protect public health, environmental 
quality and amenity 
 
23. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a 
Construction Management Plan providing details of the management of 
heavy goods vehicle construction traffic, including their routes 
approaching and leaving the site, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In order to protect the existing highway links that serve the site 
from damage by large goods vehicles, to assist in the environmental 
protection of the interests of nearby residents, and to ensure that 
provisions are in place to address any problems associated with highway 
damage caused by such vehicles. 
 
24. Prior to occupation of any of the dwellings taking access from 
Coppice Close the access to Coppice Close shall be provided and shall 
thereafter remain open and available for use. 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient access to the 
development.  
 
25. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling served by the access to 
Coppice Close, the  access to Coppice Close shall be provided with 
visibility with nothing to exceed the height of 600mm above carriageway 
level between the carriageway edge, and a line drawn from a point 2.4 
metres back along the centre line of the access from the carriageway 
edge, to a point on the nearside carriageway edge 36 metres to the west. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
26. No development shall commence until a Residential Travel Plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. No residential part of the development shall be occupied prior 
to the implementation of the Residential Travel Plan, (or implementation of 
those parts capable of being implemented prior to occupation). Those 
parts identified for implementation after occupation shall be implemented 
in accordance with the timetable contained therein, and shall continue to 
be implemented as long as any part of the development is occupied.  
Reason: In the interests of reducing the amount of private car movements 
to and from the development. 
 
 27. The primary school shall not be brought into use until a School Travel 
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The School Travel Plan shall include details of implementation 
and monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these 
agreed details. The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be 
made available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together with 
any changes to the Plan arising from these results.  
 

Page 201



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and reducing private car 
movements to and from the development. 
 
28. Prior to occupation of any dwelling details shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority of between 2 and 6 bus stops and shelters within 
the development, and a programme for their implementation. (The number 
to depend on whether buses route 1 or 2 way and on agreement with the 
Public Transport Team). On approval of the submitted details the bus 
stops and shelters shall be constructed and made available for use in 
accordance with the approved programme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient travel by public transport.      
 
29. Prior to occupation of any part of the development south of the rifle 
range a 3 metre wide shared use cycleway shall have been constructed 
and made permanently available for use by pedestrians and cyclists, 
between the Central Northern access and the end of the existing footway 
on Patterdown Road just north of the highway layby, in accordance with 
details to be first submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle 
access to the development.  
 
30. Prior to occupation of any part of the development areas 1-5 (Proving 
Layout plan 3787/300/D) a footway connection between the development 
and the eastern side of Queens Bridge as outlined on plan 20399/042/009, 
plus footway markings through the bridge and a short footway connection 
at the western side of the bridge to enable safe pedestrian access into 
Saltersford Lane  shall have been constructed and made permanently 
available for use by pedestrians in accordance with details to be first 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient pedestrian access to the 
development.  
 
31. Prior to occupation of any part of the development areas 1-6 (Proving 
Layout plan 3787/300/D) a 3m wide shared use cycleway shall have been 
constructed and made permanently available for use by pedestrians and 
cyclists between the development and the entrance to the Showell Farm 
development as outlined on plan 20399/042/005, in accordance with 
details to be first submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle 
access to the development.  
 

Page 202



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

32. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted, the relevant 
parts of the shared use pedestrian and cycle route known as Rowden Mile 
(which will include the spur to Avenue La Fleche and the spur to Gypsy 
Lane), shall have been constructed to a width of 3 metres including street 
lighting, and made permanently available for use by pedestrians and 
cyclists, in accordance with details to be first submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle 
access to the development.   
 
The applicants should be informed of the following:- 
Any application for approval of reserved matters should include for the 
design of all roads within the estate as a 20 mph zone, other than the bus 
route which runs from the primary access roundabout to the northern 
junction, but with only minimal amounts of vertical traffic calming. Traffic 
calming will generally be by horizontal alignment changes and use of 
surface texture changes.   
Number of rights of way cross the development. The rights of rights of 
way users must be safeguarded and the paths must be incorporated into 
the layout or suitable diversion or closure orders arranged.  
33.Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted 
details of the a ‘Riverside Park Management Plan’ shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
details shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of the 150th 
dwelling. The Management Plan shall set out a clear vision for how the 
Riverside Park land holding will be used by people and community 
groups, and how the land (individual fields / land parcels) will be managed 
in perpetuity by the designated management body. The Management Plan 
shall clearly define and prescribe how management objectives and 
maintenance operations will protect and enhance the existing heritage, 
ecology and landscape value and character of the site, within the context 
of wider green infrastructure links and functions of this land.  
 
REASON: In the interests of securing the long term maintenance of the 
Riverside Park. 
 
34. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in broad 
accordance with the Masterplan, parameters plans and design ethos as 
set out in the ES Addendum received by the Local Planning Authority on 
20th July 2016. 
REASON: In the interests of clarity and to ensure protection of the setting 
of the heritage assets nearby and the landscape character of the area. 
 
35. Prior to the commencement of the development a construction traffic 
management plan shall be submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority, and the development shall be undertaken in 

Page 203



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

accordance with the approved plan. The construction traffic management 
plan shall include inter alia, details as to routeing 
arrangements for lorries delivering to the site during the identified phases 
of the development and how they will be signed to the site, details of 
wheel cleaning facilities, details of parking and manoeuvring space within 
the site for lorries and construction workers vehicles, and measures to 
prevent site construction traffic parking on nearby residential streets.  
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of local 
residents. 
 
36. No more than 1000 dwellings shall be constructed on the site. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and as the mitigation impacts of the 
proposal have been assessed against this number of dwellings. 
 
37. Prior to commencement of development, details of a wildlife sensitive 
lighting scheme for roads and footpaths within the site, and any lighting 
for the areas of public open space, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To satisfactorily mitigate the ecological impact of the 
development. 
 
38. No dwelling shall be occupied until arrangements to facilitate 
broadband and/or high speed internet connection to that dwelling has 
been implemented in accordance with details that shall previously have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure digital connectivity. 
 

39. The following information should accompany any reserved matters 
application:- 

 Tree retention/removal plan (finalised); 

 Retained trees and RPAs shown on proposed layout 

 Strategic hard and soft landscape design, including species and 
location of new tree planting; 

 Arboricultural Impact Assessment; 

 Arboricultural Method Statement - detailed 

 Details for all special engineering within the RPA and other relevant 
construction details;  

 Alignment of utility apparatus (including drainage), where outside 
the RPA or where installed using a trenchless method; 

 Dimensioned tree protection plan; 

 Schedule of works to retained trees, e.g. access facilitation pruning  
 

Page 204



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To protect the site trees and ensure suitable landscaping. 
 
40. No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
 
Step (i) A written report has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses of the 
site and any adjacent sites for at least the last 100 years and a description 
of the current condition of the sites with regard to any activities that may 
have caused contamination. The report shall confirm whether or not it is 
likely that contamination may be present on the site and the potential 
impact of any adjacent sites. 
 
Step (ii) If the above report indicates that contamination may be present 
on, 
under or potentially affecting the proposed development site from 
adjacent land, or if evidence of contamination is found, a more detailed 
site investigation and risk assessment should be carried out in 
accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency's "Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11" and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Step (iii) If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates that 
remedial works are required, full details must be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter implemented 
prior to the commencement of the development or in accordance with a 
timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
as part of the approved remediation scheme. On completion 
of any required remedial works the applicant shall provide written 
confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that the works have been 
completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 
 
In the event of unexpected contamination being identified, all 
development on the site shall cease until such time as an investigation 
has been carried out and a written report submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority, any remedial works recommended in that 
report have been undertaken and written confirmation has been provided 
to the Local Planning Authority that such works have been carried out. 
Construction shall not recommence until the written agreement of the 
Local Planning Authority has been given following its receipt of 
verification that the approved remediation measures have been carried 
out. 
 

Page 205



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately 
prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
41. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of safe 
pedestrian and cycle routes, and details of secure covered cycle parking 
and changing and shower facilities in respect of the non-residential use 
classes has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such facilities shall be provided in accordance 
with the approved details prior to any part of the development being first 
occupied and maintained thereafter. 
 
REASON: In pursuit of sustainable transport objectives. 
 
42. No development shall commence on site until Travel Plans for the 
various land uses (residential, employment and education) permitted have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Travel Plan shall include details of implementation and 
monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these agreed 
details. The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together with any 
changes to the plan arising from those results. 
 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic to 
the 
development. 
 
43.Car parking provision for the site shall be in accordance with the 
required standards set out in the Wiltshire LTP3 Car Parking Strategy. 
Garages to be counted towards car parking provision shall have minimum 
internal dimensions of 3m x 6m. 
 
REASON In order to ensure an adequacy of site parking provision and to 
avoid. 
 
44. The noise levels in all parts of all private amenity space shall not 
exceed an SNL of 55dB  
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
  
 
 

71 16/01123/OUT - Land South of Western Way, Bowerhill, Melksham, 
Wiltshire, SN12 6TJ - Outline application for residential development of up 
to 235 dwellings, primary school with early years nursery, open space 
provision and vehicular access off Pathfinder Way.(Outline application to 
determine access - resubmission of 14/04846/OUT) 
 

Page 206



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The following person spoke against the proposal: 
Mr Mike Mills, representing Bowerhill Residents’ Action Group 
Mr Colin Chapman, representing residents of Elm Close and Birch Grove 
Mr Nick Westbrook, representing the Health & Wellbeing Steering Group 
Cllr Paul Carter, representing Melksham Without Parish Council 
 
The following person spoke in favour of the proposal: 
Ms Vanessa Clipstone, representing RPS Planning & Development 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer which set out the 
main issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that authority 
be delegated to the Head of Development Management to grant planning 
permission subject to the signing of a Section 106 legal agreement within six 
months of the date of this meeting and to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application.  
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Roy While who explained that he had 
called in the application due to the concerns of the Melksham Without Parish 
Council & the local residents and the impact of the development on Road A365. 
 
During discussion, Members questioned under the Heads of Terms of the 
Section 106 legal agreement if a figure had been agreed as a contribution from 
the developer for the expansion project at Melksham Oak Secondary School.  
Furthermore, they enquired as to whether land available for the proposed new 
primary school would sufficient for its eventual expansion into a two form entry 
school.  The Head of Development Management explained that much would 
depend on the number of houses which were eventually built, bearing in mind 
that this was an outline application. 
 
After further discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management to grant 
planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement covering the areas set out below in 
the Heads of Terms. In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the 
required section 106 agreement within the defined timeframe to then 
delegate authority to the Area Development Manager to refuse planning 
permission for the following reason:- 
 
The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing; waste; highway works ; 

Page 207



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

education provision and open space and is therefore contrary to the 
policies  of the Wiltshire Core Strategy adopted January 2015 and Paras 7, 
14 & 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework March 2012. 
 
Heads of Terms for Section 106 legal agreement to secure the following: 

 30% affordable housing; 

 Provision of 1.4 hectares of land for a 1FE primary school and 

nursery facility; 

 Conditional provision of a further 0.6 hectares of land for a 1FE 

expansion to the above; 

 Commuted sum, to be based on the number of dwellings (less any 

exemptions), the number of places required, and the relevant 

capital cost multiplier at the time of determination, towards 

construction of 1FE primary school; 

 Commuted sum, to be based on the number of dwellings (less any 

exemptions), the number of places required, and the relevant 

capital cost multiplier at the time of determination, towards 

expansion project at Melksham Oak Secondary School; 

 Commuted sum of £120,000 towards pedestrian and cycle 

improvements; 

 Payments for legal orders related to cycleways, and 2 traffic 

regulation orders regarding speed restrictions; 

 Off site highways works to include 5 toucan crossings, capacity 

improvements to north and south arms of The Spa roundabout, and 

provision of a footway linking Spa Road and Western Way; 

 Provision of at least 8624sqm of public open space of which 

415sqm to be equipped play to and the setting up of a management 

company to maintain the space or transfer to Melksham Without 

Parish Council; and 

 Commuted sum of £21,385 towards bin provision. 

 

 

 

Page 208



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Conditions 

1. 

The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 

expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 

reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. 

No development shall commence on site until details of the following 

matters (in respect of which approval is expressly reserved) have been 

submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority: 

 

(a) The scale of the development; 

(b) The layout of the development; 

(c) The external appearance of the development; 

(d) The landscaping of the site; 

(e) The means of access to the site. 

 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details. 

 

REASON: The application was made for outline planning permission and 

is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country 

Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

 

3. 

Page 209



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be 

made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

4. 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans:  

 

drwg: M.0347_03A - Site Location Plan received on 4 February 2016 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 

 

5. 

No more than 213 dwellings shall be erected on the site, unless the 0.6 

hectares of land allocated for a single form entry expansion to the hereby 

approved 1 form entry primary school and nursery facility is also 

developed for housing; in which case no more than 235 dwellings shall be 

erected on the site. 

 

REASON: To define the terms of the permission. 

 

6. 

There shall be no development of 3-storeys or greater. To the southern 

boundary on the eastern parcel of land adjoining existing housing, 

development shall be garden to garden. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and 

residential amenity. 

Page 210



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

7. 

There must be no new buildings, structures (including gates, walls, fences 

or other means of enclosure) or raised ground levels within 5 metres of 

the top of any bank (or edge of culvert) of the watercourse(s) fronting or 

crossing the site. 

 

REASON: To maintain an appropriate access to the watercourse for 

maintenance and/or possible future improvements. 

 

 

 

8. 

No development shall commence on site until a programme of phasing for 

the development (including off-site highway improvement works) in the 

context of an up to date masterplan has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: In order to define the terms of the permission. 

 

9. 

No development (above ground level) shall commence on each phase 

until the details of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 

(including samples) for that phase of the development has been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 

shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission. 

 

10. 

Page 211



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

No development shall commence on the residential phase(s) until a 

scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the application site (except the 

school) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, the details of which shall include 

* location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 

hedgerows on the land; 

* full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 

protection in the course of development; 

* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 

and planting sizes and planting densities;  

* finished levels and contours;  

* means of enclosure and boundary treatments; 

* car park layouts;  

* other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  

* all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

* minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);  

* proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 

(e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines etc indicating 

lines, manholes, supports etc);  

* arboricultural method statement; 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 

11. 

No development shall commence on the school and nursery phase(s) until 

a scheme of hard and soft landscaping for that phase of the development 

Page 212



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority, the details of which shall include 

* location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 

hedgerows on the land; 

* full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 

protection in the course of development; 

* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 

and planting sizes and planting densities;  

* finished levels and contours;  

* means of enclosure and boundary treatments; 

* car park layouts;  

* other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  

* all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

* minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);  

* proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 

(e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines etc indicating 

lines, manholes, supports etc);  

* arboricultural method statement; 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 

12. 

All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in accordance with a detailed phasing scheme. All 

shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 

shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants 

Page 213



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 

damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 

others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried 

out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 

part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed 

in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

 

 

 

13. 

No development shall commence until a foul water drainage strategy and 

scheme, including details of phasing, is submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submission shall include 

appropriate arrangements for the agreed points of connection and the 

capacity improvements (including any works which may lie in third party 

land) required to serve the proposed development. The development shall 

be carried out in accordance with the details to be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that proper provision is made for sewerage of the 

site and that the development does not increase the risk of sewer flooding 

to downstream property. 

 

14. 

No development shall commence until a storm water drainage strategy 

and scheme, including details of phasing, is submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submission shall include 

appropriate arrangements for the agreed points of connection and any 

Page 214



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

capacity improvements (including any offsite works) to the downstream 

system (including any works which may lie in third party land). The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the details to be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that proper provision is made for storm drainage of 

the site and that the development does not increase the risk of flooding to 

downstream property/catchment. 

 

15. 

No development shall commence on the residential and education 

developments respectively until schemes for water efficiency for each 

element have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The schemes shall be implemented in accordance 

with the agreed details. 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner and to prevent the increased risk of flooding, and 

ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system. 

 

16. 

The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 

performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 

Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 

and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 

certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 

 

Page 215



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 

or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 

Strategy are achieved. 

 

17. 

No development shall commence on the school and nursery phase(s) until 

evidence that that phase of the development is registered with a BREEAM 

certification body and a pre-assessment report (or design stage certificate 

with interim rating if available) has been submitted indicating that the 

development can achieve the “very good” BREEAM standard (or any such 

equivalent national measure of sustainable building which replaces that 

scheme). No phase of the development shall be occupied until a final 

Certificate has been issued certifying that the “very good” BREEAM 

standard (or any such equivalent national measure of sustainable building 

which replaces that scheme) has been achieved for that phase of the 

development. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development set 

out in policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are achieved. 

 

18. 

The construction of dwellings hereby permitted shall not commence on 

site until details of the storage of refuse, including details of location, 

size, means of enclosure and materials have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. A dwelling shall not 

be first occupied until the approved refuse storage for that dwelling has 

been completed and made available for use in accordance with the 

approved details and it shall be retained in accordance with the approved 

details thereafter. 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

Page 216



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner for the interests of public health and safety. 

 

19. 

No development shall commence within the area indicated (proposed 

development site) until:  

• A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 

include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 

and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 

Local Planning Authority; and  

• The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in 

accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 

interest. 

 

 

20. 

No development shall commence until a final noise mitigation strategy, 

including full scaled plans of any necessary features and any associated 

phasing plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be first brought into 

use or occupied until the relevant mitigation has been provided to serve 

each phase of the development. The approved mitigation shall be 

maintained in accordance with the approved details at all times thereafter. 

 

REASON: To ensure the creation of an environment free from intrusive 

levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area. 

 

21. 

Page 217



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans, showing the type 

of light appliance, the height direction and position of fitting, illumination 

levels and light spillage in accordance with the appropriate Environmental 

Zone standards set out by the Institute of Lighting Engineers in their 

publication "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 

2005)" have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The submission shall: 

 

a) Identify those areas/features on the whole site that are particularly 

sensitive for foraging/commuting bats; 

b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the 

provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical 

specifications, including a Lux plot) so that it can be clearly 

demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the 

above species using their territory or having access to their 

breeding sites and resting places; and 

c) Specify luminaires, heights and positions of fittings, direction and 

other features, e.g. cowls, louvres or baffles 

 

The approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 

accordance with the approved details and no additional external lighting 

shall be installed. 

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area, to minimise 

unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site and to 

protect wildlife interests. 

 

22. 

No development shall commence on each phase (including demolition, 

ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Method 

Statement (CMP) for that phase has been submitted to and approved in 

Page 218



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

writing by the local planning authority. The CMP shall include, but not 

necessarily be limited to, the following: 

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;  

c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  

d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;  

e) wheel washing facilities;  

f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction;  

g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works; 

h) measures for the protection of the natural environment including 

from pollution; and 

i) hours of construction, including deliveries. 

 

The approved Statement shall be complied with in full throughout the 

construction period. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 

than in accordance with the approved construction method statement. 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 

neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 

the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 

highway safety, during the construction phase. 

 

23. 

Page 219



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

No development shall commence on each phase (including demolition, 

ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan (CEMP) for that phase has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall 

include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following: 

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction 

activities; 

b) Identification of ‘biodiversity protection zones’ (where 

required); 

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive 

working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during 

construction (may be provided as a set of method statements), 

including detailed mitigation measures for badgers, breeding 

birds and reptiles (precautionary site clearance), and the 

protection of trees and hedgerows; 

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to 

biodiversity features (e.g. daylight working hours only starting 

one hour after sunrise and ceasing one hour before sunset);  

e) The times during construction when specialists ecologists 

need to be present on site to oversee works; 

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication; 

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk 

of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person(s); 

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning 

signs, including advanced installation and maintenance during 

the construction period; and 

i) Ongoing monitoring, including compliance checks by a 

competent person(s) during construction and immediately post-

completion of construction works. 

 

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the 

construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

Page 220



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

A report prepared by a professional ecologist or the Ecological Clerk of 

Works certifying that the required mitigation and/or compensation 

measures identified in the CEMP have been completed to their 

satisfaction, and detailing the results of site supervision and any 

necessary remedial works undertaken or required, shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority for approval within 3 months of the date of 

substantial completion of the development or at the end of the next 

available planting season, whichever is the sooner. Any approved 

remedial works shall subsequently be carried out under the strict 

supervision of a professional ecologist following that approval. 

 

REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and compensation 

for protected species, priority species and priority habitats. 

 

24. 

No development shall commence until a Landscape and Ecological 

Management Plan (LEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority. The content of the LEMP shall include, 

but not necessarily be limited to, the following information: 

a) Full specification of habitats to be created, including 

locally native species of local provenance and locally 

characteristic species -  this shall include a detailed 

specification for the attenuation features, ponds (permanent 

water features), hibernacula for amphibians, woodland 

planting, hedgerow reinforcement planting, bird boxes and 

bat boxes within dwellings and the new school, and the 

creation of a wildlife garden, forest school and/or orchard 

within the school grounds; 

b) Description and evaluation of features to be managed; 

including locations shown on a site map; 

c) Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site 

that might influence management; 

Page 221



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

d) Aims and objectives of management, including access for 

hedgehogs into gardens; 

e) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and 

objectives; 

f) Prescriptions for management actions; 

g) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work 

plan capable of being rolled forward over a 5-10 year period); 

h) Details of the body or organisation responsible for 

implementation of the plan; 

i) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; 

j) Timeframe for reviewing the plan; and 

k) Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be 

communicated to the occupiers of the development. 

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding 

mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be 

secured by the developer with the management body/bodies responsible 

for its delivery.  

The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that 

the conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how 

contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and 

implemented.  

The LEMP shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved 

details. 

 

REASON: To ensure the long-term management of protected and priority 

habitats and other landscape and ecological features, and to maintain and 

enhance these habitats and features in perpetuity. 

 

25. 

No residential unit shall be occupied until those parts of the Residential 

Travel Plan (by Peter Evans Partnership and dated January 2016) capable 

of being implemented prior to occupation have been implemented. Those 

Page 222



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

parts identified for implementation after occupation shall be implemented 

in accordance with the timetable contained therein, and shall continue to 

be implemented as long as any part of the development is occupied. The 

Residential Travel Plan Co-ordinator shall be appointed and carry out the 

identified duties to implement the Residential Travel Plan for a period of at 

least 2 years following occupation of the last residential unit. 

 

REASON: In the interests of reducing the amount of private car 

movements to and from the development. 

 

26. 

The primary school shall not be brought into use until a School Travel 

Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The School Travel Plan shall include details of implementation 

and monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these 

agreed details. The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be 

made available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together with 

any changes to the plan arising from these results. 

 

REASON: In the interests of road safety and in the interests of reducing 

the amount of private car movements to and from the development. 

 

27. 

Prior to occupation of the 20th dwelling two bus stops including shelters, 

perch seating and high access kerbs shall have been provided on 

Pathfinder Way in accordance with details to be first submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from 

the development. 

 

28. 

Page 223



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Prior to first occupation a pedestrian refuge shall have been provided on 

Pathfinder Way in association with the required toucan crossing of 

Pathfinder Way, in accordance with details to be first submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from 

the development and highway safety. 

 

29. 

Prior to first occupation a 2 metre wide footway shall have been provided 

along the western side of Pathfinder Way over the entire frontage of the 

site. 

 

REASON: In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from 

the development and providing safe and convenient pedestrian access to 

the development. 

 

30. 

Prior to first occupation a lowered kerb informal pedestrian crossing of 

Pathfinder Way, including tactile paving shall have been provided at the 

A365 / Pathfinder Way roundabout splitter island, in accordance with 

details to be first submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

REASON: In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel to and from 

the development and providing safe and convenient pedestrian access to 

the development. 

 

31. 

Prior to any development on the western side of Pathfinder Way part of 

the development, the existing field gate access to A365 Western Way shall 

Page 224



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

have been properly and permanently closed to vehicles with the existing 

lowered kerbs replaced by high kerbs, and the grass verge reinstated. 

 

REASON: In the interests of preventing inappropriate points of access to 

the development. 

 

32. 

Notwithstanding the details submitted, no development shall commence 

on each phase of the site until details of the estate roads, footways, 

footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining 

walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, 

embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive 

gradients, car parking and street furniture, including the timetable for 

provision of such works, have been submitted to and approved by the 

Local Planning Authority. No part of development shall be first occupied 

until the estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street 

lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water 

outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 

accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and street 

furniture that serve that part of the development have all been constructed 

and laid out in accordance with the approved details, unless an alternative 

programming arrangement is agreed in the approved details.  

 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

33. 

The roads, including footpaths and turning spaces, shall be constructed 

so as to ensure that, before it is occupied, each dwelling has been 

provided with a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and 

carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and 

existing highway.  

 

Page 225



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

34. 

No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until a public art scheme 

for the site and a timetable for installation has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 

shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 

matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 

development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

an acceptable manner, to ensure the proposal complies with the relevant 

public art policies. 

 

INFORMATIVE: This permission shall be read in conjunction with an 

Agreement made under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act, 1990. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that the development hereby 

approved may represent chargeable development under the Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 

Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to be 

liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount 

of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already 

been submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL 

liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which 

case, please submit the relevant form so that we can determine your 

eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability 

must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of 

development.  Should development commence prior to the CIL Liability 

Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or 

Page 226



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with 

immediate effect. Should you require further information or to download 

the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website 

www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit

yinfrastructurelevy 

 

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that the reserved matters 

application should include low-rise development to reflect the adjacent 

development to the south east, and be sympathetic to the heritage and 

fringe of urban context. 

 

INFORMATIVE: Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to 

receive material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and 

inform the Planning Officer where they are to be found. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised, in accordance with the Dorset 

and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service advise to consider the use of 

sprinkler protection in all domestic properties and in particular any public 

buildings such as the hereby approved school and nursery facilities. 

Furthermore consideration should be given to the National Guidance 

Document on the Provision of Water for Fire Fighting and the specific 

advice of the Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service on the location 

of fire hydrants. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that under the terms of the Water 

Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws the prior written 

consent (Flood Defence Consent) of the Environment Agency and/or the 

Lead Local Flood Authority may be required for any proposed works 

(permanent or temporary) or structures in, under, over or within 8 metres 

of the top of the bank of the Bowerhill Watercourse, designated a ‘main’ 

river. The EA advise that a minimum 5 metre clear strip be provided to 

allow the riparian owner(s) responsible for the maintenance of the 

Page 227

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

watercourse appropriate access to carry out routine maintenance and/or 

possible future improvement works. The need for any consent is over and 

above the need for planning consent. The applicant is advised to contact 

the Environment Agency on 01258 483421 for further information. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that safeguards should be 

implemented during the construction phase to minimise the risks of 

pollution from the development. Such safeguards should cover:  

- the use of plant and machinery 

- oils/chemicals and materials 

- the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles 

- the location and form of work and storage areas and compounds 

- the control and removal of spoil and wastes. 

The applicant should refer to the Environment Agency's Pollution 

Prevention Guidelines at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-

guidance-ppg 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that the council will only operate 

its refuse and recycling services on private land where an indemnity is 

signed by the landowner. The council will also require an indemnity to 

operate on any roads prior to their adoption. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that any archaeological work 

required by condition should be conducted by a professional 

archaeological contractor and there will be a financial implication for the 

applicant. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that under the terms of the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to 

disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their 

Page 228

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-guidance-ppg
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/pollution-prevention-guidance-ppg


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

habitat or resting place.  Please note that this consent does not override 

the statutory protection afforded to any such species.  In the event that 

your proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 

seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and 

consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing 

works.  Please visit the following websites for more information:  

 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityand

development.htm 

 https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-

planning-proposals 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that the Protection of Badgers 

Act 1992 protects badgers from cruel ill-treatment, including damage or 

destruction of their setts, or disturbance whilst a sett is in occupation. 

This Act makes it illegal to carry out work that may disturb badgers 

without a Natural England licence. Particular care should be taken when 

clearing ground prior to development, and if evidence of badger activity is 

found, (such as foraging routes, snuffle holes, latrines or established 

setts), then work must stop immediately while a professional ecologist is 

contacted for advice. Applicants are advised to pay particular attention to 

foundation ditches, which can be hazardous to badgers. Sloping boards 

or steps should be provided to allow badgers to escape from such ditches 

should they become trapped. Failure to consider this matter, leading to 

the death of individuals, may leave the developer liable for prosecution. 

Further information about badgers and licensing can be found at 

https://www.gov.uk/badgers-protection-surveys-and-licences 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that the Great crested newt is 

protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

2010 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the 

United Kingdom, and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 

Please be advised that, if great crested newts are discovered, all works 

Page 229

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddevelopment.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddevelopment.htm
https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/badgers-protection-surveys-and-licences


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

should stop immediately and a professional ecologist should be 

contacted for advice on any special precautions before continuing, as a 

derogation licence may be required from Natural England. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that all reptiles are legally 

protected under Schedule 5 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as 

amended) and planning permission does not provide a defence against 

prosecution. 

 

INFORMATIVE: The developer is advised that under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981, as amended (Section 1), it is an offence to remove, 
damage or to destroy a nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or 
being built. Planning permission for a development does not provide a 
defence against prosecution under this Act. Trees, scrub and other 
vegetation, such as dense ivy, are likely to contain nesting birds between 
1st March and 31st August. Hedgerows, trees and woodland are present 
on the application site and should be assumed to contain nesting birds 
between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been undertaken by 
a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during 
this period and has shown it is absolutely certerms, within six months of 
the date of this meeting: 
 
 

72 Urgent Items 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business.   
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  7.00  - 9.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 230



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 14 DECEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis (Chairman), Cllr Tony Trotman (Vice Chairman), Cllr Glenis Ansell, 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Terry Chivers, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Charles Howard, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Fred Westmoreland and 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Chris Caswill and Cllr Toby Sturgis 
 
  

 
73 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Bridget Wayman who was 
substituted by Cllr Paul Oatway QPM. 
 

74 Minutes of the Previous Meetings 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 14 

September 2016 as a correct record, subject to the following 
amendment: 

 
Minute No. 65 – 15/12351/OUT – Land at Rawlings Farm, Cocklebury 
Lane, Chippenham, SN15 3LR 
 
The second person to speak against the proposal be amended to 
read: 
 
“Dr Nick Murry, a local resident and Monkton Park Residents’ Group 
representative.” 
 
 

(2) To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
September 2016 as a correct record 

Page 231

Agenda Item 19



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
   

 
75 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.  
 

76 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

77 Public Participation 
 
Questions were asked by Mr Kim Stuckey and Cllr Chris Caswill to which 
written answers were provided as appended to these minutes. 
 

78 15/12351/OUT - Land at Rawlings Farm, Cocklebury Lane, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN15 3LR 
 
The following people spoke against the proposal 
 
Mr Kim Stuckey, a local resident 
Mr Paul MacLaurin, WAVIN Operations Director for Europe 
Mr Craig Howell Williams QC on behalf of Mr Fionn Pilbrow, a local resident 
Cllr David Mannering, representing Langley Burrell Parish Council 
Cllr Ian Janes, representing Bremhill Parish Council  
 
The following person spoke in favour of the application 
 
Mr Peter Frampton, the agent  
 
The Head of Development Management reported that at its meeting held on 14 
September 2016, this Committee resolved to delegate authority to him to grant 
planning permission, subject to conditions and completion of a Section 106 
legal agreement. The legal agreement was progressing, but had not yet been 
completed and the permission had therefore not yet been granted. In these 
circumstances, the Council had a duty to consider any changes to the planning 
considerations that might arise between a decision being made and a granting 
of permission where these may be material to the decision.   
 
Regarding this application, since the decision as referred to above was agreed 
by this Committee, the Council had been consulting on proposed further 
modifications to the draft Chippenham Site Allocations Plan (CSAP) following 
receipt of the Inspector’s letter dated 12 October 2016, which he issued upon 
the conclusion of the Plan’s examination between 27 September and 4 October 
2016.  The consultation period on the proposed modifications concluded on 12 
December 2016 but representations received had not yet been analysed.      
 

Page 232



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Furthermore, in November 2016 the Council had published its 2016 Housing 
Land Supply Statement as required by the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). In accordance 
with the NPPF, the Council was required to apply the appropriate buffer to its 5 
year housing supply (either 5% or 20%).  The Council considered that it 
required a 5% buffer, this equating to needing to show a 5.25 year supply of 
land to meet 5 year’s worth of requirement. At the time this Committee 
considered the application in September there was a 4.76 year’s supply.  
Though the Council’s position had improved it still could not currently 
demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply.        
 
The application was therefore being referred back to this Committee so as to 
update Members in the light of these changing circumstances. 
 
Additionally, it was reported that the Secretary of State had issued an Article 31 
Holding Notice the previous day in response to a representation received from a 
member of the public earlier on Tuesday 12 December 2016 the same day.  
This Holding Notice stated that the Council could not grant planning permission. 
A planning decision could not be made and issued until the Secretary of State 
had decided whether or not to call in the application for a decision by himself.  
However, this did not prevent the Committee from considering the application 
and forming a view on its merits, giving further consideration to the matters 
referred to above including delegating a grant of approval to the Head of 
Development Management, in accordance with the recommendation and 
making a decision, subject to the Secretary of State’s decision on a call in of the 
application.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the proposal. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Chris Caswill, the local Member, in which 
he set out his objections to the proposal.  In particular, he referred to:- 
 

 The issue of housing supply and considered that an additional 50 houses 
above that proposed in the CSAP allocation would be an 
overdevelopment.  

 The impact of the proposed development on Cocklebury Lane and Station 
Road had not been sufficiently considered. 

 A separate application for a new bridge over the railway line at Rawlings 
Green had not been received and might not be approved.   
 

He considered that this application was being brought back to the Committee 
prematurely and that the matter should be deferred pending receipt of the 
Planning Inspector’s report on the Examination in Public on the CSAP and 
further information regarding the points he had raised. 
 

Page 233



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

During the subsequent discussion, some Members considered that this 
application was being referred back to the Committee for further consideration 
prematurely and that in particular the report of the Planning Inspector on the 
Examination in Public of the CSAP and also the analysis by him of the 
representations received following consultation on the proposed modifications 
to the CSAP should be available before the Committee was asked to make any 
further decision on the application.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To defer further consideration of the application pending the receipt of 
outstanding information regarding in particular:- 
 

 A decision from the Secretary of State as to whether or not he 
wished to call in the application for a decision to be made by 
himself. 

 

 An analysis of the representations received following the public 
consultation on the proposed modifications to the CSAP. 
 

 The Planning Inspector’s report on the Examination in Public 
following the Public Inquiry on the CSAP, including his comments 
on the representations received following the public consultation 
on the proposed modifications to the CSAP published in October 
2016. 
 

(Cllr Fred Westmoreland requested that his vote against the Motion be 
recorded.) 
 

79 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee was due to be 
held on Wednesday 18 January 2017, starting at 10.30am in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge. 
 

80 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.05 pm) 

 
 
 

Page 234



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 235



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 236



Wiltshire Council         Appendix 1 
 
Strategic Planning Committee 
 
14 December 2016  

 
 

Public Participation 
 
 

Question from Kim Stuckey 

Question:  

Can Wiltshire Council confirm that it is Council Policy that planning benefits stated by 

developers in their applications carry greater planning weight than draft Wiltshire Site 

Allocation Plans? Background: I have read that a Council Officer states that a planning 

application can outweigh a draft Site Allocation Plan that “cannot be afforded full weight in 

the planning balance as the examination of the document has not yet concluded”. This is 

apparently even true of modifications within draft Site Allocation Plans made by Wiltshire 

Council’s own Associate Director Economic Development and Planning, and modifications 

suggested by a Planning Inspector.  

Answer: 

There is no Council Policy.  The Council follows national policy contained in the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and determines planning applications in accordance 

with statutory requirements.  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 states that planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Paragraph 216 of the 

 NPPF states that: 

 “From the day of publication, decision-takers may also give weight to relevant policies in 

emerging plans according to: 

 the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, 
the greater the weight that may be given); 

 the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 

 the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).” 

 

In accordance with NPPF, an emerging plan is a material consideration in planning 

decisions, as are the benefits of a scheme.  They are just two elements of the planning 

balance to be weighed by the Council. 

 

 

Page 7Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 238



Wiltshire Council         Appendix 2 
 
Strategic Planning Committee 
 
14 December 2016  

 
 

Public Participation 
 
 

Questions from Cllr Chris Caswill 

Questions: 

1. Planning application recommendations can be apparently be varied if there are 'material 

changes' in the situation prior to a final Decision Notice. Please provide the definition of a 

'material change' and references to the main  literature supporting that definition.  

2. Is the decision as to whether a change is 'material' for the Planning Case Officer to 

make, or is it for the Committee to decide in cases where an application has come to 

committee?  

3. What is happens if a planning application is approved, and a Decision Notice issued, 

and then it transpires that a crucial element of the approved infrastructure cannot be 

delivered (a) if the committee had reasonable grounds to know that it would or could not 

be? and (b) if they did not?  

 

Answers: 

1) To be material, it must be a factor which has some weight in the decision making 
process, although plainly it may not be determinative. For example, the Council’s 
adoption of the Wiltshire Core Strategy in January 2015 was held to be a material 
consideration in determination of planning appeal decisions, but the fact that it 
confirmed that a five year land supply then existed did not lead to two appeal 
decisions being overturned where an Inspector had not been informed of the 
adoption by his officials in the Planning Inspectorate and allowed two appeals on 
the assumption that there was no demonstrable five year land supply. 
 

2) Officers  advise whether a consideration is material. If it is, it is for the decision 
maker to decide what weight (if any) should be attached to it, having regard to 
matters including planning law and Government advice in the NPPF and Planning 
Practice Guidance; 
 

3) The Council has to make its decision on the basis of the evidence before it. 
Planning conditions and obligations can help secure the delivery of necessary 
infrastructure and prevent development from taking place beyond what existing 
infrastructure can handle until any additional requirements are provided for.  

 

 

Page 9Page 239



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 240



NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 5 OCTOBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM.

Present:

Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) and Cllr Chris Hurst 

Also  Present:

Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE

124 Apologies

Apologies were received from Cllr Howard Marshall who was substituted by Cllr 
Jacqui Lay. 

125 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the previous meeting were presented and the Chairman advised 
that Cllr Hill had subsequently sent his apologies for that meeting. 

Resolved:

To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 14 September 2016.

To note the apology for absence from Cllr Alan Hill. 

126 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 241

Agenda Item 20



127 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman’s announcements.

128 Public Participation

The Committee noted the rules on public participation.

129 Planning Appeals and Updates

The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update.

130 Planning Applications

The Committee considered planning applications as detailed below. 

131 16/02433/FUL & 16/02612/LBC - The Old Stables, Grittleton House, 
Grittleton, Wiltshire, SN14 6AJ

David Pearce spoke in support of the applications.

Cllr Lesley Palmer, Grittleton Parish Council, spoke in support of the 
applications.

The planning officer introduced the applications which were for full planning 
permission and listed building consent to allow the conversation of stables to 
form dormitories for Grittleton House School. The application had been deferred 
from a previous meeting to allow members to undertake a site visit; the site visit 
had taken place on 20 September 2016 and was attended by six members of 
the Committee. The officer recommended that both applications be refused for 
the reasons outlined in the report, the officer had significant concerns in respect 
of the impact of permission on the character and setting of listed buildings. 
Photographs of the site were shown, along with the proposed elevations and 
plans for the conversion. 

In response to technical questions, it was confirmed that in the event of 
permission being granted a condition could be in place to seek details of 
insulation. Officers considered that a full business case and heritage impact 

Page 242



assessment to demonstrate and justify the need for conversion had not been 
submitted and advised the Committee that such a business case was material 
in balancing the benefits of the application with the risk of harm. 

Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above.

The local member, Baroness Scott, spoke in support of the application, 
preferring that the site be used for business enterprise by the school rather than 
for residential use.

In the debate that followed, members acknowledged the absence of a full 
business plan, however considered that the proposals would support the school 
to be economically viable and make a significant contribution to the local 
economy. The Committee considered that it would be impractical for dormitories 
to be within the school house and that the proposal would be the best option to 
maintain the stables by ensuring they had a use. The Committee agreed that, 
on balance, the benefits of the conversion outweighed the harm caused, due to 
the advantage it would bring to the business, educational benefit and social 
benefit of bringing the stables back into use. The Committee felt that other 
means to create dormitories would be more damaging that the current proposal.

Members were conscious that planning permission and listed building consent 
should be strictly conditioned to protect the listed buildings. Cllr Sturgis, 
seconded by Cllr Greenman, moved a recommendation for planning 
permission, and listed building consent and delegated to officers to impose 
conditions, requesting that conditions included WL1 and WC1.  The reasons 
given for moving approval of permissions were that the Committee considered 
that the public benefits arising from the proposed development and works were 
significant and sufficiently so to outweigh the less than substantial harm to the 
listed building, adjacent listed buildings and conservation area that had been 
identified. The public benefits included the significant contribution to the local 
economy of the enhanced business operations at the site and the development 
proposed; alongside the enhanced educational opportunities that would arise 
from these business operations and activities. On the basis of the site 
inspection undertaken on 20/9/2016 and the information and statements 
provided to date by the applicant the committee considered that there were no 
other reasonably feasible options for securing the proposed development at this 
site or locality without the identified harm arising.

Resolved:

To grant planning permission and listed building consent and to delegate 
to officers to determine a comprehensive and appropriate list of 
conditions for both applications including:

WC1 (on planning permission)

Page 243



“No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:-

 finished levels and contours; 
 means of enclosure; 
 all hard and soft surfacing materials; and
 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc)

The development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved 
details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped 
setting for the development and the protection of existing important 
landscape features.”

And WL1 (on LBC):

“Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence until 
details of the following have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority:

(i) Large scale details of all external joinery including metal-framed 
glazing (1:5 elevation, 1:2 section) including vertical and horizontal cross-
sections through openings to show the positions of joinery within 
openings, depth of reveal,  heads, sills and lintels;
(ii) Large scale details of all internal joinery (1:5 elevation, 1:2 section);
(iii) Full details of proposed rooflights, which shall be set in plane with 
the roof covering:
(iv) Full details of external flues, background and mechanical 
ventilation, soil/vent pipes and their exits to the open air;
(v) Full details of proposed meter and alarm boxes;
(vi) Large scale details of proposed eaves and verges (1:5 section);
(vii) Full details of proposed internal service routes;
(viii) A full schedule and specification of repairs including:
(ix) a structural engineer's report setting out the nature of, and 
suggested remedial work to, structural defects 
(x) proposed timber and damp proof treatment 
(xi) proposed method of cleaning/paint removal from historic fabric 
(xii) a full schedule of internal finishes to walls, ceilings and floors 
(xiii) Full details of external decoration to render, joinery and metalwork; 
and

Page 244



(xiv) Full details and samples of external materials.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting listed building consent and 
the matters are required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before works commence in order that the scheme is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 
appearance of the listed building and its setting.”

132 16/06233/FUL Land at Orchard Cottage, Upper Minety, Malmesbury, SN16 
9PY

Andrew Pywell spoke in support of the application. 

Cllr Charles Cooke, Minety Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application.

The planning officer introduced the application which was for the erection of a 
new 4 bed detached dwelling. The officer’s report recommended that planning 
permission be granted, subject to the conditions and informatives in the report, 
as amended by the late observations. Attention was drawn to the late 
observations which recommended the removal of condition 3 and amendment 
to condition 12. Photographs of the existing cottage and proposed elevations of 
the new dwelling were shown. The planning officer described that the proposal 
was considered to be infill development.

In response to technical questions, it was confirmed that the site was outside a 
previous settlement boundary however this boundary had not been retained as 
part of the Core Strategy and therefore was not a planning consideration. The 
planning officer stated that this application was considered to be within the built 
form of the village. Members were advised that a limited scope construction 
method statement could be conditioned to address members concerns about 
parking and traffic during construction. 

Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above.

The local member, Cllr Chuck Berry, spoke against the application on the 
grounds that it was unsuitable for the location and unsustainable. The councillor 
also considered the previous settlement boundary to be relevant to the 
application.

Page 245



In the debate that followed, members discussed whether the application could 
be considered as an infill development and whether housing was needed in the 
area. Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Greenman proposed the officer 
recommendation, as amended by the late observations, and with the addition of 
a condition requiring a construction method statement to address parking and 
traffic concerns. 

Resolved:

To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought 
into use until the access, turning area and parking spaces have 
been completed in accordance with the details shown on the 
approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes 
at all times thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

3. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area.

4. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

5. The development shall not be first occupied until foul water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.

Page 246



REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

6. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water 
from the access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage 
details together with permeability test results to BRE365 not to 
make adjacent surface water flood risk any greater and prevention 
of the identified surface water flood risk in road entering the site, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

7. The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or 
without modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A-E 
shall take place on the dwellinghouses hereby permitted or within 
their curtilage.

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements.

9. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been 
issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved.

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.

10.The development shall be carried out as specified in the approved 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment prepared by S J Stephens 
Associates dated 24th June 2016 and shall be supervised by an 
arboricultural consultant.

REASON: To prevent trees on site from being damaged during 
construction works.

Page 247



11.The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans and documentation:
6060/01 Rev A Proposed Elevations
Site and Location Plan
Design and Access Statement
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Received on 27/06/2016

6060/02 Visibility Splay Lines
Received on 28/09/2016

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

12.WM4 CONSTRUCTION METHOD STATEMENT
No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following:

a)  the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
b)  loading and unloading of plant and materials;
c)  storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development;

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The   approved   Statement   shall be   complied   
with   in   full  throughout   the construction period. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance 
with the approved construction method statement.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to 
minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the 
amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural 
environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway 
safety, during the construction phase.

13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 
plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work.

Page 248



14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question.

15.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 
that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996.

16.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found.

17. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is advised that the 
development hereby approved may represent chargeable 
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. 
If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment 
due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been 
submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL 
liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in 
which case, please submit the relevant form so that we can 
determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and 
Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council 
prior to commencement of development. Should development 
commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local 
planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 
Should you require further information or to download the CIL 
forms please refer to the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/com
munityinfrastructurelevy. 

Page 249

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


133 16/06542/FUL- 40 The Street, Hullavington, SN14 6DU

Tony Philips spoke in support of the application

Ian Rae spoke in objection to the application

Cllr Margaret Bawden, Hullavington Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application.

The planning officer introduced the application which was for the creation of a 
new vehicular access onto a classified road at 40 The Street, Hullavington, to 
allow access to the site of residential property with paddocks which benefitted 
from an extant permission for the erection of stables. The offer recommended 
that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and informatives 
in the report and drew attention to the late observations. Photos of the site and 
plans for access arrangements were shown. It was explained that highways 
officers had originally raised concerns with the proposed access however had 
withdrawn their objections since additional information including adequate 
visibility splays had been submitted.

In response to technical questions it was noted that the planning permission did 
not include the removal of an existing boundary wall to the north of the site. The 
planning officer advised that the highways officer was satisfied that the wall 
height had been reduced to a level that would not obscure views for drivers 
using the entrance and main road. It was explained that suggested planning 
conditions would limit the height of the wall to a safe height.

Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above.

The local member, Baroness Scott, spoke in objection to the application, 
considering the existing access to be safer and questioning why a new access 
was required. The local member considered the access would be a highways 
safety risk to the busy road. 

In the debate that followed, members noted the judgement of the highways 
officer however considered that on balance the highways impact of the proposal 
was dangerous and therefore ‘severe’. Members of the Committee commented 
that they were familiar with the site and were concerned that the proposed 
access would be at the narrowest part of The Street, meaning that vehicles with 
trailers or horseboxes would have to use the other side of the road to turn 
slowly into the entrance. The Committee also agreed that a second access road 
into the site was unnecessary and considered the location of the existing 
access to be much safer. Councillors were mindful that it would be common for 
horseboxes to enter and exit the stables and they would only be able to do so 
slowly and so may cause a hazard blocking the road for on-coming traffic. 
Members also commented that the visibility splays demonstrated an 
improvement to visibility when exiting the site, however would not improve 

Page 250



visibility for vehicles approaching the site, on the highway, from around the 
nearby corner. 

The Committee was reminded that that the planning officer had deemed the 
proposal to be acceptable and would have considered access by horseboxes, 
however felt the highways safety risks to be so severe that the application 
should be refused. The Chairman noted that the local member, and committee 
member who lived in the village knew the site well and considered the 
proposals to pose a severe risk to highways safety. 

The meeting was adjourned for 2 minutes. On listening to the debate, officers 
suggested to the Committee that it had concluded that it wished to refuse 
permission for the following reason:

The proposed development would, by reason of an intensification of vehicles 
entering and exiting the site and inadequate visibility splays, result in highways 
hazard with the potential for severe harm to highway safety arising from 
conflicting vehicular movements and the volume and nature of vehicular 
movements at the proposed access Therefore, the proposed development is 
considered contrary to Core Policy 61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and 
Paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Cllr Sturgis requested that the refusal reason be amended to reflect the 
inadequate interrelationship between the existing and proposed accesses also. 

Cllr Sturgis, seconded by Cllr Greenman moved that the application be refused 
for the reason set out below.

Resolved:

To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason:

The proposed development would, by reason of an intensification of 
vehicles entering and exiting the site, inadequate visibility splays and the 
proximity of the existing and proposed accesses, result in highways 
hazard with the potential for severe harm to highway safety arising from 
conflicting vehicular movements and the volume and nature of vehicular 
movements at the proposed access. Therefore, the proposed 
development is considered contrary to Core Policy 61 of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy and Paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

And:

To note advice from officers that given the identified reason for refusal, 
the contents of the committee report and response of highways officers, 
Council Officers would not be in a position to represent the Council in the 

Page 251



event of an appeal. Therefore, members note that it would be necessary 
for officers to seek to appoint a suitably qualified consultant.

134 16/04961/OUT Land at Arms Farm, High St, Chippenham, Sutton Benger, 
SN15 4RE

Ian Pople spoke in support of the application.

Eileen Warren and David Ratcliffe spoke in objection to the application

Cllr Norman Davis, Sutton Benger Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application.

The planning officer introduced the application which was for the construction of 
up to 14 dwellings; the application sought only outline planning permission, with 
all matters reserved. The officer recommended that planning permission be 
granted, subject to the signing of a section 106 agreement and conditions and 
informatives outlined in the report. Attention was drawn to the late observations. 
It was noted that residents had requested the application be deferred; however 
officer advised sufficient detail had been submitted to proceed to determination. 
The Committee was reminded the application had been reduced from previous 
proposals for 28 dwellings on the site. An indicative layout of the site in respect 
of access arrangement and location of dwellings was presented, however 
members were reminded they were not asked to consider such matters at this 
stage, these issues would be addressed at reserved matters stage in the event 
of outline planning permission being granted. 

Photographs of the site were shown and details of nearby extant planning 
permission were given. The officer acknowledged that there would be some 
harm to the setting of the listed building at Arms Farm as a result of the 
development, however considered this would be outweighed by the benefits of 
the scheme. 

In response to technical questions the officer advised that the parish council 
had not been asked to form a judgement on the access arrangements on site, 
this was not part of the application for outline permission. It was noted that the 
Conservation Officer’s response to the proposal had been published and the 
parish council was entitled to form a separate view on the impact of the 
development on the listed building, independent of the comments of the 
conservation officer. It was confirmed that the listed farm building would still 
have an outlook into an open field as a result of the development and that if 
access was taken from the B4069, as shown on the indicative layout, there 
would be some harm to the setting of the listed building. It was suggested that 
cart/bump stones be installed at frequent intervals along the rear of the byres in 
order to protect the structure if the track was created.  On balance, the planning 

Page 252



officer considered the harm that would result from a new track, and the 
alterations associated with it, would be less than the harm that would occur if 
the access route were to be through the middle of the farmyard. It was 
explained that the harm would be outweighed by the public benefits of the 
scheme.

Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above.

In response to statements from the public, the planning officer verified that 
proposed planning conditions would cover archaeological matters. It was 
acknowledged that there may be a need to remove a small part of the listed 
building as a result of the development, however the conservation officer had 
identified that this was a modern addition and deemed that on balance, this was 
not significant and therefore acceptable. 

The local member, Cllr Greenman, spoke on the application and noted it was a 
more modest proposal than previous applications which had appeared before 
the Committee. 

In the debate that followed, members were disappointed that a full planning 
application had not been submitted and it was commented that, at a reserved 
matters stage, they would prefer to see alternative access arrangements to 
those proposed on the indicative layout, preferably through the adjourning 
estate. Councillors sympathised with the concerns of the village however were 
not opposed to the principle of development on the site given material 
considerations as set out in the report.

Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Trotman, moved the officer recommendation. 

Resolved:

That authority is delegated to the Head of Development Management to 
GRANT planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and 
completion of a S106 legal agreement within six months of the date of the 
resolution of this Committee.

In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Head of Development Management to REFUSE planning permission for 
the following reason:-

The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary and 
required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed residential 
development including Affordable Housing, Waste and Education and is 
therefore contrary to Policies CP3 & CP43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
Adopted January 2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework March 2012.

Page 253



Planning conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before 
the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of 
the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. No development shall commence on site until details of the 
following matters (in respect of which approval is expressly 
reserved) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority:

(a) The scale of the development;
(b) The layout of the development;
(c) The external appearance of the development;
(d) The landscaping of the site;
(e) The means of access to the site.The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application was made for outline planning permission and 
is granted to comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

3. An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall 
be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be  carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 

Page 254



development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

5. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on 
to site for the purpose of development, until a Tree Protection Plan 
showing the exact position of each tree/s and their protective 
fencing in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012: "Trees in 
Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction -
Recommendations"; has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, and; The protective fencing shall 
be erected in accordance with the approved details. The protective 
fencing shall remain in place for the entire development phase and 
until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been 
removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be removed or 
breached during construction operations. No retained tree/s shall 
be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be 
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans 
and particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be carried 
out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - 
Recommendations" or arboricultural techniques where it can be 
demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. If 
any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another 
tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and 
planted at such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the 
furthest extent of the canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or 
adjoining land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other 
chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of 
any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining 
land. [In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which 
is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the 
expiration of five years

REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not result in the 
unnecessary loss of trees and existing screening, and for the avoidance 
of doubt.

6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until 
the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed 
in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The 
areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

Page 255



7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water 
from the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage 
details, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until 
surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved scheme.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained.

8. No development shall commence on site until details of the works 
for the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to 
the existing public sewer have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first 
occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment.

9. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been 
issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved.

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.

10.The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: EDP 2335/46

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

Page 256



11.No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following:

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;
e) wheel washing facilities;
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works; and
h) measures for the protection of the natural environment.
i) hours of construction, including deliveries;

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 
the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase.

12. No development shall commence until:
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include onsite work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and 
archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority; and
b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and/or 
[DELETE as appropriate] the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to enable the 
recording of any matters of archaeological interest.

13.No development shall commence on site (other than that required 
to be carried out as part of a scheme of remediation approved by 

Page 257



the Local Planning Authority under this condition), until steps (i) to 
(iii) below have been fully complied with. If unexpected 
contamination is found after development has begun, development 
must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected 
contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until step (iv) has been complied with in full in 
relation to that contamination.

Step (i) Site Characterisation:
An investigation and risk assessment must be completed to assess 
the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or 
not it originates on the site. The investigation and risk assessment 
must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of 
the findings submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:
- A survey of the extent, nature and scale of contamination on site;
- The collection and interpretation of relevant information to form a 
conceptual model of the site, and a preliminary risk assessment of 
all the likely pollutant linkages;
- If the preliminary risk assessment identifies any potentially 
significant pollutant linkages a ground investigation shall be carried 
out, to provide further information on the location, type and 
concentration of contaminants in the soil and groundwater and 
other characteristics that can influence the behaviour of the 
contaminants;
- An assessment of the potential risks to:
• human health,
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, 
livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
• adjoining land,
• groundwater and surface waters,
• ecological systems,
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.

Step (ii) Submission of Remediation Scheme:
If any unacceptable risks are identified as a result of the 
investigation and assessment referred to in step (i) above, a 
detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to condition suitable 
for the intended use must be prepared. This should detail the works 
required to remove any unacceptable risks to human health, 
buildings and other property and the natural and historical 
environment, should be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be 

Page 258



undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation 
criteria, a timetable of works and site management procedures.

Step (iii) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme: 
The approved remediation scheme under step (ii) must be carried 
out in accordance with its requirements. The Local Planning 
Authority must be given at least two weeks written notification of 
commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Step (iv) Reporting of Unexpected Contamination:
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 
out the approved development that was not previously identified it 
should be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment should be 
undertaken in accordance with the requirements of step (i) above 
and where remediation is necessary, a remediation scheme should 
be prepared in accordance with the requirements of step (ii) and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Step (v) Verification of remedial works:
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report should be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority. The report should demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the remedial works. A statement should also be 
provided by the developer which is signed by a person who is 
competent to confirm that the works detailed in the approved 
scheme have been carried out (The Local Planning Authority can 
provide a draft Remediation Certificate when the details of the 
remediation scheme have been approved at stage (ii) above).

The verification report and signed statement should be submitted to 
and approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Step (vi) Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance:
If a monitoring and maintenance scheme is required as part of the 
approved remediation scheme, reports must be prepared and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval at the 
relevant stages in the development process as approved by the 
Local Planning Authority in the scheme approved pursuant to step 
(ii) above, until all the remediation objectives in that scheme have 
been achieved.

All works must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11” and other authoritative guidance.

Page 259



REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure 
that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure 
that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors.

14.No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the 
interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 
area

15.No railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other means of 
enclosure development shall be erected in connection with the 
development hereby permitted until details of their design, external 
appearance and decorative finish have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 
the development being occupied.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area.

16.No development shall commence on site until details of the estate 
roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, 
sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 
accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and 
street furniture, including the timetable for provision of such works, 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until the 
estate roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, 
sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, 
vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, 

Page 260



accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car parking and 
street furniture have all been constructed and laid out in 
accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure 
that the roads are laid out and constructed in a satisfactory manner.

17.Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), any garages shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation.

REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in 
the interests of highway safety.

18.The maximum number of residential units on site shall not exceed 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out works on the highway. The applicant is advised that a license may be 

Page 261



required from Wiltshire's Highway Authority before any works are carried 
out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming 
part of the highway.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples.

Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer 
where they are to be found.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work.

135 16/03033/FUL - Land to the rear of Church, North Wraxall, Chippenham, 
SN14 7AD

The planning officer introduced the application for the erection of a stable block 
at land to the rear of Church, North Wraxall. The officer’s recommendation was 
that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and informatives as 
outlined in the report and amended by the late observations. The late 
observations proposed the additions of three conditions and the requirement to 
add a plan number to condition 7. The officer made reference to the site as 
located within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and explained the 
proposal for the stable building had been reduced in size from the original 
application. It was explained that the field could sustain two horses and 
conditions on the number of horses had been proposed in the report. The officer 
also identified that further information as to the access arrangements had been 
submitted. 

In response to technical questions it was confirmed that the site was bounded 
by the curtilage listed wall of the Grade 1 church, however would not impact 
upon a churchyard boundary wall and that the conditions proposed would 
restrict use of the shelter to private stabling. The officer explained that the 
shelter may be used to keep agriculture and had two entrances/exits. 

The local member, Baroness Scott, highlighted that the parish council had 
raised concerns over the impact of the proposed shelter on the setting of the 
Grade 1 listed church. It was also commented that equipment to support equine 
use could impact upon the listed building and setting in the AONB and 
conservation area.

In the debate that followed, members noted that the proposed conditions 
addressed external lighting on the site. It was considered that the stable was 

Page 262



note in an ideal location, however on balance, was acceptable, provided it was 
conditioned strictly to minimize the impact in a sensitive area. Cllr Hutton, 
seconded by Cllr Trotman, moved the officer recommendation, with additional 
conditions to prevent outside storage and additional fencing.

Resolved:

To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. No fences (including temporary ones to divide the land) or jumps 
shall be erected on the site without the prior approval in writing of 
the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON: In order to protect the setting of the heritage assets and the 
landscape character of the area.

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into 
use/occupied/ [DELETE as appropriate] until details of the storage 
of manure and soiled bedding (including the location of such 
storage) and its disposal from site (including frequency) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and; the works for such storage and disposal have been 
completed in accordance with the approved details. The approved 
storage area shall subsequently be maintained in accordance with 
the approved details. No storage of manure and soiled bedding 
shall take place outside of the storage area approved under this 
condition.

REASON: In the interests of public health and safety, in order to protect 
the natural environment and prevent pollution.

4. The development hereby permitted shall only be used for the 
private stabling of horses and the storage of associated equipment 
and feed and shall at no time be used for any commercial purpose 
whatsoever, including for livery, or in connection with equestrian 
tuition or leisure rides.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety and/or to protect the living 
conditions of nearby residents.

Page 263



5. There shall be no parking of horse boxes, caravans, trailers or other 
vehicles during the hours between dusk and dawn on the site. 

REASON: In order to protect the living conditions of nearby residents 
and/or the rural character of the area.

6. No portable buildings, van bodies, trailers, vehicles or other 
structures used for storage, shelter, rest or refreshment, shall be 
stationed on the site without the prior approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to protect the living conditions of nearby residents 
and/or the rural character of the area.

7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: Site location plan 
received 4th April 2016; Proposed elevations and proposed site 
plan received 20th June 2016 and access plan dated 4th October 
2016

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

8. Please note that this permission neither grants nor implies consent 
for a change of use of the land for the keeping of horses.

9. There shall be no external/outdoor storage of any kind at the site 
and there shall be no portable buildings or structures, van bodies, 
trailers, vehicles or other structures used for storage, shelter, rest 
or refreshment, shall be stationed on the site without the prior 
approval in writing of the Local Planning authority.

REASON: In order to protect the setting of the heritage assets and to 
protect the landscape quality of the area.

10.No materials, goods, plant, machinery, equipment, finished or 
unfinished products/parts of any description, skips, crates, 
containers, waste or any other item whatsoever shall be placed, 
stacked, deposited or stored outside any building on the site.

REASON: In order to protect the heritage assets and landscape quality of 
the area.

11.No paint or stain finish shall be applied to external timber (including 
external walls and window joinery -[DELETE as appropriate]), until 
details of the paint or stain to be applied have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

Page 264



details prior to the development being first brought into use / 
occupied [DELETE as appropriate].

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area.

12.No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site.

13.Prior to the commencement of the develoment hereby permitted, 
details of the access track, including its finish, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.

REASON: To protect the landscape quality of the Cotswolds AONB.

14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found.

15. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work.

16. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

Page 265



17. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer.  Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question.

136 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.15 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214 , e-mail Elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 266

mailto:Elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 26 OCTOBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, 
Cllr Philip Whalley (Substitute), Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Howard Marshall and 
Cllr Chris Hurst  
 
Also  Present: 
Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Dick Tonge, Cllr Bill Douglas and Cllr Allison Bucknell 
  

 
137 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllrs Howard Greenman and Terry Chivers. 
 
Cllr Howard Greenman was substituted by Cllr Phillip Whalley. 
 

138 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were presented. 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 5 October 2016. 
 

139 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Philip Whalley stated that whilst he was also a member of Corsham 
Town Council, that had previously considered applications numbered 7a) and 7 
e), this did not prejudice his further consideration of the applications at the 
Committee and he would enter into any deliberations with an open mind. 
 

140 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

141 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

142 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 

Page 267

Agenda Item 21



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

143 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 7a, 7b, 7c, 7d, 7e and 7f as 
listed in the agenda pack. 
 

144 16/06346/FUL - 18 Elley Green, Neston 
 
Gregg Parkes spoke in objection to the application. 
Mark Willis, the planning agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Steve Abbott, Corsham Town Council, spoke with regard to the application. 
 
The planning officer, Simon Smith, introduced the report which recommended 
that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions in report. The 
Committee’s attention was drawn to the recommendation for an additional 
condition as outlined in the Late Observations. 
 
Key issues included: the location of the application and the relevance of the 
core strategy to the application; the view of the officers that the proposals would 
be considered in-fill development, given the relationship to existing buildings; 
the layout of the proposals; the design and appearance of the proposals in 
relation exiting buildings; the topography of the site; the views of the highways 
officer, and the provision of car parking spaces; the planning history of the site, 
and the changes from previous application; the concerns of the neighbours, the 
views of the Town Council, and the potential impact on privacy; the density of 
the site created by the proposals; and the potential impact of the proposals on 
the character of the area. 
 
In response to technical questions, it was clarified that the eaves height of the 
proposals would be roughly equivalent to neighbouring buildings under 
construction; the distance between the proposal and the neighbouring buildings 
under construction; which existing walls that are proposed to be removed; and 
that the property has three floors, but is perceived as a two storey property 
when see from the street. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Dick Tonge , spoke with regard to the application. 
 
A motion to permit the application, as recommended by the officer’s report, was 
moved by Councillor Anthony Trotman seconded by Councillor Peter Hutton. 
  
The Committee then debated the application.  
 
Having been put to the vote, the motion to permit the application was lost. 
 
A new motion to refuse the application was moved by Councillor Philip Whalley, 
subsequently seconded by Councillor Chuck Berry, as the proposals would not 

Page 268



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

be in-keeping with the locality and streetscape and would have an unacceptable 
impact upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reason: 
 
By reason of its layout, built form, height, mass, scale, plot size and close 
proximity and elevation above adjoining properties, the proposed 
development would not be in-keeping with the locality and streetscape 
and would have an unacceptable impact upon the amenities of 
neighbouring residents.  As such the proposed development would be 
contrary to the provisions of Policy CP57 (iii) and (vii) of the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy. 
 

145 16/03641/FUL -Southside, Manor Farm, Corston, Malmesbury 
 
Mark Pettitt, planning agent, and Jon Eavis, the applicant, spoke in support of 
the application. 
Cllr Roger Budgen, St Paul Malmesbury Without Parish Council, spoke with 
regard to the application. 
 
The planning officer, Alex Smith, introduced the report which recommended that 
planning permission be refused for the reasons set out in the report. The 
Committee’s attention was drawn to the late observations and the receipt of a 
revised plan to correct an error in the display of the height of the eaves. 
  
Key issues included: the planning history on the site; the layout of the site and 
the position of the proposal; the relationship of the proposals to existing building 
and listed buildings; that other properties could be considered undesignated 
heritage assets; that the proposal, in the views of the officers, did not accord 
with core policy 48; the views of the drainage officer, and the risk of surface 
water flooding; the views of the parish council in support of the application; the 
relative impact of the proposals on the streetscene;  
 
In response to technical questions, the planning officer stated: that the 
proposals did include the removal of an external metal staircase; that the policy 
does recognise that some non-listed buildings can still be considered heritage 
assets and protection sought; that previous permissions were not extant; that 
there had been no objections raised to the proposals from the community. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor John Thomson, spoke with regard to the 
application. 
 

Page 269



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

A motion to refuse was moved, in accordance with the officer’s recommednation 
by Councillor Sturgis seconded by Councillor Crisp. 
  
The Committee then debated the application. It was discussed: Berry for 
permission, understands the reasons for the refusal, but it is now a more 
residential area and allows the safeguarding of the listed building. Should be 
considered in the round. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the motion to refuse was lost. 
 
A new motion to permit the application was moved by Councillor Chuck Berry, 
subsequently seconded by Councillor Philip Whalley as the potential benefits of 
the proposals outweighed the less than significant harm to the heritage assets. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.  
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 

 Site Location Plan – 150122-01 – Received 14th April 2016; 

 Proposed Site Plan – 150122-04 Rev A – Received 15th July 2016  

 Proposed Barn A Plans - 150122-02 Rev F – Received 13th October 
2016; 

 Proposed Barn B Plans - 150122-03 Rev C – Received 15th July 2016; 

 Proposed Garage Layout - 150122-05 Rev A – Received 15th July 
2016. 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3.  No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 

Page 270



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON:  The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :-  

• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 
and planting sizes and planting densities;  

• finished levels and contours;  
• means of enclosure;  
• car park layouts;  
• other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  
• all hard and soft surfacing materials;  

 
REASON: the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 
5. No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking spaces and garages 
together with the access thereto, have been provided in accordance with 
the approved plans.  Those areas shall be used only for the parking of 
vehicles at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 
6. No development shall take place until a Flood Evacuation Plan has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Plan 
shall provide a clear procedure for emergency measures to evacuate the 
site in the event of flooding of the adjoining highway.  Thereafter, the 
measures of the plan shall be implemented in strict accordance with 
approved details, in the event of a flood to the highway of Main Street. 
 
REASON: To ensure that sufficient measures are in place for the 
evacuation of the site, in the event of adverse weather conditions. 
 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A, B or E shall take 
place on the dwellinghouses hereby permitted or within their curtilage.  
 

Page 271



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
 

146 15/10712/FUL - Land North of Baydons Lane, Chippenham 
 
Mike Gibbons and Catherine Barrett spoke in objection to the application. 
John Bostock, the architect, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The planning officer, Matthew Pearson, introduced the report which 
recommended that that authority be delegated to the Head of 
Development Management to grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions listed in the report and completion of a S106 legal 
agreement within six months of the date of the resolution of this 
Committee. 

The report also recommended that in the event of failure to complete, sign and 
seal the required section 106 agreement within the defined timeframe that 
authority would be delegated to the Head of Development Management to 
refuse planning permission for the reasons set out in the report. 

 

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the late observations and, specifically, 
the recommendation to replace condition 8 with an amended condition and for 
the inclusion of an additional condition. 
 
Key issues included: that the proposed building would be within the settlement 
boundary; the location of the proposals in relation to wooded areas; the key 
features of the site; the location of the proposals within the conservation area; 
the impact of the proposals on the character of the site and the ecology of the 
site; the planning history on the site, and the changes in the proposals to those 
previously refused; the impact of the proposals on the biodiversity of the 
meadow and impact on fauna therein; the views of the local people and the 
town council; the existence of a cycle route nearby; the impact of the proposed 
traffic calming measures on the character of the area; the concerns over the 
possible infestation of Japanese Knotweed.  
 
In response to technical questions, the planning officer stated that: that an 
environment management plan could assist in the location, offsite, of any 
reptiles found; and that a condition could potentially be included to address the 
need to completed road improvements before developing the rest of the site. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Bill Douglas, spoke with regard to the application. 
 
A motion to permit the application was moved by Councillor Anthony Trotman 
seconded by Councillor Peter Hutton, with the inclusion of additional conditions 

Page 272



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

regarding: highway improvements; construction management and traffic 
calming measures. 
 
The Committee then debated the application. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the motion to permit the application was lost. 
 
A new motion was to defer consideration of the application was moved by 
Councillor Chuck Berry, subsequently seconded by Councillor Howard Marshall, 
to enable further information to be submitted. 
 
Resolved 
 
That consideration of the application be deferred to seek the submission 
and consideration of the following additional information: 
 

 The possibility for an environmental corridor; 

 An assessment of the Japanese Knotweed issues on the site, and 
vicinity; 

 The possibility of traffic calming measures sympathetic to the 
character of the conservation area. 

 
 

147 16/08026/FUL - Hill Field Farm, Charlcutt, Calne 
 
Bill Jackson, Sarah Jones and Sue Alllen spoke in objection to the application. 
George Drewett, Tim Marsters and Charlotte Boole spoke in support of the 
application. 
Cllr Ian James, Bremhill Parish Council, spoke with regard to the application. 
 
The planning officer, Mark Staincliffe, introduced the report which 
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions in 
the report. The Committee’s attention was drawn to the late observations 
including the views of the Highways Officers and the inclusion of an addition to 
the approved list of plans. 
 
Key issues included: the location of the proposals and the nature of the site; 
that the proposal is for a battery storage not a generator site; the implications of 
the Council’s energy policy; how the initial concerns of the landscaping officer 
had been addressed through further amendments; the appearance of the 
proposals and whether it accords with the rural nature of the area; the views of 
the public protection officer and his proposals for noise mitigation conditions; 
how the proposals would be connected to the grid; the views of the public, and 
concerns over development in the open countryside; what safety regulations 
apply to these type of development; the applicability of renewable energy 
policies; whether other locations would be more suitable for the development; 
whether there is sufficient demand for the proposals; whether the proposals 
represent diversification; the comparison of the proposal with those for purely 

Page 273



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

agricultural buildings that are available within permitted development rights; the 
design of the building and its future use; how the facility is monitored and the 
mitigations against fire and accident; the applicability of the Bremhill 
Neighbourhood Plan, which is due to be submitted, and the views of the parish 
council; and whether the planting proposed would provide adequate screening 
over the lifetime of the proposals. 
 
In response to technical question, the planning officer clarified that: a condition 
could  be included to cover the appropriate storage of equipment and 
paraphernalia associated with the facility; that the cables connecting to the grid 
would be underground. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Christine Crisp, spoke with regard to the 
application. 
 
A motion to refuse was moved by Councillor Crisp seconded by Councillor 
Sturgis, for the reason that the application would be detrimental to the character 
of the landscape. 
 
The Committee then debated the application. It was discussed: 
 
Having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse the application for the following reason: 
 
That by reason of its size, scale, design, appearance and rural location 
outside of any defined settlement, the proposed development would 
have a harmful impact upon the landscape character and appearance of 
the area when viewed from both long and short distances and would 
therefore conflict with Core Policy 34 & Core Policy 51 ii, iv, vi of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 

148 15/11544/OUT - Peacock Grove, Corsham 
 
Gail Ceviar, Hilary Evans and Sally Fletcher spoke in objection to the 
application. 
Chris Beaver, the planning agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Steve Abbott, Corsham Town Council, spoke with regard to the application. 
 
The planning officer, Chris Marsh, introduced the report which recommended 
that authority is delegated to the Head of Development Management to grant 
outline planning permission, subject to conditions and completion of the 
Unilateral Undertaking within six months, or otherwise to refuse the application. 

Page 274



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the late observations and, specifically, 
the recommendation for the inclusion of an additional condition. 
 
Key issues included: the location of the site in relation to the town and existing 
buildings; the access to the site, and the route of the footpath; the existing 
planting in the area, and the character of the site;  that the application for 
consideration is in relation to the access arrangements for the site; that 
landscaping is a reserved matter and that a further application would be 
required to consider other development issues; whether the landscaping and 
managed footbath would balance any potential negative impact on the ecology 
and wildlife; the concerns of the public regarding the suitability of the site, 
including the density of the site; the views of Natural England; that the site 
would provide up to 31 dwellings and that the final number would be established 
at a later stage, and whether the concerns could be addressed in reserved 
matters; that some affordable housing could be provided; the views of the local 
residents and the Town Council as to the unsuitability of the site for housing;  
 
In response to technical questions: the planning officer confirmed that both the 
developer and Network Rail would likely bear dual responsibility for addressing 
safety issues for residents; that the flow of construction traffic could be 
conditioned in such a way as to reduce the impact on road users elsewhere; 
and that the density of the proposals was greater than that in the local area. 
 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Philip Whalley, spoke with regard to the 
application.  
 
A motion to refuse the application was moved by Councillor Whalley, 
subsequently seconded by Councillor Chuck Berry, for the reason that: the 
proposal would cause harm to the local ecology; would not be of a good quality 
design; and would not provide adequate infrastructure improvements for the 
community 
 
The Committee then debated the application. 
 
Having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse the application for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application fails to demonstrate that the scheme is capable of 

providing suitable protection for features of nature conservation and 
of averting a harmful impact upon landscape character. As such, the 
proposal conflicts with Core Policies 50 and 51 of the adopted 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
2. The application fails to demonstrate that a high standard of design 

Page 275



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

can be achieved throughout the proposed development, specifically 
being insufficient to satisfy points (i), (ii), (iii), (vi), (vii) and (viii) of 
Core Policy 57 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
3. The application proposal fails to provide and secure the necessary 

and required Services and infrastructure supporting the proposed 
residential development including Affordable Housing; Waste; Public 
Open Spaces; Air Quality Management and is therefore contrary to 
Policies CP3 & CP43 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy adopted January 
2015 and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
March 2012. 

 
149 16/05959/OUT - South View, Lyneham 

 
Nova Pearce, Richard Marshall and Catherine Bennet spoke in objection to the 
application. 
Jacqueline Mullenor, the planning agent, Richard Storm and Douglas Thomas 
spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr John Webb spoke on behalf of Lyneham and Bradenstoke Parish Council. 
 
The planning officer, Matthew Pearson, introduced the report which 
recommended that authority is delegated to the Head of Development 
Management to grant outline planning permission, subject to conditions and 
completion of the Unilateral Undertaking within six months, or otherwise to 
refuse the application. The Committee’s attention was drawn to the late 
observations. 
 
Key issues included: that the application is a resubmitted application, in outline, 
with reserved matters to be discussed at a later date; the location of the site 
outside the settlement boundary; the transport access arrangements to the site; 
the views of the landscape officer; the topography of the site and the existing 
vegetation; the views of the heritage officer, and the potential impact on the 
listed buildings nearby; the views of the strategic planning team and whether 60 
dwellings were sustainable, and the relevance of core strategy; whether the 
benefits derived from the development outweighed the negative impacts; the 
impact on character of the village; whether the site was deliverable; the views 
on the community some for and some against the development; the 
consultation undertaken by the developers of the site, and the changes made in 
response; and the views of the parish council, and the possibility of the 
development of a neighbourhood plan. 
 
In response to technical questions: the Highway Officer clarified that the extent 
of the splay proposed was more than adequate for an access in a 30mph zone; 
the planning officer confirmed that there were not, currently, any major 
applications in the village, and that whilst other brownfield sites may be 
developed none were currently submitted; and that the previously scheme had 
been for over 100 dwellings on the site, including proposals for large 
roundabout which it was felt would have caused more harm to the designated 
heritage asset. 

Page 276



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Members of the public then addressed the Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Councillor Alison Bucknell, spoke with regard to the 
application, explaining why, on balance, she could not support the application. 
 
A motion to permit the application in line with the officer’s recommendation was 
moved by Councillor Trotman, but as the motion failed to gain a seconder it was 
not tabled. 
 
A motion to refused the application was proposed by Councillor Toby Sturgis, 
subsequently seconded by Councillor Christine Crisp, for the reason that it 
conflicted with Core Policy 2, being outside the settlement boundary; would 
harm the character of the landscape; be harmful to the setting of the heritage 
asset; was not sustainable; and would not significantly benefit the locality 
through improved infrastructure. 
 
The Committee then debated the application.  
 
Having been put to the vote, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
That planning permission be refused, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The site lies outside of the limits of development defined for the 

village in the Wiltshire Core Strategy. It has not been brought forward 
either through a Site Allocations DPD or a neighbourhood plan and 
does not fall within any of the proposed exceptions identified in CP2. 
Consequently, the development would conflict with policy CP2 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
2. The proposed development would provide an unsustainable level of 

housing in a rural area and would not be in line with the objectives of 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy to promote self-containment by delivering 
development at sustainable settlements. The proposal is therefore 
contrary to policies CP1 and CP19 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(2015), saved Policy H4 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011, as well 
as the principles set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

 
3. The proposal, by reason of its size and location on agricultural land 

would have a harmful impact on the appearance of the countryside, 
creating a large urbanised expansion beyond the existing built-up area 
of the village. This would conflict with CP51 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy, which seeks to protect the landscape from harmful impacts, 
and CP57 (i, iv & vi) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, which seeks to 
create developments that are complementary to the locality.  

Page 277



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
4. The proposal would have a harmful impact upon the setting of a 

designated heritage asset. The proposal is therefore contrary to the 
provisions of policy CP58 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (2015), 
paragraphs 131, 132 and 134 of the NPPF, as well as, sections 16(2) 
and 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 
1990.  

 
5. The proposed development fails to provide and/or secure adequate 

provision for necessary on-site and, where appropriate, off-site 
infrastructure. Such infrastructure shall include affordable housing, 
education, public open space and play equipment, footpath 
connections, junction improvements and measures for future 
maintenance. The application is therefore contrary to CP3 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy (2015). 

 
150 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 8.49 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 278



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 16 NOVEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Howard Marshall, and Cllr Chris Hurst.   
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
  

 
151 Apologies 

 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Terry Chivers and Baroness 
Scott of Bybrook.  
 
 

152 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2016.  
 
 

153 Declarations of Interest 
 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

154 Chairman's Announcements 
 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 
 

Page 279

Agenda Item 22



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

155 Public Participation 
 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 

156 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 
 

157 Planning Applications 
 

158 16/04920/FUL- Rookery Farm, Seven Bridges, Water Eaton, Swindon, 
Wiltshire, SN6 6JS 
 
 
John Dennis and Aaron Smith spoke in support of the application. 
 
The planning officer introduced the report which was for the erection of an 
agricultural workers dwelling, livestock barn and machinery/workshop store and 
the creation of new access. A site plan and location plan were shown alongside 
photos of the site and proposed access. The officer recommended that the 
application be refused due to concerns about its siting and prominence on the 
landscape from surrounding areas and drew attention to the late observations.  
 
There were no technical questions. 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak, as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Bob Jones spoke in support of the application. 
 
Following statements from the public the planning officer confirmed that the 
Council’s agricultural consultant had considered the argument for the 
development in this location to be a marginal case. 
 
In the debate that followed, the Committee considered that the dwelling would 
be damaging to the surrounding open countryside in the proposed location. The 
importance of supporting agricultural industry was acknowledged and it was 
suggested that a structure near to the highway on the edge of the site would be 
more acceptable in terms of the impact of the development, similarly a 
temporary structure would be more acceptable.  
 
Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Berry moved the officer recommendation that 
planning permission be refused for the reason set out in the report.  
 
 

Page 280



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason: 
 
The proposed development would, by reason of its siting, scale, form bulk 
and mass in conjunction with the significant length of access road 
required to be created, result in harm to the visual amenities and open 
character of the countryside. Therefore, the development is considered to 
be contrary to Core Policy 51 & 57 i) & iii) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
and Paragraph 7 & 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 

159 16/06342/FUL - Besants Garage, Main Road, Christian Malford, SN15 4AZ 
 
 
Colin Read spoke in objection to the application in his capacity as a local 
resident and not on behalf of the parish council. 
 
Mark Willis spoke in support of the application. 
 
The planning officer introduced the application which was for the erection of a 
workshop building and stables, it was noted that the application was partly 
retrospective. The location of the site and photographs of the current 
development were shown alongside the plans for the site and details of the 
previously approved scheme. Members commented that it was difficult to 
compare the new plans with the previously agreed plans and it was explained 
that the span of the building had been enlarged, and there were changes to the 
dormer elevations and stepping down arrangements. It was confirmed that the 
application included a change of use for the adjacent land. The officer 
recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions 
outlined in the report. 
 
In response to technical questions, it was confirmed that the application was 
dissimilar to an application previously refused for a residential element to the 
dwelling; the current application gave no provision for residential use. The 
planning officer detailed where the building was to be widened beyond the 
approved scheme however noted that the eaves and ridge height would remain 
the same. 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Howard Greenman, spoke in objection to the 
application.  
 
Following statements from the public the planning officer confirmed that under 
condition 5, use of the workshop should only take place between 10am and 
6pm on Sundays.  
 

Page 281



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

In the debate that followed, members expressed disappointment that the 
development had not been built in accordance with the previously approved 
plans. The Committee considered that the new proposals were significantly 
different and larger than the previous application and as such would cause 
more harm. It was considered that the height, mass and scale of the proposal 
would fail to conserve the setting of the neighbouring property which was a 
historic building. It was also noted that the Parish Council had objected to the 
application. Concern was also raised that the application was similar to an 
application that had previously been refused, however it was noted that this was 
refused on the grounds that it included a residential element. 
 
Cllr Greenman, seconded by Cllr Crisp, moved that the application be refused 
on the grounds that the scale, bulk, massing and design would result in harm to 
the neighbouring residential amenity and property through overbearing impact 
and harm to the character and appearance of the area and damage to the 
neighbouring heritage asset.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of its scale, bulk, massing and 
design, will result in an unacceptable overbearing impact on the 
neighbouring property and consequent loss of residential amenity to 
occupiers. The proposal therefore conflicts with Core Policy 57 (vii) of the 
adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 17 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
The proposed development, by reason of its scale, bulk, massing and 
design, will adversely affect the character and setting of the adjacent 
undesignated heritage asset to a degree not outweighed by other 
considerations. The proposal therefore conflicts with Core Policies 57(i) 
and 58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 135 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 

160 16/08839/FUL- Land at Newlands, Littleton Drew, Chippenham, Wiltshire , 
SN14 7NB 
 
 
Linda Peak spoke in objection to the application.  
 
Kathleen Philips spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr Jeff Batty, Grittleton Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application.  
 
The planning officer introduced the application which was for the change of use 
of land from agricultural to equestrian, the construction of stables, horse walker 

Page 282



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

and associated parking/turning area. It was recommended that planning 
permission be approved, subject to the conditions detailed in the report. It was 
highlighted that the application was partly retrospective and the proposed site 
layout was presented. Photos of mobile field shelters were shown and it was 
explained that proposed conditions attached to permission would restrict the 
site for personal rather than commercial use.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions, in response to which the 
planning officer advised that submitted plans should be to scale, however if 
councillors were concerned this was not the case, the submission of more 
detailed drawings could be conditioned.  
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis spoke on behalf of the local member, Baroness Scott of 
Bybrook, in objection to the application.  
 
In the debate that followed, the Committee expressed concern that, although 
horses were kept on neighbouring fields, the appearance of neighbouring sites 
was agricultural and the application in question appeared commercial due to the 
number of horses and installation of a horse walker. Members considered that 
the hardstanding, gates and paraphernalia were harmful in urbanising the site 
and that the fencing was harmful to the setting in the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty (AONB). The Committee felt that the large gate to access the 
site was out of proportion and uncharacteristic of the area and that the 
application was contrary to policies of horse keeping in the AONB. The 
Chairman highlighted that there was already a right of vehicular access to the 
site and that the enforcement of conditions was not a planning consideration, 
however the Committee concluded that no conditions could make a 
development of this type acceptable in this location.  
 
Cllr Sturgis, seconded by Cllr Greenman, proposed that the application be 
refused on the grounds of harm to the landscape of the area and AONB and 
non-compliance with AONB guidelines on the keeping of horses.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason:  
 
The proposed development, by reason of the cumulative scale and form of 
physical development will have an urbanising effect on the site and its 
setting, resulting in harm to the character, appearance and openness of 
the landscape and intrinsic quality of the Cotswolds AONB. The proposal 
therefore conflicts with Core Policy 51(ix) of the adopted Wiltshire Core 
Strategy and Criteria 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 10 and 12 of the Cotswolds Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 2013 - 2018 
 
 
 
 

Page 283



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

161 Urgent Items 
 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail Elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 284

mailto:Elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 7 DECEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) 
and Cllr Howard Marshall 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
  

 
162 Apologies 

Apologies were received from Cllr Howard Greenman who was substituted by 
Cllr Jacqui Lay. 
 
Apologies were also received from Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Terry Chivers and 
Glenis Ansell. 
 

163 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 16th November 2016 were 
presented.  
 
Resolved: 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

164 Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

165 Chairman's Announcements 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

166 Public Participation 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

167 Planning Appeals and Updates 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 
 
 

Page 285

Agenda Item 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

168 Planning Applications 
 
16/07182/FUL and 16/07712/LBC- 8 The Forty, Cricklade, Wiltshire, SN6 
6HR 
 
The applicant Laura Lally and the agent Mike Wright spoke in favour of the 
application.  
 
The planning officer introduced the report which was an application to extend 
and build upon a listed building. The applicant sought permissions for the 
removal of an existing single storey porch to rear of  the property and for the 
construction of a new two storey gable, and single storey flat roof with parapet 
wall. The extension would provide a dining room and play room at ground floor 
level, with a master bedroom with en-suite on the first floor. Pictures and 
diagrams were shown to the committee demonstrating the proposed plans, 
pointing out the variations in the proposed elevation, size, bulk and massing, 
compared to the existing build. The officer explained that conservation officers 
had identified potential harm to the historic fabric of the building by the 
substantial loss of original rear walls. Officers also considered the proposal 
would dramatically increase the size, bulk and massing of the listed building and 
be out of keeping with the character of the heritage asset.    
 
The Chairman invited Councillors to ask technical questions in response to 
which it was confirmed that, should permission be granted, the retention of 
existing landscaping at the front of the property could be conditioned to screen 
the extension from the road. In response to queries about parking provision it 
was noted that the Highways Officer had not raised any objections.  
 
The Chairman invited public speakers to make representations, as detailed 
above.   
 
The local member, Cllr Bob Jones, spoke in support of the application and 
expressed concerns over the assessment of the application by the 
Conservation Officer.  
 
In response to queries raised by the public and local member, the planning 
officer explained that in the Historic England listing of buildings not every 
heritage detail of a building was detailed and therefore the rear wall of the 
property could be considered as a heritage asset without a direct reference to 
this in the listing.  
 
Officers also advised that they had previously indicated to the agent that a 
smaller extension would cause less harm the listed building however the 
application had not been reduced in scale.  In response to a statement from the 
applicant, the Planning Officer stated that the site was indeed outside of the 
Conservation Area and therefore the submission by the Conservation Officer 
was inaccurate. However it was highlighted that the application was 
recommended for refusal based on harm to the listed building rather than the 
impact on the Conservation Area. 
 

Page 286



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chairman, moved the officer’s recommended which was seconded by Cllr 
Peter Hutton. 
 
During the debate that followed, members were sympathetic to the need for an 
extension to the property and supported the principle of a smaller extension to 
allow the listed building to be enjoyed. The Committee was however concerned 
that under this proposal a significant amount of the original wall would be lost 
and this would be contrary to Paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. Councillors discussed the visibility of the proposal from the road, 
the location of the property in relation to the entrance to the town and the 
proximity of a modern development to the rear of the property. On balance, 
members considered that there were no policy reasons to support permission. 
In reaching its decision the Committee understood that the site was not located 
within a Conservation Area and that refusal was to reflect the harm of the 
proposal on the listed building rather than its location in relation to a 
Conservation Area. 
 
Resolved: 
Planning Permission is REFUSED for the following reason: 
1. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale, massing and 
design, fails to conserve the character or appearance of the listed building 
and is not otherwise justified by any wider public benefit. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Core Policy 57 and 58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core 
Strategy and paragraph 131, 132, 134 and 137 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
Listed Building Consent is REFUSED for the following reason: 
2. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, scale, massing and 
design, fails to conserve the character or appearance of the listed building 
or and is not otherwise justified by any wider public benefit. The proposal 
is therefore contrary to S16(2) and 66 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 

169 Urgent Items 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.00 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 287



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 288



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 4 JANUARY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Howard Greenman, 
Cllr Howard Marshall and Cllr Chris Hurst 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr John Thomson 
  

 
1 Apologies 

Apologies were received from Cllr Glenis Ansell and Cllr Terry Chivers.  
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 7th December 2016 were 
presented. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
Cllr Toby Sturgis declared an interest in agenda item 7c, Mays Farm. He 
informed the Committee that his son’s firm may be the selling agent of the 
property in question, Mays Farm. In respect of item 7a Church Farm 
applications, the councillor stated that he knew many of people on both the 
applicants and objectors side. In respect of the above-named items, the 
councillor declared that he would participate in the debate and vote on each 
item with an open mind.  
 
Cllr Howard Greenman also declared an interest in agenda item 7c Mays Farm, 
stating that he knew the applicants however, he declared that he would 
participate in the debate and vote on each item with an open mind.  
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 
 

Page 289

Agenda Item 24



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 Public Participation 
The Committee noted the rules of public participation which would apply to 
agenda items no. 7b and 7c.  
 
However, the Chairman explained that he would use his discretion to change 
the procedure for agenda item 7a- 16/05721/FUL- 16/05729/FUL: 9 Church 
Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury.  
 
Due to the applications having a cumulative impact and common 
representations having been submitted in relation to many of the applications, 
the public participation would take place under the first application only. 
Although for this agenda item, the public speakers would have 4 minutes, 
instead of the usual 3 and speakers from the Town/Parish Council would have 5 
minutes instead of the usual 4.  
 
The Chairman proposed that item 7c on the agenda be brought forward for 
determination first and that the applications 16/05721/FUL-16/05729FUL 
Church Farm be considered in a different order, as detailed in the late items. 
 
RESOLVED: 
To change the order of the agenda, as detailed above. 
 

6 Planning Appeals and Updates 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

7 Planning Applications 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of the ordering of the agenda and 
applications 7a) 16/09965/LBC: Mays Farm, Hullavington and 7b) 9 Church 
Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury:-16/05721/FUL-16/05729/FUL, as listed in the 
supplementary reports and 7c 15/10712/FUL: Land North of Baydons Lane, 
Chippenham.  
 

8 16/09965/LBC: Mays Farm, Hullavington. 
The applicant Kim Swithinbank spoke in favour of the application. 
 
The Conservation Officer introduced the application for Listed Building Consent 
on a Grade-II Listed farmhouse building, a retrospective application to include 
replacement of bedroom timber floors with plywood, replacement of living room, 
sitting room and dining room floors and hearths, alterations to master bedroom 
partitions, installation of freestanding bath on raised platform, alterations to 
kitchen window, removal of second floor bedroom ceiling, and reinstatement of 
recently blocked up gate in the garden boundary wall.   
 
The officer detailed some of the planning history of the property, explaining that 
in 2012 it had come under new ownership however some of the work 
undertaken by the owners had not been in accordance with permission granted, 
for which retrospective approval was now sought.  Pictures were shown to the 
Committee demonstrating the works done in contravention to consent. These 
works were considered to give a false impression of the history of the building 

Page 290



 
 
 

 
 
 

and result in the unjustified loss of historic fabric. It was highlighted that the 
applicant had not given justification as to why much of the contravening work 
had been necessary or why alternative materials, from existing or agreed under 
the approved scheme, had been used. It was noted that some of the works 
undertaken, although beyond the permission granted, could be deemed 
acceptable, given information secured by the site inspection, however other 
elements were considered wholly unacceptable. The officer explained the 
recommendation for refusal, by reason of the harm caused to the historic fabric 
of the building. 
 
There were no technical questions.  
 
Public speakers, as listed above, were then invited to make representations by 
the Chairman.  
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis spoke on behalf of the local member, Baroness Jane Scott of 
Bybrook. The councillor considered the matter as a balance between benefit 
and harm, noting that some good work had been undertaken to what had been 
a building in a very poor condition, but agreeing that it had been done in 
contravention of planning permissions and no justification had been given for 
this.  
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis moved the officer’s recommendation to refuse the application 
which was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
During the debate that followed, members considered that, whilst some of the 
works were of good quality, they had been against the advice and permissions 
given by the officers and without sufficiently robust and detailed supporting 
historical  and structural/condition survey evidence to justify doing so. It was 
noted that in particular the plywood floor was not suitable for the listed building 
and should be removed and that if permission was granted it would cover all of 
the works, including the plywood. On balance, members considered that to 
approve the application would set a dangerous precedent for all listed buildings 
in Wiltshire and noted that if the application was refused, the applicant could 
begin to negotiations again on the works undertaken to resolve the situation 
appropriately, including the provision of necessary supporting evidence and 
information.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Listed Building Consent be REFUSED for the following reason: 
 
The works, by reason of its design, size and location fails to conserve the 
character and special interest of the heritage asset and the setting of 
adjacent heritage assets. This harm is not otherwise justified by any 
public benefit so the proposals are therefore contrary to section 16(2) of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and 
paragraphs 131, 132, 134 and 207 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Core Policy 58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 

Page 291



 
 
 

 
 
 

9a 16/05728/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
John Heathcock, Henry Jodrell and Keith Waterhouse spoke against the 
application.  The Chairman of Easton Grey Parish Council, John Tremayne, 
also spoke against the application. Simon Tomlinson, Ian Firth and Marc Willis 
spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Planning Officer gave an overview of the 9 concurrent applications at the 
site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the consolidation of the 
applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the creation of an agricultural 
workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use by the applicant’s business. 
A site location plan, its proximity to the road and photographs of the site were 
shown. A comparison between the current layout of the site and proposed 
layout of the site was provided. It was highlighted that the 9 concurrent 
applications would have a cumulative impact on the site, all were located within 
an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and outside of a defined 
settlement.  
 
The Planning Officer then proceeded to introduce the application in respect of 
the Anaerobic Digester. 
 
The officer introduced the report, showing pictures and diagrams which 
identified the proposed location and specifications of the Anaerobic Digester 
(AD). The officer confirmed the applicant was looking to consolidate his existing 
business and explained that the Anaerobic Digester was to be built with the 
intention of minimalizing the impact on the area.  
 
The officer explained the proposed conditions and identified that screening 
would be provided by landscaping and, in part, existing structures at the site. It 
was advised that a slurry lagoon was already in existence on the site and 
neighbours would likely see a reduction in odour disturbance, as a result of the 
proposed development, due to the modern model. An Odour Protection 
Management Plan would also mitigate any potential impacts. 
 
Attention was drawn to objections raised by residents in respect of surrounding 
highways and drainage issues. The officer advised that these concerns had 
been addressed by the conditions set out in the report. In respect of drainage, a 
strategy had been submitted utilising and expanding upon the existing drainage 
ditches at the site, and it was also identified that the site and land ownership 
were sufficient to accommodate any additional requirements and proposals that 
may prove necessary following detailed site assessment of drainage 
requirements as required by the conditions.  It was identified that Drainage 
Engineers were satisfied with the proposals. It was noted that the proposals to 
consolidate operations at the site would reduce traffic movements in the locality 
overall and would be sustainable by reducing inter-site travel . The officer drew 
attention to the late observations in respect of the AD Unit and other 
applications for Church Farm, which had been published as a supplement to the 
agenda and proposed an additional condition in respect of the Dairy Parlour.  
The officer verified that 15 objections had been received in respect of the 
application, in addition to an objection from the parish council. In response to 

Page 292



 
 
 

 
 
 

the public concern that feedstock would be brought in to feed the AD unit, it was 
confirmed that the applicant had demonstrated he could provide sufficient 
feedstock for the AD.  
 
The Chairman invited members to ask technical questions, in response to which 
officers confirmed the proposed locations of new buildings on the site location 
plan.  
 
The Chairman invited members of the public to make representations, as 
detailed above.  
 
The local member, Cllr John Thomson, cited traffic, drainage and landscaping 
concerns that had been raised by local residents. The Councillor considered 
that if members were minded to approve all applications at Church Farm,  there 
would need to be strong condition control.  
 
In response to statements from the public and local member it was confirmed 
that the development would reduce vehicle movement, a flare stack for the AD 
unit was not necessary, and that drainage, landscaping and odour issues were 
addressed by conditions. The officer addressed planning conditions suggested 
in the public participation and explained those that would not be acceptable and 
those which would be acceptable if the Committee wished to attach them to 
permission.  
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis moved the officer’s recommendation to grant planning 
permission subject to additional conditions in respect of ingredients used in the 
AD unit to derive ingredients from within the site/landholding unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and to provide additional 
passing spaces for traffic, utilising expanded field access to the adjacent 
highway. This proposal was seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman.   
 
In the debate that followed, members discussed the benefit of deferring for a 
site visit to see a working example of the AD unit. It was considered that the 
application was acceptable, subject to the additional conditions suggested 
which would help to reduce traffic and improve the sustainability of the 
development.   
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions:  
 
1. The anaerobic digestion plant forming part of the development hereby 

approved shall use ingredients (including dairy slurry, animal bedding 
/ FYM, grass silage and other farm produced manures) derived from 
the land marked in yellow under plan reference ‘Tomlinson 
Farms.mpd’ and related contract farmed land only, and from no other 
source unless otherwise agreed in advance in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

Page 293



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To accord with the terms of the application and to ensure that 
traffic generated by the development does not exceed the levels set out in 
the application particulars as justification for the development, in the 
interests of amenity and highway safety 
  
2. No development shall take place until plans showing the provision of 

at least two passing spaces being provided within enlarged field 
openings in the highway to the north of the application site have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter, the passing spaces shall be laid out in strict accordance 
with the approved plans prior to the first operation of the Anaerobic 
Digester and shall be retained for no other use, apart from vehicular 
access to the adjoining fields, in perpetuity. 
 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans: 
 Site Location Plan - 2663/01A - Received 13th July 2016; 
 Proposed Block Plan - PA400 - Received 2nd December 2016; 
 Proposed North Elevation - PA102 - Received 30th November 

2016; 
 Proposed West Elevation - PA103 - Received 30th November 

2016; 
 Proposed South Elevation - PA104 - Received 30th November 

2016; 
 Proposed East Elevation - PA105 - Received 30th November 

2016;AD Unit Statement - 16-10211 - Received 30th November 
2016. 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
5. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 

soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of 
which shall include : 

 location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

 full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

Page 294



 
 
 

 
 
 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

 finished levels and contours; 
  means of enclosure; 
 car park layouts; 
 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
 all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
 proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

 retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 
6. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
7. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological Mitigation 

and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will address the loss of 
grassland and trees and the potential disturbance to wildlife using 
hedgerows and trees around the site boundary. It will offer gains for 
biodiversity by aiming to help meet targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity 
Action Plan for named species. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 

Page 295



 
 
 

 
 
 

mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 
8. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 

scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall not be first occupied until the surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 

insulation and noise control has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should specify 
the acoustic insulation and other measures to be put in place to 
prevent and control the emission of noise from the development 
including noise from the anaerobic digester, grain drying plant and 
any mechanical ventilation.  
 
The approved scheme shall be implemented in full before use 
commences and maintained at all times thereafter. In discharging this 
condition the applicant should engage an Acoustic Consultant. The 
consultant should carry out a thorough background noise survey and 
noise assessment in accordance with BS4142:2014 (or any 
subsequent version) and demonstrate that the rating noise level is at 
or below the background noise level. 
 

REASON: To ensure the retention of an environment free from intrusive 
levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
10. No development shall commence on site until an odour management 

plan has been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include measures for the control 
of odours from the site arising from the use of the anaerobic digester. 
Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in strict 
accordance with the approved details for as long as the anaerobic 
digester is operational. 
 

REASON: To ensure the retention of an environment free from intrusive 
levels of odour disturbance in the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
11.  No development shall commence on site until a construction 

management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

Page 296



 
 
 

 
 
 

the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

(i) The movement of construction vehicles; 
(ii) The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 
(iii) Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
(iv) The transportation and storage of waste and building materials; 
(v) The recycling of waste materials (if any) 
(vi) The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
(vii) The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
(viii) Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 
(ix) Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
12. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing the 

type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination 
levels and light spillage in accordance with the appropriate 
Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute of Lighting 
Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved lighting shall be 
installed and shall be maintained in accordance with the approved 
details and no additional external lighting shall be installed. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 
13.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
14.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 

Page 297



 
 
 

 
 
 

Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
15.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence 
to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their 
habitat or resting lace. Please note that this consent does not override the 
statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should seek 
the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and consider 
the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing works. 
Please see Natural England's website for further information on protected 
species. 
 
16.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
17.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
18.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The proposed Anaerobic Digester (AD) Plant will require a permit under 
the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010. The operator is advised 
to contact the EA's Permitting Centre on 03708 506 506 to discuss an 
installation pre application enquiry.   
 
 
9b 16/05722/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury 
 
Public Participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 

Page 298



 
 
 

 
 
 

creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
beef building.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report, showing pictures and diagrams of 
the proposed build, featuring 12 pens with a capacity of up to 280 animals. It 
was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage were 
suggested, as with other applications on the site. The Planning Officer 
highlighted that an agricultural dwelling was appropriate development within the 
AONB. 
 
In response to technical questions, officers clarified that it the usage of the 
building would not be classed as intensive farming. The Chairman questioned 
whether there would be conditions against light disturbance, in response to 
which, it was confirmed that there was a proposed condition on every 
application for Church Farm to cover external site over the whole site. 
 
Local Member, Cllr John Thomson, suggested that any lighting on site should 
be low-level.  
 
Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the officer’s recommendation which was seconded 
by Cllr Toby Sturgis.  
 
In the debate that followed, members noted that the Council’s Agricultural 
Consultant was satisfied with the application. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01A - Received 13th July 2016; 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 13th July 2016; 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans - 2663/03A - Received 24th June 2016 
iv. Proposed Elevations - 2663/03 - Received 24th June 2016 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 

Page 299



 
 
 

 
 
 

on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 

Page 300



 
 
 

 
 
 

disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
insulation and noise control has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should specify 
the acoustic insulation and other measures to be put in place to 
prevent and control the emission of noise from the development 
including noise from the anaerobic digester, grain drying plant and 
any mechanical ventilation.  
 
The approved scheme shall be implemented in full before use 
commences and maintained at all times thereafter. In discharging 
this condition the applicant should engage an Acoustic Consultant. 
The consultant should carry out a thorough background noise 
survey and noise assessment in accordance with BS4142:2014 (or 
any subsequent version) and demonstrate that the rating noise 
level is at or below the background noise level. 

 
REASON: To ensure the retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of 
the area. 
 
8. No development shall commence on site until a construction 

management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 

Page 301



 
 
 

 
 
 

noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

9.  No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

10.  INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

Page 302



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 

not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 

plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
9c 16/05723/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of a 
hardstanding and shed for the storage of implements and machinery which 
would be used across the site.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site. 
 

Page 303



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chairman invited technical questions and there were none.  
 
Cllr Chuck Berry moved the officer’s recommendation; this was seconded by 
Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01 - Received 30th June 2016; 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 30th June 2016; 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - 2663/05 - Received 
30th June 2016. 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

Page 304



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

Page 305



 
 
 

 
 
 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

Page 306



 
 
 

 
 
 

9. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 
 

10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 
plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
 

13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 307



 
 
 

 
 
 

9d 16/05724/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Panning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
Farm Office and Workshop.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site. 
 
The Chairman invited technical questions and Cllr Toby Sturgis asked if there 
could be any conditions to remove permitted rights to covert the office to 
residential use in the future. The Planning officers confirmed that this was an 
option.  
 
Cllr Sturgis moved that authority be delegated to officers to grant permission 
subject to the conditions in the report, and an additional condition to restrict 
conversion of the office into residential use, the wording of which to be 
determined by officers. This was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To DELEGATE authority to the Head of Service for Development 
Management to GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions 
below and an additional condition to restrict conversion of the approved 
office wholly or in part, to residential use, either through removal of any 
Permitted Development Rights or other legislative and policy measures. 
Authority is delegated to the Head of Service to prepare an appropriately 
worded condition in this regard. 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01 - Received 10th June 2016; 
ii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - 2663/04 - Received 

10th June 2016. 
 

Page 308



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include: 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

Page 309



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
  

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 

Page 310



 
 
 

 
 
 

in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

9. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 
 

10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 
that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 

plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

Page 311



 
 
 

 
 
 

12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
9e 16/05725/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
grain and straights store.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. The proposed floor plans were highlighted and it was explained that 
conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage were suggested, as with 
other applications on the site. 
 
The Chairman invited technical questions, in response to which officers 
explained that traffic to and from the farm for grain delivery would be reduced as 
a result of the development.  
 
Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the officer’s recommendation which was seconded 
by Cllr Chuck Berry.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01 - Received 24th June 2016; 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 24th June 2016; 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - 2663/06 - Received 
10th June 2016. 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

Page 312



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 

soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

Page 313



 
 
 

 
 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 

Page 314



 
 
 

 
 
 

in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

9. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 
that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 
 

10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 
plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 

not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 

Page 315



 
 
 

 
 
 

protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 

grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 
9f 16/05726/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
straw barn.   
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site. 
 
The Chairman invited technical questions and there were none.  
 
Cllr Anthony Trotman proposed the officer’s recommendation which was 
seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 316



 
 
 

 
 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01A - Received 13th July 2016 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 13th July 2016 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - PA-100 - Received 
10th June 2016. 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

Page 317



 
 
 

 
 
 

All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

Page 318



 
 
 

 
 
 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

9. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 
plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 

grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 

Page 319



 
 
 

 
 
 

importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
9g 16/05727/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
grain dryer.   
 
The Planning Officer introduced the reports and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was highlighted that this building would be higher in elevation compared 
to neighbouring buildings. Conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site, and a condition was also 
proposed in respect of noise control.  
 
The Chairman invited technical questions in response to which the officer 
confirmed that an intention of the applicant was that fuel from the AD unit would 
be used to power the grain dryer; it would not be reasonable to condition this, 
however an informative could  be added.  
 
Cllr Anthony Trotman proposed the officer’s recommendation, subject to an 
additional informative on usage of fuel from the Anaerobic Digester unit to 

Page 320



 
 
 

 
 
 

power the grain dryer, the wording of which to be delegated to officers. The 
motion was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the conditions below 
and an additional Informative to request that the applicant investigate the 
possibility of servicing the Grain Dryer hereby approved with power 
generated by the AD unit approved under application reference 
16/05728/FUL. Authority is delegated to the Head of Service to prepare an 
appropriately worded informative in this regard.  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01 - Received 10th June 2016; 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 10th June 2016; 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - 2663/09 - Received 
10th June 2016. 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

Page 321



 
 
 

 
 
 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 

Page 322



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement.  
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 

Page 323



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 

insulation and noise control has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should specify 
the acoustic insulation and other measures to be put in place to 
prevent and control the emission of noise from the development 
including noise from the anaerobic digester, grain drying plant and 
any mechanical ventilation. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented in full before use commences and maintained at all 
times thereafter. In discharging this condition the applicant should 
engage an Acoustic Consultant. The consultant should carry out a 
thorough background noise survey and noise assessment in 
accordance with BS4142:2014 (or any subsequent version) and 
demonstrate that the rating noise level is at or below the 
background noise level. 
 

10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 

not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 

Page 324



 
 
 

 
 
 

material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 

plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
9h 16/05729/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
dairy parlour only.    
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site, a condition on noise was 
also included and attention was drawn to the additional condition proposed in 
the late items.  
 
The Chairman invited technical questions, members questioned the stopping of 
the Dairy vehicles on the highway to service the building and the potential for a 
hardstanding layby to be provided. It was confirmed that the proposed 
conditions should address landscaping on the site and the site was located 
further from the highway than other agricultural buildings on site. Local member 
Cllr John Thomson expressed concern that access arrangements for servicing 
the building had not been fully considered in the application. 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis moved that authority be delegated to officers to grant planning 
permission, subject to the conditions in the report and further conditioning for 
suitable, hardstanding/layby to be provided to service the dairy, the wording of 
which to be determined by officers. This was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
In the debate that followed, councillors agreed that hardstanding should be 
provided in the interests of highway safety, and retained free of obstruction or 
other usage, for the purposes of servicing the proposed Dairy Parlour. Members 
also noted the proposed landscaping of the site.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To DELEGATE authority to GRANT planning permission to the Head of 
Service for Development Management subject to the conditions below and 
an additional condition to require the submission and approval of details 
for the provision of an off road (off the metalled highway/carriageway) 

Page 325



 
 
 

 
 
 

hardstanding/layby suitable for the servicing of the Dairy Parlour hereby 
approved. Authority is delegated to the Head of Service to provide an 
appropriately worded condition in this regard.  
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development here`by permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01A - Received 13th July 2016; 
ii. Proposed Block Plan - 2663/02 - Received 13th July 2016; 

iii. Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - 2663/10A - Received 
13th July 2016; 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include: 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 

Page 326



 
 
 

 
 
 

is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

4. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

5. No development shall commence on site until an Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

Page 327



 
 
 

 
 
 

an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
insulation and noise control has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should specify 
the acoustic insulation and other measures to be put in place to 
prevent and control the emission of noise from the development 
including noise from the anaerobic digester, grain drying plant and 
any mechanical ventilation. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented in full before use commences and maintained at all 
times thereafter. In discharging this condition the applicant should 
engage an Acoustic Consultant. The consultant should carry out a 
thorough background noise survey and noise assessment in 
accordance with BS4142:2014 (or any subsequent version) and 
demonstrate that the rating noise level is at or below the 
background noise level. 

 
REASON: To ensure the retention of an environment free from intrusive 
levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 

8. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 

Page 328



 
 
 

 
 
 

detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

9. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 

10. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.  

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 
 

12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 
plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 

Page 329



 
 
 

 
 
 

14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 

 
15. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
 
9i 16/05721/FUL: 9 Church Farm, Easton Grey, Malmesbury. 
 
Public participation was conducted as outlined above.  
 
The Planning Officer explained that the application was one of 9 concurrent 
applications at the site, seeking various agricultural buildings to allow for the 
consolidation of the applicant’s beef and dairy businesses, including the 
creation of an agricultural workers dwelling and an Anaerobic Digester for use 
by the applicant’s business. This application related only to the erection of the 
agricultural farmers dwelling and heifer shed. 
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report and showed pictures and diagrams 
of the proposed site, giving details about the specifications and materials to be 
used. It was explained that conditions in respect of landscaping and drainage 
were suggested, as with other applications on the site. It was highlighted that 
there was a functional need for the dwelling on the site, as identified by the 
Council’s Agricultural Consultant, and that other buildings near the site were 
unable to be used. The officer identified that the dwelling had been designed to 
reflect the financial and functional requirements of the operation as proposed. 
The officer advised that it was conditioned that the dwelling would not be 
occupied until the beef and dairy element of the farm was in use and would be 
restricted to use by agricultural workers and their dependents. Following 
submissions in by the applicant team, it was clarified that the Council’s 
agricultural consultant had identified that part of the functional need for a 

Page 330



 
 
 

 
 
 

dwelling related to the provision and operation of the dairy herd facilities and 
therefore the conditional restriction in this respect was necessary.  
 
The Chairman invited technical questions and it was confirmed that the dwelling 
was necessitated by the agricultural work and not maintenance of the AD unit.  
 
Cllr Anthony Trotman proposed the officer’s recommendation, which was 
seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

i. Site Location Plan - 2663/01 - Received 24th June 2016; 
ii. Proposed Heifer Shed - 2663/07 - Received 10th June 2016; 

iii. Proposed Dwelling Elevations - 2663/11A - Received 30th 
November 2016 

iv. Proposed Dwelling Floor Plans - 2663/12A - Received 30th 
November 2016 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
of the dwelling hereby approved have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4. The occupation of the dwelling shall be limited to a person solely or 
mainly working, or last working, in the locality in agriculture or in 
forestry, or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any 
resident dependants. 

 

Page 331



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The site is in an area where residential development for 
purposes other than the essential needs of agriculture or forestry is 
not normally permitted and this permission is only granted on the 
basis of an essential need for a new dwelling/residential 
accommodation in this location having been demonstrated. 
 
5. The dwelling hereby approved shall not be first occupied until the 

agricultural buildings approved under application reference 
16/05722/FUL (Beef Building) & 16/05729/FUL (Dairy Parlour) have 
been erected in strict accordance with the approved plans, 
occupied and the associated agricultural business be operational at 
the site. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the dwelling is required for a key worker for the 
agricultural land use at the site. 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping to mitigate against the impacts of the development 
on the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details 
of which shall include : 

i. location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

ii. full details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development; 

iii. a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities; 

iv. finished levels and contours; 
v. means of enclosure; 

vi. car park layouts; 
vii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

viii. all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
ix. minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 
x. proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, 
pipelines etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 

xi. retained historic landscape features and proposed 
restoration, where relevant. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory 
landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing 
important landscape features. 
 

7. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, 

Page 332



 
 
 

 
 
 

trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 
plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

8. No development shall commence on site until An Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will 
address the loss of grassland and trees and the potential 
disturbance to wildlife using hedgerows and trees around the site 
boundary. It will offer gains for biodiversity by aiming to help meet 
targets in the Wiltshire Biodiversity Action Plan for named species. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and 
priority habitats. 
 

9. No development shall commence on site until a comprehensive 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from the wider site 
(including surface water from the access/driveways/service areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until the surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

10. No development shall commence on site until details of the works 
for the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to 
the existing public sewer (if required) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling 
shall be first occupied until the approved sewerage details have 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

Page 333



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 

11. No development shall commence on site until a plan showing space 
for the parking of 3 vehicles has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the parking 
spaces shall be provided in strict accordance with the approved 
plan prior to the occupation of the dwelling and shall not be used 
other than for the parking of vehicles or for the purpose of access.  
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or 
without modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A-H 
shall take place on the dwelling house(s) hereby permitted or within 
their curtilage. 

 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and to enable the Local Planning Authority to consider 
individually whether planning permission should be granted for additions, 
extensions or enlargements to an agricultural workers dwelling. 
 

13. No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the 
measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of 
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition and/or construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the following: 

i. The movement of construction vehicles; 
ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site; 

iii. Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 
iv. The transportation and storage of waste and building 

materials; 
v. The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

vi. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 
vii. The location and use of generators and temporary site 

accommodation 
viii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties) 

ix. Schedules for any plans to float polish flooring 
 

Page 334



 
 
 

 
 
 

Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

14. No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage spillage in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute 
of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external 
lighting shall be installed. 

 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 

15. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 
grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question.  
 

16. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 
not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
17. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 

under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 

Page 335



 
 
 

 
 
 

seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
18. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is requested to note 

that this permission does not affect any private property rights and 
therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land 
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary 
for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to 
seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 

 
19. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 

plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 15/10712/FUL: Land North of Baydons Lane, Chippenham. 
Michael Sammes, Vanessa Robshaw and Michael Gibbons spoke against the 
application. John Bostock spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the report which was an application for the 
erection of 6 dwellings, which had been reported to Committee on 26 October 
2016 and deferred for further consideration of three issues:  the possibility for 
an environmental corridor, an assessment of the Japanese Knotweed issues on 
the site, and vicinity, and the possibility of traffic calming measures sympathetic 
to the character of the conservation area. Officers explained that all issues had 
been considered and addressed by the proposed conditions in the report.  
 
The officer showed pictures and diagrams which identified proposed location 
and specifications of the build, it was highlighted that slight alterations had been 
made to the layout, moving the proposed houses further into the site and 
therefore further away from neighbours, alterations had also been made to 
avoid the root zone of a beech tree on the site. The environmental corridor was 
now included in the plans with minor alterations and with minimal impact. The 
Knotweed issue had been addressed by a condition to ensure the removal of 
the species prior to commencing the building works. The traffic calming 
measures were to be dealt with by a revised road layout and protection zones, 
alternative materials appropriate to the conservation area status of the site had 
been proposed by the applicant and agreed by officers.  

Page 336



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman invited members to ask technical questions and there were none.  
 
The Chairman invited members of the public to make representations, as 
detailed above.  
 
In response to statements from the public, the Planning Officer explained that 
the Committee was already familiar with the application; members were 
considering the three issues deferred from a previous Committee meeting, and 
key changes to the proposed consent were in response to the matters 
Committee had sought further clarity on when it was last debated. It was 
explained that public consultation on the revised plans had not been undertaken 
since the overall impact of the proposed development on neighbours had been 
lessened in comparison to the previous proposals. The proposed condition on 
Knotweed had been considered appropriate by the Council’s Ecologist.  
 
Cllr Peter Hutton moved the officer’s recommendation, subject to the conditions 
in the report and a requirement that a completion survey be carried out post 
eradication of the Knotweed, and an informative referring the applicant to the 
maximum fine for allowing Knotweed to spread, the wording of which to be 
determined by officers. This was seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman.  
 
In the debate that followed members considered the impact of the Japanese 
Knotweed and agreed the development to be acceptable and an improvement 
to the previous proposal.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That authority is DELEGATED to the Head of Development Management to 
GRANT planning permission, subject to conditions listed below and 
completion of a S106 legal agreement within six months of the date of the 
resolution of this Committee, and subject to an amendment to the 
proposed condition in respect of Knotweed in order to secure a 
completion survey of the land in question post eradication and removal 
works to confirm removal and also an Informative to be added referring 
the applicant to the maximum fine permissible if Knotweed is allowed to 
spread. Authority is delegated to the Head of Service to prepare 
appropriate wording in this regard.  
 
In the event of failure to complete, sign and seal the required section 106 
agreement within the defined timeframe to then delegate authority to the 
Head of Development Management to REFUSE planning permission for 
the following reason:- 
 
The application proposal fails to provide the necessary mitigation in line 
with Policies CP50, CP51 and CP58 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(Adopted January 2015) and Paras 7, 14 & 17 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework March 2012. 
 

Page 337



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

 Drawing No: 1631 - 01 (as submitted 20/09/2016) - Site Plan 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 02 REV H (as submitted 13/12/2016) - Site 

Layout 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 03 REV F (as submitted 13/12/2016) – 

Street Elevations & Sections 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 04 REV D (as submitted 13/12/2016) – 

Rear elevations & Sections 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 05 REV G (as submitted 13/12/2016) - 

Parking Provision 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 06 REV K (as submitted 16/12/2016) - 

Drainage Strategy 
 Drawing No: 1631 - 07 REV H (as submitted 13/12/2016) – 

Landscaping Layout 
 Drawing No: 1631 - Plot1fp (as submitted 13/12/2016) - Plot 1 

Floor Plan and Elevations 
 Drawing No: 1631 - Plot2el (as submitted 13/12/2016) - Plot 2 

Floor Plan and Elevations 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV A - Plot3fp (as submitted 13/12/2016) - 

Plot 3 Floor Plans 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV A - Plot3el (as submitted 13/12/2016) - 

Plot 3 Elevations 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV A - Plot4el (as submitted 13/12/2016) - 

Plot 4 Elevations 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV A - Plot4fp (as submitted 13/12/2016) - 

Plot 4 Floor Plan 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV B - Plot5/6fp (as submitted 13/12/2016) 

- Plot 5 & 6 Floor Plan 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV B- Plot5/6el (as submitted 13/12/2016) 

- Plot 5 & 6 Elevations 
 Drawing No: 1631 REV B - gar/encl (as submitted 13/12/2016) 

- Garages and Enclosure plans. 
 Drawing No: 1631 0700 Rev P5 (13/12/2016) Engineering 

Layout and Details 
 D37 36 P2 Rev A (13/12/2016) 
 D37 36 P1 (13/12/2016) 
 D37 36 P3 (13/12/2016) 
 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Assessment by Alder 

Ecology (May 2013) 
 Ecological Assessment by Tyler Grange (June 2016) 
 FRA Addendum Report by Craddys (June 2016) 

 

Page 338



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area 

4. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following: 

 the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
 loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
 storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 
 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate; 

 measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction; 

 a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 
demolition and construction works; and 

 hours of construction, including deliveries; 
 
Has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with 
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall 
not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 
construction method statement. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

5. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority before commencement of the development. The content 
of the LEMP shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the 
following information: 

 Description and evaluation of features to be managed; 

Page 339



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site that 
might influence management; 

 Aims and objectives of management; 
 Appropriate management options for achieving aims and 

objectives; 
 Prescriptions for management actions; 
 Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work); 
 Details of the body or organisation responsible for 

implementation of the plan; 
 Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; 
 Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be 

communicated to future occupiers of the development. 
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding 
mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan 
will be secured by the developer with the management body/ies 
responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also set out (where the 
results from monitoring show that the conservation aims and 
objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies 
and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented. 
The LEMP shall be implemented in full in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, 
mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority 
 

6. No development shall commence on site (including demolition, 
ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP 
shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following: 

 Protection of trees including details of root protection areas 
and fencing; 

 Mitigation for any potential tree bat roosts to be removed; 
 An updated badger survey and mitigation strategy; 
 A reptile mitigation strategy including methods to be applied 

during the construction phase and details of the proposed 
receptor site including long-term maintenance. 

 Protection of breeding birds. 
 Ongoing monitoring, including compliance checks by a 

competent person(s) during construction and immediately 
post-completion of construction works. 

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented 
throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the 
approved details. 
A report prepared by a competent person(s), certifying that the 
required mitigation and/ or compensation measures identified in the 
CEMP have been completed to their satisfaction, shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority within 3 months of the  date of 

Page 340



 
 
 

 
 
 

substantial completion of the development or at the end of the next 
available  planting season, whichever is the sooner. 

 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and compensation 
for protected species, priority species and priority habitats. 
 

7. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site until an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) prepared by an 
arboricultural consultant providing comprehensive details of 
construction works in relation to trees has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. All works shall 
subsequently be carried out in strict accordance with the approved 
details. In particular, the method statement must provide the 
following:- 

 A specification for protective fencing to trees during both 
demolition and construction phases which complies with 
BS5837:2012 and a plan indicating the alignment of the 
protective fencing; 

 A specification for scaffolding and ground protection within 
tree protection zones in accordance with British Standard 
5837: 2012; 

 A schedule of tree works conforming to British Standard 
3998: 2010; 

 Details of general arboricultural matters such as the area for 
storage of  materials, concrete mixing and use of fires;  

 Plans and particulars showing the siting of the service and 
piping infrastructure. The detailed landscaped plan should be 
not less than 1:200 scale, showing the position of any trees 
proposed to be retained and the positions and routes of all 
proposed and existing pipes, drains, sewers, and public 
services, including gas, electricity, telephone and water. 

 A full specification for the construction of any arboriculturally 
sensitive structures and sections through them, including the 
installation of boundary treatment works, the method of 
construction of the access driveway including details of the 
no-dig specification and extent of the areas of the driveway to 
be constructed using a no-dig specification; 

 Details of the works requiring arboricultural supervision to be 
carried out by the developer’s arboricultural consultant, 
including details of the frequency of supervisory visits and 
procedure for notifying the Local Planning Authority of the 
findings of the supervisory visits; and 

 Details of all other activities, which have implications for 
trees on or adjacent to the site. 

 Day and sunlight calculations must be submitted in 
accordance with Building 

 Research Establishment guidance and British Standards 
8206 Part 2: 2008 Light for Buildings Part 2 - Code of practice 
for daylighting. 

Page 341



 
 
 

 
 
 

 In order that trees to be retained on-site are not damaged 
during the construction works and to ensure that as far as 
possible the work is carried no demolition, site clearance or 
development should commence on site until a 
precommencement site meeting has been held, attended by 
the developer’s arboricultural consultant, the designated site 
foreman and a representative from the Local Planning 
Authority, to discuss details of the proposed work and 
working procedures. 

 Subsequently and until the completion of all site works, site 
visits should be carried out on a weekly basis by the 
developer’s arboricultural consultant. A report detailing the 
results of site supervision and any necessary remedial works 
undertaken or required should then be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 Any approved remedial works shall subsequently be carried 
out under strict supervision by the arboricultural consultant 
following that approval. 

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in order that the Local Planning 
Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained on and adjacent to 
the site will not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure 
that as far as possible the work is carried out in accordance with current 
best practice and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

8. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on 
to site for the purpose of development, until a Tree Protection Plan 
showing the exact position of each tree/s and their protective 
fencing in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012: “Trees in 
Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction -
Recommendations”; has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, and;  
 
The protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the 
approved details. The protective fencing shall remain in place for 
the entire development phase and until all equipment, machinery 
and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Such 
fencing shall not be removed or breached during construction 
operations.  

 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any topping or 
lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance British 
Standard 3998: 2010 “Tree Work – Recommendations” or 
arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in the 
interest of good arboricultural practise. 

Page 342



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, 
another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and 
species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the 
canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no 
concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or 
stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to 
be retained on the site or adjoining land.  
 
[In this condition “retained tree” means an existing tree which is to 
be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; 
and paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of five 
years from the first occupation or the completion of the 
development, whichever is the later].  

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of 
visual amenity. 
 

9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water 
from the access / driveway), incorporating sustainable urban 
drainage details has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first 
occupied until surface water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 

10. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the highway fronting the site has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until the 
highway drainage scheme has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved scheme. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 

11. No development shall commence on site until details of the works 
for the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to 
the existing public sewer have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first 
occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

 

Page 343



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is 
provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the 
risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions 
or enlargements of any building forming part of the development 
hereby permitted. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 

13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), no gates, fences, walls or other means of 
enclosure, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall be 
erected or placed anywhere on the site. 

 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 

14. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or 
without modification), the garage(s) hereby permitted shall not be 
converted to habitable accommodation. 

 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 

15. There must be no ground raising or obstruction to flow on existing 
land at or below the 1 in 100 year flood level (45.57mAOD). 
 

REASON: In the interests of flood prevention 
 

16. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been 
issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved. 

 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 

Page 344



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
17. No development including vegetation removal / management, site 

clearance, ground works or intrusive site investigations, shall 
commence until a detailed method statement for the 
removal/eradication of Japanese knotweed on the site has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The method statement shall include proposed measures 
to prevent the spread of Japanese Knotweed during any operations 
in accordance with best practice, and ensure the safe disposal of 
invasive plant material as required. It shall also contain measures to 
ensure that any soils brought to the site are free of the seeds / root / 
stem of any invasive plant covered under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. Development shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the approved method statement.  
 

18. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved 
plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times 
thereafter. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

19. No development shall commence on site until details of the 
‘highway works’ consisting of carriageway widening / traffic 
calming / lowered kerb to be formed at Baydon Lane have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The highway works shall include the re-surfacing of the 
wearing course of the whole carriageway (ie after the widening). No 
part of the development shall be occupied until the ‘highway works’ 
have been provided in accordance with the approved details 
(numbered 1084_0700 P5 and titled ‘Engineering Layout and 
Details’). 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

20. No development shall commence on site until visibility splays at 
both access points have been provided between the edge of the 
carriageway and a line extending from a point 2m metres back from 
the edge of the carriageway, measured along the centre line of the 
access, to the points on the edge of the carriageway 25 metres from 
the centre of the access in accordance with the approved plans 
(numbered 1084_0700 P5 and titled ‘Engineering Layout and 
Details’). Such splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained 
free from obstruction to vision above a height of 0.6m above the 
level of the adjacent carriageway. 
 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

Page 345



 
 
 

 
 
 

21. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or any Order revoking or 
re-enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), 
the garage(s) hereby permitted shall not be converted to habitable 
accommodation. 

 
REASON: To safeguard the amenities and character of the area and in the 
interest of highway safety. 
 

22. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The consent hereby granted shall 
not be construed as authority to carry out works on the highway. 
The applicant is advised that a license may be required from 
Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on 
any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming 
part of the highway. 
 

23. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Japanese 
Knotweed waste (the plant itself or material containing its rhizomes) 
is classed as a controlled/special waste and therefore needs to be 
disposed of in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 and the Environmental Protection Act Duty of Care 
Regulations 1991. It may be necessary to inform the Environment 
Agency of the intention to bury or burning Japanese Knotweed 
onsite. Any soils or material contaminated with Japanese Knotweed 
should be disposed of at an authorised landfill site or suitable 
disposal site. Please see government guidance for further details. 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prevent-japanese-knotweed-
fromspreading 

 
24. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Any alterations to the approved 

plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or 
any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 

25. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: This permission shall be read in 
conjunction with an Agreement made under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 and dated the [INSERT]. 

 
26. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that the 

grant of planning permission does not include any separate 
permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity 
of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from 
Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings 
are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 

 

Page 346

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prevent-japanese-knotweed-fromspreading
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prevent-japanese-knotweed-fromspreading


 
 
 

 
 
 

27. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant should note that 
under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any 
protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
lace. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory 
protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your 
proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist 
and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England's website for 
further information on protected species. 

 
28. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do 

not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver 
material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they 
are to be found. 

 
29. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is advised that the 

development hereby approved may represent chargeable 
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. 
If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment 
due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been 
submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL 
liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in 
which case, please submit the relevant form so that we can 
determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and 
Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council 
prior to commencement of development. Should development 
commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local 
planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 
Should you require further information or to download the CIL 
forms please refer to the Council's Website- 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/com
munityinfrastructurelevy.  
 

11 Urgent Items 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.35 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 347

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 348



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 17 NOVEMBER 2016 AT WESSEX ROOM - THE CORN EXCHANGE, MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES, SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Charles Howard (Chairman), Cllr Mark Connolly (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM and Cllr James Sheppard (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Mike Wilmott (Head of Development Management) 
Sarah Marshall (Senior Solicitor) 
Sally Madgewick (Rights of Way Officer) 
Kieran Elliot (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 
Becky Holloway (Democratic Services Officer) 
  

 
54. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Cllr Stewart Dobson, who was substituted by Cllr 
James Sheppard 
 

55. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
A motion was proposed by Cllr Mark Connolly and seconded by Cllr Paul 
Oatway QPM, that the minutes of the Eastern Area Planning Committee held on 
15 September 2016 were an accurate record. 
 

Resolved: 
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Eastern Area Planning 
Committee on 15 September 2016 as an accurate record 
 

56. Declarations of Interest 
Cllr Mark Connolly declared a non-pecuniary interest in application 
16/05090/FUL by virtue of being a town councillor for Tidworth. He stated he 
had only advised the council on technical issues regarding the application, and 
so would debate and vote on the application with an open mind 
 

57. Chairman's Announcements 
There were no chairman’s announcements 
 
 

Page 349

Agenda Item 25



 
 
 

 
 
 

58. Public Participation 
The chairman explained the rules of public participation and confirmed that no 
questions had been submitted from the public 
 

59. Planning Appeals and Updates 
The written update on appeals was received. 
 

60. 16/05090/FUL: Home Farm, Tidworth, Wiltshire, SP9 7AQ 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Aaron Smith, agent, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Chris Franklin, mayor of Tidworth, spoke in support of the application 
 
The Head of Development Management, Mike Wilmott, introduced the report 
which outlined the application for the Tidworth Home Farm development, to 
include the demolition of agricultural buildings and associated hardstanding, 
conversion of existing barns to form 7 dwellings, and the erection of 7 dwellings 
with parking and associated landscaping. It was reported at the meeting that an 
associated section 106 agreement would include one unit of affordable housing, 
and the conversion of 3 hectares of arable land into accessible natural 
greenspace with a £30,000 cash contribution towards the associated costs. 
 
The officer recommended that the application be refused for the reasons set out 
in the report. Key issues were stated to include that the site lay outside of the 
limits of development defined for Tidworth in the Wiltshire Core Strategy; that 
the proposed new build housing would have an adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the area; that the proposal did not make sufficient provision 
for on-site affordable housing; and that the proposal does not provide for 
contributions towards waste and recycling containers. 
 
Members of the Committee were invited to ask technical questions of the 
officer. In response to queries it was stated that if approved, one affordable unit 
would be offered at 75% of market value, and that the section 106 agreement 
could only be appealed after 5 years or with special permission of the council 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above. 
 
The local unitary division member, Cllr Mark Connolly, then spoke in support of 
the application 
 
Cllr Connolly, seconded by Cllr Paul Oatway QPM, moved that the application 
be delegated to the Head of Development Management to approve subject to a 
section 106 legal agreement and appropriate conditions.  
 
In the debate that followed the following points were discussed:  
 
It was noted the site lay outside the limits of development for the town, however 
it was also stated that the site was no longer considered viable for use as a 
farm and would continue to deteriorate. It was discussed whether the proposed 

Page 350



 
 
 

 
 
 

conversions of the historic structures and new housing to support the 
conversion was appropriate and beneficial, as well as offering alternative 
housing options for the area. It was confirmed that the conditions would include 
the provision of adequate drainage for the site. The extent of any section 106 
contribution should the application be approved was also debated 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was, resolved:  
 
To delegate to the Head of Development Management to approve subject 
to a section 106 agreement (for the provision of 1 discount market unit; 
the provision of the accessible natural greenspace and £30,000 commuted 
sum for its maintenance; and the contribution for the waste recycling 
containers (£1,274)), and the following conditions: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:  
Plan Ref: 140902-01 Location Plan 
Plan Ref: 140902-02 Rev B Site Plan 1 
Plan Ref: 140902-04 Block Plan 
Plan Ref: 140902-05 Demolition Plan 
Plan Ref: 140902-101 Plot 1 
Plan Ref: 140902-102 Plots 2-6 Plans 
Plan Ref: 140902-103 Plots 2-6 Elevations 
Plan Ref: 140902-107 Plot 7 
Plan Ref: 140902-03 Site Plan 2 
Plan Ref: 140902-110 Plots 8,9,10 
Plan Ref: 140902-111 Plots 11 & 12 
Plan Ref: 140902-113 Plots 13 & 14 
Plan Ref: ACLA/BFJ03 Planting Plan, Whole Site 
Plan Ref: ACLA/BFJ04 Planting Plan, Detail Area 
Plan Ref: W01169-010 Rev P01 Proposed Drainage Layout 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
(3) No works shall commence on site until an appropriate programme of 
building recording (including architectural/historical analysis) has been 
carried out in respect of the buildings to be converted. This record shall 
be carried out by an archaeologist/building recorder or an organisation 
with acknowledged experience in the recording of standing buildings 
which is acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. The recording shall 
be carried out in accordance with a written specification, and presented in 
a form and to a timetable, which has first been agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Page 351



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of 
archaeological interest. 
 
(4) No development shall commence within the proposed development 
site until: 
a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 
b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of 
archaeological interest. 
 
(5) No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, together 
with permeability test results to BRE365 including the determination of 
ground water levels, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first occupied until surface 
water drainage for that dwelling has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved scheme and the last dwelling to be occupied on the site 
shall not be so occupied until the surface water drainage scheme for the 
whole of the site has been completed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
(6) No development shall commence until details for the provision of a 
water supply and fire hydrants necessary to meet the fire-fighting needs 
of the housing development (including the installation arrangements and 
the timing of such an installation) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved measures shall be 
implemented in full accordance with the agreed details.  
REASON: To ensure that adequate measures for fire-fighting can be 
incorporated into the development, including the construction phase. 
 

Page 352



 
 
 

 
 
 

(7) The development shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
recommendations given in the Ecology report by Abbot Ecology dated 
March 2016.  
REASON:  In order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature 
habitats. 
 
(8) No development shall commence until a Landscape & Ecological 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. This will show where provision of 
bat roosting and bird nesting (e.g. nest boxes and bat tubes) will be 
located within the site and timing for provision.  The development shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved plan.  
REASON: In order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature 
habitats. 
 
(9) No dwelling shall be occupied until a lighting plan has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The plan shall 
show that light levels of 1 lux or less can be achieved at the edges of all 
tree lines and hedgerows, and shall be implemented in accordance with 
the agreed details.  
REASON: In order to protect commuting wildlife species at night. 
 
(10) Notwithstanding the approved plans, no development shall 
commence on the new build units until parking details are submitted for 
unit 14 to demonstrate there is at least 5.5m manoeuvring space.  No part 
(one part being the conversion of the existing buildings and the other part 
the new build) of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied 
until the access, turning area and parking spaces for that part of the 
development have been completed in accordance with the approved 
details including details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall be 
maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(11) No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
Step (i) A written report has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses of the 
site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination. The report shall confirm whether or not it is likely that 
contamination may be present on the site. 
Step (ii) If the above report indicates that contamination may be present 
on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a more 
detailed site investigation and risk assessment has been carried out in 
accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency’s “Model Procedures 

Page 353



 
 
 

 
 
 

for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11” and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
Step (iii) If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates that 
remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter implemented 
prior to the commencement of the development or in accordance with a 
timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
as part of the approved remediation scheme. On completion of any 
required remedial works the applicant shall provide written confirmation 
to the Local Planning Authority that the works have been completed in 
accordance with the agreed remediation strategy.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that land contamination can be dealt 
with adequately prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
(12) No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.  
REASON: To minimise disturbance to nearby residents during the 
demolition/construction stages. 
 
(13) No development shall commence on any of the buildings to be 
converted until a detailed conversion construction method statement has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
This shall include a full schedule and specification of repairs including 
any remedial work to structural defects (to include plans identifying the 
extent of any areas of rebuild and repointing). The development shall only 
be completed in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement.  
REASON: To ensure that the scheme can be delivered via conversion of 
the existing buildings without significant reconstruction that would 
otherwise amount to new build housing in the open countryside. 
 
(14) Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence 
until details of the following have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
(i) Large scale details of all external joinery including windows and doors 
(1:5 elevation, 1:2 section) including vertical and horizontal cross-
sections through openings to show the positions of joinery within 
openings, depth of reveal, heads, sills and lintels; 
(ii) Full details of proposed rooflights, which shall be set in plane with the 
roof covering; 
(iii) Full details of external flues, background and mechanical ventilation, 
soil/vent pipes and their exits to the open air; 

Page 354



 
 
 

 
 
 

(iv) Full details of proposed meter and alarm boxes; 
(v) Full details of all new or replacement rainwater goods (which shall be 
finished in black) and their means of fixing to the building 
(vi) The exact details and samples of the materials and finishes to be used 
for the external walls, roofs and external joinery. 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and/or the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
(15) No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping for the conversion and new build elements of the 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 
* details of the protection of retained trees during the course of 
development; 
* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 
* all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
(16) All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
(17) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions/extensions or external 

Page 355



 
 
 

 
 
 

alterations to any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted.  
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions/extensions or external 
alterations. 
 
(18) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors, dormer windows, rooflights, or other 
form of openings, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall be 
inserted in the elevations or roofslopes of the development hereby 
permitted. 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 
(19) The new build dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of 
energy performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has 
been issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
(20) Before any of the dwellings hereby approved are first occupied, the 
buildings shown on the demolition plan 140902-05 as being removed shall 
be demolished and the remains removed from the site. 
REASON: To protect the character and appearance of the area and the 
amenity of the residents of the dwellings.   
 
(21) Before the last of the new build dwellings hereby approved is first 
occupied, the conversion works on the seven dwellings to be converted 
shall be completed.  
REASON: The new dwellings have only been permitted to assist in the 
redevelopment of the site as a whole, to ensure that the appearance of the 
former farmstead is enhanced by the conversion of the existing buildings, 
in the interests of the amenity and appearance of the area. 
 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
 
Archaeological work 
The archaeological work should be conducted by a professionally 
recognised archaeological contractor in accordance with a written 
scheme of investigation approved by this office and there will be a 
financial implication for the applicant. 
 
 

Page 356



 
 
 

 
 
 

Drainage 
FRA says testing to BRE 365 needed for testing to determine size of 
soakaways – There is also a need to check level of ground water to ensure 
that base of soakaway is at least 1m above the level of the ground water 
including seasonal variation 
Contact required with sewerage undertaker to: 
Determine if there is sufficient capacity to serve the development or 
whether off site works are required 
Confirm if build over permission will be given, or need to divert the 
sewers or whether layout needs to change 
 
Dorset & Wiltshire Fire & Rescue  
The applicant should be made aware of the letter received from Dorset & 
Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service regarding advice on fire safety measures. 
This letter can be found on the application file which can be viewed on the 
council's website against the relevant application record. 
 
Public Protection 
In order to minimise disturbance to nearby residents during the 
demolition/construction stages no burning of waste or other materials 
shall take place on the development site during the 
demolition/construction phase of the development. 
 
It has been noted that there is a sewage treatment works to the south east 
of the site, approximately 450m away. We have considered the distance 
between the proposed development and the sewage works and reviewed 
our database for previous odour complaints in the area. I can confirm that 
we have not received any complaints previously in relation to the 
treatment works and given the distance and other nearby residential 
properties located at similar distances, it is unlikely that odour will be an 
issue. However, any future occupants should be made aware of the 
nearby sewage works. 
 
Materials 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
Bridleway 
The property would be accessed via Humber Lane. This is not recorded as 
a public vehicular highway; the only recorded public rights along it are 
bridleway rights – i.e. on foot, horse and bicycle. In order to drive a 
vehicle along here, householders would require a demonstrable private 
right of vehicular access. Without this private right the householders 
would be committing an offence under Section 34 of the Road Traffic Act 
1988. The granting of planning permission would not grant the 
householders a vehicular right of access over the bridleway. The 
developer / householders are advised to take private legal advice on this 
matter. 
 

Page 357



 
 
 

 
 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy  
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy. 
 

61. COMMONS ACT 2006 - SECTIONS 15(1) AND (2) APPLICATION TO 
REGISTER LAND AS A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN THE GREEN, 
BONDFIELD, WOODBOROUGH 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Karl Lloyd spoke in support of the application 
Miss Olivia Weremijenko spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM, on behalf of Woodborough parish council, spoke in 
support of the application 
 
Sally Madgwick, Rights of Way Officer, introduced the report which outlined the 
application for village green status to be granted to an area of land in 
Woodborough under section15 (1) and (2) of the commons Act 2006. It was 
explained that the land is currently in the ownership of Astor Property and that 
registration of land as a town or village green  can be granted if: a significant 
number of inhabitants of a locality or neighbourhood have indulged in sports 
and pastimes for a period of 20 years, in a manner that is ‘as of right’ and 
continue to do so at the time of the application. Details of witness statements 
and testimonies, as well as legal arguments by the parties, were included within 
the report. 
 
It was explained the options available to the Committee were to approve the 
registration of the land, reject the application, to hold a non-statutory public 
inquiry before determination, or seek the view of counsel on whether the council 
should determine the application without an inquiry, which was the 
recommendation in the report. 
 
Legal advice was also presented to the Committee on the acceptable grounds 
to refuse or approve an application 

Page 358



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Members of the meeting were invited to ask technical questions of the officer. In 
response to queries it was stated that most village green applications were 
determined by officers under delegated powers, but that where objections had 
been received, as in this case, it was usual to hold a non-statutory public 
inquiry. However, officers were of the view that as the key purpose of an inquiry 
would be to test the validity of witness testimonies, and that the principle 
objections to the application were instead on legal points, it was not necessary 
to hold an inquiry in order to determine the application. 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above. 
 
The local unitary division member, Cllr Paul Oatway QPM, spoke with regard to 
the application.  
 
Cllr Oatway, seconded by Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, moved that the application be 
approved. 
 
In the debate that followed, it was noted that the report had been written by a 
very experienced officer who had recommended in the supporting decision 
report that an inquiry was not required before approval, and considered whether 
it was necessary to seek further advice if they were of the view the application 
should be approved given the evidence presented in the report. The Committee 
noted the pressure on the landowners to develop housing, but considering the 
evidence with an open mind it was felt that the application would benefit a great 
number of people in the local community who had demonstrated the 
longstanding public use of the land, the site was inappropriate for development, 
and that there was no compelling reason to delay determination. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was 
 
Resolved:  
 
To approve the recommendation that the area of land shown edged and 
cross hatched in red on the plan attached hereto being called The Green, 
Bondfield should be registered as a Town or Village Green and that the 
Register of Town and Village Greens be amended accordingly. 
 
At the request of the Committee, it was noted the resolution had been 
unanimous. 
 

62. Urgent items 
There were no urgent matters 

 
(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 7.10 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718504, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk  

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 359

becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 360



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 5 JANUARY 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM, CORN EXCHANGE, DEVIZES. 
 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Charles Howard (Chairman), Cllr Mark Connolly (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Jerry Kunkler, 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM and Cllr Christopher Williams (Substitute) 
 
 
  

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Cllr Stewart Dobson who was substituted by Cllr 
Christopher Williams 
 

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To sign the minutes of the Eastern Area Planning Committee as an 
accurate record of the meeting held on 17 November 2017. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Richard Gamble, declared a non-pecuniary interest as portfolio holder for 
education, and stated that he would abstain from voting on the application. 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no chairman’s announcements 
 

5. Public Participation 
 
The Chairman explained the procedure for public participation 
 

6. Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
There were no planning appeals or updates 
 
 
 

Page 361

Agenda Item 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

7. CM09762 - COMMONS ACT 2006 - SECTION 15(1) AND (2) APPLICATION 
TO REGISTER LAND AS A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN - THE PLAY AREA 
IN MORRIS ROAD/COLLEGE FIELDS IN THE BARTON PARK/COLLEGE 
FIELDS RESIDENTIAL AREA, MARLBOROUGH 
 
Public participation 
 
Paul Grace, Marlborough College, spoke in objection to the application 
Celia Hicks, Preshute primary school, spoke in objection to the application 
 
Paul Rogers, resident, spoke in support of the application 
Peter May, resident, spoke in support of the application 
Ian Mellor, the applicant, spoke in support of the application 
 
The chairman reminded members of the public that the purpose of the meeting 
was to determine whether to request a non-statutory independent inquiry, and 
not to determine the outcome of the application itself. 
 
Sarah Marshall, senior solicitor, explained that the Committee in considering 
this matter and making a decision would be operating in their Regulatory 
function and therefore as regulatory committee of the commons registration 
authority, and not as a planning committee or a land owner. 
 
The rights of way officer, Sally Madgwick, introduced the application which was 
for the registration of a village green. She explained that as the land in question 
was owned by Wiltshire Council, case law suggested that it should be referred 
to an independent inspector who would then advise the committee.  
 
In response to a question about the legal implications of determining the 
application, the officer explained that the decision would have to be based only 
on the evidence before the committee and not on the potential other uses for 
the land. It was explained that the committee could make any decision that it 
deemed fit but that the officers report presented at this meeting did not provide 
sufficient and appropriate detailed evidence and that should the members be 
minded to determine the application they would be advised to do this at a later 
meeting upon considering the evidence and receiving more information on the 
application. 
 
Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Mark Connolly, seconded by Cllr Nick Fogg, moved to appoint an 
independent Inspector to hold a non-statutory public inquiry, as recommended 
in the report. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues covered included: that members were very 
appreciative of so many members of the public attending the meeting; that 
having heard the legal aspects of the application it would not be sensible to 
determine the application without first holding an inquiry; that it was likely that 
choosing the first option in the report would lead to the second option being 
advocated; that future plans for the site were irrelevant to the decision in hand; 

Page 362



 
 
 

 
 
 

and that it was important to appoint someone who was independent and 
transparent. 
 
Following the debate, it was 
 
Resolved:  
 
To appoint an independent Inspector to hold a non-statutory public 
inquiry and provide an advisory report for the Eastern Area Planning 
Committee on the application to register land as a town or village green in 
Barton Park/College Fields, Marlborough. 
 

8. Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 6.32 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 363



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 364



SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2016 AT ALAMEIN SUITE, CITY HALL, SALISBURY.

Present:

Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Christopher Devine (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Ian Tomes and Cllr Ian West

Also  Present:

 Cllr Atiqul Hoque and Cllr Peter Edge

83 Apologies

There were none.

84 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 September 2016 were presented.

Resolved:

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes.

85 Declarations of Interest

Cllr Brian Dalton declared a non pecuniary interest in relation to application 
16/07283/FUL, Kingscroft Farm as he knew the applicant through a work 
connection 30 years previously. He took part in the discussion and vote.

86 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public.

87 Public Participation

The committee noted the rules on public participation.

Page 365

Agenda Item 27



88 Planning Appeals and Updates

The committee received details of the appeal decisions logged and those 
determined for the period 22/08/2016 to 30/09/2016.

Resolved
That the report be received and noted.

89 Planning Applications

90 16/07232/FUL: 7 Wilton Road, Salisbury, SP2 7ED

Public Participation
Philip Easton (Agent) spoke in support to the application.

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for change of use of the 
former public house and conversion to four residential dwellings and alterations 
to existing cottage. The application was recommended for approval, subject to 
conditions.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers. There were none.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above.

The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Richard Clewer spoke in objection to 
the application, noting that there were concerns in respect of car parking 
provision and the impact of the proposed development on the surrounding area.

Councillor Clewer proposed the application be refused against Officers 
recommendation on parking grounds. This was seconded by Councillor Mike 
Hewitt.

The Committee discussed the application, noting that there was no parking 
outside the site which was on a busy stretch of road. Despite there being no 
objection from Highways it was felt that there were issues associated with 
vehicles making deliveries or dropping off along this section of the road.

The loss of a public house was also a consideration, it was noted that the Core 
Policy 49 which protected rural pubs, did not apply in Salisbury City. 

The Committee voted on the motion put forward by Cllr Clewer. It was not 
carried. 

Cllr Westmoreland moved a second motion of Approval, in line with Officer’s 
recommendation this was seconded by Cllr Chris Devine.

Page 366



Resolved
That application 16/07232/FUL be APPROVED as per the Officers 
recommendation with the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:

Drawing number 1314181/02 dated 22.04.16, as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 09.08.16, and
Drawing number 1314181/04 dated 22.04.16, as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 09.08.16, and
Drawing number 1314181/03 dated 22.04.16, as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 09.08.16, and
Drawing number 1314181/01 dated 15.07.16, as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 09.08.16.
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

3. Before first occupation of each unit of the development hereby 
approved, noise attenuation measures (i.e. good quality double 
glazing and installation of Mechanical Ventilation Heat Recovery 
System) as detailed in Section 1.4 and 10.11 of the submitted Noise 
Impact Assessment dated July 2016 (reference IMP4796-1) shall be 
implemented in full and shall be maintained at all times thereafter.

Reason: To ensure adequate noise mitigation measures are incorporated 
into the development, in the interests of amenity.

4. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays, or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.

Reason: To ensure adequate noise mitigation measures are incorporated 
into the development, in the interests of amenity.

5. No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the 
development site during the demolition/construction phase of the 
development.

Reason: To ensure adequate noise mitigation measures are incorporated 
into the development, in the interests of amenity.

Page 367



Informative for CIL:

The development hereby approved may be liable for CIL. The Community 
infrastructure levy (CIL) is a charge that local authorities in England can 
place on development in their area. The money generated through the levy 
will contribute towards the funding of infrastructure to support growth. 
Further information in respect of liability for CIL can be found on the 
Council’s website via the following link: 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfras
tructurelevy.htm

91 16/06154/OUT: Land adjacent to 1 Longhedge Cottages, Longhedge, 
Salisbury. SP4 6BP

Public Participation
Tony Allen (Agent) spoke in support to the application.

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the Outline application for four detached 
dwellings with garages on land adjacent to 1 Longhedge Cottages. He 
explained that previously at the 11 June 2015 meeting of the Southern Area 
Planning Committee, Members considered the previous application 
15/03272/OUT, where it was refused. The circumstances in respect of the 
development of the land to the immediate south and west of the application site 
had since materially altered and the applicant had now resubmitted a fresh 
application for consideration. This site was now in a sustainable position. 

The application was recommended for approval, subject to a S106 Legal 
Agreement and subject to conditions.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers. It was noted that the industrial units next to the proposed new 
properties were restricted to B1 Type use, therefore the level of noise was not a 
consideration as there would be nothing noisy or intrusive.

The access and egress of the site for all 4 dwellings was from an existing single 
access point for which there had been no highways objection. 

It was noted that the previous application had included a proposal to extend a 
footpath by S106 agreement, but that it did not now form part of the new outline 
application. 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above.

Page 368

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/dmcommunityinfrastructurelevy.htm


The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Ian McLennan spoke in support of the 
application, however noted that a contribution to a cycleway would be desirable. 
He also stated the importance of Longhedge retaining a long hedge along the 
site, and asked that the screening be maintained once the development was 
complete.

Councillor McLennan proposed approval in line with Office recommendation, 
subject to a contribution for a cycle path as far as was currently possible to the 
south; this was seconded by Councillor Ian Tomes.

The Committee discussed the application, with Cllr Clewer noted that a working 
group had identified a route for non vehicular transport and that it was important 
to maintain that route. 

It was felt that there could be a network of cycle route links around the 
development, however it was noted that there had been issues in the past with 
ransom strips for third party land.

The Chairman moved the motion to defer the application to seek further 
information, as Members wish to see a suitable pathway provided from the site 
entrance, south to the southern edge of the site along the A345, in order to 
provide a future linkage to the city. This was seconded by Cllr Chris Devine.

Resolved
That application 16/06154/OUT be DEFERED. 

92 16/07563/FUL: 3 South Street, Wilton. Salisbury, SP2 0JS

Public Participation
Matthew Holmes (Agent) spoke in support to the application.

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the conversion of the 
building to form three houses, external alterations and landscaping of the 
courtyard space. The application was recommended for approval subject to 
conditions. Site was behind No’s 1, 5 and 7 South Street, accessible between 5 
and 7 South Street. With exception of 4 parking bays the rest of the street was 
set out with double yellow lines.

The application recommended for approval subject to conditions.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers. It was noted that the policy on car parking spaces required for 
developments did not apply if the site was considered as in a sustainable 
location. Highways had not objected to the application.

Page 369



Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above.

The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Peter Edge spoke in objection to the 
application, on the grounds of the relationship to adjoining properties and lack of 
car parking. He felt that the Highways recommendations on applications to were 
not fit for purpose. Stating that for the recent five applications in Wilton, one had 
provided no parking spaces and yet was approved, where as another 
development was refused for not supplying enough car parking spaces. He felt 
that there was no consistency.

Councillor Devine proposed approval in line with Officer Recommendation. This 
was seconded by Councillor Richard Britton.

The Committee discussed the application, noting that the courtyard was within 
the red line of the application site, however it had not been considered for 
parking as it was felt there would be safety issues associated with that. 

It was queried how Highways had considered Wilton as an entirely sustainable 
location.

Resolved
That application 16/07563/FUL be APPROVED as per the Officers 
recommendation with the following conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Plan Reference: 1:1250 Scale Site Location Plan, received by this office 
03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-11 Site Layout as proposed, received by this 
office 03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-06 Ground Floor Plan as proposed, received by 
this office 03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-07 First Floor Plan as proposed, received by this 
office 03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-08 Elevation/section (as proposed), received by 
this office 03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-09 Elevation/section (as proposed), received by 
this office 03/08/2016
Plan Reference: 1143-TP-10 Elevation/section (as proposed), received by 
this office 03/08/2016

Page 370



REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

(3) No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area.

(4) No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority: 
 Step (i)            A written report has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses 
of the site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination.  The report shall confirm whether or not it is likely that 
contamination may be present on the site.
 Step (ii)            If the above report indicates that contamination may be 
present on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a 
more detailed site investigation and risk assessment should be carried 
out in accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency’s “Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11” and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 Step (iii)           If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates 
that remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter 
implemented prior to the commencement of the development or in 
accordance with a timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the approved remediation scheme. On 
completion of any required remedial works the applicant shall provide 
written confirmation to the Local Planning Authority that the works have 
been completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy.
REASON:  The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that land contamination can be dealt 

Page 371



with adequately prior to the use of the site hereby approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.

(5) No dwelling shall be occupied, until details of secure covered cycle 
parking, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These facilities shall be provided in accordance with 
the approved details prior to first occupation of the dwellings and shall be 
retained for use at all times thereafter.
REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles 
are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the private car.

(6) No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.
REASON: In the interests of amenity, due to the proximity of other 
dwellings to the development site.

(7) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements.

(8) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings other than 
those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the South East or 
South West elevations of the development hereby permitted.
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy.

INFORMATIVE: Dorset & Wiltshire Fire & Rescue 
The applicant should be made aware of the letter received from Dorset & 
Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service regarding advice on fire safety measures. 
This letter can be found on the application file which can be viewed on the 
council's website against the relevant application record.

INFORMATIVE: Private Property/Access Rights
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence.

Page 372



The applicant is advised to consider the third party comments re private 
rights and the developers should satisfy themselves/resolve matters 
before development commences.  
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Community Infrastructure Levy
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website: 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurel
evy

93 16/07283/FUL: Kingscroft Farm, Weston Lane, West Winterslow, Salisbury, 
SP5 1RL

Public Participation
Rob Williams spoke in support to the application.
Mike Taylor - representative of Winterslow Parish Council spoke in support of 
the application.

The Development Control Team Leader introduced the application for the 
erection of two new dwellings at Kingscroft Farm. The application was 
recommended for refusal as the application site was situated outside of the 
defined limits of development as set out within Core Policies CP1, CP2 and 
CP23 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and the associated policies maps.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers. It was noted that whilst the Winterslow Neighbourhood Plan 
(NHP) was emerging it was not known when it would be adopted. 

Page 373

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above.

The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Chris Devine spoke in support of the 
application, noting that whilst he accepted the Officers recommendation he 
supported the parish councils views about localism. The village had been fully 
involved with the development of a Village Design Statement and the NHP 
reflected their desires for development in the village.

Councillor Devine proposed the application be approved against Officers 
recommendation as he felt that there was a justifiable exception to Core Policy 
2. This was seconded by Councillor Mike Hewitt

The Committee discussed the application, noting that Officers were right to 
resist applications based on emerging NHPs, however there was clear support 
from the village for the development. The Committee had in the past approved 
other sites outside Neighbourhood boundaries. In Winterslow the settlement 
boundary was split in two parts, with the site in between the two areas. A pair of 
two well designed buildings were probably more preferable that a large scale 
development.

Resolved
That application 16/07283/FUL be APPROVED against the Officers 
recommendation with the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

DRG No. 885-20-01A (Block Plan)   29/09/2016
DRG No. 885-20-02 (Unit 1 Floor Plans & North and West Elevations)  
25/07/2016
DRG No. 885-20-03 (Unit 1 Roof Plans & South and East Elevations)   
25/07/2016
DRG No. 885-20-04 (Unit 2 Floor Plans & North and West Elevations)  
25/07/2016
DRG No. 885-20-05 (Unit 2 Roof Plans & South and East Elevations)   
25/07/2016
DRG No. 885-20-06 (Location Plan)    25/07/2016
DRG No. 885-20-07 (Visibility Splay)   28/09/2016

Page 374



REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

3 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

4 Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the 
carriageway, such gates to open inwards only.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

5 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the accesses, turning areas and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. 
The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

6 No part of the development shall be first occupied until the visibility 
splays detailed on the approved plans have been provided with no 
obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 900mm above the 
nearside carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be maintained free 
of obstruction at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety

7 No development shall commence on site until details of the external 
materials to be used for the walls and roof of the development have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area

8 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from 
the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until surface 

Page 375



water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and 
the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained.

9 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:-

- location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land;
- full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development;
- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities;
- means of enclosure;
-  all hard and soft surfacing materials;

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable 
this
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission

10 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 
the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 
from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features.

Page 376



94 16/07363/FUL: Bourne Hill Police Station, Salisbury, SP1 3UZ

Public Participation
Mary Stephens spoke in objection to the application.
Darryl Rogers (Agent) spoke in support to the application.
Assistant Chief Constable Kier Pritchard spoke in support to the application.
Cllr Michael Pope - representative of Salisbury City Council spoke in Objection 
to the application. 

The Development Control Team Leader introduced the application for the 
integration of the police station into existing office space for Police operational 
and administrative purposes including accommodating both a community 
policing team and an enquiry office facility. A total of 87 Officers in total would 
be based at Bourne Hill, these would be in shifts so a maximum of 24 Officers 
at a time. A request for 7 additional parking spaces to be added on to the 
existing allocation. 

The application was recommended for approval.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers. It was noted that the specific nature of the use of the 31 spaces 
was not known. The Green Travel Plan (GTP) did not permit Council staff to 
park in the car park for work, it was hoped that this also applied to Police staff. 

The Committee had been asked to consider the application pending the change 
of use of part of the building as a matter of transparency.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above.

The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Atiqul Hoque spoke in objection to the 
application, asking the Committee to consider the residents views relating to the 
car park and the rapid response vehicles which would be operating from there. 
He did not feel it was acceptable for a further 7 car parking spaces to be 
allocated to the Police.

Councillor Fred Westmoreland proposed approval in line with Office 
recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor Richard Britton.

The Committee discussed the application, noting that decision to move the 
Police station to Bourne Hill had impacted on the number of parking spaces 
available in College Street Car Park. It was felt that the level of consultation 
carried out by the Police and Crime Commissioner had not been adequate. 
There were no current air quality issues in that part of the city. 

It was noted that there was no clear indication of the type pf vehicles that would 
be using the 31 spaces, and that Highways had not seen the GTP to assess the 
suitability for use by police.

Page 377



It was felt that the GTP was an integral part of the application. There had only 
been 4 letters of objection to the application. The Committee noted that Policing 
was constantly evolving and as such the requirements had changed. It was 
necessary to accommodate the requirement of the Police within Bourne Hill, as 
this would help to develop joined up working and thinking. 

It was agreed that the Green Travel Plan submitted to satisfy condition 3 should 
be approved by members.

Resolved
That application 16/0736/FUL be APPROVED as per the Officers 
recommendation with the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

Application form dated 27th July 2016
Site Plan as received 1st August 2016
Agents supporting letter dated July 27th 2016

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

3) No part of the development shall be occupied by the new use, until 
the existing Green travel Plan has been updated and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The updated Travel Plan 
shall include details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details. The results 
of the implementation and monitoring shall be made available to the 
Local Planning Authority on request, together with any changes to 
the plan arising from those results.

REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic to 
the development.

4) The number of staff employed by the Police authority and 
permanently based at Bourne Hill shall not exceed 87 as specified 
in the applicants accompanying statement unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the local planning authority.

Page 378



REASON: In order to ensure that there is no adverse effect on the amenity 
of neighbouring residents from an increase in police numbers without 
further consideration by the local planning authority.

95 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items

(Duration of meeting:  6.00pm – 9.10pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 379



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 380



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 3 NOVEMBER 2016 AT SARUM ACADEMY, WESTWOOD ROAD, 
SALISBURY, WILTSHIRE, SP2 9HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Christopher Devine (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Jose Green, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Ian Tomes and 
Cllr Ian West 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 Cllr Bridget Wayman 
 
  

 
96 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 13 October 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

97 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

98 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

99 Apologies 
 

100 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 
 

Page 381

Agenda Item 28



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

101 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the paper 
circulated at the meeting, for the period 30/09/2016 to 21/10/2016. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
 

102 Planning Applications 
 

103 16/06154/OUT: Land Adjacent 1 Longhedge Cottages, Longhedge, 
Salisbury, SP4 6BP 
 
Public Participation 
Tony Allen (Agent) spoke in support of the application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer drew attention to late correspondence circulated at 
the meeting and introduced the outline application for 4 detached dwellings with 
garages, noting that the application had previously come to Committee on 13 

October 2016, where it had been deferred for further information in respect of 
the provision of a footpath/cycle lane along the Western boundary of the site, 
extending southwards. The application was recommended for approval, subject 
to a S106 Legal Agreement and subject to conditions.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers, it was noted that the section 106 only related to a small section 
of land, and did not cover the land proposed for preservation for the aspiration 
of a future path. The application was for 4 dwellings, and a development of that 
size did not warrant the provision of a footpath. 
 
The land was partly owned by Highways and partly by the land owner, so any 
future development of a footpath on that reserved land would need negotiation 
with the landowner. A footpath was originally offered as part of the initial 
housing development at Longehedge, however there were now 673 houses on 
the site, and it was now considered a sustainable location. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Ian McLennan noted that he felt that in 
terms of the footpath/cycle path, the wider site should be looked at as a whole, 
as most of the employment land had not been sold to anyone yet. The housing 
development ended with connection to the Longhedge employment land, he felt 
there was every case to be made for a path to go to that land, creating a 
connection, with possible access to the park and ride somehow. 
 

Page 382



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Councillor Ian McLennan proposed Refusal against Officers recommendation, 
due to the non provision of a footpath/cycle path. This was seconded by Cllr Ian 
Tomes 
 
The Committee discussed the application, noting that it was unsure how a 
development of this size could have been allowed to take hold without ensuring 
there were footpaths and access points to the city, however the application for 
consideration was for 4 dwellings and was not responsible for the provision of a 
footpath. 
 
The Longehedge development was now considered as a sustainable 
development. The ownership of a footpath, if the land was developed at a later 
date was largely a civil matter, and so unless it was incorporated in to a S106 
legal agreement, this was not a planning consideration. 
 
There was no policy background for a cycleway and no evidence that there was 
a Community aspiration for one.  
The Committee voted on the motion put forward by Cllr McLennan, it was not 
carried. Cllr Westmoreland then put forward a second motion for Approval with 
conditions in line with Officer’s recommendation; this was seconded by Cllr 
Hewitt. 
 
Resolved 
That application 16/06154/OUT be approved subject to all parties entering 
into a S106 legal agreement which secures the following: 
 

 A 2 metre wide footway shall have been constructed and made 
permanently available for use by pedestrians, adjacent the A345 
road, and to link from the access to the proposed development, to 
the adjacent pathway network, to allow pedestrian access to 
adjacent services and facilities. 

 
Then delegate to the Head of Development Management to APPROVE 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
01. This permission relates to the detailed approval of the access and 
layout only. Approval of the details of the scale, appearance of the 
buildings, and the landscaping of the site (herein called the reserved 
matters) shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing as 
per condition 03 below. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
02. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 
01 above, relating to the scale, appearance of any building to be erected, 

Page 383



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

and the landscaping of the site, shall be submitted in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
03. Applications for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to 
the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date 
of this permission.  
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
04. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the 
expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the 
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
05. The development shall be carried out in general accordance with the 
following plan(s): 
 
Drawing 0771/01 Rev S dated September 2013, as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 23.06.16. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt 
 
06. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the turning areas and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
07. No part of the development shall be first brought into use until the 
visibility splays shown on the approved plans (ref: 0771/01 Rev S) have 
been provided with no obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 0.9m 
above the nearside carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be 
maintained free of obstruction at all times thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety 
 
08. No development shall commence on site until details of the access 
including improved junction radii, kerbs, surfacing (not loose stone or 

Page 384



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

gravel), drainage and an extension to the existing footway have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
part of the development shall be occupied until the access  
improvements detailed above have been provided in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate means 
of access. 
 
09. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
insulation for the purposes of preventing the ingress of road traffic noise 
and noise from the proposed business park has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall 
include details of acoustic glazing and ventilation systems. Any works 
which form part of the approved scheme shall be completed prior to the 
premises being occupied and shall be maintained in accordance with the 
approved details at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of future occupiers of the 
proposed dwellings. 
 
10. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
screening for the purposes of protecting the residential properties and 
their external amenity space from road traffic noise and the proposed 
business park has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Any works which form part of the approved 
scheme shall be completed prior to the premises being occupied and 
shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details at all times 
thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of future occupiers of the 
proposed dwellings. 
 
11. No construction work shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays 
or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 
on Saturdays.  
 
REASON: In order to limit the impact of works on residential amenity 
12. No burning of waste shall take place on the site during the 
construction phase of the development. 
 
REASON: In order to limit the impact of works on residential amenity 
13. No development shall take place within the application site until a 
written programme of archaeological investigation, has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
programme of archaeological mitigation has been carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 

Page 385



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To safeguard the identification and recording of features of 
archaeological interest. 
 
14.Before development commences, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority which secures protection of habitats and 
species during the construction period, including pollution prevention 
measures. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
agreed CEMP. 
 
REASON: In order to prevent pollution of the water environment and to 
protect habitats and species during the construction period so as to limit 
the impacts of the development  
 
15. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first brought into use/occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
Informatives 
 
1. With regard to archaeology (Condition 13 above) the work should be 
conducted by a professionally recognized archaeological contractor in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation agreed by this office 
and there will be a financial implication for the applicant. 
 
2. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
represents chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council’s CIL Charging 
Schedule. A separate Community Infrastructure Levy Liability Notice will 
be issued by Wiltshire Council.  
 
Should you require further information with regards to CIL please refer to 
the Council's website. 
 
 

104 16/04126/OUT: Land at Hilltop Way, Salisbury, SP1 3QX 
 
Public Participation 
Keith Leslie spoke in Objection to the application. 
John Gately (Agent) spoke in support of the application. 
Kate Blakemore spoke in support of the application. 
 

Page 386



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Senior Planning Officer presented the Outline application for the proposed 
erection of 10 semi detached bungalows, new footpath link, and creation of 
public open space (resubmission of 15/11350/OUT) incorporating 20 off street 
parking spaces and 5x laybys to Hilltop Way. The application was 
recommended for Refusal. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers, it was noted that they specific type of affordable housing to go 
on the site was not yet determined. The land was currently deemed as open 
countryside. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Mary Douglas spoke in Objection to 
the application, noting that it had been called in due to local concern, as there 
had been 22 letters of concern relating to this application. She drew attention to 
the policies in place to protect residents from certain future planning issues. 
Nothing had changed with this application since the previous occasion it had 
come to committee, the impact of this development on Pauls Dene would be 
negative. The Committee were urged to refuse the application. 
 
Councillor Ian McLennan proposed the application be refused in line with 
Officers recommendation. If we pre-judge and agree a site outside of the 
housing allocation site we would open up the floodgate. We should wait to see 
what the outcome of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
(SHLAA) process was. This motion was then seconded by Cllr Richard Britton. 
 
The Committee discussed the application noting that despite the application 
being supported by Salisbury City Council’s (SCC) Planning Committee, the 
shared ownership bungalows did not fit with affordable housing, as retired 
people would find it hard to get a mortgage.  
 
The Chairman took issue with the Open Space Study and hoped that SCC 
would look at what they were asking for in terms of open space. He added that 
bungalows on a hill were not best placed for older people’s housing. 
 
Resolved 
The application 16/04126/OUT be Refused in line with Officers 
recommendation, for the following reasons: 
 
 
1 The site lies outside the defined limits for development and the proposed 

residential development for affordable housing in this location would be 
contrary to the Wiltshire Core Strategy Polices 1 and 2 and NPPF para 11, 
12, 14 and 49. Although the site is under consideration as part of the Site 
Allocation process, no decisions have been taken on the likely site 
choices, and therefore no conclusions can be drawn on the likelihood of 

Page 387



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

this site's designation. Therefore it would be premature to cite this as 
justification for allowing development contrary to the Core Strategy. By 
virtue of its scale and nature, the proposal is not considered to meet any 
of the criteria for exceptional development as set out in the Core Strategy 
and there are no overriding reasons to treat the land as an appropriate 
windfall site, because the Council can demonstrate a 5 year housing land 
supply, which would deliver affordable housing provision under the 
appropriate policies.   

2 The site currently makes a positive contribution to the character of the 
Paul’s Dene Estate and marks a degree of transition between the urban 
and rural landscapes. The closing of the open area would materially 
detract from the character of the estate and reduce the attraction of the 
adjoining bridleway for users, contrary to Core Policy 57 and para 56 of 
the NPPF.  

 
 

105 16/06309/FUL: 1 Manor Farm Cottages, The Street, West Knoyle, Wiltshire, 
BA12 6AG 
 
The Senior Planning Officer drew attention to the late correspondence 
circulated at the meeting, and introduced the retrospective application for 
Erection of an open fronted garage to cover two existing car spaces. There had 
been one objection received from the local Parish Council on four aspects. The 
application was recommended for Approval. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers, it was noted that there had been a structure previously in the 
exact position, however a replacement would still require permission as time 
has elapsed. 
 
There were no public speakers for this application. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Councillor George Jeans spoke on the 
application, noting that he respected both of the view from the Parish Council, 
and the Officers report.   
 
Councillor Westmoreland proposed approval in line with Officers 
recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Resolved 
That application 16/06309/FUL be APPROVED with the following 
condition: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

 
Site Location Plan Date Received 28.06.16 
DWG No: MC2 Existing Layout Date Received 28.06.16 

Page 388



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

DWG No: MC3 Elevations Date Received 28.06.16 
Side Elevations Date Received 28.06.16 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
106 16/06888/OUT: Farmer Giles Farmstead, Teffont, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 

5QY 
 
Public Participation.  
Pamela Fisher spoke in Objection to the application. 
Cally Troup spoke in Objection to the application. 
Mary Corrie (Applicant) spoke in Support of the application 
Chris Beaver (Agent) spoke in support of the application 
Cllr David Wood (Chairman) Teffont Parish Council spoke in support of the 
application in principle. 
 
The Area Team Leader drew attention to the late correspondence circulated at 
the meeting and presented the application, noting that this was an Outline 
application for the erection of 1dwelling and associated works following 
demolition of redundant outbuildings. The application follows an application 
made in March 2015 for a similar proposal, which was refused by the Southern 
Area Planning Committee in June 2015. The application was recommended for 
approval subject to conditions. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officers, it was noted that the retained barn as shown on the plan could 
be removed under Grampian style permission as it was on part of the applicants 
land. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member; Councillor Bridget Wayman spoke in Objection to 
the application, noting that she was a Wiltshire Council representative on the 
CC&WWDAONB Partnership Panel which was an alliance of 18 local, national 
and regional organisations that guides the implementation of the Management 
Plan. 
 
Cllr Wayman felt that the proposal was contrary to the policies CP1 & 2 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy and the exception policies CP44 for Rural Exception 
sites and CP48 Supporting Rural Life. Adding that Local Planning Authorities 
should avoid granting permission for new isolated homes in the countryside 
unless there were special circumstances, such as the essential need for a rural 
worker, the use of a heritage asset, where the development would lead re-use 
redundant or dis-used buildings and lead to an enhancement of the immediate 
setting, or the exceptional quality or innovative design of a building, however 
she felt that none of these exceptions applied in this instance.  

Page 389



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
A decision on whether the development was of exceptional quality of innovative 
design could not be determined as only an outline application had been 
submitted. Both the AONB and the parish council had expressed their concern 
at supporting such type of application. 
 
The likelihood of the visitor centre ever reopening was very unlikely as it had 
been closed for 3 years now, so this was a minor concern.  
 
The master plan which accompanied the application stated that elements of the 
vision would need to be revisited if this section of the application was approved. 
 
Originally the Lodges were permitted subject to the condition that upon Farmer 
Giles Farmstead ceasing to trade or operate from the land and/or ceasing to be 
open to the public, the lodges shall be removed and the land reinstated to 
grassland in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and approved by the 
LPA. Yet despite it being mentioned on two occasions, this had not been 
addressed. 
 
The applicant already had a house within a couple of hundred yards of the site, 
and had managed to run the visitor centre and the holiday lodges from there for 
more than a decade. 
 
The Committee should see a full and detailed application not an outline 
application so it could see exactly what was proposed in order to be able to see 
the design and how it might fit into and complement the landscape.  
 
Cllr Wayman felt that the application was contrary to so many policies, and 
asked the Committee to refuse it. 
 
However, if the Committee was mindful to approve, Cllr Wayman asked that the 
issue of the removal of the holiday lodges if tourist attraction was close be 
actioned. Or enforcement action needed to be taken. 
 
Councillor Mike Hewitt noted that with any application there was always a bit of 
give and take. He proposed that an additional condition be included to ensure 
the house was linked to the farm and could not be sold separately. Councillor 
Hewitt then proposed the application be approved in line with Officers 
recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor Jeans. 
 
The Committee then discussed the application where it was noted that a master 
plan or site vision had not been provided. In the previous application some 
Members had supported the proposal for the removal of some rundown farm 
buildings, this application now did not include this as part of the proposals and 
so it was felt that reduced the justification to permit the development in the 
AONB. 
 

Page 390



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was suggested that there had not been an overwhelming show of community 
support or of an up and coming NHP to support the development. It was felt that 
an outline application for this site did not help when considering the 
development as it was too vague.  
 
The Committee noted that the parish council had listed 8 conditions they would 
like to see included if the application was to be approved, some of which were 
not within the scope of the Committee.  
 
It was felt that the Lodges should be removed if the Farmer Giles Farmstead 
had close, and enforcement should take place now to have them removed. 
  
It was acknowledged that the applicant had already indicated that they would be 
happy for the barn to be demolished under Grampian conditions. This was 
supported by the Committee. 
 
The Committee then voted on the motion put forward by Cllr Hewitt, this was 
lost. Cllr Devine then put forward a second motion of refusal, against Officers 
recommendation for the existing reasons for refusal of the previous application. 
This was seconded by Cllr Mike Hewitt.  
 
Resolved 
That application 16/06888/OUT be refused for the following reasons: 
 

1. The application site lies in open countryside and an Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty. Within the countryside there is 
effectively a presumption against new residential development 
except in limited circumstances not relevant in this case. This 
presumption is in the interests of sustainability and amenity. It 
follows that as a matter of principle the proposal comprises 
unacceptable development. In terms of harm, the proposal would 
introduce a house and its curtilage with inevitable domestic 
paraphernalia, and these would be visually intrusive and alien in 
such an isolated rural location, distant from other residential 
properties or any settlement. By reason of their visibility and alien 
appearance, the house and its curtilage would detract from the 
wider appearance of the landscape, neither conserving nor 
enhancing its status as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
There are no exceptional circumstances which outweigh the harm 
to the countryside. 
The proposal is, therefore, contrary to Core Policies 1 and 2 (the 
settlement and delivery strategies) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, 
Core Policy 51 (Landscape) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, and 
guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework - paragraphs 
109 and 115. 

 
2. The application site supports three holiday lodges. These lodges 

were given planning permission subject to conditions requiring 

Page 391



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

their removal in the event of Farmer Giles Farmstead Ltd ceasing to 
trade or operate from the land and/or ceasing to be open to the 
public. The description of development set out on the application 
forms is "Demolition of some existing buildings and cessation of 
business and erection of a dwelling all matters reserved save for 
access, scale and siting". The supporting Design and Access 
Statement further states that "the 'tourist' use cabins [the lodges] 
would remain on site". 
Having regard to the conditions on the earlier permissions relating 
to the lodges it is considered to be unclear from the current 
application how the lodges can remain. Notwithstanding the 
additional statement received during the application from the 
applicant. 

 
 

107 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 8.40 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 392



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 12 JANUARY 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Christopher Devine (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian Tomes and Cllr Ian West 
 
Also  Present: 
 
  
  

 
108 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr Richard Britton 

 Cllr Ian McLennan 
 

109 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 3 November 2016 were 
presented. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 
 

110 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor George Jeans declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to item 9f 
S/2003/1016 - due to him sitting on the Western Area Committee of Salisbury 
District Council when the application had first come for consideration. He stated 
that he would look at it with a fresh mind.  
 
 

111 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

Page 393

Agenda Item 29



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
112 Public Participation 

 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 

113 Village Design Statement - Steeple Langford 
 
The Committee considered the contents of the Village Design Statement (VDS) 
for Steeple Langford. 
 
The Committee noted that Steeple Langford and all involved in the work should 
be commended for the VDS. 
 
The Chairman proposed the Committee support the VDS going forward as a 
material consideration. This was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
Resolved 
The Southern Area Planning Committee endorsed the Steeple Langford 
Village Design Statement as a material consideration for future planning 
applications. 
 
 
 

114 Rights of Way - Durnford Paths 8, 25 and 26 
 
Public Participation 
Nick Gallop spoke in Support to the Application 
Fiona Curtis spoke in Support of the Application 
 
The Rights of Way Officer presented the report including one representation 
and one objection received to the making of The Wiltshire Council Durnford 
Paths 8, 25 and 26 Rights of Way Modification Order 2016 made under Section 
53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, of which there were none. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Hewitt noted that the report showed 
evidence that the paths had been used for several years. 
 
Cllr Hewitt proposed Support in line with Officer’s recommendation; this was 
seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Resolved 
The Southern Area Planning Committee Approved the recommendation 
that the Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, 

Page 394



 
 
 

 
 
 

Food and Rural Affairs for determination and that Wiltshire Council 
supports the confirmation of the Order as made. 
 
 

115 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the report 
attached to the agenda, for the period 21/10/2016 to 20/12/2016. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
 
 

116 Planning Applications 
 

117 14/01986/FUL The White Hart, St John Street, Salisbury, SP1 2SD 
 
Public Participation 
Cecile Gemmell spoke in Objection to the Application 
Carina Birt spoke in Objection to the Application 
Katie Brown (Agent) spoke in Support of the Application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer drew attention to late correspondence circulated at 
the meeting and introduced the application for alterations and extensions to 
existing rear extension/courtyard, buildings, to provide function rooms, 
entrance, and 28 guest, bedrooms. Internal changes and refurbishment, with, 
enhancement of existing parking area. A site visit had taken place earlier in the 
day. The Officer gave a brief overview of the planning history of the site and 
previous schemes leading to the current revised scheme and presented the 
proposal. 
 
The application was recommended for APPROVAL subject to conditions. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that new fire escapes were included. There were no details 
on which type of glass would be used in the glazed stairwell.  
 
The Parking Statement submitted detailed that 53 spaces would be provided. 
The addition of a function room to the site was new, as there had only 
previously been a meeting room. No comments had been submitted by 
Salisbury City Council (SCC). 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Tomes pointed out the visual 
differences between the front of the building to the rear extension built in the 
1970’s. He noted that the proposal was more suited to other locations outside of 
Salisbury and its historic environment.  

Page 395



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
He felt that the proposed extension was not suited in a conservation area; next 
to a grade II listed building.  
 
With an additional 28 bedrooms and losing 23 car parking spaces, the addition 
of the extra guests using the function rooms would increase the number of 
people needing to park. The nearby car park in Brown Street, was a short stay 
and there were rarely many free spaces. 
 
Noise was an issue to consider, as with the function rooms, this would bring a 
larger mass of people even closer to the neighbouring residents, adding to the 
amount of people coming and going, increasing the noise disturbance taking 
place. The noise management plan would be forgotten in time, windows would 
still be left open allowing noise to escape. 
 
Cllr Tomes proposed REFUSAL against Officer’s recommendation for the 
following reasons: 
 

 Noise and amenity (related to the function rooms and increased 
operations of the hotel in close proximity to dwellings, dominance and 
overlooking of adjacent properties). 

 Parking – based on the loss of parking and increase in bedroom 
numbers. 

 Heritage Impact – on listed building and conservation area due to the 
poor design 

 
This was seconded by Cllr West 
 
The Committee discussed the application noting that the lack of input from SCC 
Planning Committee was unfortunate. The impact of noise on the houses in 
close proximity to the extension would be quite substantial. The Committee felt 
that covering the 1970’s extension with a more pleasing design had its merits; 
however the proposed design was considered by some, not to be appropriate 
for the conservation area.  
 
The Neighbouring houses back gardens would sit a meter below the car park, 
so the proposed extension would be over bearing to those gardens. 
 
The function rooms cause a noise issue, as they are pushed away from hotel 
and towards the neighbouring homes. 
 
Resolved 
That application 14/01986/FUL be REFUSED against Officers 
recommendation, for the following reasons: 
 
 

1. The White Hart is a substantial Grade II* listed building located at 
the heart of the Conservation Area of the historic city of Salisbury 
and forms a significant part of one of the historic Chequers of the 
mediaeval settlement. The Planning (Listed Building and 

Page 396



 
 
 

 
 
 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (Sections 16 & 66) places a statutory 
duty on the local planning authority for 'special regard' to be given 
to the desirability of preserving the special interest of listed 
buildings and their settings. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 also places a statutory 
duty on the local planning authority that 'special attention' shall be 
paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of that area. The proposed extension to the hotel would 
result in a further substantial and bulky addition to the original 
listed building with an uncharacteristic roof form, including an 
upward extension to the later 1970s block. It is considered that the 
built form and design of the proposed development would be 
unsympathetic to the character and setting of the main listed 
building, would have a negative impact on the setting of the nearby 
listed buildings and would adversely affect the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. As such, the scheme as 
submitted is considered to be contrary to Core Policies CP57 and 
CP58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (January 2015); 
guidance within the PPG and NPPF; and the duty placed on the 
Council under Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving listed building and to pay special attention 
to the desirability of preserving the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. Having regard to advice in Section 12 of the 
NPPF (in particular paragraphs 131-135) it is considered that the 
public benefits of the proposal would not outweigh the resultant 
harm identified above.    

 
2. The significant bulk and scale of the proposed development would 

result in a dominant impact on the outlook of surrounding 
properties in close proximity to the site together with increased 
levels of overlooking. The proposed expansion of the hotel would 
also result in an intensification of use of the site with a likely 
increase in noise and disturbance; in particular that associated with 
the use of the function rooms, car park and rear service area. As 
such, it is considered that the proposal would have an adverse 
impact on the living conditions and amenities for the occupants of 
surrounding properties (in particular those properties 2- I2 Ivy 
Street, 82-102 Brown Street and 3-5 St Johns Street in close 
juxtaposition with site boundary and proposed extensions) contrary 
to Core Policy 57 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy.  
 

3. The proposed development would result in a significant increase in 
hotel floorspace, including 2 function rooms and 28 additional 
guest bedrooms, whilst there would be an overall reduction in the 
current level of on-site parking available to the hotel. Having regard 
to Core Policy 64 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and the 
aims and objectives of the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan, it is 
considered that the proposed reduction in the level of on-site 
parking for the resultant development would be inappropriate; 

Page 397



 
 
 

 
 
 

where in this busy trafficked location there is pressure on the 
existing restricted level of on-street parking in the surrounding 
area; and where it is considered there are no overriding design, 
conservation and or amenity benefits resulting from the proposed 
scheme that would outweigh the harm from the significant shortfall 
in on-site parking provision in this case.  

 
118 14/01990/LBC The White Hart, St John Street, Salisbury, SP1 2SD 

 
The presentation and discussion relating to this application was included with 
the previous application on the agenda - 14/01986/FUL. 
 
The chairman; Cllr Westmoreland moved REFUSAL against Officer’s 
recommendation for the following reason: 
 

 Heritage Impact – on listed building and conservation area due to the 
poor design 

 
This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Resolved 
That application 14/01990/LBC be REFUSED for the following reason: 
 

4. The White Hart is a substantial Grade II* listed building located at the 
heart of the Conservation Area of the historic city of Salisbury and forms 
a significant part of one of the historic Chequers of the mediaeval 
settlement. The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 (Sections 16 & 66) places a statutory duty on the local planning 
authority for 'special regard' to be given to the desirability of preserving 
the special interest of listed buildings and their settings. Section 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 also places 
a statutory duty on the local planning authority that 'special attention' 
shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of that area. The proposed extension to the hotel would 
result in a further substantial and bulky addition to the original listed 
building with an uncharacteristic roof form, including an upward 
extension to the later 1970s block. It is considered that the built form and 
design of the proposed development would be unsympathetic to the 
character and setting of the main listed building, would have a negative 
impact on the setting of the nearby listed buildings and would adversely 
affect the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.  As such, 
the scheme as submitted is considered to be contrary to Core Policies 
CP57 and CP58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy (January 2015); 
guidance within the PPG and NPPF; and the duty placed on the Council 
under Sections  16 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving listed building and to pay special attention to the desirability 
of preserving the character  and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
Having regard to advice in Section 12 of the NPPF (in particular 
paragraphs 131-135) it is considered that the public benefits of the 
proposal would not outweigh the resultant harm identified above.    

Page 398



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
118a 16/09228/FUL Land at the rear of 82 Britford Lane, Harnham, 
Salisbury, SP2 8AJ 
 
Public Participation 
Andrew James spoke in objection to the Application 
Roger Pragnell spoke in objection to the Application 
Richard Harvey (Applicant) spoke in Support of the Application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer drew attention to the late correspondence 
circulated at the meeting and introduced the application for the proposed 

development of two detached chalet dwellings and garages. The application 
was recommended for Approval subject to conditions. It was noted that an 
application for 9 dwellings on an adjoining site had been approved the previous 
year. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that there were no affordable housing contributions 
because the proposal did not require section 106 contributions. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Tomes noted that he understood why 
the applicant wanted to develop their land, however there had been objections 
from several residents and SCC on the grounds of overdevelopment. 
 
Cllr Tomes proposed REFUSAL against Officer’s recommendation on the 
grounds of Overdevelopment. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Brian Dalton. 
 
The Committee discussed the application, noting that the nursery development 
next to the site had already put in a lot of backfill. In comparison to the other 
plots around the site, this proposal did not equate to overdevelopment and 
therefore from a planning point of view the application could not be refused on 
those grounds. It was felt that the proposal was an extension to a reasonable 
sized development that has already been allowed. 
 
The motion to REFUSE was not carried. 
The Chairman; Cllr Westmoreland then moved the motion of APROVAL in line 
with Officer’s recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
Resolved 
That application 16/09228/FUL be APPROVED in line with Officer’s 
recommendation, subject to conditions: 
 

Page 399



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement dated 
19/09/2016, including Tree Protection Plan GH1652b, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-02-003, dated August 2016, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-03-001, dated August 2016, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-03-002, dated August 2016, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-05-001, dated August 2016, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-05-002, dated August 2016, received by this 
office 21/09/2016 
Plan Reference: P16-065 02-02-002A, dated 07/11/2016, received by this 
office 11/11/2016 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
(3) No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 
(4) No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
development shall not be first occupied until surface drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 

Page 400



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(5) No development shall commence within the area indicated (proposed 
development site) until:  
 
• A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should 
include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing 
and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority; and 
• The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON:  To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 
 
(6) No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the 
history and current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the 
existence of contamination arising from previous uses has been carried 
out and all of the following steps have been complied with to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority:  
 
 Step (i) A written report has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority which shall include details of the previous uses of the 
site for at least the last 100 years and a description of the current 
condition of the site with regard to any activities that may have caused 
contamination.  The report shall confirm whether or not it is likely that 
contamination may be present on the site. 
 
 Step (ii) If the above report indicates that contamination may be present 
on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a more 
detailed site investigation and risk assessment has been carried out in 
accordance with DEFRA and Environment Agency's "Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11" and other 
authoritative guidance and a report detailing the site investigation and 
risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.   
 
 Step (iii) If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates that 
remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter implemented 
prior to the commencement of the development or in accordance with a 
timetable that has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
as part of the approved remediation scheme. On completion of any 
required remedial works the applicant shall provide written confirmation 
to the Local Planning Authority that the works have been completed in 
accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 
 
REASON:  The site includes the adjacent former Nursery Site and this 
condition is necessary to ensure that land contamination can be dealt 
with adequately prior to the use of the site hereby approved. 
 

Page 401



 
 
 

 
 
 

(7) The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first ten metres of the access, measured from the edge of Britford Lane, 
has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The 
access shall be maintained as such thereafter.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the site access is laid out and constructed in a 
satisfactory manner. 
 
(8) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access and vehicle turning area has been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. These areas 
shall be maintained for these purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(9) The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
(10) No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of amenity. 
 
(11) The development shall be completed in accordance with the 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement dated 
19/09/2016, including Tree Protection Plan GH1652b, received by this 
office 21/09/2016. 
REASON:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention 
of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(12) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted.  
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
(13) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or the Town and Country 

Page 402



 
 
 

 
 
 

Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 
or without modification), there shall be no additional windows, rooflights 
or dormer windows inserted above ground floor level in the roofslopes or 
gable ends of the dwellings. 
 
REASON:  To secure adequate standards of privacy for the occupants of  
neighbouring premises. 
 
INFORMATIVE: Private Property/Access Rights 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 
The applicant is advised to consider the third party comments re private 
rights and the developers should satisfy themselves/resolve matters 
before development commences.   
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Community Infrastructure Levy 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Archaeology work 
The work should be conducted by a professionally recognised 
archaeological contractor in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation approved by this office and there will be a financial 
implication for the applicant. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Dorset & Wiltshire Fire & Rescue  
The applicant should be made aware of the letter received from Dorset & 
Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service regarding advice on fire safety measures. 

Page 403



 
 
 

 
 
 

This letter can be found on the application file which can be viewed on the 
council's website against the relevant application record. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
No burning of waste or other materials should take place on the 
development site during the demolition/construction phase of the 
development. 
 
 

119 16/09446/FUL Mayfield, White Way. Pitton, SP5 1DT 
 
Public Participation 
James Mardon spoke in Objection to the Application 
Chris Juhkental (Applicant) spoke in Support of the Application 
Cllr Rod Coppock – Chair of Pitton PC spoke in Objection to the Application 
 
The Planning Officer introduced the application for Rear extension and raise 
roof to provide rooms within roof space. The application was recommended for 
approval with conditions. 
 
The site was adjacent to a conservation area, in an adopted core policy housing 
boundary area. 
 
Planning permission had been granted in March last year for a two storey 
dwelling next door, for a property named Journey’s End. 
 
A site visit had taken place earlier that day. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that the development at the neighbouring property named  
Journeys End would be built on the existing footprint.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
Concerns were expressed by a third party with regards to the accuracy of the 
Officer’s report, however the case Officer presented slides to clarify this point 
showing the relative heights of the application dwelling to adjacent dwellings, 
and explained that the dwelling as enlarged would be above the height of 
Journeys End to the south east. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Devine thanked Chairman of Pitton 
parish council for coming to present their views. He noted that Pitton was a 
unique village which had not been overrun by development of its bungalows.  
 
He felt the parking situation was not sufficient, as having three spaces in a line 
was not practical in that section of the village. He suggested that the applicant 
listen to neighbours and bring back a proposal more in keeping with the village. 
 

Page 404



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Devine proposed refusal against Officer’s recommendation on the grounds 
of the inappropriate parking arrangement. This was seconded by Cllr West. 
 
The Committee discussed the application, noting that the proposed parking 
arrangements were unrealistic, as to juggle cars out on to a busy road was not 
practical, as it sits on the narrowest point of the road. Officers should have a 
proper plan on how parking would work on the site.  
 
The proposed development was approximately 80% larger than the original 
property. From a planning point of view there were already other properties 
along the road which were two storeys, with Journeys End about to become 1.5 
storeys, so to say that a chalet bungalows did not fit here was not valid.  
 
There was room for an extension on this bungalow; however something would 
need to be worked out in terms of parking. And a condition could be put in to 
request this. 
 
The motion for REFUSAL was not carried. 
 
The Chairman Cllr Westmoreland then moved APPROVAL subject to the 
addition of a condition to request a revised Parking Plan which would 
incorporate room for parking and turning in front of the property to allow vehicle 
to leave in a forward direction. This was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
Resolved 
That application 16/09446/FUL be APPROVED as per Officer’s 
recommendation with the addition that the Applicant submit a revised 
Parking Plan; which would incorporate room for parking and turning in 
front of the property to allow vehicles to leave in a forward direction, to be 
approved by Highways before a decision is issued. Once a suitable plan 
has been received, a planning condition shall then be imposed related to 
the amended parking area.  
 
and with the following conditions: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and documents: 
 
Application Form 
Location Plan 
Block Plan  
Drawing No. 16053/1 G F Plan 
Drawing No. 16053/2/A F F Plan 

Page 405



 
 
 

 
 
 

Drawing No. 16053/3/A Elevations  
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3) The brick and roof tile to be used in the construction of the external 
surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour and texture those used in the existing building. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), no window, 
dormer window or rooflight, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall 
be inserted in the southeast or northwest roof slopes of the development hereby 
permitted.  
 

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
5) No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site, incorporating sustainable 
drainage details together with permeability test results to BRE365 with 
determination of ground water levels to allow at least 1m of unsaturated 
soil between the base of any soakaway to the top level of groundwater 
taking into account of seasonal variations, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
6) The development shall not be first occupied until surface water 
drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
 

120 16/05643/FUL Land to the rear of 22-30 High Street (The Old Garden 
Centre) and 98 Crane Street, Salisbury 
 
Public Participation 
Margaret Reese spoke in Objection to the Application 
John Collins spoke in Objection to the Application 
Dan O’Boyle spoke in objection to the Application 
Philip Villlars (Agent) spoke in support of the Application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for Change of use of 
existing retail unit/storage for restaurant use, extensions, landscaping and 
public access onto Avon riverside path and servicing access. The application 
was recommended for Approval with conditions. 

Page 406



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The site was in a conservation area and secondary shopping area. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that the vehicular entrance would be located on Crane 
Street, via a gated building, which was next to a protected wall. The conditions 
in the report included the inclusion of a scheme for safety bollards to protect the 
wall and the buildings either side. 
 
Riverside walk was partly owned by the applicant and partly by SCC, which had 
indicated support for the proposals.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Hoque was not in attendance 
 
The Chairman; Cllr Westmoreland proposed approval in line with Officer’s 
recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
The Committee discussed the application, noting that this part of the river front 
was a missed opportunity for development. However the vehicular access on 
Crane Street presented issues. Deliveries would either block the road or have 
difficulty turning in at that point of the narrowing road. The pedestrian path also 
crossed the route and vehicles using the access would not be able to see 
people using the path until they had driven out across it. 
 
The site was a derelict site in the city centre, ripe for development, however the 
entrance on Crane Street did not work. 
 
The motion for APPROVAL was not carried. 
 
Cllr Clewer then moved REFUSAL against Officer’s recommendation for the 
following reasons: 
 

 Poor design of the proposed building and access onto Crane Street, and 
the subsequent impact on the area, contrary to CP57 & 58. 

 
Resolved 
That application 16/05643/FUL be REFUSED against Officer’s 
recommendation; for the following reasons: 
 

 Poor design of the proposed building and access onto Crane Street, 
and the subsequent impact on the area, contrary to CP57 & 58. 

 
Reasons for Refusal:  
 
98 Crane Street is an unlisted building in the Salisbury Conservation Area. 
The proposal requires the demolition of this building to provide service 
access for the development. The late 19th century exterior of the building 

Page 407



 
 
 

 
 
 

makes a positive contribution to the streetscape and the setting of nearby 
listed buildings and the Conservation Area. The approach to the access 
from Crane Street is physically restricted on each side by the boundary 
wall to the Masonic Hall and the flank wall of 96 Crane Street, which is a 
Grade II listed building.  
 
The proposed replacement building would be of a "gatehouse" design, 
with no specific proposed use or occupier. It would comprise a timber 
gated access on the ground floor to enable delivery vehicles up to 7.5 
tonnes in size to access the delivery yard.  
 
The design and functional requirements of the proposed replacement 
building mean that it would not provide the same quality of aesthetic 
value as the original building to be demolished. The replacement building 
attempts to retain elements of the mass and scale of the original building 
whilst also trying to articulate itself as a gatehouse, resulting in a 
confusion of architectural styles which is considered to be unsuitable for 
this sensitive location. The resulting change in character in the active, 
street frontage from a publicly accessible beauty salon to a gatehouse is 
considerable and would be detrimental to the streetscene. The necessary 
bollards or similar barrier scheme to protect adjacent buildings and 
structures from manoeuvring vehicles is also likely to appear cluttered 
within the streetscene.  
 
98 Crane Street is considered to be a non designated heritage asset and 
its demolition and replacement as proposed is likely to have a negative 
impact on the character of the Conservation Area. There are no public 
benefits arising from the development that would outweigh this harm.  
The proposal would therefore be contrary to the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
Core Policy 57 (i), (iii), (iv), (vi) and (ix), Core Policy 58, paragraphs 134, 
135 and 128 of the NPPF and sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 

121 S/2003/1016 - E V Naish Ltd, Crow Lane, Wilton, SP2 0HD 
 
Public Participation 
Mark Blackburn spoke in Objection to the Application 
David Von Zeffman spoke in Objection to the Application 
Keith Crockett spoke in Objection to the Application  
Gavin Hall spoke in Support of the Application 
Geoff Naish spoke in Support of the Application 
Cllr Trevor Batchelder spoke from Wilton Town Council, in Objection to the 
Application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer drew attention to late correspondence circulated at 
the meeting and introduced the application for Demolition of Existing Buildings 
to Facilitate the Mixed Use Development of the Site to Provide 61 Residential 
Units, Two Commercial Units of B1 Use, One Retail Unit, and Associated Car 
Parking. The application was recommended for Approval. 
 

Page 408



 
 
 

 
 
 

There were two current access points to the site. One of which was not 
currently used by the owner. 
 
As the development was subject to a feasibility study, the elements up for 
consideration at the meeting were the access and the number of dwellings. 
 
A site visit had taken place earlier that day. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted there was no affordable housing was offered by the 
applicant as part of the scheme. The applicant wanted to know whether they 
would get permission for the scheme before he carried out a feasibility study. 
 
Affordable housing was separate to CIL and it would be possible to ask for an 
education contribution. The Education authority would want some from this 
development.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Edge noted that he called the 
application in because of the impact on the centre of Wilton. He was 
disappointed to see the old building was due to be removed. However the 
continuation of industrial use on this site was not viable.  
 
The Crow lane access was often hit by large lorries, causing damage to 
buildings either side. In his view, the development would ease traffic 
congestion. He noted that access from the C&O tractor site was due to come 
available in the near future, this could be considered as an alternative. 
 
He confirmed that emergency vehicles could currently access the site and 
would still be able to in the future.  
 
A Flood protection investigation has been worked on and there had been lots of 
negotiations on putting forward a proposal. 
 
The Old coach works was next to a listed building on the site, any development 
would need to maintain some access for that resident. He asked the Committee 
to move approval with conditions. 
 
Cllr Fred proposed Approval in line with Officer’s recommendation. This was 
seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
The Committee discussed the application, noting that the site was not suitable 
for industrial use any longer. The applicant intended to move the business to 
another site where the existing staff could be taken on. 
 
There were access problems due to the narrow width of Crow Lane and North 
Street.  
 

Page 409



 
 
 

 
 
 

This site was ripe for development; however the Committee felt that an 
affordable housing allocation should be included. There was also no public 
transport contribution and flooding was also a consideration which it was 
thought could be addressed. 
 
It was noted that SSSI had not been ignored, and was included in the report.  
 
If the agreement could not be reached on the viability in 6 months then the 
development would be refused. 
 
The motion for APPROVAL was not carried. 
 
Cllr Devine moved the motion for REFUSAL against Officer’s recommendation 
for the reasons as set out in the decision below. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Tomes. 
 
Resolved 
That application S/2003/1016 was REFUSED against Officer’s 
recommendation for the following reasons: 
 

1. The precautionary approach adopted by The National Planning 
Policy Framework is that the overall aim of decision-makers should 
be to steer new development to Flood Zone 1 and a 'Sequential 
Test' must be undertaken to see whether there are alternative lower 
risk sites that could accommodate the development. The proposal 
is for a 'more vulnerable' form of development proposed within 
Flood Zone 2/3. The NPPF makes clear that such development 
should be located in Flood Zone 1 unless it can be demonstrated 
that no such sites are available. 
The council can demonstrate that there is a readily available and 
deliverable 5-year supply of housing land in Flood Zone 1, the zone 
of least risk, within the Local Planning Authority area to meet the 
housing development needs of the area. South Wiltshire has 5.69 
years of deliverable housing land supply and therefore there is no 
urgent or immediate need for further housing to be permitted on 
this site to meet strategic requirements. 
The applicant has not demonstrated that the site should be brought 
forward for housing development ahead of other sites in Flood 
Zone 1. The proposal would 
therefore represent an unacceptable form of development with 
particular regard to its flood zone location, the flood vulnerability of 
the residential development and the sequential test of the NPPF, 
NPPG and contrary to Core Policy 67 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
2. The applicant has provided a viability assessment dated the 7th 

April 2016 which outlines the applicants case that the proposed 
development is not considered to be viable to provide the required 
contributions for affordable housing and other infrastructure 
contributions. The local planning authority's assessment of this 

Page 410



 
 
 

 
 
 

document indicates that there is scope to provide some 
contributions towards infrastructure requirements associated with 
the site. 
Therefore the proposed development, does not make provision for 
40% affordable housing on site as required by core policy 43 of the 
Adopted Wiltshire Core strategy nor does it make provision for 
other infrastructure requirements including contributions towards 
the cost of a traffic regulations order to control parking on the 
estate, Education contributions towards primary and secondary 
school education in the area, on site public art contribution or 
contribution towards waste and recycling as required by core policy 
3 of the adopted Wiltshire Core strategy. 

 
3. The site is located in the historic market town of Wilton and will be 

served by several narrow access roads. The development would 
result in significant traffic generation which would utilise the 
existing access points. Traffic generated by this residential 
development is likely to result in 24 hour use of the site on an ad 
hoc basis by residents to the detriment of the amenity of 
neighbouring residential properties situated on these access roads, 
as such the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy CP57 
(vii) of the Wiltshire Core strategy. 

 
Councillors Westmoreland, Clewer and Hewitt requested their dissent of the 
decision was noted. 
 
 
 
121a 16/07192/FUL - E V Naish Ltd, Crow Lane, Wilton, SP2 0HD 
 
The presentation and discussion relating to this application was included with 
the previous application on the agenda – S/2003/1016. 
 
The Chairman moved Officer’s recommendation for APPROVAL in line with 
Officer’s recommendation; this was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
The motion was not carried. 
 
Cllr Devine moved the motion for REFUSAL against Officer’s recommendation 
for the reasons as set out in the decision below. 
 
This was seconded by Cllr Tomes. 
 
Resolved 
That application 16/07192/FUL was REFUSED against Officer’s 
recommendation for the following reasons: 
 

4. The precautionary approach adopted by The National Planning 
Policy Framework is that the overall aim of decision-makers should 
be to steer new development to Flood Zone 1 and a 'Sequential 

Page 411



 
 
 

 
 
 

Test' must be undertaken to see whether there are alternative lower 
risk sites that could accommodate the development. The proposal 
is for a 'more vulnerable' form of development proposed within 
Flood Zone 2/3. The NPPF makes clear that such development 
should be located in Flood Zone 1 unless it can be demonstrated 
that no such sites are available. 
The council can demonstrate that there is a readily available and 
deliverable 5-year supply of housing land in Flood Zone 1, the zone 
of least risk, within the Local Planning Authority area to meet the 
housing development needs of the area. South Wiltshire has 5.69 
years of deliverable housing land supply and therefore there is no 
urgent or immediate need for further housing to be permitted on 
this site to meet strategic requirements. 
The applicant has not demonstrated that the site should be brought 
forward for housing development ahead of other sites in Flood 
Zone 1. The proposal would 
therefore represent an unacceptable form of development with 
particular regard to its flood zone location, the flood vulnerability of 
the residential development and the sequential test of the NPPF, 
NPPG and contrary to Core Policy 67 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 

 
5. The applicant has provided a viability assessment dated the 7th 

April 2016 which outlines the applicants case that the proposed 
development is not considered to be viable to provide the required 
contributions for affordable housing and other infrastructure 
contributions. The local planning authority's assessment of this 
document indicates that there is scope to provide some 
contributions towards infrastructure requirements associated with 
the site. 
Therefore the proposed development, does not make provision for 
40% affordable housing on site as required by core policy 43 of the 
Adopted Wiltshire Core strategy nor does it make provision for 
other infrastructure requirements including contributions towards 
the cost of a traffic regulations order to control parking on the 
estate, Education contributions towards primary and secondary 
school education in the area, on site public art contribution or 
contribution towards waste and recycling as required by core policy 
3 of the adopted Wiltshire Core strategy. 

 
6. The site is located in the historic market town of Wilton and will be 

served by several narrow access roads. The development would 
result in significant traffic generation which would utilise the 
existing access points. Traffic generated by this residential 
development is likely to result in 24 hour use of the site on an ad 
hoc basis by residents to the detriment of the amenity of 
neighbouring residential properties situated on these access roads, 
as such the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy CP57 
(vii) of the Wiltshire Core strategy. 

 

Page 412



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillors Westmoreland, Clewer and Hewitt requested their dissent of the 
decision was noted. 

 
 

122 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 11.16 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 413



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 414



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 2 FEBRUARY 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE, CITY HALL, SALISBURY. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Richard Clewer, 
Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, 
Cllr Ian Tomes, Cllr Ian West, Cllr Peter Edge (Substitute) and Cllr John Smale 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
  
  

 
123 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 

 Cllr Brian Dalton – who was substituted by Cllr Peter Edge 

 Cllr Chris Devine – who was substituted by Cllr John Smale 
 
 

124 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2017 would be presented at the 
next meeting due to outstanding editing. 
 
 

125 Declarations of Interest 
 
The following declarations were made: 
 

 In relation to application 16/08981/FUL - Cllr Jose Green noted that the 
land owners Mr & Mrs Sheppard were an acquaintance of hers. As this 
was a non-pecuniary interest Cllr Green took part in discussion and 
voted on this application. 

 
126 Chairman's Announcements 

 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 
 

Page 415

Agenda Item 30



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
127 Public Participation 

 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
The following question was then asked by Cllr Ian West: 
 
With regards to the decision and conditions set for application 16/03988/FUL 
Stonehenge Visitor Centre – at the meeting of the Southern Area Planning 
Committee on 17 July 2016. 
 
Could the Planning Team Leader provide clarity on whether condition 4 
(detailed below) had been satisfied or whether it was still outstanding? 
 
Condition 4  
Notwithstanding the submitted drawings showing the proposals for directing 
pedestrian arrivals in the vicinity of the A344 junction with Byway 12,  prior to 
the commencement of the development hereby approved further details shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
demonstrating how pedestrians using the signed and lined route on the 
southern side of the A344 can access the Stones without having to cross the 
A344 or to walk within the route used by the Visitor Transit System to the east 
side of Byway 12. The approved details shall be implemented before the 
proposed bus turning arrangements are brought into effect. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway and visitor pedestrian safety. 
 
Action: The Planning Team leader would look in to the matter and provide 
an update to Cllr West. 
 

128 Rights of Way - Donhead St Andrew, Path No. 27 
 
Public Participation 
Anne Shaw spoke in Objection to the application 
Marcus Sheppard spoke in objection to the application 
Colin Saw spoke in Support of the application 
Liz Collyer spoke in Support of the application 
Simon Barham spoke in Support of the application. 
Cllr Particia Maxwell-Arnot of Donhead St Andrew Parish Council spoke in 
Support of the application. 
 
The Rights of Way Officer presented the report which asked Members to 
consider the objections and  representations received against the evidence 
already before the Council in this case and the legal tests for making a definitive 
map modification order, under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 and Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980, in order to determine the 
Wiltshire Council recommendation to be attached to the Order when it was 
forwarded to the Secretary of State for determination. 
 
Attention was drawn to two amendments to Appendix E of the report, as follows: 

Page 416



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Appendix E: 
 

1) Page 14 – “Objections” column – paragraph 4, lines 1 and 2 presently 
read “It is also untrue that the majority of the village wants this new path; 
it is true that the vocal majority want it…” Please substitute the second 
reference to “majority” to “minority” to read “It is also untrue that the 
majority of the village wants this new path; it is true that a vocal 
minority want it…” 

 
2) Page 15 – “Objections” column – paragraph 2, lines 15 and 16 presently 

read “…is shown marked S2…” Please add the wording “…by a green 
line. The position of the stile in the new fence is…”, to read “…is shown 
by a green line. The position of the stile in the new fence is marked 
S2…” 

 
The Application was submitted by Donhead St Andrew Parish Council and was 
supported by 33 witness evidence forms. There had also been 9 objections to 
the order. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that if a Land owner took steps formally to tell public that 
they had permission to use a route, then that would prevent that route from 
becoming a public Right of Way. It was also noted that regardless of the 
decision of the Committee, the next stage would be for the Order to go to the 
Secretary of State.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, was not in attendance. 
  
Cllr Tomes moved APPROVAL in line with Officer’s recommendation. This was 
seconded by Cllr Edge.  
 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Order for Path No. 27, Donhead St Andrew be forwarded to the 
Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for 
determination, with a recommendation from Wiltshire Council that the 
Order be confirmed without modification.  
 
 

129 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the report 
attached to the agenda, for the period 20/12/16 to 19/01/17. 
 
Resolved 

Page 417



 
 
 

 
 
 

That the report be received and noted. 
 
 
 

130 Planning Applications 
131 16/08981/FUL -  Toll Cottage, Towns End, Wylye, BA12 0RZ 

 
Public Participation 
Nicola Worrall spoke in Objection to the application. 
Patricia Craddock spoke in Support of the application 
Anthony Craddock spoke in Support of the application 
James Appleton spoke in Support of the application. 
 
The Planning Team Leader introduced the application for erection of a single 
storey side extension at Toll Cottage, Towns End, Wylye. The application was 
recommended for APPROVAL with conditions. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that the proposed development would be set back from the 
existing frontage of the cottage. It was clarified that the property had always 
been a two-storey building.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Councillor Ian West noted that this had been a 
difficult application for him to consider as he could see both sides. He felt that 
although the building was not listed the proposals would lead to the existing 
character of the old toll house being lost. 
 
Cllr West proposed refusal against Officer’s recommendation on the grounds of 
loss of original building and impact on the street scene. This motion was 
seconded by Cllr McLennan 
 
The Committee then discussed the application, where it was noted that there 
was nothing on record to indicate that the property had ever been flooded 
externally. 
 
It was noted that there had been no objections from either Highways or the 
Conservation Officer and that off-road parking was provided within the proposal. 
 
Whilst some members felt that the historic significance of this property had 
already been lost due to previous works, it was noted that there were many 
other single story extensions in Wylye as alterations were sometimes needed to 
make properties more suitable for modern living. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion for REFUSAL. That motion was not carried. 
 
Cllr Westmoreland moved Officer’s recommendation for APPROVAL, this was 
seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 

Page 418



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
That application 16/08981/FUL be APPROVED in line with Officer’s report, with 
the following conditions: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans Application form received 29/09/2016 Proposed plans 
and elevations Drg no 1315/16/02/C received 28/11/16 Parking layout Drg no 
1315/16/05 received 18/11/16 
 
3) The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has 
been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be 
maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into use 
until the access and parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the 
details shown on the approved plans (1315/16/05). The areas shall be maintained 
for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
5) No development shall commence on site until details of all eaves, windows 
(including head, sill and window reveal details), doors, rainwater goods and 
canopies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
6) The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use until all 
of the 
external walls have been rendered and painted in a colour and finish to match 
that of the external walls of the existing building unless otherwise agreed in 
writing and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 

Page 419



 
 
 

 
 
 

7) The tiles to be used in the development hereby permitted shall match those of 
the existing building in terms of their material, colour, texture, profile and pattern 
of laying unless otherwise agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
 
Cllr Clewer left the meeting at 8pm 
 
 

132 16/04956/FUL - Longacre Farm, Figsbury, Salisbury, SP4 6DT 
 
Public Participation  
Mr Burrows (Agent) spoke in Support of the Application 
 
The Planning Team Leader drew attention to the late correspondence, from 
Highways and the Applicant which had been circulated at the meeting. He then 
introduced the application for proposed construction of agricultural trackway, 
pole barn for hen house, service link building, pole barn for rearing shed and 
feed bins, along with temporary stationing of mobile home, all in connection with 
free range egg production flock, with associated works, at Longacre Farm, 
Figsbury, Salisbury. 
 
The application was recommended for REFUSAL on Highways grounds. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
Officer, it was noted that it would not be possible for the applicant to adjust the 
land to overcome the visibility issue raised by Highways. 
 
It was noted that the decisions of previous planning applications detailed in the 
report had all either been refused or withdrawn. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed above. 
 
The unitary Division Member, was not in attendance.    
 
Cllr Hewitt moved APPROVAL, against Officer’s recommendation. This was 
seconded by Cllr McLennan. 
 
The Committee then discussed the application, it was noted that the access to 
the farm lay in a dip and that farm vehicles exiting the site would have limited 
visibility from vehicles approaching at speed from the direction of Salisbury. 
 
Some Members felt that as the site was clearly visible from the road the 
proposals were contrary to CP51 & 58. 
 
The motion for approval was not carried.  

Page 420



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Cllr Westmoreland then moved REFUSAL in line with Officer’s recommendation 
on the grounds given by Highways and in addition to the impact on Landscape 
issues raised during discussion, CP51 & CP58. This was seconded by Cllr 
Britton. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 16/04956/FUL be REFUSED in line with Officer’s 
recommendation, for the following reasons: 
 
 

1. The site is served by bridleway FIRS3 directly off the A30. Vehicles 
resulting from the proposed development entering and leaving the 
busy fast section of the A30 Class 1 road at a point where visibility 
from and of such vehicles is substandard, would endanger, impede 
and inconvenience other road users to the detriment of highway 
safety. As such the proposal is considered to be contrary to the 
aims and objectives of Core Policy 62 ‘Development impacts on the 
transport network’ of the Wiltshire Core Strategy as the 
development does not provide appropriate mitigating measures to 
offset any adverse impacts on the transport network at both the 
construction and operational stages. 

 
2. The proposed pole barn, rearing shed and feed bins will be 

substantial structures in this sensitive rural location, measuring as 
they do, 5.4M in height to the top of the feed bins and 5.2M to the 
ridge of the barns. Such substantial structures will be prominently 
visible in the landscape in views along the A30 and from Figsbury 
rings Hill Fort, scheduled Ancient monument. There is a roman road 
that runs to the South of the application site along footpath Firs 2. It 
is considered that the effect of these structures in combination with 
that of the new trackway and mobile home would not be completely 
mitigated by the bunding proposed. The site is located in a special 
landscape area and it is considered that such large and prominent 
structure’s will have a negative and intrusive effect on the special 
landscape area and views of it, and would therefore be contrary to 
Saved policy C6 of the Salisbury District council local plan and core 
policy 51 (vi) of the Wiltshire Core strategy. 

 
 
 

133 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items, however the following site visits were requested, 
should the applications come to committee: 
 
 

 Cllr West requested 16/11817/FUL - Land at Grove House Maddington 
Street Shrewton Salisbury Wiltshire.  
 

Page 421



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Cllr Tomes requested 16/11241/OUT - 142 Netherhampton Road 
Salisbury Wiltshire SP2 8LZ. 

 

 Cllr Britton requested 16/11803/FUL - Forest View Clay Street 
Whiteparish Wiltshire SP5 2ST 

 

 Cllr Jeans requested 16/12217/OUT - Land at Castle Street Mere 
Wiltshire. 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  6.00pm – 8.30pm) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 422



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 12 OCTOBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN.

Present:

Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, 
Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe (Substitute), Cllr Russell Hawker (Substitute), Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
and Cllr Graham Payne

Also  Present:

Cllr David Jenkins

86 Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from:

 Cllr Dennis Drewett – substituted by Cllr Russell Hawker
 Cllr John knight – Substituted by Cllr Jerry Wickham
 Cllr Pip Ridout – Substituted by Cllr Fleur De Rhe-Philipe
 Cllr Roy While

87 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 216 were presented.

Resolved:

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 September 2016.

88 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman’s Announcements.

The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency.

Page 423

Agenda Item 31



89 Declarations of Interest

In respect of Application 16/05078/FUL, Councillor Ernie Clark stated he drew 
attention to his register of interest.

90 Public Participation

The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting.

The Chairman referred to the supplement agenda which included questions 
received from councillors and member of the public and answers from officers.

Cllr Ernie Clark asked a supplementary question - 

“Would the E1A site be most suitable for the relocation of the house hold 
recycling centre?”  

Mr Ernie Clark spoke in objection to application 16/05078/FUL.

91 Planning Applications

The Committee considered the following applications:

91a 15/03120/FUL - Rosefield House, Polebarn Road, Trowbridge

Prior to the meeting convening, the elected members undertook an officer-led 
site visit following the deferment of the application at the meeting on 28 
September 2016.

The case officer presented the report which recommended that permission 
should be granted for a change of use of existing stable block at the rear of 
Rosefield House to form 2 residential units and the erection of a two-storey side 
extension to form one additional residential unit.

The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the proposed development, the means of access, 
the impacts on neighbours and the impact upon the character of the 
conservation area.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; an email stating the applicant would agree to 
amend the plans should members of the committee resolve not to support the 
application.  Although it was noted that no formal amended plans had been 
receive.  Consideration and debate also centred on the potential loss of light the 
development would have upon the neighbouring property. Members were 
informed that a loss of light calculation had not been undertaken.

Page 424



Public Participation

Pat Hayes spoke in objection to the application.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above.

A debate followed where a motion was then moved to refuse the application.
Key points of the debate were; loss of light, amenity and overlooking, the 
relationship to the adjoining property and the proposed insertion of obscure 
glazing for a habitable room window in the new development. 

The motion for refusal was lost and a new motion was then moved to defer the 
application and instruct the case officer to obtain revised plans from the 
applicant removing the side extension and third residential unit.  The committee 
also requested that a 25 degree window light survey be undertaken and 
reported upon.

Resolved:

To defer the application to obtain revised plans from the applicant and to 
conduct a 25 degree light survey.

91b 16/05078/FUL - 16 St Thomas Passage, Trowbridge

Cllr Ernie Clark left the room before the application began. 

The case officer presented the report which recommended that outline 
permission be granted for the erection of 6 apartments and associated access 
works following the demolition of the existing dwelling. The key planning issues 
identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and comprised: the principle 
of the proposed development, highway access, the impacts on the 
Conservation Area and the amenity of neighbouring properties and future 
occupants.

Members of the Committee had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
officer. Details were sought regarding the amount of parking space that wold be 
provided and access for emergency vehicles. 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views as 
detailed below

Public Participation

Albert Aird spoke in objection to the application.
Mrs Doreen Williams spoke in objection to the application.
James Pike, applicant, spoke in support of the application.
Chris Beaver, agent, spoke in support of the application.

Page 425



An issue of land dispute, raised as part of Mrs Williams oral representation was 
discussed by members; and Mr Felton, the Council’s Solicitor, advised the 
Committee that the issue was a civil matter and not a matter for the 
consideration of the Committee. 

Cllr Graham Payne read out a statement for the local member Cllr Nick 
Blakemore with the key points focusing on: the access to the development, 
congestion, illegal parking, lack of provision for visitor parking, narrow entrance 
in close proximity to the access of neighbouring properties, lack of a suitable 
access for emergency vehicles, inadequate access for construction vehicles, 
lack of visibility when exiting the property, danger to pedestrians, with the only 
entrance and exit onto a main road, overdevelopment of the site and the 
development being built too close to neighbouring properties. 

A motion was moved and seconded to approve the officer’s recommendation. 
Main points of the debate included; that there had been no objection from 
highway authority or the emergency services about access. A proposed 
condition was discussed about the need for a construction management plan 
and to restrict any construction fires on the site.

Resolved

 To Grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The materials to be utilised in the development hereby permitted 
shall accord with those annotated on the approved drawing AL(1)02 REV 
D registered on 20 June 2106.

REASON; In the interest of the appearance of the Conservation Area.

3. No part of the development shall be first occupied until the 
improvements to the junction of the access with Timbrell Street, shown on 
the approved plan A095925 - GA01 A, have been completed.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

4. The parking spaces as shown on the approved plans shall be 
provided and the access arrangements created prior to the first dwelling 
being occupied.

REASON: In the interests of road safety.

Page 426



5. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to 
site for the purpose of development, until a Tree Protection Plan showing 
the exact position of each tree/s and their protective fencing in 
accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012: "Trees in Relation to 
Design, Demolition and Construction -Recommendations"; has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
and; 

The protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved 
details. The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire 
development phase and until all equipment, machinery and surplus 
materials have been removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be 
removed or breached during construction operations. 

No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any 
retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the 
approved plans and particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be 
carried out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - 
Recommendations" or arboricultural techniques where it can be 
demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 

If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree 
shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and planted at 
such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 

No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of 
any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, 
cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 
metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site 
or adjoining land. 

[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be 
retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and 
paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of five years from 
the first occupation or the completion of the development, whichever is 
the later]

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure 
the retention of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity.

6. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on 
site until an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) prepared by an 
arboricultural consultant providing comprehensive details of construction 
works in relation to trees has been submitted to, and approved in writing 

Page 427



by, the Local Planning Authority. All works shall subsequently be carried 
out in strict accordance with the approved details. In particular, the 
method statement must provide the following; 

- A specification for protective fencing to trees during both demolition and 
construction phases which complies with BS5837:2012 and a plan 
indicating the alignment of the protective fencing;
- A specification for scaffolding and ground protection within tree 
protection zones in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012;
- A schedule of tree works conforming to British Standard 3998: 2010;
- Details of general arboricultural matters such as the area for storage of 
materials, concrete mixing and use of fires;
- Plans and particulars showing the siting of the service and piping 
infrastructure;
- A full specification for the construction of any arboriculturally sensitive 
structures and sections through them, including the installation of 
boundary treatment works, the method of construction of the access 
driveway including details of the no-dig specification and extent of the 
areas of the driveway to be constructed using a no-dig specification, 
should this be necessary.
- Details of the works requiring arboricultural supervision to be carried out 
by the developer's arboricultural consultant, including details of the 
frequency of supervisory visits and procedure for notifying the Local 
Planning Authority of the findings of the supervisory visits; and
- Details of all other activities, which have implications for trees on or 
adjacent to the site.
- Day and sunlight calculations must be submitted in accordance with 
Building Research Establishment guidance and British standards 8206 
Part 2:1992Light for buildings Part 2 -code of practice for day lighting.
- In order that trees to be retained on-site are not damaged during the 
construction works and to ensure that as far as possible the work is 
carried no demolition, site clearance or development should commence 
on site until a pre-commencement site meeting has been held, attended 
by the developer's arboricultural consultant, the designated site foreman 
and a representative from the Local Planning Authority, to discuss details 
of the proposed work and working procedures. 
- Subsequently and until the completion of all site works, site visits 
should be carried out on a monthly basis by the developer's arboricultural 
consultant. A report detailing the results of site supervision and any 
necessary remedial works undertaken or required should then be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. Any approved remedial works 
shall subsequently be carried out under strict supervision by the 
arboricultural consultant following that approval.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in order that the Local Planning Authority may be 
satisfied that the trees to be retained on and adjacent to the site will not 

Page 428



be damaged during the construction works and to ensure that as far as 
possible the work is carried out in accordance with current best practice 
and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

7. Prior to the commencement of development, a noise survey for the 
proposed dwellings shall have been submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The survey shall have been 
undertaken by a competent person and identify appropriate noise 
mitigation measures. Such detail and appropriate consequential noise 
mitigation measures as shall have been agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of 
any dwelling unit and shall be maintained as agreed thereafter.

REASON: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not 
detrimental to the amenity of the future residents by reason of undue 
external noise. 

8. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method statement, which shall include 
the following:
- The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
- Loading and unloading of plant materials;
- Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
- The erection and maintenance of security hoarding;
- Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, 
with a specific exclusion of any fires on site;
- A scheme for recycling / disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works;
- Hours of construction, including deliveries,
- Routing of construction traffic.
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved construction method statement 
without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 
the amenities of the area in general, detrimental to the natural 
environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, 
during the construction phase.

9. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

AL(1) 01 REV E registered on 16 June 2016; AL(1) 02 REV D registered on 
16 June 2016; AL(1) (03) REV B registered on 16 June 2016; and A095925-
GA01REV A registered on 16 June 2016.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

Page 429



INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT:

The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 

Planning permission for development does not provide a defence against 
prosecution under this legislation or substitute for the need to obtain a 
bat licence if an offence is likely. If bats or evidence of bats is found 
during the works, the applicant is advised to stop work and follow advice 
from an independent ecologist or to contact the Bat Advice Service on 
0845 1300 228, email enquiries@bats.org.uk or visit the Bat Conservation 
Trust website

92 Planning Appeals and Updates

The Planning Appeals Update Report for 16/9/2016 – 30/9/2016 was received.

The chairman requested that the issued appeal decision for the Shurnhold site 
(land off the A365) in Melksham (14/11919/OUT) be reported to the next 
Strategic Planning Committee.

Resolved:

To note the Planning Appeals Update Report.

93 Urgent Items

There were no Urgent Items.

(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.30 pm)

Page 430



The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail mailto:jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 431



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 432



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 2 NOVEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr John Knight (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Dennis Drewett, 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Jonathon Seed and Cllr Graham Payne 
 
 
  

 
94 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies. 
 

95 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 12 October 2016. 
 
 

96 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Seed disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in the rights of way modification 
order – Codford Path no 15. Noting that he knew both supporters and objectors 
and had previously carried out work with the farmer.  
 

97 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

98 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 

Page 433

Agenda Item 32



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
The Chairman referred to the agenda which included a question received from a 
councillor and answers from officers. 
 

99 CODFORD PATH No. 15 - RIGHTS OF WAY MODIFICATION ORDER 2016 
 
The Rights of Way Officer outlined the report which recommended that the 
Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs and that Wiltshire Council should take a neutral stance in the matter. 
 
Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask technical 
questions of the officer which focused on; the sufficiency of evidence of use that 
may be accepted and to clarify conflicts of evidence. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed: 
 
Public Participation 
 
Josh Stratton spoke in objection to the order. 
 
Jonathan Cheal spoke in objection to the order. 
 
Romy Wyeth spoke in support to the order. 
 
Beth Richardson-Aitken spoke in support of the order. 
 
David Shaw spoke in support of the order. 
 
The Rights of Way officer clarified a point that the ‘private road’ signs could be 
considered to relate to vehicle access and not on those passing by foot or on 
horse.  
 
A debate followed where a motion was moved to refuse the order. Key points of 
the debate were; the current signage was not relevant; the need to cross 
examine evidence, relevance of some evidence and lack of historical data 
information.  
 
The motion to refuse the order was lost and a new motion to approve the 
officers’ recommendation was moved.  
 
Resolved  
 
That “The Wiltshire Council Codford Path No. 15 Rights of Way 
Modification Order 2016” is forwarded to the Secretary of State for the 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and that Wiltshire Council takes a 
neutral stance in the matter. 

Page 434



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
100 Planning Applications 

 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

101 15/03120/FUL - Rosefield House, Polebarn Road, Trowbridge, BA14 7EQ 
 
The case officer presented the revised report which recommended the 
application for a change of use of existing Stable Block at the rear of Rosefield 
House to form 2 residential units to include single storey 
lean-to extension replacing shed building, be granted. 
 
The key points identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the changes to the original plans and a light assessment results. 
Key planning issues referred to include; loss of employment land; ecology and 
parking and access. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; the accuracy of the plans, where it was noted 
that there was a slight error with one plan drawing showing an erroneous line 
outside of the application site leading off proposed side extension.  Officers 
however confirmed that the submitted plans were to scale and no development 
would take place or protrude beyond the application site/subject building. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed: 
 
Public Participation 
 
Alan Hayes spoke in support to the revised application which resolved his 
previous concerns and objections. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve officer’s 
recommendation. The main focus of the debate was around the removal of 
asbestos and Members requested that an informative be added. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions and 
informatives: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory     
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 435



 
 
 

 
 
 

2. No dwelling shall be occupied until parking spaces for four 
vehicles, together with the access thereto, have been provided in 
accordance with details to be submitted for approval in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The parking and turning spaces shall 
be retained for use as such thereafter. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 

3. No demolition, development or other internal works shall 
commence prior to the assessment of the building for bats and 
nesting birds. The assessment shall be carried out by a licensed, 
professional ecologist. If the buildings are assessed as having low, 
moderate or high potential for roosting bats or other protected 
species, then subsequent presence/absence surveys shall be 
undertaken. If presence of bats or other protected species is 
confirmed, an impact assessment comprising detailed mitigation 
measures, a monitoring strategy and habitat enhancements shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority before any demolition 
or other internal works are undertaken. The mitigation strategy, 
monitoring and habitat enhancements shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and as modified by a relevant 
European Protected Species Licence from Natural England (where 
applicable). 

 
REASON: In the interests of the protection of Protected Species. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  

 
CLCS/126/03 registered on 13 October 2016; CLCS/126/04 
registered on 13 October 2016; CLCS/126/010 registered on 18 
October 2016; and CLCS/ 136/104 REV A received on 11 August 
2016. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
PLANNING INFORMATIVES: 
 
This Decision notice must be read in conjunction with that in 
relation to application 15/03181/LBC and the conditions applicable 
thereto. 
 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
may represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined 
to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of 
the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form 

Page 436



 
 
 

 
 
 

has not already been submitted, please submit it now so that we 
can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim 
exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant form 
so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement 

 
Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire 
Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being 
issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief 
will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with 
immediate effect. 
 
The applicant's attention is invited to the potential presence of 
asbestos in the out-building to be demolished and that appropriate 
measures should be taken to ensure that demolition takes place in 
terms of health and safety requirements. 

 
102 Planning Appeals and Updates 

 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for 30/09/16 – 20/10/16 was received. 
 
A formal question was asked by a member of the public pursuant to whether 
and how the Council calculates greenfield windfall residential development as 
part of the annualised housing land supply statement, It was agreed that the 
committee clerk would pass the question to the spatial planning team and 
obtain a written response and for it to be made available at the next meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 30/09/16 – 20/10/16. 
 

103 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail mailto:jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 437



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 438



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 23 NOVEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, 
Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Dennis Drewett, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Gordon King (Substitute) 
and Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald 
Cllr Nick Blakemore 
  

 
104 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 

 Cllr Seed who was substituted by Cllr Wickham 

 Cllr MacDonald who was substituted by Cllr King 

 Cllr Payne 

 Cllr While 
 

105 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 216 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 2 November 2016. 
 

106 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

107 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 

Page 439

Agenda Item 33



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

108 Public Participation 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
Formal questions with answers included in the agenda were noted.  
 
Mr Morland asked who had drafted the response and sought additional 
clarification pursuant to his formal question. In response, the Council’s senior 
spatial planning officer Christopher Roe, explained that Wiltshire Council did not 
include greenfield sites when calculating residential windfall opportunities as 
part of the 5 year housing land supply assessment. 
 
Several Members expressed some concern about this and it was agreed that 
the Chairman, in consultation with the Vice Chairman, would discuss the 
possibility of having the issue as a future agenda item. 
 

109 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

110 16.07361.FUL - Bitham Brook County Primary School, Arundell Close, 
Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3UA 
 
The case officer presented the report which recommended the application for 
the existing primary school to be extended in a 2 phase development with an  
additional informal and formal hard play area added, be granted subject to 
conditions.  
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, impacts on the character and 
appearance of the area, impacts on neighbouring residential amenities, highway 
safety and parking and archaeology. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; the status of the school travel plan and if 
parents had to adhere to the plan.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
 
Public Participation 
 
David Ross, on behalf of Bitham brook school, spoke in support to the 
application. 
 

Page 440



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Ian Cunningham, Westbury TC, spoke in support of the application.  
 
 
Cllr King as the local member highlighted the following points: - local residents 
were in support of the school but were anxious that the issues with parking and 
drop off would become worse, clear and consistent communication with parents 
was required to tackle the transport issues and the need for the transport plan 
to commence as soon as possible and not wait until the latter stages of the 
development.  
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve the officer’s 
recommendation. The main focus of the debate was around the school 
transport plan and parking restrictions.  
 
Members were informed that the school travel plan could be bought forward to 
the beginning of the development and that a transport regulation order could be 
negotiated  
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved:  
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions and 
informatives: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans: Red Line 
Location Plan; Existing Site Plan Rev A; Phase 1 Site Plan Rev 
A; Roof Plan Existing and Phase 1; Roof Plan Phase 2 Rev A; All 
Phases GIFA (Gross Internal Floor Area) Plans Rev A; Ground 
Floor Existing and Phase 1 Plan and Phase 1 Section; Ground 
Floor Phase 2 and Sections B and C Rev A; Existing Elevations; 
Phase 1 Elevations ; Phase 2 Elevations Rev A; Elevations All 
Phases Rev A, received 30th August 2016. Phase 2 Site Plan Rev 
C, received 20th October 2016. Bin and Cycle Stores, received 
03rd November 2016 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
3. No development shall commence on site until:  

- A written programme of archaeological investigation, which 
should include on-site work and off-site work such as the 

Page 441



 
 
 

 
 
 

analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority; and 
- The approved programme of archaeological work has been 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 

REASON:  To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 

 
4. No development shall commence on site (including any works of 

demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 
include the following:   
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
b) the loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
c) the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development;  
d) the measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction;  
e) the hours of construction, including deliveries; 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied 
with in full throughout the construction period. The development 
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
approved construction method statement. 
 

REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, 
the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment 
through the risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the 
construction phase. 

 
5. The development shall not be brought into use until an updated 

School Travel Plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan shall 
include: 
- Promotion of safe walking routes to school by identifying and 
mapping routes (particularly off-road footpaths), park-and-stride 
locations, and five- and ten-minute walking zones; 
- Establishment and operation of a walking bus from appropriate 
park-and-stride locations such as the Co-op car park; 
- Establishment of a rota of parents to monitor parking on 
Arundell Close;  
- Timing of full parent surveys 
- Details of implementation and monitoring and shall be 
implemented in accordance with these agreed details.  
The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together 
with any changes to the plan arising from those results. 
 

REASON: In the interests of road safety and reducing vehicular traffic to 
the development.  

 

Page 442



 
 
 

 
 
 

6. Phase 2 of the development shall not be brought into use until the 
parking area shown on the approved plans has been 
consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the 
approved details. This area shall be maintained and remain 
available for this use at all times thereafter. 
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 

 
7. Phase 2 of the development shall not be brought into use until the 

cycle parking facilities shown on the approved plans have been 
provided in full and made available for use.  The cycle parking 
facilities shall be retained for use in accordance with the 
approved details at all times thereafter. 
 

REASON: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles 
are provided and to encourage travel by means other than the private car 

 
8. Phase 2 of the development shall not be brought into use until the 

refuse and recycling facilities shown on the approved plans 
have been provided and made available for use. These facilities 
shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details 
thereafter. 
 

REASON: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage 
of refuse and recycling.  

 
9. The materials to be used in the construction of the external 

surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall match in 
material, colour and texture those used in the existing building 
with the exception of the Trespa Cladding System to be used on 
the end elevation of phase 1 which shall be in accordance with 
the details submitted with this application. 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 

 
10. The MUGA hereby permitted shall only be used between the hours 

of 09:00 and 18:00 from Mondays to Saturdays only. 
 

REASON:  To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area.  

 
INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised to contact the council's highway 
team to investigate the potential setting up a Traffic Regulation Order to 
restrict parking along Arundell Close. 
 

111 16.08019.FUL - 6 Springfield Park, Trowbridge, Wiltshire BA14 7HT 
 

Page 443



 
 
 

 
 
 

The case officer presented the report which recommended the application for a 
two bedroom bungalow with associated parking and amenity area, be approved.  
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, impact on heritage assets, impact 
on the character and appearance of the area, impact on the neighbouring 
residential amenities and highway safety and parking.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, no questions were asked. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
David Fennel spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Robert Kerr spoke in Objection to the application. 
 
Nigel King spoke in Objection to the application. 
 
The local Member Nick Blakemore expressed his concerns and objection to this 
application and highlighted the following key points: the proposed development 
is overdevelopment of the plot and would be out of keeping with the area; an 
additional vehicle access being formed onto the narrow single road would be 
difficult and would likely lead to highway conflict; where the new access is being 
proposed, there is no hammer head for manoeuvring vehicle and the proposed 
development makes no provision for visitor parking which could lead to issues 
in the future between road users and vehicles trying to access private 
accesses.. 
 
The members were informed that the trees in the open space were protected 
trees with TPOs and that privacy, light and parking arrangements light had been 
assessed. A condition had also been included for surface water drainage. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to refuse the application. 
Key points raised in the debate included: overdevelopment and loss of 
amenities, out of keeping with the area, the impact on the appearance and 
character of the area. It was noted that 4 Members of the committee had visited 
the site.  
 
At the end of the debate it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse the planning application for the following reason: 
 
The proposed development is considered to be an overdevelopment of 
the site resulting in a cramped form of development that is out of keeping 

Page 444



 
 
 

 
 
 

with the character and appearance of the area contrary to Policy 57 of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy adopted January 2015. 
 

112 16.06851.FUL - 139 Winsley, BA15 2LB 
 
The area team leader presented the report which recommended that the 
application for alterations to the existing dwelling and erection of one new 
attached dwelling with an associated new access, parking provision and 
demolition of an outbuilding and partial down taking of boundary wall, be 
granted, subject to planning conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, impact on the conservation area/ 
heritage assets, impact on neighbouring amenity, impact on highways safety, 
impact on ecology and the impact on archaeology. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; the changes made pursuant to permitted 
development allowances, the status of the neighbouring property at No. 138 
becoming an end of terrace house rather than a semi-detached as well as the 
means of accessing the property and technical questions relating to the 
proposed entry and parking turntable. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Noelle Elstone spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Tom Rocke (Agent) spoke in support of the application. 
 
Ed Gilling, Chairman of Winsley Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
Cllr MacDonald as the local member highlighted the following key points: Local 
residents were against the development and that the development was out of 
keeping with the area. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to defer the application for a 
site visit to take place.  
 
Resolves 
 
To defer the application for a site visit. 
 

113 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for 20/10/2017 – 10/11/2017 was 
received. 

Page 445



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Members were informed that the Fulmar Close application appeal was to be 
handled as a fast track householder appeal and that the Council did not have 
the right to submit an appeal statement.  The Council was only limited to 
highlighted flaws within the appellants grounds for appeal.  The area team 
leader acknowledged that the local ward member, cllr While was presently out 
of action and it was understood that his ward member duties were being dealt 
with by Cllr Seed.  Members were advised that officers would review the 
notifications to ensure that should any flaws be identified, before November 
28th, the planning inspectorate would be informed. 
 
It was also discussed and noted that for future refusal decisions made contrary 
to officer recommendation, detailed minutes would be necessary. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report. 
 

114 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.05  - 5.15 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail mailto:jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 446



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 14 DECEMBER 2016 IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr John Knight (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Dennis Drewett and 
Cllr Pip Ridout 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Nick Blakemore 
  

 
115 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed – Substituted by Cllr Philip Whitehead 
 
Cllr Roy While 
 
Cllr Graham Payne 
 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald – Substituted by Cllr Gordon King 
 

116 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 23 November 2016. 
 
 

117 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Clark declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6a due to knowing an 
objector to the application and would abstain from the vote.  
 
Cllr Clark referred to his register of interest for item 7a. 

Page 447

Agenda Item 34



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
118 Chairman's Announcements 

 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

119 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

120 Public Rights of Way Reports 
 
120a Great Hinton - Path No. 34 - Rights of Way Modification Order 2016 
 
The Rights of Way Officer outlined the report which recommended that the 
Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs and that Wiltshire Council supports the confirmation of the order. 
 
Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask technical 
questions of the officer. No questions were asked. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Steve Noad spoke in objection to the order.  
 
 
The Rights of Way Officer informed the committee that they could make a 
modification to the application although it would need to based on evidence and 
that the recommended width of the bridleway was 4 meters. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve the officer’s 
recommendation.  
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
That Wiltshire Council supports the Wiltshire Council Great Hinton Path 
No. 34 Rights of Way Modification Order 2016 and for the Order to be 

Page 448



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs with the recommendation that it be confirmed as made. 
 
Cllr Clark abstained from the vote. 
 
120b Parish of Holt - Path No.73 - Definitive Map and Statement 
Modification Order 2016 
 
The Rights of Way Officer outlined the report which recommended that the 
Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for the Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs for determination, with a recommendation from Wiltshire Council 
that the Order be confirmed without modification. 
 
Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask technical 
questions of the officer. No questions were asked. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Jonathon Cheal spoke in objection to the order. 
 
Mr GKS Tucker spoke in Objection to the order. 
 
Christina Ashworth spoke in support of the order. 
 
Jonathon Nibbs spoke in support of the order. 
 
Cllr M Nicholson, Holt Parish Council, spoke in support of the order. 
 
 
The Rights of Way Officer informed the committee that they could only take into 
consideration the evidence before them and that there was insufficient evidence 
of public use of an alternative route at the field edge to support any modification 
to the order.  
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve the officer’s 
recommendation.  
 
At the end of the debate it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
That “The Wiltshire Council (Parish of Holt) Path No.73 Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order 2016”, be forwarded to the Secretary of 
State for determination, with a recommendation from Wiltshire Council 
that the order be confirmed without modification. 

Page 449



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
121 Planning Applications 

 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 
121a 16/01633/OUT - Land at The Grange, Devizes Road, Hilperton, 
Wiltshire, BA14 7QY 
 
The case officer presented the report which recommended the application for 
the erection of up to 26 dwellings (an outline application with all matters 
reserved other than access), be granted. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, including the 5 year housing land 
shortfall, archaeology, flood risk and drainage, the impact upon the character 
and appearance of the area, heritage assets, ecology and landscape, 
sustainable construction, the impact upon neighbouring amenity and access 
and highways. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, with the development site being located outside the settlement 
boundary a central point for discussion.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Tina Jones spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Audrey Austin spoke in objection to the application 
 
Lucie Castleman spoke in objection to the application 
 
Christopher Dance, as agent, spoke in support of the application.  
 
Cllr Clark as the local member highlighted the following key points: the 
development was contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policies 1, 2 and 29; 
within the North and West Housing Market Area (HMA) Wiltshire Council are 
about 160 dwellings short which is a nominal amount.  However when one 
factors in the fact that the Council had granted planning permission for over 
3200 additional houses across the HMA (included within Table 3 of the Housing 
Land Supply Statement - HLSS) since April 2016 (the base date used for the 
2016 HLSS) the Council would be able to prove to any planning inspector 
(should the application be refused and appealed) that it can demonstrate having 
in excess of 5.25 years supply of housing; Core Policies 1 and 2 was therefore 
up-to-date; the development site was located outside the village policy limit for 
Hilperton thus being contrary to Core Policy 2; the development was also 

Page 450



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

contrary to Core Policy 29 which required adequate secondary school provision 
to be in place prior to the approval and delivery of additional housing on 
unallocated greenfield sites; and, the lack of an objection from the Council’s 
education officer cannot and should not override adopted policy requirements.  
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to refuse the application.   
 
Following a question raised by Cllr Whitehead about the 5 year housing land 
supply statement and position, the monitoring and evidence spatial planning 
manager advised the committee that the Council was  presently unable to 
demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply, confirmed the base date used for 
the 2016 HLSS and advised that whilst the housing figures contained within 
Table 3 of the HLSS could be referenced by the Council in defending any 
subsequent appeal, in his professional opinion and experience, he advised that 
planning inspectors rarely take them into account. The officer furthermore 
confirmed that the 2017 Housing Land Supply Figures would have a base date 
of April 2017, but in recognition of the amount of work involved in producing an 
annual statement, the 2017 statement would be published after April 2017. 
 
At the end of the debate it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reason: 
 
The development proposal is contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy CP1, CP2 
and CP29. Following the publication of the Housing Land Supply 
Statement carrying a base date of April 2016, the Council can demonstrate 
a 5 year housing land supply for the North and West Housing Market Area, 
therefore policies CP1 and CP2 are considered up-to-date. Since the 
application site is outside the extant village policy limits for Hilperton 
there is a clear conflict with CP2.  The limits of development have not 
been modified by either a site allocations development plan or by a 
neighbourhood plan.  In addition, CP29 requires that improved secondary 
school provision is in place before any greenfield residential development 
is allowed, including the 950 dwellings referenced by CP29, which should 
only be supported subsequent to the delivery of the strategic housing site 
at Ashton Park, located to the south-east of Trowbridge. Since this 
application would form part of the additional 950 dwellings and the 
improved secondary school provision is not in place, the application 
conflicts with CP29. 
 
Following the decision to refuse permission and in keeping with normal practice, 
the chairman invited the division member to be involved in defending any 
subsequent appeal. 
 
Note:  paragraph 9.7 of the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice makes 
provision for member involvement at appeals. 

Page 451



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
122 16/06851/FUL - 139 Winsley, Bradford-On-Avon, BA15 2LB 

 
A site visit was held prior to the meeting.  
 
The area team leader presented the report which recommended the application 
for an erection of one new attached dwelling, alterations to the existing dwelling, 
access, parking and demolition of outbuildings, be granted. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, impact on the conservation area/ 
heritage assets, impact on neighbouring amenity, impact on highways safety, 
impact on ecology and the impact on archaeology. The officer informed the 
committee that following the deferment on 23 November, the applicant had 
made material revisions to the application including the deletion of the originally 
proposed turntable to aid on-site parking and electric gates at the site frontage. 
The committee was also advised that an additional comparative site context 
plan had been submitted, which all formed part of the revised presentation. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; clarification on planning notices on the site; at 
or near the site; the weight to be given to saved West Wiltshire District Plan 
Policy H18 in recognition that the development site is located within an area of 
minimum change. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Robert Drower spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Ian Berry spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Glyn Woolley (applicant) spoke in support of the application. 
 
Heather Woolley (applicant) spoke in support of the application. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve the officer’s 
recommendation. Key points raised in the debate included; the removal of the 
turntable; the impact on the neighbouring property and area and Policy H18. In 
response to a member question about Policy H18 of the former West Wiltshire 
District Plan, the officer advised the committee that whilst it was a material 
consideration, due regard had to be given to the more recent adopted Core 
Strategy, the fact that the Council was unable to demonstrate a 5-year housing 
land supply and in accordance with NPPF paras 14 and 49, such restrictive 
housing policies cannot be given full weight.  In addition to the above, the officer 
informed the committee that after a thorough review of the proposals, the report 

Page 452



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

considers the impacts of the development and whilst the restrictive nature of 
Policy H18 is duly referenced, the case officer’s appraisal concludes that the 
proposed development would be an acceptable form of sustainable 
development which can be supported. 
 
Following the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
Existing Site Plan received 13 July 2016; Existing Context Site Plan 
received 13 July 2016; Existing Ground Floor Plan received 14 July 2016; 
Existing First Floor Plan received 13 July 2016; Existing South-East 
Elevation Plan received 13 July 2016; Existing South-West Elevation Plan 
received 13 July 2016; Existing North-East Elevation Plan received 13 July 
2016; Proposed North-East Elevation Plan received 19 October 2016; 
Proposed South-East Elevation Plan received 19 October 2016; Proposed 
Cross Section received 19 October 2016; Proposed South-West Elevation 
Plan received 19 October 2016; Proposed First Floor Plan received 19 
October 2016; Proposed Ground Floor Plan received 19 October 2016; 
Proposed Site Plan received 29 September 2016; Plot Sub-Division Plan 
received 4 November 2016. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. The mitigation measures recommended in Section 5 of the 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment and Emergence Survey for Bats by 
Johns Associates dated May 2016 shall be carried out in full accordance 
with the approved timetable detailed in the Ecological Assessment. 
 
REASON: To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature 
habitats. 
 
4. No works shall commence on site above ground floor slab level 
(except for the demolition works and site preparation including the 

Page 453



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

foundations) until details of all new or replacement rainwater goods 
(which should be of cast metal construction and finished in black) and 
their means of fixing to the building have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contains insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
5. No works shall commence on site above ground floor slab level 
until details of all new external window and door joinery and/or metal 
framed glazing have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include depth of 
reveal, details of heads, sills and lintels, elevations at a scale of not less 
than 1:10 and horizontal/vertical frame sections (including sections 
through glazing bars) at not less than 1:2.  The works shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contains insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of preserving the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area 
 
6. No external stonework shall be constructed on site, until a sample 
panel of stonework, not less than 1 metre square, has been constructed 
on site, inspected and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The panel shall then be left in position for comparison whilst 
the development is carried out. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved sample. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
7. The dwelling house hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the 
access and parking spaces have been completed in accordance with the 
details shown on the approved plans. The access and parking areas shall 
be retained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
8. The dwellinghouse hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the 
existing vehicular access along the site frontage has been blocked up 

Page 454



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

using reclaimed stonework from the on-site wall/garage demolition and 
the finished wall shall match the existing bedding of stone, coursing, type 
of pointing and mortar mix. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re- enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no windows, doors or other form of openings other than 
those shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the eastern rear 
elevation above ground floor ceiling level of the development hereby 
permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
10. The dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  Within 6 months of the dwelling being occupied evidence shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
certifying that the stated level or its equivalent has been achieved.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out within Wiltshire Core Strategy CP41 are 
achieved. 
 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
represents chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy. 
 

Page 455



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

123 16/07872/FUL - Greenacre House, Cleveland Gardens, Trowbridge BA14 
7LX 
 
Cllr Knight took over as Chairman for the remainder of the meeting and Cllr 
Newbury left the meeting at 5.00pm. 
 
 
The area team leader presented the report which recommended the application 
for 5 new dwellings and to incorporate a single bed cottage/flat within the 
existing building, be granted. 
 
An update was given on receipt of a late representation from a neighbouring 
property (number 3 – opposite) and to inform the committee that within the 
representation section of the report, concerns had been received from the 
owner/occupier of No.3 Cleveland Gardens. Within the late representation 
which included photographs that were circulated to the committee, concern was 
raised about overdevelopment of the site, the parking provision, the 
consequential impacts on local residents including loss of light and privacy; the 
extent of the development site and proposals; and the impacts created from 
extra vehicles entering and leaving the site. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of the development, impact on highways and parking, 
design, impacts on neighbouring amenity and core policy 41 which requires the 
development to be sustainable. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; clarification on separation distances to 
neighbouring properties, the road width and the number of allocated and 
proposed on-site parking spaces. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Peter Sorisi spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Geraldine Curtis spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Alvin Howard (agent) spoke in support of the application. 
 
Gianfranco Chicco (applicant) spoke in support of the application 
 
Cllr Blakemore as the local member highlighted the following key points: issues 
with parking arrangements, the width of the road being smaller than average, 
the threat on the local bus routes, the suitability of the local convenience stores. 
Cllr Blakemore expressed a concern about the 5 additional units being too 

Page 456



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

many for the site and invited the committee to consider deferring the application 
and to instruct the case officer to approach the applicant to see whether they 
would be agreeable to deleting the two semi-detached units in the rear of the 
plot and to bring such a revised application back to committee or the elected 
members to consider. 
 
The committee was informed by the area team leader that a deferment was an 
option for the committee to consider but members were encouraged to have a 
discussion about the merits of the proposed extension to Greenacres House. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to defer the application for 
further discussions. 
 
Resolved 
 
To defer the application and to instruct officers to contact the applicant to 
seek an agreement to delete the two proposed semi-detached units from 
the application to address site overdevelopment concerns and address 
parking provision concerns. 
 

124 16/05154/FUL - Land at Sparrow Road, Southview Park, Trowbridge, BA14 
7FS 
 
Cllr Ridout left meeting at 6.20pm 
 
The case officer presented the report which recommended the application for a 
provision of 50 affordable homes over 4 land parcels within the Southview Park 
housing development, be granted. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined and 
comprised: the principle of development, including the extant nature of the 
previous approved development, the impact on the character and appearance 
of the area, impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents, impact on the 
amenity of proposed occupants, highway issues, ecology issues, impact on 
Heritage Assets (archaeology), drainage issues and crime prevention 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, key points included; clarification on the number of storeys of the 
flats and the design. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed below. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Tim Bruce spoke in support of the application. 
 

Page 457



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Cllr Drewett as the local Member informed the committee that during the 
consultation concerns from residents principally concerned the manner the 
existing properties were managed. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved to approve the officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
To Approve the planning application, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.  
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
Amended 3158_L_001 rev D (Proposed site plan) 
Amended 3158_L_002 rev C (Landscape plan) 
3158_L_003 (Location plan) 
3158_L_005 rev B (Topographical survey) 
Amended 3158_L_010 rev D (Parcel 2 site plan) 
Amended 3158_L_011 rev C (Parcel 3 site plan) 
Amended 3158_L_012 rev E (Parcel 4 site plan) 
Amended 3158_L_013 rev C (Parcel 6 site plan) 
3158_L_051 rev B (House type 1, 2, and 3) 
3158_L_052 rev B (House type 4 and 4A plans and elevations) 
3158_L_053 rev B (House type 5 and 5A plans and elevations) 
3158_L_054 rev B (House type 6 and 6A plans and elevations) 
3158_L_055 rev B (House type 6B plans and elevations) 
3158_L_056 rev B (House type 8 plans and elevations) 
Amended 3158_L_103 rev A (Street elevations 1 of 3) 
Amended 3158_L_104 rev A (Street elevations 2 of 3) 
Amended 3158_L_105 rev A (Street elevations 3 of 3) 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No dwelling hereby approved shall be commenced until the exact 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and 
roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Page 458



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 
4. No development shall occur on a land parcel (amended dwg no. 
3158_L_001 rev D), until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping for that 
land parcel has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :-  
 
• location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land;  
• full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development;  
• a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities;  
• finished levels and contours;  
• means of enclosure;  
• car park layouts;  
• other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  
• all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
• refuse and other storage units; 
• all tree(s), of a size and species and in a location to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted in accordance with 
BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), BS4043 and BS4428  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and/or 
[DELETE as appropriate] the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a 
satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of 
existing important landscape features. 
 
5. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season 
following the first occupation of the buildings in that land parcel or the 
completion of the development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees 
and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 
protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

Page 459



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
6. No development shall occur on a land parcel (amended dwg no. 
3158_L_001 rev D) until a landscape management plan, including long-
term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for all landscape areas (other than small, privately owned, 
domestic gardens) for that land parcel has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscape 
management plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure the proper management of the 
landscaped areas in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
7. The roads, including footpaths and turning spaces, shall be 
constructed so as to ensure that, before it is occupied, each dwelling has 
been provided with a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and 
carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and 
existing highway.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate 
means of access. 
 
8. The development of each land parcel hereby approved (amended 
dwg no. 3158_L_001 rev D) shall not be first brought into use until that 
part of the service road which provides access to the land parcel has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved plans.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate 
means of access. 
 
9. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the parking 
area shown on the approved plans for that dwelling has been 
consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved 
details. This area shall be maintained and remain available for this use at 
all times thereafter.  
 

Page 460



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety.  
 
10. Development on land parcel 6 hereby permitted (amended dwg no. 
3158_L_013 rev C) shall not begin until a noise impact assessment and 
scheme for protecting the proposed dwellings and their curtilages from 
railway noise on land parcel 6 has been submitted and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Any works which form part of the scheme 
approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be completed before any 
dwelling hereby permitted on land parcel 6 is first occupied. 
 
REASON:  In order to safeguard the amenities of the area in which the 
development is located. 
 
11. No development shall commence on a land parcel (amended dwg 
no. 3158_L_001 rev D) until a scheme for the discharge of surface water 
from that land parcel, incorporating sustainable drainage details, has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development on the land parcel shall not be first occupied until 
surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the 
approved scheme.   
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
12. No development approved by this permission shall commence until 
a scheme for water efficiency has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented 
in accordance with the agreed details. 
  
REASON: In the interests of sustainable development and climate change 
adaptation. 
 
 
13. No development shall commence on site until a written programme 
of archaeological investigation, which should include on-site work and 
off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, 
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved programme of archaeological work is to be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. The work should be conducted by a 
professional archaeological contractor and there will be a financial 
implication for the applicant. 
 

Page 461



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON:  To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological 
interest. 
 
14. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes.  No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
15. No development shall commence on a land parcel (amended dwg 
no. 3158_L_001 rev D) (including any works of demolition), until a 
Construction Method Statement for that land parcel, which shall include 
the following: 
 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;  
d) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;  
e) hours of construction, including deliveries;  
 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement.  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 
the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
16. Development of the dwellings shall not commence on each land 
parcel (amended dwg no. 3158_L_001 rev D) until details for the provision 
of a water supply and fire hydrants necessary to meet the fire-fighting 
needs of the development (including the installation arrangements and 
the timing of such an installation) for that land parcel have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved measures shall be implemented in full accordance with the 
agreed details. 
 

Page 462



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure that adequate measures for fire-fighting can be 
incorporated into the development, including the construction phase. 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
represents chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. A separate Community Infrastructure Levy Liability Notice will 
be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further 
information with regards to CIL please refer to the Council's Website  
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy 
 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
No information provided on the proposed storm water system – if it 
proposed to have new connections to the water course then a separate 
application will need to be made to the LLFA under the Land Drainage Act 
to agree flow, location and outfall construction. 
 

125 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for 10/11/2016 and 02/12/2016 was 
received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report. 
 

126 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.05  - 6.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail mailto:jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 463



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 464



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 11 JANUARY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr John Knight (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Dennis Drewett, 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Jerry Wickham 
(Substitute) and Cllr Graham Payne 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Pip Ridout, who was substituted 
at the meeting by Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury gave apologies that he would arrive late to the 
meeting. The Vice Chairman, Cllr John Knight, was in the Chair. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record and sign the minutes of the 
meeting held on 14 December 2016 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman had no announcements. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 

Page 465

Agenda Item 35



 
 
 

 
 
 

6 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

7 16/06564/OUT - Land North of No 554 Canal Bridge Semington 
 
Public Participation 
 
Rachel Yeomans, as the agent, spoke in support. 
Mr Kevin Lockwood, as the applicant, spoke in support. 
Mr Steve Payne, resident, spoke in support. 
 
The planning officer, James Taylor, presented the report on an outline 
application for the erection of two detached dwellings, in which all matters 
except for access were reserved. It was recommended that the application be 
refused. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined, 
and comprised: the alignment of the size of the proposed development with the 
housing needs of the area; the 5 year housing land supply shortage; the 
development’s location outside of a main settlement; the distance from public 
transport routes; the current condition of the site; drainage options for the site; 
and the impact of the development upon the character of the area. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed that the statement in 
item 7 of the report, stating that Highways had no objection, was a typing error 
and should state that there was an objection. The planning officer also clarified 
the position of various local amenities and sites in relation to the proposed 
development site. 
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Roy While, as the local unitary division member, spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin, moved that the application be 
refused for the reasons presented in the officer’s report.  
 
In the debate that followed issues discussed included: that the air ambulance 
and local haulage sites were close by; that it was not an isolated site and that 
development would improve the character of the area; that there were public 
transport links close by; that it was important to act in accordance with existing 
housing policy; that the settlement was closer to Semington despite it falling 
within the Melksham without parish boundaries; and that the 5 year housing 
supply shortfall should be considered. 
 
During the debate the planning officer clarified the position of a bus-only access 
gate; and confirmed that there was a 5 year housing supply shortfall.   

Page 466



 
 
 

 
 
 

At the conclusion of the debate, it was: 
 
Resolved: 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reason: 
Having regard to all the submissions and relevant policies, including the 
policies of the NPPF taken as a whole, and mindful of the nominal 5-year 
housing land supply shortfall, this application is considered to be an 
inappropriate, unsustainable form of development which would have an 
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area and highway 
impacts cumulatively would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefit of providing two additional dwellings in an open countryside 
location and the provision of employment created through construction 
processes. As such the proposal is not considered to represent 
sustainable development being contrary to CP1, CP2, CP51, CP57, CP60, 
and CP61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015 and the policies of the NPPF 
taken as a whole. 
 
INFORMATIVE: 
This application was determined against the following plans: 
Site Location Plan, BDS-20-06-16 (Illustrated Layout), and BDS-20-06-16 
(Topographic Survey) received on 5 July 2016. 
 

8 16/06057/FUL - Land NW of Crossways Farm Ashton Common 
 
The Chairman thanked the Vice Chairman for presiding over the first part of the 
meeting 
 
The planning officer, Steve Sims, presented the report which comprised an 
outline application for the use of the site for car boot sales for 6 additional days 
over and above the 14 days allowed under permitted development rights. It was 
recommended that the application be approved. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined, 
and comprised: the size and nature of the site; the impact on the adjoining and 
nearby highways; the impact on local residents and the business opposite; and 
the impact on the local economy. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed: that a previous 
application (in 2008) for the site had been refused. However, the previous 
application was for significantly more days and was based on a council policy 
which was now out of date; and that there were currently no operational or time 
restrictions on the current 14 days allowed under permitted development rights 
but that the committee could, if justified, condition the use of the site for the 
additional 6 days. Members were however informed that there had been no 
objections raised by the highways team around safety or increased congestion 
placed on the surrounding roads.  
 
 

Page 467



 
 
 

 
 
 

There were no members of the public in attendance who wished to speak. 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed, as the local unitary division member, spoke in support of  
the application and highlighted the following key points: that the parish council 
had been concerned about the site for some time; that lots of local 
correspondence had been received with reference to the application; that the 
early time at which stall holders arrived to set up was a greater problem than 
the use of the site on principle due to the noise generated which caused 
problems for a neighbouring business; and that restricting the permission to a 
7am start would be a way of mitigating that problem while balancing the needs 
of both businesses. 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed, seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin, moved that the application 
be approved subject to a condition restricting access before 7am for the 
additional 6 days of use requested. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that a restriction on start 
time would generate difficulties for car boot stall holders; that access on and off 
the site from the main road was difficult; that there was a recommended 
informative for a travel marshal to be located at the exit of the site; that approval 
of this application would not significantly impact the existing congestion of the 
road; that an early start time might lead to people queuing on the road; that 
enforcement of the time restriction might be difficult; whether the proposed 
condition was reasonable and enforceable; and that the interests of both 
businesses (the applicant and their neighbour) should be considered. 
 
After a vote, the motion was lost 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, seconded by Cllr Seed, then moved that the application be 
refused due to road safety and traffic concerns relating to access to the site. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that the nearby 
highways junction routinely had traffic problems; that there had been fatal 
collisions along the road in question; that the previous application on the site 
had been refused on grounds of the impact on highways; that it would be hard 
to defend the refusal at an appeal given current use of the site; and that traffic 
on a Sunday morning was less than at other times. 
 
It was clarified in response to queries that Highways officers had not objected to 
the proposed increased use of the site, and that evidence would be needed to 
justify any refusal on highway safety grounds to which the Council would need 
to be able to demonstrate severe residual cumulative highway harm.  
 
After a vote, the motion to refuse was lost.  
 
Cllr Graham Payne, seconded by Cllr Ernie Clark, moved that the application be 
approved for the reasons presented in the officer’s report.  
 
 
 

Page 468



 
 
 

 
 
 

The motion was debated and at the conclusion of the debate, it was: 
 
Resolved: 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions and 
informative: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Location plan scale 1:2500, Site plan 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. The development hereby approved shall be limited to a maximum of 20 
car boot sales in any calendar year. 
REASON: In the interests of the character, appearance and amenities of 
the area. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
In order to assist vehicles leaving the site in a safe manner, at least one 
traffic marshal should be available and positioned at the exit point. 
 

9 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for appeals received between 02/12/2016 
and 16/12/16 was received. 
 
There were no questions 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between 
02/12/16 and 16/12/16 
 

10 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent Items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.20 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 469



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 470



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEENAME 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEENAME MEETING HELD ON 
MEETINGDATE AT MEETINGLOCATION. 
 
Present: 
 
AllPresentShortRolesList 
 
Also  Present: 
 
AllInAttendanceList 
 
  

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  MeetingActualTimeRange) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is MeetingContact, of Democratic 
Services, direct line CommitteeTel, e-mail CommitteeEmail 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

2a   

  

2b   

 

Page 471

Agenda Item 36



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AUDIT 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE AUDIT MEETING HELD ON 26 OCTOBER 2016 AT THE 
KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr Sheila Parker, Cllr David Pollitt, 
Cllr James Sheppard and Cllr Dick Tonge 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Dr Carlton Brand, Cllr Alan MacRae and Cllr Stuart Wheeler 
 
  

 
37 Apologies and Membership Changes 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Rosemary Brown, Michael 
Hudson, Robin Townsend and Carolyn Godfrey.  
 

38 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Councillors considered the minutes of the previous meeting and the action 
assigned to the Chairman to contact maintained schools about governance. Liz 
Williams (Head of Finance) advised that officers would write to the Chairs of 
Governors and Heads of maintained schools about the Committee’s concerns. 
It was noted that there was no evidence that governance standards at 
maintained schools were slipping, the information to councillors and schools 
was intended to pass on only general comment.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2016.  
 
To note the progress of actions arising from that meeting as detailed 
above.  
 

39 Declarations of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interests.  
 
 

Page 473

Agenda Item 37



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

40 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements.  
 

41 Public Participation and Councillor's Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

42 SWAP- Internal Audit Report- Quarter 2 
 
Representatives from the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) updated on the 
performance of the Internal Audit for the second quarter of 2016/17 and 
highlighted that customer satisfaction with the audit was 90%. The status of 
audit actions was detailed in Appendix B, in respect of IT services the 
Committee was advised that the ICT Health Check report was in draft and that a 
Head of IT was now in post. It was noted that the Healthy Organisations 
improvement plan was to be progressed through the Council’s Corporate 
Leadership Team. 
 
The Chairman questioned the Overall Assurance Graph for Healthy 
Organisations and it was confirmed that further detail on where progress was 
being made within the various workstreams was to be included within the 
January report. Stylistic changes to the report were suggested, in particular that 
related issues in appendices B and E be cross referenced, however members 
were overall pleased with the quality of the report. Outstanding actions from the 
audit outlined in Appendix F were discussed, in response to questions about 
outstanding information required from the Finance team it was suggested that, 
although information had been submitted, it may not have reached the report in 
time. Officers would meet regularly to progress outstanding options and SWAP 
would re-issue an updated report.  
 
Councillors commented that they would be keen to see improved linkage 
between the internal audit and healthy organisation, SWAP advised that overall 
progress was positive and they could link their Annual Plan to healthy 
organisations. Members discussed the impact of a recruitment freeze at the 
Council and retention of skilled staff, it was noted that this was addressed in the 
Corporate Risk Register. Following questions from Committee, it was confirmed 
that if a maintained school had insufficient cash flow to pay its staff, this 
responsibility would ultimately fall to Wiltshire Council, however this would only 
occur very rarely.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the progress of the Internal Audit to date.  
 
 
 
 

Page 474



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

43 Annual Audit Letter 2015/16 
 
Darran Gilbert, KPMG, introduced the Annual Audit Letter which condensed the 
findings of the Annual Report. The Committee was advised that KPMG would 
remain as the Council’s external auditor for two further years, and a new auditor 
would need to be appointed for the 2018-19 year onwards. In response to 
questions about audit fees, it was confirmed that the auditor could investigate 
additional issues beyond the original remit of the audit, however this was on an 
ad hoc basis and could not be planned for in advance. The results of the audit 
indicated that the Council was fully compliant and that the Governance 
Accounts and Certificate had been released by the 21 October 2016 deadline.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the Annual Audit Letter 2015/16.  
 

44 Information Governance Improvement Plan 
 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cabinet Member for Hubs, Heritage and Arts, Governance 
and Support Services presented a report on Information Governance. The 
Cabinet member highlighted that all the recommendations previously identified 
as requiring action within the service had either been actioned or were in 
progress. Key updates since the last Audit Committee included that the 
Information Governance team structure was now in place and had been 
recruited to, additionally Heads of Service (as Information Asset Owners) had 
received a training session on managing information held by their service.  
 
Dr Carlton Brand stressed that the review of information held by the Council 
was highly complex and would be ongoing. The Council was currently reviewing 
hard-copy documents that it held in storage and would move to store electronic 
copies of documents in The Cloud. Members discussed that information 
security would occasionally be breached as a result of human error, however it 
was important that prevention and mitigation measures were in place to prevent 
a data breach from escalating.  
 
The Committee expressed satisfaction in the progress made on Information 
Governance and the Council’s response to the Information Commissioner’s 
Office report and requested detail as to how all Council staff would be trained 
on Information Governance. It was explained that all staff would have to 
complete mandatory eLearning modules, and Councillors would also receive 
some IT training as part of the induction following the 2017 elections.   
 
Resolved: 
  
That the Committee notes: 

a) the significant steps that have been taken to address and rectify the 
findings identified by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
and the audit engagement with them is now complete; 

Page 475



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

b) the continued progress to address the actions identified in the two 
year improvement programme, which goes beyond the ICO 
requirements to fully inculcate a new information governance 
culture and practices across the organisation, whilst ensuring 
compliance with statutory legislation; 

c) that a further report will be submitted to the Committee in January 
2017. 

 
45 Procurement of External Audit 

 
The Committee was advised that, following changes in legislation the Council 
was required to review its processes for appointing an external auditor. The 
Committee was invited to consider the following options: 1- to undertake an 
individual auditor procurement and appointment exercise; 2- to undertake a joint 
audit procurement and appointing exercise with other bodies within the locality, 
or 3- to join a ‘sector-led body’ arrangement where specified appointing person 
status had been achieved under the relevant Regulations. 
 
It was noted that the Council’s external auditor was present at the meeting 
however the Chairman was satisfied that this was appropriate given that the 
meeting was to discuss the process of appointment only and was in open 
session.  
 
In considering the options, the Committee agreed that both options 2 and 3 
bought benefits, however commented it would have liked to see the options 
costed. The Cabinet Member for Finance responded that this was not possible 
as a procurement exercise would need to be undertaken. The Committee was 
advised that all of the options presented would ensure competitive bids from a 
similar pool of auditors, the options presented would affect only how the Council 
would be able to influence the choice of the auditor. Cllr Tonge, Cabinet 
member for Finance, indicated that option two, to undertake joint arrangements 
with other bodies, would be limited due to the preference of other bodies.  
 
The Committee was reassured that regardless of the process in appointing an 
auditor it would be under the same requirements to maintain communication 
and a positive relationship with the Committee. Following questions, it was 
explained that the Council was not aware of the intentions of other authorities, 
however expected that most would change their arrangements and combine 
with other public bodies to achieve economies of scale. Councillors concluded 
that both options 2 and 3 had benefits however, on balance favoured option 3 in 
principle, subject to the conditions as detailed below.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To support in principle an approach by Wiltshire Council to join a ‘sector 
led body’ arrangement where specified appointing person status had been 
achieved under the relevant Regulations, provided that: (a) value for 

Page 476



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

money is achieved and (b) the period of appointment for auditors is 
specified.  
 

46 Forward Work Programme 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Plan for the Committee.  
 

47 Date of next meeting 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Committee was to be held on 24 January 
2017.  
 

48 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

49 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved; 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute Number 50 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public 
 

50 Public Service Network Update 
 
Dr Carlton Brand updated on the Public Service Network and a recent review of 
system vulnerabilities. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the verbal update provided at the meeting.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.55 pm) 

 
 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 

direct line (01225) 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 477



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 478



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
2 NOVEMBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chair), Cllr John Smale (Vice Chairman), Cllr David Pollitt, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Desna Allen (Substitute) 
 
  

 
69 Membership 

 
The Committee was informed that at its meeting on Tuesday 18 October 2016, 
Council appointed: 
 
(1) Cllr Glenis Ansell as a member of this Committee in the place vacated by 

Cllr Graham Wright, and 
 
(2) Cllr Richard Britton as a substitute Member in place of Cllr Bill Moss.   

 
Members of the Committee expressed their thanks and appreciation for the 
contributions Cllrs Wright and Moss had made to the work of this Committee. 
 
On behalf of the meeting, the Chairman welcomed Cllr Glenis Ansell as a 
member of this Committee and hoped that she would enjoy the work involved. 
 

70 Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE 
and Cllr Bob Jones MBE, who was substituted by Cllr Desna Allen. 
 

71 Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 7 September 2016. 
 
Arising therefrom: 
 

Page 479

Agenda Item 38



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Head of HR & OD gave a verbal update on the recruitment of planning 
officers.  She reported that the service was in the process of being restructured 
and currently there were five planning officer vacancies. Posts had been re-
evaluated and it was hoped that the revised salary grades would attract 
candidates.  The vacant posts were being advertised nationally including social 
media. The Head of HR & OD stated that she would keep the Committee 
updated on progress in filling these vacant posts. 
 

72 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

73 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman introduced and welcome Tamsin Kielb, HR Business Partner 
who was attending a meeting of this Committee for the first time.  
 

74 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions. 
 

75 Carers Charter and New Carers Guidance and Checklist 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Associate Director, People & 
Business which informed the Committee about the proposal to achieve 
accreditation of the current complimentary membership of the organisation 
Carer Support Wiltshire which involved signing up to their ‘Working for Carers’ 
charter.   
 
It was noted that Carer Support Wiltshire was a local charity which supported 
carers in Wiltshire. It helped carers to access support, services, education and 
training, and also provide breaks from their caring role. The charity also 
provided a voice for carers and worked with health and social care 
professionals and employers to develop best practice. The Council had been 
approached by Carer Support Wiltshire in order to provide support for the 
Council’s employees who were carers. 
 
The report also set out the new carers’ guidance and checklist for employees. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To authorise the Chairman to sign the ‘Working for Carers’ charter and to 
note the new carers’ guidance and checklist.  
 
 
 

Page 480



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

76 Local Government Pension Scheme Employer Discretions Policy 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Associate Director, People & 
Business which presented an updated employer discretions policy for the Local 
Government Pensions Scheme following a proposed change that the Head of 
HR & OD in conjunction with the appropriate associate director considers when 
receiving requests for flexible retirement. This new procedure would shorten the 
timeframe required for a request for flexible retirement to be considered and a 
final decision provided to the employee. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the changes to the Wiltshire Council Employer Discretions 
Policy as set out in the report.    
 

77 Transgender Guidance - Transitioning at Work 
 
The Committee received a report by the Associate Director, People & Business 
about the proposed new transgender guidance – transitioning at work.  This 
guidance set out the Council’s commitment to transgender employees and 
brought together information and guidance for managers and staff on practical 
issues which might arise and, in particular, guidance on the transitioning 
process and the support available in the workplace for transgender colleagues. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the new transgender guidance – transitioning at work and to 
request that this be brought to the attention of other Members of the 
Council.  
 

78 Revised Smoking Policy and Procedure and a New Vaping Policy and 
Procedure 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Associate Director, People & 
Business which set out a revised smoking policy and procedure and also a new 
vaping policy and procedure. 
 
It was noted that the current smoking policy and procedure was implemented in 
2011 as a result of harmonising the former County Council and district councils’ 
policies following the last local government re-organisation which brought 
together all five councils into one unitary authority. 
 
The current smoking policy and procedure included the use of e-cigarettes and 
vaping. 
 

Page 481



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was pointed out that recent public health guidance stated that organisations 
should have separate smoking and vaping policies.  It also stated that e-
cigarette users (vapers) should not be forced to use the same designated area 
to vape as smokers as it was recognised that e-cigarettes were a method to 
stop or reduce smoking. 
 
The main changes to the smoking policy and procedure were as follows: 
 

 Removal of the inclusion of the use of e-cigarettes within the policy. 

 Updated ‘stop smoking’ information following changes to this service. 
 
It was proposed that the new vaping policy and procedure, created to sit 
alongside the revised smoking policy and procedure would contain the following 
main points: 
 

 Vapers are not permitted to vape in Wiltshire Council buildings. 

 Vapers are permitted to vape on Wiltshire Council grounds away from 
view of the public and away from windows and entrances to buildings. 

 Vapers will not be required to use the designated smoking areas (where 
available) to vape. 

 Arrangements to vape (including vaping breaks) are in line with the 
smoking policy and procedure.  

 
After some discussion,  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the revised smoking policy and procedure and the new vaping 
policy and procedure. 
 

79 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 4 January 2017 at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 
10.30am.  
 

80 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 
 

Page 482



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.05 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 483



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
4 JANUARY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chair), Cllr David Pollitt, Cllr Tony Trotman (Substitute), 
Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
 
 
 
 
  

 
1 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (who was substituted by Cllr Tony 
Trotman) and Cllr John Smale.  
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 2 November 2016. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at the meeting. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions. 
 
 
 

Page 485

Agenda Item 39



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

6 Equality and Diversity Update 
 
The Committee received an updated annual equality and diversity employment 
monitoring report, it being noted that the Council was required to produce this 
information annually as part of the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) in line 
with the Equality Act 2010. 
 
It was noted that during the past year work had taken place to extend the data 
collected by reducing the data gaps. The new data collected included religion 
and belief, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnerships, gender 
reassignment and caring responsibilities. Members of staff were being asked to 
complete an equalities monitoring questionnaire to provide this additional 
information and update the information currently held. It was pointed out that 
collecting this additional information was making the data more accurate and 
robust in terms of meeting the requirements of the PSDED and would help to 
inform the work on the Council’s people strategy. It would also assist in 
assessing the impact of the Council’s policies and practices on different groups 
within the workforce and enable the Council to identify and take positive steps 
to address gaps. The improvement of this data was part of the Council’s 
equality objectives. 
 
During discussion members recognised the reluctance of some staff to 
complete an equalities monitoring questionnaire and it was noted that ongoing 
work was being carried out to explain to staff why this information was required.  
Members suggested that to assist in this work it might be useful to seek 
comparative information from other local authorities.    
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the contents of the report.   
 
(2) To request the officers to seek information on equalities monitoring 

from other local authorities to include in particular the manner in 
which this information is collected and also the level of responses 
received. 

 
7 English Fluency Requirement in Customer Facing Roles 

 
Consideration was given to a report which set out proposed new guidance for 
managers and employees in relation to all roles which were customer facing 
where there was a need to be able to communicate fluently in spoken English. 
 
It was noted that with effect from 21 November 2016 the Government had 
introduced a requirement within the public sector for all staff in customer-facing 
roles to be able to communicate fluently in English. 
 
This requirement applied to permanent staff as well as temporary workers, 
apprentices, agency temps, contractors and self-employed contractors. 

Page 486



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To approve the new Fluent English Guidance. 
 
(2) To request that the Procurement Unit be asked to ensure that the 

need to adhere to this guidance is brought to the attention of 
contractors and sub-contractors as part of the procurement process.   

 
8 Trade Union Recognition and Facility Time Agreement Review 

 
A report was received which outlined some proposed changes to the revised 
and updated Trade Union Recognition and Facilities Agreement in respect of all 
council staff and support staff in maintained schools. 
 
It was noted that this agreement which was in place between Wiltshire Council 
and the three recognised trade unions (UNISON, Unite and GMB) had last been 
formally revised in 2011. 
 
It was noted that the following changes had taken place with the agreement of 
the three trade unions: 
 

 UNISON had relinquished council accommodation and was now 
occupying space at its own expense on the White Horse Business Park. 

 UNISON was now paying for its own photocopying, printing and postage. 

 A charge would be made for making trade union deductions from payroll. 

 The monthly facility time off agreement would be reduced from 80 to 60 
days per month, this recognising the reducing size of the workforce and 
the pressure on council budgets. These 60 days would still not be 
backfilled and would therefore not be an additional cost on staffing 
budgets. 

 The recording of time spent by staff on union activities would be 
implemented. 

 
 It was pointed out that neither Unite nor GMB currently had any specified 
facility time or funding but that going forward the 60 days facility time could be 
shared between them. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To approve the proposed changes to the Trade Union Recognition 

and Facilities Agreement. 
 
(2) To review the Agreement in two years’ time. 
  
 

Page 487



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

9 Pay Policy Statement 
 
The Committee received a report which set out an updated pay policy statement 
for the financial year 2017/2018 prior to agreement by Council and publication 
on the Council’s website. 
 
It was noted that under chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 every local authority 
must prepare a pay policy statement annually, this starting for the financial year 
2012/2013. 
 
It was explained that the policy had been updated to include: 
 

 A revised introduction stating the forthcoming legislation that would 
impact on the Council’s pay arrangements.  This included gender pay 
gap reporting, the public sector exit payment cap and recovery of public 
sector exit payments. 
 

 Information regarding the union negotiations in early 2016. 
 

 Information regarding salary protection as a result of service redesign. 
 

 The addition of the sleeping in allowance payable for employees required 
to sleep in on the premises.  This increased in line with the NJC pay 
award and had been omitted from previous pay policy statements. 
 

 An updated total number of council employees and the latest pay ratios. 
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft Pay Policy Statement for endorsement by Council on 
21 February 2017 on the understanding that the budget figure would  
be reviewed and updated prior to full Council approval and subject to:- 
 
(1) The removal of paragraph 73 of the Statement which stated: 
 

“The Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector recommends a 
maximum ratio of the highest remunerated post compared with the 
lowest remunerated post of 1:20.” 
 

(2) The addition of an extra column in the table at paragraph 74 
providing the statistical information to exclude the apprenticeship 
rate of pay for the previous year. 

 
(3) The provision of additional information about apprenticeships.  
  
 

Page 488



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

10 Delivering the Business Plan - September 2016 
 
The Committee received a workforce report, excluding fire, police and school 
staff, for the quarter ended 30 September  2016, concerning:- 
 

 Staffing levels 

 Sickness absence 

 New health and safety RIDDOR related injuries 

 New disciplinary, grievance and absence cases 

 Voluntary staff turnover 

 Employee costs 

 Additional financial information 

 Employee diversity 
 
It was noted that the headcount across Wiltshire had seen a decrease of 66 
employees (-1.3%) since the last quarter, with the number of employees now 
being 4683. 
 
The Committee noted that sickness rates had remained at the same level as the 
previous quarter, 2.1 days per FTE, this being a 0.3 days lost per FTE below 
the benchmark for a local authority. Legal and Governance had the largest 
decrease over this quarter to 0.4 FTE (a decrease of -1.8 days lost per FTE). 
 
There had also been a further decrease of 0.8 days from the previous quarter 
within Waste and Environment, to 4.8 days per FTE, which had been a 
continuing trend over the past year.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the report. 
 

11 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of this Committee was scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday, 1 March 2017 at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 
10.30am. 
 

12 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business.  
 

Page 489



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.30 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 490



 
 
 

 
 

JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MEETING HELD ON 12 OCTOBER 2016 AT COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNCIL 
OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr David Renard (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cllr Garry Perkins, Cllr Toby Sturgis (Substitute - Part II) 
and Cllr Oliver Donachie (Substitute - Part II) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Paddy Bradley 

  

 
41 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors John Thomson and Russell Holland, and 
Mr John Mortimer, acting Chairman of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership. 
 
Councillor Thomson  was substituted by Councillor Toby Sturgis 
 

42 Minutes 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2016 were presented for consideration and it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

43 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

44 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

45 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements. 
 
 

Page 491

Agenda Item 40



 
 

 

 
 
 

46 Local Growth Deal 3 submission from the Swindon and Wiltshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) 
 
Paddy Bradley, Director of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(SWLEP) Secretariat presented a report on the submission of the SWLEP for the 
third round of Local Growth Deal (LGF) funding on 28 July 2016, detailing proposed 
projects to the value of £87047m as detailed in the agenda papers. The SWLEP was 
also seeking financial support to a commercially sensitive inward investment 
opportunity. Formal announcement of the results of the bid were expected after the 
Autumn Statement of the Chancellor of the Exchequer. 
 
The Committee was also informed that every Local Enterprise Partnership had now 
been assigned a specific minister to be their principal contact. For the SWLEP, the 
responsible minister was Baroness Neville-Rolfe DBE CMG. 
 
The Committee discussed the LGF bid and the Board sessions to prepare it. It was 
stated the Board had undertaken many good sessions to identify its priority projects, 
although it was noted that deliverability would be a key factor in being successful, 
and that in particular the transport funds available had received applications totalling 
at least three times the available monies. It was also stated it was unknown if there 
would be future rounds of funding made available at the present time. 
 
Details were also sought on the announced housing fund, where the LEPs had felt 
the process had been too convoluted for many larger developers, as well as how 
LEPs could help aid the process. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To endorse the SWLEP bids to support local economic growth. 
 

47 SWLEP Commissioning Group Project Highlight Reports 
 
Ian Durston, Programme Manager, presented a report from the SWLEP 
Commissioning Group highlighting the status of current projects. The Committee 
went through the report noting the progress for each project, seeking additional 
details as appropriate. 
 
It was confirmed the Porton Science Park and Junction 16 projects were progressing 
well, although in response to queries it was confirmed Highways England was 
seeking additional information regarding matched funding in respect of the Junction 
15 project.  
 
It was noted that the Corsham Mansion House project had been moved to a Red 
rating as a result of it being determined previous timescales would need to be 
extended, although it was anticipated the rating would be improved for the next 
report, with a planning application for further work expected in 2017. 
 
Other updates and comments included that there was work to identify if costs could 
be reduced in respect of the Swindon Bus Exchange project, the A350 relief road at 
Yarnbrook had been delayed as a result of ecological issues due to the presence of 

Page 492



 
 

 

 
 
 

bats, and in respect of Junction 17 capacity improvement a business case would be 
presented to the Commissioning Groups before the end of 2016. The combined New 
Eastern Villages projects would have a refreshed update shortly, and positive 
meetings had been held with Network Rail regarding the Chippenham Station Hub, 
and it was expected the project would move to a Green rating. 
 
The Committee was informed an action plan was being prepared to improve the 
output of the Higher Futures programme, and the Committee requested that it be 
brought to them for approval as both local authorities were responsible. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the reports and for the SWLEP to note the comments of the Committee. 
 

48 European Structural Investment Fund Updates 
 
A report was provided updating the Committee on the progress of the European 
Structural Investment Fund. It was confirmed that the government had guaranteed 
some funding for those who signed deals prior to the UK formally exiting the 
European Union, although it was unclear if all monies would be available after that 
point.  
 
Details were also sought on the process of currency exchange for receipt of Fund 
monies, and the need for applications to be made in as timely a manner as possible. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update 
 
 

49 Strategic Housing Market Assessment Area and Functional Economic Market 
Area (SHMAA/FEMA) 
 
Richard Bell, Head of Planning, Regulatory Services and Heritage, Swindon Borough 
Council, and Alistair Cunningham, Associate Director, Economic Regeneration and 
Planning, Wiltshire Council, provided an update on the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment Area (SHMAA) and Functional Economic Market Area (FEMA) work.  
 
Consultants were in the process of presenting their findings to both local authorities 
and would also be made to the developer industry, and it was intended the Joint 
Planning Working Group of both authorities would meet early in 2017 to consider 
next steps 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 
 
 
 

Page 493



 
 

 

 
 
 

50 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Committee considered the Forward Work Plan. It was requested the action plan 
for Higher Futures be considered at the next meeting, and the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment Area work be considered at the first meeting in 2017. 
 
Additional items to be scheduled as appropriate would be consideration of an 
updated Assurance Framework for the SWLEP and a Post-16 Education review from 
March 2017 onwards. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the updated Forward Work Plan. 
 

51 Date of the Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was confirmed as currently 8 December 
2016. It was agreed future meetings could all take place at the Monkton Park offices 
in Chippenham. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.05  - 9.55 am) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 494



 
 
 

 
 

JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MEETING HELD ON 15 DECEMBER 2016 AT COMMITTEE ROOM C - COUNCIL 
OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 

 
Present: 

 
Cllr David Renard (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Russell Holland, 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cllr Toby Sturgis (Substitute) and Cllr Oliver Donachie 
(Substitute) 

 
Also  Present: 
Richard Bell, Paddy Bradley, Alistair Cunningham, Ian Durston, John Gilbert, Becky 
Holloway, Vanessa Joseph, John Mortimer 

 
 
  

 
52 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (substituted by 
Cllr Toby Sturgis), Cllr Garry Perkins (substituted by Cllr Oliver Donachie), and Dr 
Carlton Brand.  
 

53 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no interests declared 
 

54 Minutes 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2016 were presented for consideration 
and it was  
 
Resolved: 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

55 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements.  
 

56 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements.  
 
 
 

Page 495

Agenda Item 41



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

57 SWLEP Commissioning Board Highlight Reports 
 
Ian Durston, programme manager, presented the report circulated with the agenda, 
and described the progress made on the projects under each of the seven funding 
schemes (Local Growth Fund; Department for Transport – LGF; Department for 
Transport – Retained; City Deal; Careers and Enterprise Company; Department of 
Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy; Growing Places Infrastructure Fund). He 
highlighted the following points: Issues that had delayed work to the Porton Science 
Park had been resolved and the project was now underway; That the proposed work 
to junction 15 of the M4 would be funded from a different source, releasing 
£3.7million back into the LEPs budget to be split between the Wiltshire Ultrafast 
Broadband programme, Swindon Art Gallery, and Salisbury Plain Heritage Project; 
That issues relating to the Swindon Bus Exchange had been resolved and the project 
would restart in February 2017; That match funding from the private sector for work 
on Chippenham station ticket office and front area had been secured as planned and 
permission would be sought to start this work prior to the sign off of the wider 
Chippenham Station Hub project; That there had been changes to the original Career 
Transition Partnership (CTP) contract with the military, and that this had led to 
difficulties in accessing the originally proposed number of learners under the scheme; 
and that an extension was being sought in relation to the commencement of the 
Kimmerfields project. 
 
In response to questions from the meeting, it was reported that: the RAG rating for 
the Swindon Bus Exchange project would move to green following formal LEP 
approval of the new completion date; that the Greenbridge roadworks “amber” rating 
was due to the original completion date not having been updated; and there was still 
an ongoing agreement with the Career Transition Partnership (CTP) to signpost 
army-leavers to the LEP, that the anticipated close-relationship had not developed as 
expected, but that ongoing contact with the military would be maintained through the 
voluntary sector and a position on the management board. With respect to the CTP, it 
was also suggested that the apprenticeship-levy to be introduced in April 2017 could 
lead to increased engagement at the higher level. 
 
The chairman thanked Ian Durston for the update, and Paddy Bradley added that in a 
recent conversation with BEIS it had been noted that the performance management 
of SWLEP projects was of excellent quality. 
 
Resolved: 
To note the report 
 

58 Local Growth Fund Finance Summary 
 
The report was presented and it was explained that the budget for 2016-17 would 
show all allocated funds had been spent, but that any underspend could be retained 
for the following year. Where necessary, Swindon and Wiltshire Councils would 
assist by allocating expenditure to other capital projects to ensure full use of the local 
growth fund allocation. 
 

Page 496



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
To approve the report in principle and to receive a more detailed paper in 
January 2017 
 
 

59 Local Growth Fund Update 
 
A report was tabled at the meeting and it was explained that the final figures would 
be made available shortly. The priority placed on skills by the LEP was reflected in 
the Growth Deal’s proposed projects, which included: Salisbury Campus; Lackham 
Campus; and the Maltings. The agreed funding for projects was due to become 
available from April 2017, with opportunities for competing for funding for currently 
un-funded projects in early 2017. 
 
In response to questions it was confirmed that the board had submitted the Growth 
Deal to DCLG in July 2016 which had proposed 11 projects for funding and that 
these had been given a priority order. DCLG had not made an assessment of the 
individual projects but had approved the whole deal based on its capacity for 
delivering government priorities whether the LEP was in a devolution area, and the 
overall contribution of the private sector. The presumption would be that the 
proposed priority projects will remain and should other projects be proposed for 
funding there would need to be a justification for ranking them higher than the original 
11. It was suggested that there may be specific criteria for the new funds available 
and that it could be sensible to put forward projects which most met those 
requirements regardless of their current priority order. It was also hoped that there 
would be more opportunity for businesses to get involved in backing schemes.  
 
Resolved: 
To recommend to the LEP that the priority list is retained but to be mindful of 
new projects coming forward in order to ensure new opportunities are not 
missed. 
 
 

60 European Structural Investment Fund Update 
 
A report from Julian Head was presented and the following issues were highlighted: 
That the government would honour any grants awarded that met government 
priorities and offered value for money, but that new requirements would be brought in 
for any new projects; that the fund would continue until the UK’s final exit from the 
European Union rather than simply the invoking of Article 50; and that discussions 
were taking place around a replacement fund post-EU.  
 
The meeting’s attention was drawn to page 86 of the report where it was reported 
that 74% of the European Social Fund had been allocated to date. Attention was also 
drawn to the bids made to the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Affairs (EAFRD) 
which focused on areas not covered by the growth deal. 
 

Page 497



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

In response to questions, it was reported that the managing agents for the fund were 
DCLG and DWP for legal purposes but that the LEP was acknowledged as a key 
advisory forum and the majority of agencies are happy to share their information with 
the LEP in this capacity.  
 
Resolved: 
To note the update 
 

61 Forward Work Plan 
 
Four items for inclusion on future agendas were presented and agreed upon. It was 
suggested that a summary of each of the funding streams would be helpful for newer 
members of the group and Paddy Bradley agreed to develop this to send out. 
 
Resolved: 
To approve future items for consideration including: 
- Assurance Framework – February/April 2017 
- Higher Futures Action Plan – June 2017 
- SHMAA (Strategic Housing Market Assessment Area)/FEMA (Functional 

Economic Market Area) Updates 
 

62 Date of the Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was confirmed as 14 February 2017 
 

63 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 10.40 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 498

mailto:becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 22 
SEPTEMBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Dr Peter Jenkins (Vice Chairman), 
Dr Anna Collings, Dr Toby Davies, Dr Richard Sandford-Hill, Christine Graves, 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, Cllr Laura Mayes, Nikki Luffingham, Dr Gareth Bryant, Carolyn Godfrey, 
James Scott, Bath RUH, Roger Hill, GWH  and Toby Sutcliffe, AWP, Angus Macpherson 
PCC 
 
  

 
48 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements 

 
The Chair, Baroness Scott, introduced the members of the Board and 
expressed thanks to outgoing member Simon Truelove. 
 

49 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Ken Wenman. 
 

50 Minutes 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 
2016. 
 

51 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

52 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions under this item. 
 

53 Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
 
James Scott presented an update to the Board on the latest draft of the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) for Bath and NE Somerset, 
Swindon and Wiltshire. This report outlined the progress made since the last 
update to the Board in June 2016, setting out the initial priorities within the 

Page 499

Agenda Item 42



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

outline (draft) plan and how the content would be refined during Sept-Nov 2016 
through wider stakeholder engagement. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that there had been a request from central government that the STPs around 
the country were not made public so they can better manage the flow of 
contentious information; that the local STP should be less controversial, and the 
intention would be to make it available for wider debate after Xmas; the ongoing 
discussions with third sector, independent and the public stakeholders in 
framing the solutions for a configuration of services, prior to a wider 
consultation; the six workstreams that are in the plan such as emergency care; 
that partners were looking at sharing of back office functions; that partners were 
looking at the issues of recruitment  and finding solutions for urgent and 
emergency care; and the importance of briefing local councillors as they would 
be receiving questions from constituents. 
 
The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked officers for the update, and emphasised 
that the issue of integrating health and social care was key to securing the 
success of the plan. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the report, and to consider how best the Health and Wellbeing 
Board can further support the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP) development and priority workstreams.  
 

54 Better Care Plan 
 
The meeting received a presentation, by James Roach, circulated on the 21 
September, regarding the Better Care Plan. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included:  
The challenges and the positives with regard to the Better Care Plan; the 
actions required to the improve the flow of patients throughout the system; the 
continuing issues with workforce across the county; the changes in performance 
in Q2, including reductions in avoidable admissions; the reduction in admissions 
form care homes; that a project was piloting single-view of the customer in 
health and social care; how strong connection across partners in the system 
can help drive continued improvement; the impact of care providers changes, 
and CQC restrictions; the high demand for specialist dementia placements; the 
cumulative impact of demographic changes on demand for services; the range 
of actions agreed with acute providers; how to meet the challenges for meeting 
the demand for domiciliary care; how the over-prescription of care can be 
identified and addressed; the process for integrating teams in specific pilots; 
how continuing the focus on prevention and early intervention; how existing 
workers and community pharmacists can be used better; and the need to 
maximise capacity within the system that exists without out additional 
investment. 

Page 500



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked officers for the update, and hoped that 
efforts would be focused on improving performance. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the joint communications plan agreed by Wiltshire Council and 
Wiltshire’s Clinical Commissioning Group and supports the intention of 
the plan to prevent ill health and to reduce pressures on public services. 
 

55 Winter Communications Planning 
 
Tim Edmonds and Sarah Maclennan presented the report which outlined the 
joint communications plan agreed for winter between Wiltshire. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that this was a joint plan and the work down to promote the issues of missed 
appointments across GPs; how best to use best practice from a range of 
setting; the specific promotion of Warm in Wiltshire project; that officers had 
started planning at an earlier date; that there is an implementation plan that 
outlines activities week by week; the range of materials and mediums being 
used to cover a range of ages in the area; and how the activity will be 
evaluated. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update. 
 

56 Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat Update 
 
Simon Truelove presented the report which outlined recent progress made by 
the Wiltshire Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat Action Group and the wider 
context of its ongoing work, together with the learning from recent incidents. 
The report was circulated on the 21 September. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
challenges faced by the system as illustrated by some recent high profile cases; 
the importance of getting a timely response from staff; the demands placed by 
approaches taken by neighbouring areas, and how this had led to great 
challenges in accessing places of safety; the additional resources now being 
made available; and how preventative work can be utilised better. 
 
The Chair, Baroness Scott, thanked the officers for putting together the report. 
She stated that she recognised the system under pressure but that 
improvements were being made. To keep the Health and Wellbeing Board 
informed of progress, she asked officers to present a further report to a future 
meeting. 
  

Page 501



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
a) To Note the range of work underway to improve the experience of 

those in mental health crisis; 
 
b) To reaffirm its commitment that police custody should only be used as 

a place of safety in exceptional circumstances; 
 
c) To agree to receive an updated Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat 

Action Plan, following a meeting of lead chief executives, together 
with an update on the delivery of the Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, at the next meeting; 

 
d) To consider appropriate indicators for monitoring the implementation 

of the Action Plan at future meetings – noting the suggested 
indicators in paragraph 19 and 20. 

 
 

57 Healthwatch Wiltshire's Annual Report 
 
Chris Graves and Emma Cooper presented the Annual Report for Healthwatch 
Wiltshire (HWW). 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that this was their third annual report, and that it was a statutory requirement to 
report on activities; that the four main functions of HWW are: engagement; 
monitoring quality; information; and influencing; how HWW can demonstrate the 
difference it makes; some specific engagement activities delivered through 
volunteers including young people and people with learning difficulties; the 
powers available to HWW to enter and view services; the contribution of HWW 
to the Wiltshire Health Select Committee; how monitoring of quality work links to 
the work of CQC; the specific reports made to the H&WB; the continuing work 
on the Your Care Your Support website, and how volunteers had been used to 
keep information up to date; and the different opportunities for HWW to 
influence the decision making structures.  
 
Resolved 

1. To note and comment on the content of the Annual Report 
 

2. To recognise the progress which has been made during 2015/16 in 
fulfilling the statutory duties of a local Healthwatch 
 

3. To take up the offer for Healthwatch Wiltshire to share the outcomes 
from its engagement work as appropriate in the future. 

 
 
 

Page 502



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

58 Wiltshire CCG Cancer Strategy 
 
Simon Truelove and Andy Jennings presented the report which provided an 
update to the Board on the Wiltshire CCG cancer strategy recently endorsed by 
the CCG’s Governing Body. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
That local strategy was developed in response to national strategy; that the 
CCG, Public Health and Acute Hospitals would take the lead in different areas 
of the strategy; that the new NICE guidelines have had an impact; the 
increasing demand for services and increased rate of survival; the range of 
partners and organisation involved, including the third sector; that work had 
already been undertaken with Bath and Swindon colleagues ahead of the 
creation of the Sustainability and Transformation Plan; and the five areas of 
focus including patient experience. 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. To note the Wiltshire CCG cancer strategy; and 

 
2. To note that the CCG is now working to implement the individual tasks 

within the cancer strategy, either supported by the Public Health team 
and other organisations, or in support of the Public Health team 
and/or other organisations, as appropriate. 

 
59 Wiltshire Obesity Strategy 

 
Amy McNaughton, consultant in the Public Health Team, introduced the report 
which presented the final Obesity Strategy. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 

That the Board had seen the draft strategy earlier prior to consultation; that the 

strategy had been approved by the Cabinet and the Wiltshire CCG bodies; that 

the draft implementation plan had been updated following a summit with various 

partners; and that a range of activities and programmes were already 

underway.  

Resolved 
 
1. To note the formal sign-off of the obesity strategy; 

 

2. To note the request to report in 12 months regarding performance. 

 

 

 

 

Page 503



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

60 Community Area JSA and local action planning events 
 
Amy McNaughton, consultant in the Public Health Team, presented the report 
which outlined the outcomes from locally led action planning events and the 
plans for the launch of new community area Joint Strategic Assessments (JSA) 
in October. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that community area boards are given information about what activities can be 
done in their area; that refreshed Community Area JSAs will work with local 
officers to attend meetings to refresh action plans; how feedback on this activity 
had increased focus on older people as well as younger people; the 
opportunities for cooperation between leisure and public health; the desire to 
make information more user-friendly for community use; and the difficulties in 
understanding the impact of transitional communities such as the military. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the positive findings of this report and the impact the CAJSAs 

have made; 

 

2. To agree to support the work of Wiltshire Council to produce a new 

round of CAJSAs in 2016. These reports will continue to provide 

intelligence at a local community level to enable residents and public 

services to tackle local issues in order to build more resilient 

communities; and 

 
3. To examine where action at a strategic level might continue to 

encourage further action within each community area – toolkits, 

shared resources, etc. 

61 Date of Next Meeting 
 

The date of the next meeting, 15 December 2016, was noted. 

62 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.00 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 

Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 504



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 15 
DECEMBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Dr Peter Jenkins (Vice Chairman), 
Dr Anna Collings, Dr Toby Davies, Christine Graves, Angus Macpherson, Cllr Jerry Wickham, 
Dr Gareth Bryant, Carolyn Godfrey, James Scott and Tracey Cox 
 
  

 
63 Chairman's Welcome and Introduction 

 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 
 

64 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Chief Constable Mike Veale; Peter Hill from 
Salisbury, represented by Dr Nick Marsden; Ken Wenman from SWAST, 
represented by Nick Wilson; Cllr Laura Mayes; Dr Richard Sandford-Hill and Dr 
Toby Sutcliffe. 
 

65 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 24 September 2015, previously 
circulated, were considered. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on  
24 September 2015. 
 

66 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

67 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Baroness Scott drew the meeting’s attentions to the following information set 
out in the agenda: 
 

Page 505

Agenda Item 43



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Letters from the Home Secretary and Secretary of State for Health 

regarding health and police collaboration. 

 Letter from David Mowat MP, Department of Health on Primary Care 

 Letter from DH/ DCLG regarding Winter Planning 

68 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions or statements under this item. 
 

69 Wiltshire Children Safeguarding Board Annual Report 
 
Mark Gurrey, Independent Chair, attended the meeting to present the annual 
report of the Wiltshire Children Safeguarding Board. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
activities of the board; the results of recent Ofsted inspections; the recent 
change to the Chair and the governance arrangements; the priorities for the 
Board; the upcoming results from review into domestic violence; the Wood 
review, commissioned by the DfE, that reviewed all Boards nationally and 
serious case reviews, and the recommendations arising; the implications for the 
existing Board and how regulations will allow greater flexibility to set up a 
system and governance arrangement that better suit local needs; that whatever 
arrangement is put in place, the culture has to be effective to protect vulnerable 
children. 
 
Baroness Scott thanked Mr Gurrey for attending the meeting to present the 
report. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the report and give the content consideration when 
commissioning or providing services for children and young people 
across the partnership. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
It is the requirement of all Safeguarding Children Boards to produce an Annual 
Report on the effectiveness of safeguarding in their local area. The Board will 
submit a copy of this report to the Health and Wellbeing Board, who will be 
expected to respond by giving consideration when commissioning or providing 
services for children and young people across the partnership. 
 

70 Sustainability and Transformation Plan and NHS Planning Guidance 
 
The meeting received a report which provided an update on the Sustainability 
and Transformation Plan (STP) for Bath and NE Somerset, Swindon and 
Wiltshire including the implications for partners in Wiltshire in light of the latest 

Page 506



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

NHS Planning Guidance. The report outlines the progress made since the last 
update to the Board in September 2016.  It provided an overview of the key 
elements within the emerging STP for Bath & North East Somerset, Swindon 
and Wiltshire areas. It was noted that the full plan was published and circulated 
to Board members on the 14th December. The plan set out the key early 
priorities within the STP but also identified that significant public and workforce 
engagement would take place over the next 5 months to finalise the future 
design of our health and social care services. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that a broader coalition of partners had been working together to work on the 
emerging plan; that the intention was to start working with partners and the 
public on co-designing services in response to the plan; that the financial gap 
would be around £217m if no changes were to be made; how the plan had 
focused on areas that need action and to which the plan can effect change; the 
opportunities to share property, personnel and back office issues; how a small 
minority of complex cases take up a large amount of resources; the implications 
of the geography in the area; how certain specialisms can work better across 
the STP area; how the STP board will move to become a partnership 
responsible for implementing plan; the opportunities for joining up digital 
programmes particularly the Single View of the customer which is piloting in the 
a Bradford-on-Avon GP surgery; the positive attitudes between partners; the 
involvement of AWP and the prominence of mental health in the STP; and the 
key to making sure communication is clear. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To note the update on the emerging STP. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To allow Health & Wellbeing stakeholders the opportunity to comment on the 
emerging plan and for members to identify gaps and overlaps with the Board’s 
H&WB programme 
 

71 GP Five Year Forward View and Primary Care in Wiltshire 
 
The meeting received a presentation, circulated on the 14 December, which 
outlined the future opportunities for primary care in Wiltshire and the potential 
for close working including preventative and proactive working. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
the issues of recruitment in a number of practices; the contribution of primary 
care to support the whole system; how integration with other teams can be 
prioritised, and the impact that it can make on patients; the vision for improving 
access to care; the engagement work with patients and the public; how the 
examples of successful pilots can be expanded into other areas; the work to link 

Page 507



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the management of property and technology across practices;  and the support 
given to vulnerable practices. 
 
Baroness Scott thanked officers for the report and asked that further updates, 
focusing on specific areas, be brought to future meetings of the Board. She also 
asked officers to consider what extra support Wiltshire Council could give to 
address any issues e.g. recruitment. 

Resolved 

To note the update. 

 
72 Wiltshire Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 
The meeting received the report which provided an update on the delivery of 
Wiltshire’s Joint Mental Health Strategy in the context of the Mental Health Five 
Year Forward View and latest NHS Planning Guidance. Following approval of 
the Wiltshire Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy in 2015 and its 
implementation plan in 2016, it was agreed at the Health and Wellbeing Board 
that an annual report on progress would be provided to highlight some of the 
achievements across the priority areas for the first year. 
 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
That Wiltshire CCG and Wiltshire Council Public Health teams co-chaired the 
board that managed the strategy; that progress reports had also been provided 
to the CCG Board and the Health Select Committee; that a key priority had 
been to build a partnership approach across the first year; that there was an 
intention to improve user involvement on the Board; that improvements to data 
and information gathering may lead to changes in the strategy; the links to other 
plans; that some projects had had successful funding bids approved; and the 
improvements that had been made already, and the priorities for improvement. 
 
Baroness Scott thanked officers for the report and asked that further update 
report, focusing on performance, be brought back to the Board in 6 months. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the information and recommendations within the annual report. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The Wiltshire Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy and implementation plan 
aims to create environments and communities by 2021 that will keep people 
well across their lifetime. This annual report on progress gives an update on 
action towards this aim 
 

Page 508



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

73 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 
 
The meeting received a report which provided an update on the Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services Transformation Plan in the context of the 
latest NHS funding and procurement plans. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
national increase in demand for mental health services for children and young 
people; the additional resources that have been identified; the actions achieved 
and priorities for improvement in the plan; how the health messages are 
communicated accessibly for children and young people; the hope that helping 
young people now will prevent future mental health problems in the future; that 
young people, themselves, see mental health as a key issue; the plans to hold a 
youth summit, along with  key partners, to discuss mental health issues; and 
how the young listeners project has included services users. 
 
Dr Gareth Bryant stated that he felt that activities around the plan were a good 
example of were partners joining together to help take pressure off GPs. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the progress to date on the implementation of the CCG local 

transformation plan for children and young people’s mental health and 
wellbeing; 
 

2. To endorse the refreshed and expanded plan including its 
commissioning intentions, local priorities and updated budget 
proposals for 2016/17 and 2017/18. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
NHS England requires Wiltshire CCG to work with key partners (including 
schools, the voluntary and community sector and importantly children, young 
people and those who care for them) to review the local transformation plan and 
ensure it is reflective of local needs and is delivering improvements. 
 

74 Wiltshire Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat 
 
The meeting considered the report which asked the Board to consider progress 
on the Action Plan for the Concordat and provided an update on the latest 
performance information against key indicators. The report followed a previous 
update report received in September. 
  
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that report follows a discussion hosted at the police offices; that street triage 
services is not currently operating around the clock, but that there is an 
agreement to move forward with this; the continued need to get timely 
assessment of cases; the impact of the Police and Crime Bill, especially 

Page 509



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

regarding longer-term solutions; and the issue of prioritising resources for 
Wiltshire residents in a larger, more regional system. 
 
Baroness Scott thanked the Police and Crime Commissioner for hosting the 
conference, and encouraged Board Members to visit the street triage team to 
see it in operation. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the outcomes of the mental health summit in October; 

 
2. To agree to receive an updated and combined action plan for the new 

Wiltshire and Swindon Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat Action 
Group in the new year; and 
 

3. To considers the latest available data against key indicators at 
Appendix 1, and agrees to a further update in the New Year. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
At the last meeting the Board agreed to receive a further update on the delivery 
of the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat Action Plan, following a meeting of 
lead chief executives, together with an update on the delivery of the Mental 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
It also considered appropriate indicators for monitoring the implementation of 
the Action Plan and an update is provided against these. 
 

75 Public Health Annual Report 
 
The meeting received the Annual Report for Public Health which informed the 
Health and Wellbeing Board members of activity on public health in Wiltshire 
during 2015-16. It was noted that the report could be brought back to the Board 
if there were any substantive questions raised by the members of the Board. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the publication of the Annual Report 

Reason for decision: 
Work on Public Health has implications for all health care providers and 
commissioners. 
 

76 Better Care Plan Update 
 
The meeting received presentation, circulated on the 14 December, which 
provided a mid-year review of the Better Care Plan delivery together with 
information on our approach to winter planning. 
 

Page 510



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
demographic growth and the impact on demand; that there had been a 
reduction in admissions compared to projections, and the impact on the length 
of stay; the increase in the level of complexity of cases presenting to acute 
hospital services; the change in performance of Delayed Transfers of Care 
(DTOC), and that the average number of days had reduced; how to address the 
over-prescription of care; that there had been a reduction in permanent care 
replacements; the impact of Brexit on workforce planning, and whether this 
could be reported to a future meeting; that this had not resulted in a financial 
saving, but outcomes for residents is better; and that the 2017/18 
commissioning plan would be brought to the February meeting of the Health & 
Wellbeing Board. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the update be noted. 
 

77 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The meeting noted that the next meeting would take place at 10am on the 
February 2017. 
 

78 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.10 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 511



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 512



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD MEETING HELD ON 20 
OCTOBER 2016 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Lynda Croft, Sarah Holbrook, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Mike Pankiewicz, Howard Pearce 
(Chairman) and Barry Reed 
 
 
 
  

 
70 Membership 

 
There had been no changes to the membership of the Board.  
 

71 Attendance of non-members of the Board 
 
Members of the public and officers of the Pension Fund were in attendance.  
 

72 Apologies 
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

73 Minutes 
 
Stylistic corrections to the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2016 were 
discussed. Members also considered the attached action log. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2016, subject to the 
following amendments: 
 

 Minute 59- ‘straining costs’ to be ‘strain costs’ 

 Minute 60 – deletion of ‘and the’ and the correction of the ‘United 
Nations Principles of Responsible Investment’ 

 
To request that pending items on the Action Log be coded amber.  
 

Page 513

Agenda Item 44



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To request that items coded ‘Red’ on the Action Log, where no update is 
available for this meeting, be considered at the next meeting . 
 

74 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

75 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman reminded the meeting that the role of the Board was to ensure 
compliance with LGPS regulations and the Pensions Regulator (tPR). It was 
noted that tPR was currently very active in sending out communications and it 
was suggested that members should forward correspondence to the Head of 
Pensions so that he may circulate it to the wider membership of the Board or 
Committee.   
 

76 Public Participation and Councillors Questions 
 
The Chairman invited Alison Craig and Theresa Fallon to speak to the meeting 
in respect of item 11 on the agenda relating to the Fund’s Risk Register.  
 
Alison Craig requested that climate change risk be added to the Risk Register 
and that the public be given a channel to express concerns about fossil fuel 
investment to the Fund. Ms Craig also noted that the Fund’s Position Statement 
on Fossil Fuel Divestment had not been published on its website and expressed 
concern with the Fund’s investment in the oil and gas sector by way of its 
mandate with Legal and General.  
 
Theresa Fallon expressed concern that she had not received a response to a 
letter sent to the Pension Fund Committee  in July and had not yet met with the 
Chairman of the Committee to discuss its role in managing the Fund’s 
investments. 
 
The Chairman apologised that the fossil fuel Position Statement was not 
available on the Fund’s website and advised that officers would look into this. 
The Head of Pensions reassured the meeting that the Fund was always keen to 
receive input from members and that it considered fossil fuel investment as part 
of its Statement of Investment Principles. It was confirmed that the AGM date 
for the Fund was in the Business Plan for 2016, and although the intention was 
to hold this by the end of the year, it depended on available resources.  
 
The Chairman explained that the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee was 
responsible for the Fund’s investments, however new investment regulations 
would come into effect in November and a new Investment Strategy Statement 
would need to be published by the Fund by April 2017. At that point the Board 
would be able to review whether the Fund was compliant with the regulations.   
 
Resolved: 

Page 514



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
To thank the members of the public for attending and to investigate points 
raised in their statements. 
 
To request that the Fund’s Position Statement on Fossil Fuel Divestment 
be published on the website. 
 
 

77 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee 
 
The Board considered the minutes of the Wiltshire Pension Fund meeting held 
on 29 September 2016 and noted that the Committee had considered 
recommendations proposed by the Board. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee held on 29 September 2016.  
 

78 Scheme Legal, Regulatory and Fund update 
 
The Head of Pensions updated that the Fund was still waiting for guidance on 
the public sector exit cap from HM Treasury. Other updates included that 
changes to reclamation of VAT on fund management costs would come into 
effect in 2018 and new DCLG investment regulations would facilitate asset 
pooling. Other updates included that the Fund had received its valuation results 
and early indications were that the Fund was well-positioned in line with the 
average in comparison to others. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) was 
undertaking a piece of work and would report back to the Scheme Advisory 
Board with its views on the impact of academisation of schools on LGPS Funds. 
The Fund was still awaiting guidance from the Scheme Advisory Board on 
insurance indemnity for the Local Pension Board, the Head of Pensions also 
advised that the Fund had met the Pensions Regulator (tPR) requirements on 
publishing scheme information. Members discussed the tPR checklist and 
considered it a useful tool to use in future annual reports.  
 
The Board was asked to review its Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest 
Policy which was due for review by the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee on a 
yearly basis. It was considered that most members were comfortable with the 
policy document however it was noted that reference to the Scheme Advisory 
Board as a ‘shadow’ body was out of date. Cllr Newbury expressed concern 
that the Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy went beyond the 
statutory requirements, another key concern included that it was not clear what 
constituted a conflict of interest. It was also questioned whether it was expected 
that in meetings members should declare interests already on the Register of 
Interests when they were relevant to an item on an agenda. The councillor also 
did not agree with the format of the Register of Interest form in that it required a 
date, signature and separated the interests of the member and their partner. 

Page 515



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman advised that he would review how the Conflict of Interest Policy 
and Code of Conduct compared to those for other Boards and would seek 
advice from the Council’s legal team about points raised.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on scheme, legal, regulatory and fund matters in the 
report.  
 
To request that officers circulate the CIPFA guidance notes on investment 
pooling to members. 
 
To request that the tPR checklist on publishing scheme information is 
used for the next Annual Report.  
 
To request that Cllr Newbury submit his concerns with the Code of 
Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy in writing to the Chairman of 
Board so that a comparison with the policies of other Local Pension 
Boards may be undertaken and that legal advice on the policy document 
may be sought in respect of these concerns prior to review by the 
Committee. 
 
To request that references to the Scheme Advisory Board in the Code of 
Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy are updated.  
 

79 Annual Benefit Statement Update 
 
The Head of Pensions advised that the majority of the Annual Benefit 
Statements to employee members of the Fund had been circulated later than 
the 31 August statutory deadline. The delay was not considered to be a material 
concern however officers were required to report this to the Board and had also 
reported it to Committee. The Board was satisfied that the lateness of the 
statements was not a material issue, however considered that since the same 
problem had happened in 2015, if the same or another systemic problem 
occurred in 2017, leading to the Statements being issued late again for the third 
year in a row, this must prompt further investigation and potential reporting to 
the Pensions Regulator.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the Annual Benefit Statement exercise and strategy 
agreed for 2017.  
 

80 Risk Register 
 
The Head of Pensions advised on updates and additions to the Risk Register. 
Five key changes had been made since the last report in July  The main change 

Page 516



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

was the grading of ‘PEN020: Pooling of LGPS assets’ which had been 
upgraded from medium to high as Brunel Pension Partnership project presented 
a risk to the Fund through increased workload and officers having less time to 
devote to other administrations activities. Similarly, Brunel presented the 
potential for the movement of staff out of the Fund to become involved in the 
future pooling arrangements, impacting upon ‘PEN012: Over-reliance on key 
officers’ and ‘PEN011: Lack of expertise of Pension Fund Officers’; 
consequently these two risks had been raised to medium.  
 
‘PEN002: Failure to collect and account for contributions from employers and 
employees on time’ had been increased from low to medium risk as a result of 
increased pressure of monitoring contribution due to a greater number of 
employers in the fund. ‘PEN017: Lack of expertise on the Pension Fund 
Committee’ had recently been graded medium following the resignation of one 
long standing member and advice that the Vice Chairman would not seek re-
election in 2017. 
 
Following questions from the Board it was explained that the academisation of 
schools would mean they become a separate employer within the fund, thus 
increasing administration and governance pressures on the Fund. The 
Chairman was concerned by the resource-intensity of pooling on the Fund and 
noted the Board had recommended to the Committee that it keep this under 
review. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate risks. 
 
To note the comments from the public in respect of the Risk Register as 
detailed above.  
 

81 2016 Valuation Update 
 
The Head of Pensions gave a presentation on the 2016 valuation for the Fund 
which had indicated that the funding level had increased 11% from the last 
valuation to 82% funded. It was explained that the funding level would be used 
to set contribution rates for employers and that each employer would have a 
different rate. Initial meetings had already been held with employers and they 
would be asked to sign off their rates by March 2017, it would be explained to 
employers that it would benefit them in the long term if they increased 
contribution rates as soon as possible rather than phasing them in. 
 
It was noted that some members of the Board had been in attendance at the 
employer meeting and it was requested that the presentation delivered by 
officers at that meeting be circulated to attendees. 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 517



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To note the update on the valuation process provided by the Head of 
Pensions. 
 
To request that the presentation delivered to employers at the meeting on 
13 October be circulated to attendees at that event to assist them in 
relaying the information to colleagues.   
 

82 Review of the Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial Statements 
 
The Board considered the Annual Report of the Wiltshire Pension Fund which 
had been agreed by the Committee on 29 September 2016. Fund membership 
levels were discussed and it was noted that the Annual Report was primarily 
aimed at employer members within the Fund. Members commented that the 
Observer members on the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee were non-voting 
members and it was discussed that this governance arrangement should be 
reviewed in light of the new CARE scheme and national cost cap mechanism. 
 
Questions were raised over the Statement of Accounts and action that could be 
taken against £1.85m in late contributions over the year. The Head of Pensions 
advised that this was not a particular concern to the Fund as contributions were 
usually a couple of days late and there was not one regular offender, however 
the issue was picked up in the Risk Register. Member’s considered that the 
situation should be reviewed and requested it be looked into for the next 
meeting. Members considered ‘Local Pension Board’ section of the Annual 
report could be brought forward to earlier in the report to highlight the 
governance change. Following questions, the officer explained that Wiltshire 
and Dorset Fire Service pension schemes where separate schemes.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To request that an update be provided to the next meeting on late 
employer contributions and measures that could be taken to manage this.  
 
To note the Annual Report and Financial Statements and to recommend 
the following stylistic changes: 
 

 References to ‘Wiltshire County Council’ be amended to ‘Wiltshire 
Council’.   

 Paragraphs in the ‘Local Pension Board’ sections be brought 
forward to page 6 of the report.  

 
To recommend that the Fund’s Annual Report and Local Pension Fund 
Annual Report be separate documents on the website.  
 

83 Review of External Audit Report 
 
The Board was presented with the External Audit Report for 2015/16, there 
were no issues or recommendations arising from the Audit. 

Page 518



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman expressed concern that the Fund was only audited against 
accounting standards and guidance for local authority audits and not against 
2014 LGPS regulations, Pensions Statement of Recommended Practice, CIPFA 
2014 guidance on LGPS funds annual report, and LGPS funds 2015/16 
accounting disclosures.  
 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Fund is audited against accounting standards and guidance 
for local authority audits, and on this basis, to note the External Audit 
Report 2015-16.  
 

84 Training Plans Update 
 
Members considered the training plan for the Board and it was noted that the 
Pensions Regulator toolkit had not yet been completed by all members, it was 
possible that this would be picked up by the internal auditors of the Fund. A 
draft members Training Handbook was discussed and the Chairman 
encouraged members to access this document. Members were also 
encouraged to inform the Head of Pensions if they had attended training events, 
and to pass on details of events they were invited on, to the Head of Pensions, 
so that details may be circulated to all members. It was agreed that if possible 
at least one member of the Board should attend the LGE LGPS ‘Trustees’ 
Training Fundamentals 3 day course.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the progress of the implementation of the current Board Training 
Plans and to revisit training plans at the January meeting  
 
To request that the Training Handbook be published online and that 
members are encouraged to make use of this resource. 
 
That members notify the Head of Pensions of training sessions they have 
attended and events they are invited to in the future.  
 
That Board members complete the Pensions Regulator toolkit before the 
end of 2016 and update the Head of Pensions accordingly.  
 
That at least one member of the Board attend the LGE LGPS ‘Trustees’ 
Training Fundamentals three-day course and to ask members to express 
their interest to the Head of Pensions.  
 

85 How did the Board do? 
 

Page 519



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Board considered its progress and was satisfied that items considered at 
meetings were appropriate to its remit.  
 

86 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

87 Date of next meeting and Forward Plan 
 
The next meeting of the Board was to be held on 25 January 2017. The Board 
considered its Forward Work Plan and it was noted that pooling arrangements 
would feature as a standing item on agendas.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To request that meeting dates for 2017/18 be included on the Forward 
Plan. 
 

88 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved:  
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute Numbers 89-92 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

89 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2016, subject to 
amendments to Part 1 minutes as detailed above.  
 

90 Review of Funding Strategy Statement 
 
The Board considered the Wiltshire Pension Fund Funding Strategy Statement. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Funding Strategy Statement and confirm that the approval of 
the Statement complies with the Scheme’s requirements.  
 
To request that members feedback further comments following the 
publication of CIPFA guidance.  

Page 520



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
91 Brunel Pension Partnership Update 

 
The Head of Pensions gave a high-level summary of progress with the Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update provided by the Head of Pensions. 
 
To request that the legal assurances on Brunel are released with the 
Business Case. 
 
To request that the consequence of asset pooling proposals on staffing  
and the auditing arrangements within the Fund be considered with the 
Business Case. 
 

92 Minutes and Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and 
Investment Sub Committee 
 
The Board considered the minutes and key decisions from the last meetings of 
the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Investment Sub-Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and key decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund 
Committee and Investment Sub Committee meetings.  
 
To encourage the Fund to engage in dialogue with the Scheme Advisory 
Board in respect of funding metrics.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.35 am - 1.20 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 521



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 522



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT THE SALISBURY ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Steve Allsopp, Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Sue Eley, Cllr Charles Howard (Vice 
Chairman), Mike Pankiewicz, Cllr Sheila Parker, Linda Stuart and Cllr Roy While 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Bob Summers 
 
  

 
57 Membership 

 
It was noted that Cllr Gordon King had replaced Cllr Mark Packard on the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Investment Sub Committee.  
 

58 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
There were no non-members of the Committee present.  
 

59 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Steve Weisinger, Cllr Gordon 
King, Michael Hudson (Treasurer to the Fund) and Jim Edney (Independent 
advisor) who was substituted by Bob Summers.  
 

60 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2016.  
 

61 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 
 

Page 523

Agenda Item 45



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

62 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman considered the benefits of working electronically. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To request that external attendees be given access to electronic 
Committee papers.  
 

63 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
There was no public participation.  
 

64 Local Pension Board Update 
 
The Committee considered the minutes and recommendations arising from the 
Local Pension Board meeting held on 20 July 2016. It was highlighted that 
Counsel view was that the Board was not a Committee of the Council and 
therefore not covered by the Council’s insurance indemnity cover. The 
Committee agreed this presented minimal risk and it was noted that further 
advice from the Scheme Advisory Board on insurance indemnity cover was 
awaited. The Committee noted the Board’s recommended upgrading for 
PEN020 on the Risk Register and the Head of Pensions advised that the 
Board’s recommendations in respect of the Business Plan would be included as 
part of the Risk Register. Members noted the Board’s request that an exit-
strategy for Brunel Pension Partnership be developed; however commented 
that the intention behind pooling arrangements was that there would be an 
element of permanency.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the recommendations arising from the Local Pension Board 
meeting held on 20 July 2016.  
 
To note the current work plan for the Board.  
 

65 External Audit Report 
 
The Committee was presented with the final Audit report for the Fund and noted 
there were no issues arising. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the final audit report.  
 

66 Annual Report 2015-16 
 

Page 524



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Members considered the Fund’s annual report and noted the Local Pension 
Board annual report included as an annex. The annual report contained the 
financial statements approved at the June meeting and would be uploaded to 
the Fund’s website. The Fund’s independent advisor commented that the 
content in the report was of a very high standard.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft Wiltshire Pension Fund Annual Report 2015-16, with 
the inclusion of a link to the Local Pension Board Annual Report. 
 
To thank officers for their hard work in supporting the Fund and in 
producing the report.  
 

67 Additional Voluntary Contributions Fund Choice 
 
The Committee was asked to consider adding an additional fund choice to the 
range of Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) options currently offered to 
members. An AVC provided members the option to increase their benefits upon 
retirements and any return on their investment; deductions were taken from pay 
before tax and sent across to the provider making it a tax efficient way to save. 
Pension fund members were currently able to choose from a range of 
investment options depending on their risk profile, one additional fund from 
Prudential had been highlighted as of potential interest. The Prudential Ethical 
fund invested in shares of UK companies which demonstrated good 
environmental, social and governance policies. The fund would be actively 
managed against its benchmark, the FTSE4Good UK INDEX, which was limited 
to those companies in the FTSE All-share Index which met set ethical criteria. 
 
Officers advised that the option had a medium-to-high risk rating and so 
complimented additional options, however did not pose risk to the Fund itself. 
Following questions from members it was confirmed that officers were in early 
stage discussion with Scottish Widows about giving legacy Clerical Medical 
members the option of more choice of funds.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the addition of the Prudential Ethical Fund as an option to the 
range of funds offered to members by Prudential.  
 

68 Budget Monitoring 2016-17 Report 
 
Officers presented the Fund’s Budget Monitoring report for 2016/17 and advised 
that the Fund was £411,000 overspent as a result of a performance 
management fee from Baillie Gifford (due to outperformance) and 
commissioning resource to support Brunel Pension Partnership. It was noted 
that the costs incurred through Brunel were recorded as ‘Investment 

Page 525



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Consultancy’ and a breakdown of the returns the Fund would expect to see 
from Brunel would be provided at the next ordinary meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the report on the latest budget monitoring position for the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund.  
 
 

69 Annual Benefit Statement Update 
 
The Head of Pensions updated the Committee on the 2016 Annual Benefit 
Statement exercise. Although some Annual Benefit Statement’s had been sent 
by the August deadline, the majority were sent two weeks later due to printing 
issues. This was not considered to be a significant breach of regulations 
however it would be reported to the Local Pension Board for consideration.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the Annual Benefit Statement exercise. 
 

70 Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Head of Pensions advised on updates and additions to the Risk Register. 
Five key changes had been made since the last report on 30 June 2016.  
 
The main change was the grading of ‘PEN020: Pooling of LGPS assets’ which 
had been upgraded from medium to high as Brunel Pension Partnership project 
presented a risk to the Fund through increased workload and officers having 
less time to devote to other administrations activities. Similarly, Brunel 
presented the potential for the movement of staff out of the Fund to become 
involved in the future pooling arrangements, impacting upon ‘PEN012: Over-
reliance on key officers’ and ‘PEN011: Lack of expertise of Pension Fund 
Officers’; consequently these two risks had been raised to medium. The Fund’s 
independent advisor commented that he supported the changes to the Risk 
Register as he continued pooling to carry high risk. 
 
‘PEN002: Failure to collect and account for contributions from employers and 
employees on time’ had been increased from low to medium risk as a result of 
increased pressure of monitoring contribution due to a greater number of 
employers in the fund. ‘PEN017: Lack of expertise on the Pension Fund 
Committee’ had recently been graded medium following the resignation of one 
long standing member and advice that the Vice Chairman would not seek re-
election in 2017. 
 
The Chairman advised that he had raised the issue of Committee succession 
planning with the Leader of the Council. Following questions it was confirmed 
that two employers were currently behind on their contributions payments 

Page 526



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

however this was considered to be an administration error rather than 
intentional. Officers also advised that they were awaiting further guidance on 
the implications of the public sector exit cap which would come into force in 
April 2017; once guidance was received this would also be provided within the 
newsletter the Fund sent to employers.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate risks.  
 

71 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted that a special meeting of the Committee was to be held on 13 
October 2016, the next ordinary meeting of the Committee would be on 15 
December 2016. 
 

72 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

73 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute Numbers 74- 81 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 

74 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minute of the meeting held on 30 June 2016. 
 

75 Investment Sub-Committee update 
 
Members were presented with an update from the Investment Sub Committee 
meeting held on 15 September 2016 and requested to consider 
recommendations arising from that meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 

 To note the minutes of the Investment Sub-Committee and report 
from Mercer on effectiveness of the Sub-Committee 

Page 527



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 To note the report on risk management options.  
 

 To agree that the Committee takes a training session on the use of 
LDI which sets out the nature and size of the risks the Fund is 
facing; and 

 

 To explore in more detail by way of an initial training session on the 
options available for equity protection strategies in comparison to 
investing in a lower volatility equity strategy; and 

 

 To note the recommendations of the Investment Sub Committee in 
relation to currency hedging and consider these as part of the 
formal review of Berenberg dynamic currency hedging mandate.  

 
76 Proposed Class Action Update 

 
The Head of Pensions updated on the latest position of a class action case the 
Fund was participating in. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Head of Pensions on the class action case. 
 

77 Funding Strategy Statement 
 
Members were presented with a Funding Strategy Statement which had been 
updated. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft Wiltshire Pension Fund Funding Strategy Statement 
2016 as attached in the Appendix. 
 
To publish the Funding Strategy Statement following the completion of 
the consultation period and update to the Committee on 15 December 
2016. 
 
 
 

78 Scheme Advisory Board Funding Metrics 
 
The Head of Pensions updated on funding metrics being submitted to the 
Shadow Advisory Board ahead of the formal valuation results being reported to 
Committee in October. 
 
 
 

Page 528



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To note the update on funding metrics and request that officers report 
concerns to Hymans Robertson and seek advice from the Actuary on the 
requirement to report this figure to the Scheme Advisory Board. 
 
To decline the submission of funding metrics to the Shadow Advisory 
Board by 30 September, unless advised by the Section 151 officer that 
there are legal reasons requiring the release of the metrics by this 
deadline, and to reconsider funding metrics as a high priority on 13 
October  2016 valuation meeting.  
 

79 Pooling of Investment Assets 
 
The Committee received an update on the Government’s proposals on the 
pooling of investment assets. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update by the Head of Pensions on the progress of the Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 
 
To request that the independent assurance report be circulated as part of 
the Full Business Case for pooling to Committee members. 
 
To note the recommendations of the Local Pension Board in respect of 
pooling.  
 
 

80 Review of Berenberg Dynamic Currency Hedging Mandate 
 
The Head of Pensions introduced a review of the Berenberg Dynamic Currency 
Hedging Mandate and related recommendations from the Investment Sub 
Committee. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To request that the Berenberg dynamic currency hedging mandate is 
terminated; and 
 
The strategic dynamic currency overlay programme is replaced with a 
50% passive currency overlay on its overseas equity exposure; and 
 
That 50% of the overseas equity exposure is hedged through the use of 
Legal and General hedged global equities and Legal & General hedged 
RAFI 3000 pooled vehicles.  
 
 

Page 529



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

81 Investment Quarterly Progress Report 
 
The Committee was presented with the Investment Quarterly Progress Report 
for information. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the report on performance of the Fund’s investments as to the 
end of June 2016.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 530



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2016 AT KENNET ROOM, COUNTY HALL. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Steve Allsopp, Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Cllr Charles Howard (Vice Chairman) 
Cllr Roy While, Linda Stuart, Sue Eley and Mike Pankiewicz. 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Catherine McFadyen, Robert McInroy and Mitch Johnstone (Hymans Robertson). 
 
  

 
82 Membership 

 
There were no changes to the membership of the Committee.  
 

83 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
There were no non-members of the Committee present.  
 

84 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Gordon King and Cllr Steve 
Weisinger. Jim Edney (Independent Advisor to the Fund) had sent his apologies 
and Bob Summers was instead attending as the substitute Independent Adviser 
from CIPFA Business Services.  
 

85 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest from members of the Committee.  
 

86 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements.  
 

87 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 
 

Page 531

Agenda Item 46



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

88 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Committee was to be held on 15 December 
2016.  
 

89 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

90 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute 91  because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1& 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 

 
91 Wiltshire Pension Fund - Actuarial Valuation 2016 

 
The Committee was presented with the results of the 2016 valuation. 
 
Resolved: 
 

a) To note the paper and verbal report of the Actuary; 
 

b) To note the assumptions that had been agreed with the Actuary as 
set out in paragraphs 13-23 of the report; 

 
c) To note the summary outcomes of the valuation as set out in 

paragraphs 32 to 33 of the report; 
 

d) To approve the employer contribution rates for the next three years 
as summarised in the Appendix, for presentation to the employer 
bodies on 13 October 2016; and 

 
e) To note that discussions will be held with employer bodies to 

finalise the implementation of the employer contribution rates, 
taking account of any risk based review, and that an update will be 
presented to the March Committee meeting.  

 
f) Not before the formal release of the Valuation, to release the HMT 

funding level to the Scheme Advisory Board with a request for an 
explanation as to how the figure will be used. 

Page 532



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.30 pm) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 533



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 534



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 15 DECEMBER 2016 AT THE WEST WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Steve Allsopp, Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Cllr Charles Howard (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Gordon King, Mike Pankiewicz, Cllr Sheila Parker and Cllr Roy While 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Jim Edney, Barry Reed, Michael Hudson (Treasurer to the Fund) and Cllr Dick Tonge 
 
  

 
92 Membership 

 
There were no changes to the membership of the Committee.  
 

93 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
Barry Reed, Local Pension Board member, and Cllr Dick Tonge, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, were in attendance.   
 

94 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: Linda Stuart, Sue Eley, Cllr Steve 
Weisinger and Howard Pearce (Local Pension Board Chairman).  
 

95 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2016 
subject to an amendment to minute item 68 to reflect that the Baillie 
Gifford performance fee was due to performance exceeding initial targets. 
 
 
To confirm the Part 1 minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2016.  
 
 
 

Page 535

Agenda Item 47



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

96 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

97 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Members were advised that an investment training day was to be held on 19 
January 2017 for Committee and Board members. The Chairman also updated 
that the Fund was currently 82% funded.  
 

98 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

99 Local Pension Board Update 
 
The minutes of the last Board meeting and its current work plan were circulated 
for Committee consideration. The Head of Pensions updated that members of 
the public had been in attendance at the last Board meeting to express concern 
about the Fund’s investments in fossil fuel. The officer advised that the 
Chairman has responded in writing about the Fund’s approach to fossil fuel 
investment and the Fund’s Position Statement on Fossil Fuel Divestment had 
since been published on the website. The Committee understood that the Fund 
did not hold much investment in fossil fuels and supported responsible 
investment in terms of the consideration of ESG outlined in its Statement of 
Investment Principles. It was noted that the Fund would review its Investment 
Strategy Statement in April 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the minutes and recommendations arising from the LPB meeting 
held on 20 October 2016. 
 
To note the current work plan of the Local Pension Board.  
 

100 Local Pension Board Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
The Head of Pensions presented a Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest 
Policy for the Local Pension Board which required annual review by the 
Committee. In was explained that the Board as a body was in support of the 
policy document however comments had been raised around the status of the 
policy and whether the requirements were reasonable. Legal opinion had been 
sought following the comments and the advice had confirmed that the policies 
were in line with guidance, Regulations and were similar to those used by other 
Funds. The policy was required to ensure the sound governance of the Board 
and members were expected to comply with the policy. The Chairman noted the 
advice of officers and comments raised at the Local Pension Board meeting. 

Page 536



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Committee agreed the Board’s recommendation that the policy be updated 
to reflect the new status of the Scheme Advisory Board.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the attached Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy 
Guidelines in relation to the LPB, as updated to reflect the status of the 
Scheme Advisory Board 
 

101 Update on the Fund's Stewardship Code Statement 
 
Catherine Dix, Strategic Pension Manager, updated on the Fund’s Stewardship 
Code Statement which had been revised in light of feedback from the Financial 
Reporting Council that the Fund had not met the expectations of the 
Stewardship Code. The revised statement had been assessed as Tier 1, 
meaning the Fund met the reporting expectations of the FRC in the way they 
disclose their stewardship responsibilities. The officer advised that the 
statement had not fundamentally changed but was a more detailed explanation 
of processes. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the revised Stewardship Code Statement that is 
included in the Statement of Investment Principles.  
 

102 Actuarial Valuation and Funding Strategy Statement Update 
 
The Head of Pensions explained that the Fund’s officers had been working with 
employers to sign off their contribution rates; there was currently a 45% success 
rate. The contribution rates had to be agreed by the end of March 2017 and a 
further update would be provided to the Committee closer to the deadline. 
 
The Committee also heard the outcome of the consultation of the Funding 
Strategy Statement amongst employer members. It was noted that only one 
response had been received by an academy which questioned the different 
deficit recovery period between academies and the Council. The Head of 
Pensions explained that this was the case since academies carried higher risk 
as they were not tax-raising bodies. The officer also advised that the Scheme 
Advisory Board had commissioned Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) to 
research into the approach towards academies across the LGPS. The 
Committee agreed it would be sensible to review its approach to academies 
following the publication of this research. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the progress of the 2016 Triennial valuation and 
feedback from the consultation on the Funding Strategy Statement. 
 

Page 537



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To request that the Fund’s approach to academies in respect of deficit 
recovery periods be reviewed following the publication of the SAB 
research.  
 

103 Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Head of Pensions updated on two key changes to the Risk Register since 
the last report to Committee. PEN006b: ‘Significant rises in employer 
contributions for non-secure employers due to increases in liabilities’ had been 
moved from amber to green following the results of the 2016 triennial valuation. 
PEN011: ‘Lack of expertise of Pension Fund Officers’ had reduced from amber 
to green following the appointment of the Technical and Compliance Manager 
to cover the Benefits Manager’s maternity leave, with Hymans Robertson 
provided additional technical support over the next 6-9 months. The Committee 
was reassured that officers kept resourcing under continuous review and were 
confident that sufficient resource was available over the short term to ensure 
the core activities of the Fund were not neglected as a result of the extra work 
arising from asset pooling. Members noted that the Local Pension Board was 
also aware of the resource pressures currently on the Fund.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the attached Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate 
risks.  
 

104 Brunel Pension Partnership Full Business Case 
 
The Business Case and officer’s recommendation in respect of Brunel Pension 
Partnership were available for public inspection under Part 1 of the agenda.  
 

105 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The Committee noted the date of the next meeting was to be held on 23 March 
2017.  
 

106 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 

107 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute number 108-111 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 

Page 538



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 

108 Brunel Pension Partnership Full Business Case 
 
The Treasurer to the Pension Fund introduced a proposal for the Committee to 
recommend to Full Council that the Fund enter into asset pooling arrangements 
as part of Brunel Pension Partnership, it was explained that the proposals 
sought to delegate to the Committee and to Officers, as appropriate, to 
authorise the work as it progressed. 
 
The Committee considered the Business Case.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To thank officers for their dedication and hard work to support Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 
 
To note the tax implications of asset pooling and to encourage that action 
be taken to mitigate this. 
 
To recommend that the Chairman of the Pension Fund prioritise 
investment in client group interests through the Shadow Operations 
Board and that resource is made clear to the Committee following that 
discussion.  
 
The Committee endorses the Full Business Case for Brunel Pension 
Partnership and recommends the following to Full Council: 
 
In its capacity as the Administering Authority for the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund, and having received and reviewed the recommendation of the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee on 15 December 2016 and the 
Business Case attached to it, Wiltshire Council hereby resolves to enter 
into investment pooling as part of the Brunel project with respect to the 
Wiltshire Pension Fund’s investments. 
 
Such Resolution is made on and subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
 
a) That the Brunel Pension Partnership investment pool be developed, 
funded and implemented substantially in accordance with the terms and 
provisions described in the Business Case considered by the Pension 
Committee, and more particularly that: 
 
• a Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) regulated company to be 
named Brunel Pension Partnership Limited be established and operated 
with all necessary and appropriate arrangements as to its ownership, 
structure, governance and services capability. 

Page 539



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
• a new supervisory body comprising representatives of the Council 
and all other participants in the Brunel Pension Partnership be 
established to ensure oversight of Wiltshire Pension Fund investments 
and participation in the Brunel Pension Partnership. 
 
b) That subject to the continued viability of investment pooling, financial 
or otherwise Wiltshire Pensions Committee is authorised to undertake 
such tasks, after consideration of advice from its Chief Legal Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and Pension Fund Manager, as it thinks 
appropriate to progress implementation of investment pooling. To take 
such decisions and do all other things deemed necessary in order to 
promote the interests of the Administering Authority with respect to 
pooling, which without limitation shall include agreeing and authorising 
any documentation, contracts, terms of reference, financial expenditure or 
investment that may be required consequential upon the Fund's 
participation in the Brunel Pension Partnership. For the avoidance of 
doubt this includes the right of the Pension Committee to authorise the 
Chief Legal Officer and Chief Financial Officer to take such steps as are 
necessary to progress the project. 
 
c) That subject to the above, all such matters be carried out with the aim 
of achieving a target date for beginning investment pooling of 1 April 
2018, and otherwise subject to such intermediate steps and timescales as 
may be considered appropriate and necessary by the Pensions 
Committee. 
 

109 Investment Quarterly Progress Report. 
 
The Committee was presented with the latest investment reports and minutes of 
the Investment Sub Committee meeting held on 24 November 2016. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the reports on the Fund’s investments. 
 
To note the minutes of the Investment Sub Committee meeting held on 24 
November 2016.  
 

110 Local Pension Board Update 
 
The Part 2 minutes of the Local Pension Board meeting held on 20 October 
2016 were circulated for Committee consideration.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Part 2 minutes and recommendations arising from the LPB 
meeting held on 20 October 2016. 

Page 540



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
111 Minutes 

 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2016 
subject to an amendment to minute item 68 to reflect that the Baillie 
Gifford performance fee was due to performance exceeding initial targets. 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2016. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.45 am - 12.35 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718214, e-mail elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 541



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 542



                              
 

 
 
 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 1 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE 
LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 

Cllr Junab Ali, Cllr Abdul Amin, Alan Bishop, Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Chris Caswill, Chris Henwood, Cindy Creasy, 
Cllr Peter Hutton, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr John Smale, Sydney-Smith and 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 

Angus Macpherson – Police & Crime Commissioner 
Kieran Kilgallen – OPCC 
Chris Mcmullen – OPCC 
Carolyn Filmore – OPCC 
Naji Dawish – OPCC 
Henry Powell – Wiltshire Council 
Kevin Fielding – Wiltshire Council 
 
 
 
  

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

 
 
Apologies were received from Emily Higson – Wiltshire Council and Cllr Julian 
Johnson. Cllr Tony Trotman was welcomed to the meeting as substitute for Cllr 
Johnson. 
 
 

2 Minutes and matters arising 
 
 
Decision: 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 16 June 2016 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
 

Page 543

Agenda Item 48



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

3 Declarations of interest 
 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
 
The Chairman advised that he would be attending the 2016 PCP Conference on 
Thursday 20 October and asked if any other Panel members would be 
interested in attending this event. Cllr Junab Ali expressed an interest in 
attending. 
 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
 
The Commissioner was asked “What process of consultation with Swindon 
residents was carried out re the New Policing Model”. The Commissioner 
advised that the New Policing Model had been successfully piloted in the 
Trowbridge and Warminster community areas and was now being rolled out 
Wiltshire wide and then Swindon. Wiltshire Police had outlined the NPM at 
Wiltshire Council Area Boards and would outline at Swindon Borough Council 
Local Locality meetings. 
 
 

6 Quarterly data (Q1)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints - including 
drugs information 
 
 
The Commissioner outlined a report setting out his quarterly performance data 
– Quarter One 2016-17 (1 April to 30 June 2016). 
 
Points made included: 
 

 9,607 crimes were recorded during quarter one.  
 

 In the 12 months to June 2016, 38,081 crimes were recorded. This 
represents an increase of 14 per cent on the previous 12 months.  

 

 Nationally, there continues to be an increase in recorded crime, with the 
latest Crime Survey of England and Wales (CSEW) citing an eight per 
cent increase in police recorded crime in the 12 months to March 2016.  

 

 This CSEW estimates that actual incidents of crime have reduced by six 
per cent during the same period.  

 

Page 544



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 That there had been a slight rise in hate crime after the Brexit 
referendum, this however was not as high as other parts of the UK. 

 

 That Wiltshire Police should consider “Pop up police stations” in village 
halls and shopping precincts and supermarkets across the county to 
increase its visibility. 
 

 The importance of officers being out in the community and not stuck in 
police stations. 
 

 The importance of the police tapping into volunteer schemes such as 
speed watch. 

 

 That the new IT tech was slowly being rolled out to officers across the 
county. 

  
The report was noted. 
 
 
Deep Dive – Prevent Crime and ASB 
 
The report was noted. 
 
 
Risk Register – Quarter One 2016-17 (1 April to 30 June 2016). 
 
The report was noted. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for his report 
 
 

7 Community Policing - Verbal Update 
 
 
Kieran Kilgallen gave a brief verbal update. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That the Salisbury community area would be the next in the rollout 
program. 

 

 New staffing rosters had now been allocated to teams. 
 

 Staff workloads identified. 
 

 IT work streams identified. 
 

 Work ongoing at Gable Cross and Bourne Hill. 

Page 545



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 That officers and back office staff had received training on the new way 
of working. 
 

The Chairman thanked Kieran Kilgallen for his update. 
 
 

8 Tri-Force collaboration programme 
 
 
Failure to agree Tri-PCP Task Group. 
 

 The Chairman expressed the Police and Crime Panel’s frustrations at the 
Commissioners reluctance to work with them in agreeing a Tri-PCP Task 
Group. 

 
Verbal update on progress. 
 

 The Chairman advised that the Tri-PCPs would continue to collaborate. 
 
Future reporting. 
 

 That an update would be available at the December 2016 meeting, 
OPPC to liaise with Henry Powell. 

 
 

9 Restorative Justice - Out of court settlements 
 
 
A brief update was given by OPPC members. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That pilot programs were now being set up by Wiltshire Police. 
 

 That officers were now being trained in restorative justice to increase 
their understanding and improve the take up of restorative justice 

 

 The benefits of bringing victims of crime and perpetrators together.  
 

 That the panel had concerns re the poor take up of restorative justice. 
 
It was agreed that the panel would re-visit this topic in 12 months time and that 
it would be added to the forward work plan for inclusion in the September 2017 
meeting agenda. 
 
The Chairman thanked the OPPC for the update. 

Page 546



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

10 Wiltshire Criminal Justice Board - Verbal Update 
 
 
It was agreed that a written report would be brought to the December 2016 
meeting. 
 
 

11 Recruitment of Specials - Verbal Update 
 
 
The Commissioner gave a brief verbal update. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That some 200 applications had been received. 
 

 Assessments would begin during September 2016. 
 

 That a further update would be given at the December 2016 meeting. 
 

The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for his update. 
 
 

12 Task group updates 
 
 

 PCC Commissioning Strategy Task Group – Noted, full update at 
December meeting. 

 
 

 Specials Task Group – Noted, full update at December meeting. 
 
 
 
 

13 PCC Diary report 
 
 
The PCC Diary report was noted. 
 
 

14 Forward Work Plan 
 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted. 
 

Page 547



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
15 Future meeting dates 

 
 
The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on Thursday 1 
December 2016 at the Swindon Borough Council offices. 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 1.15 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Emily Higson, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713990, e-mail emily.higson@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

2b   

Page 548



                              
 

 
 
 

 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 1 DECEMBER 2016 AT SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL OFFICES, 
EUCLID ST, SWINDON SN1 2JH. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Junab Ali, Cllr Abdul Amin, Alan Bishop, Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), 
Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Chris Caswill, Cindy Creasy, Chris Henwood, Cllr Peter Hutton, 
Cllr Gordon King, Cllr John Smale and Cllr Sydney-Smith 
 
Also  Present: 
 

Angus Macpherson – Police & Crime Commissioner 
Kieran Kilgallen – OPCC 
Ryan Hartley – OPCC 
Carolyn Filmore – OPCC 
Naji Dawish – OPCC 
 
Emily Higson – Wiltshire Council 
Kevin Fielding – Wiltshire Council 
 
  

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Julian Johnson. (Cllr Tony Trotman sub). 
 
 

2 Minutes and matters arising 
 
Decision: 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 1 September 2016 
were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

 
3 Declarations of interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 549

Agenda Item 49



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 

 The Chairman advised that in order to try and keep business 
manageable at future meetings panel members were encouraged to 
forward written questions to Emily Higson, who would then liaise with the 
OPPC for responses. 
 

 
5 Public Participation 

 
There was none. 
 
 

6 Quarterly data (Q2)- Performance / Risk / Finance / Complaints 
 
The Commissioner outlined a report setting out his quarterly performance data 
– Quarter Two 2016-17 (1 July to 30 September 2016). 
 
Points made included: 
 

 There were 10,640 crimes recorded during quarter two.  
 

 In the 12 months to September 2016, 39,158 crimes were recorded. This 
represented an increase of 12 per cent on the previous 12 months.  

 

 Wiltshire’s position was not statistically an exception with the crime rate per 
1,000 population and also percentage increase both being in line with 
national average.  

 

 Nationally, there continued to be an increase in recorded crime, with the 
latest Crime Survey of England and Wales (CSEW)1 citing a seven per cent 
increase in police recorded crime in the 12 months to June 2016.  
 

 Cllr Ali advised that he been made aware of incidents of break ins and 
burglaries of domestic premises in the Turkish community living in West 
Swindon. The Turkish residents felt that the Police were not taking these 
incidents seriously. The Commissioner advised that he would follow this 
matter up. 
 

 

Deep Dive – Raising Awareness of Significant Topics 
 
The report was noted. 

 
 

Risk Register – Quarter Two 2016-17 (1 July to 30 September 2016). 
 
After discussion the report was noted. 

Page 550



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for his report. 
 

7 Recruitment of Special Constables - update 
 
Kieran Kilgallen presented a written report which provided a brief update on 
progress to date with the recruitment of Special Constables.  

 
Points made included: 
 

 The recruitment website www.wiltshirepolicespecials.co.uk is live and was 
providing the link between the marketing strategy and the on-line selection 
process.  

 

 The phase 1 training website was also live and being used by cohort 1 of 
the new Special Constables intake. 

 

 The project team had facilitated two Experience Days (ED’s) which included 
the job-related fitness test, a literacy test, a group exercise, DNA testing and 
the medical. Overall the feedback, internal and from candidates, had been 
very positive with a few tweaks being made.  

 

 The ED’s had delivered the following: 61 successful candidates of which 44 
are male and 17 female. The total includes 7 BME candidates which 
represents 11.48% of the total; the project aim is 5% BME candidates.  

 

 The first cohort had completed the induction day and commenced training. 
The cohort 2 induction event took place in October.  

 

 The project had so far secured over 200 expressions of interest (EOI) to 
become Special Constables.  

 

The Chairman thanked Kieran Kilgallen for his update. 
 
 

8 Wiltshire Criminal Justice Board 
 
Kieran Kilgallen presented a written report on progress at the WCJB in reducing 
the incidence of cracked and defective trials and enhancing the victim and 
witness experience. 
 
The Chairman had asked that, as the Chief Constable now chaired the Wiltshire 
Criminal Justice Board, had there been any progress with reducing the number of 
cracked and defective trials at both Magistrates and High Court. This information 
had previously been received by the Panel in the context of the routine 
performance report. The Chairman asked for a report showing cracked and 
defective trials monthly for the past two years.  
 

Page 551



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The matter had been raised through the WCJB on several occasions with the Head 
of Crime from the South West, Enzo Riglia. Losing the key members of staff meant 
that they could not replicate the data with the same level of context. Mr Riglia had 
said that he was liaising with the National Courts Team to try and obtain a monthly 
report for Wiltshire. His response was currently awaited. 
 
The Chairman thanked  Kieran Kilgallen for his update and once again highlighted 
the uncertain future of the Chippenham Magistrates Court and the pressing need to 
redevelop the Swindon  Magistrates Court. 
 

 
9 Tri-Force collaboration programme 

 
Kieran Kilgallen gave a brief verbal update. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That the group had recently met. 
 

 That Avon and Somerset Police had withdrawn from the programme, 
Wiltshire would continue to work with Gloucestershire. 
 

 That the programme had now been put on hold for six months. 
 

 That Gloucestershire and Wiltshire forces would now look at developing 
a joint cloud based IT system. 
 

It was agreed that a further update would given at the January 2017 meeting. 
 
The Chairman thanked Kieran Kilgallen for his update. 

  
 

10 Task group updates 
 
There was nothing to update. 
 
 

11 Commissioner's Blog 
 
The Commissioner’s Blog was noted. 
 
 

12 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted. 
 
 
 

Page 552



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

13 Future meeting dates 
 
Future meeting dates were noted as: 
 

 Wednesday 11 January 2017 – County Hall, Trowbridge – 10am-2pm 
 

 Thursday 2 February 2017 – Monkton Park Offices, Chippenham - 10am-
2pm 

 

 Thursday 2 March 2017 – City Hall, Salisbury- 10am-2pm 
 

 Thursday 29 June 2017 – Corn Exchange, Devizes - 10am-2pm 
 

 Thursday 7 September 2017 – County Hall, Trowbridge - 10am-2pm 
 

 Wednesday 7 December 2017 – Swindon Borough Council Offices - 
10am-2pm 
 

 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.40 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kevin Fielding, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01249 706612, e-mail kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 553



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 554



                              
 

 
 
 

 

WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
HELD ON 11 JANUARY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), Chris Henwood, Cllr Gordon King, Sydney-Smith, 
Cllr Abdul Amin, Cllr Peter Hutton, Cllr Tony Trotman (Substitute), Cllr Chris Caswill, 
Cllr Junab Ali (Vice Chairman), Cindy Creasy, Cllr Chuck Berry (Substitute) and 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 
 
Also  Present: 
 

Angus Macpherson – Police & Crime Commissioner 
Kieran Kilgallen – OPCC 
Clive Barker – OPCC 
Naji Dawish – OPCC 
 
Emily Higson – Wiltshire Council 
Kevin Fielding – Wiltshire Council 
 
  

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Alan Bishop – Swindon Borough Council, Cllr 
John Smale – Wiltshire Council and Cllr Julian Johnson – Wiltshire Council. 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman welcomed Cllr Tony Trotman – Wiltshire Council and Cllr Chuck 
Berry – Wiltshire Council to the meeting as substitutes for Cllrs Julian Johnson 
and John Smale. 
 
The Chairman reminded the members of the PCP workshop, to be held on 
Thursday 23 February at the Wiltshire History Centre, Chippenham. 
 

Page 555

Agenda Item 50



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

4 Public Participation 
 
There was no public participation. 
 

5 HMIC Value for Money Profiles 
 
Clive Barker – OPPC gave a short presentation that outlined the Police and 
Crime plan and the proposal from the Commissioner to increase the precept. 
 
Points made included: 
 
How was the Profile compiled 
 

 Produced by HMIC annually. 

 Finances are based on 2016-17 budget. 

 HR data is a mix of 2016-17 budget and ADR returns. 

 Allows Wiltshire Police to compare against national average & MSG. 

 Our Most Similar Group (MSG) of Forces are D&C, Warwickshire, 
Suffolk, North Wales, West Mercia, Norfolk and Cheshire. 
 

 
The Police part of the council tax 
 

 Wiltshire Police are the 17th lowest out of 37 English forces. 

 The highest is £220.19, the lowest £93.33. 

 The average is £174. 

 So Wiltshire at £167.10 is below the average. 
 

 
What does this mean for Policing 
 

 If Wiltshire Police want to spend more in one area, then another area 
would fall even further below the similar force average. 

 

 The Threat, Harm, Risk approach was even more important as Wiltshire 
Police can’t deliver everything we want – difficult decisions had  to be 
made by the PCC (in allocating funds). 

 

 Vulnerable people and safeguarding children in areas of cyber crime had 
to be weighed up against the more traditional policing the beat approach 
(a communication challenge). 

 
The Chairman thanked Clive Barker for his presentation. 
 

6 PCC Budget 2017/18 and MTFS 
 

Page 556



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Clive Barker gave a short presentation that outlined the PCC’s Draft Budget 
Settlement for 2017/18, including the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 In October 2016 the initial Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was 
produced and reviewed at the monitoring board. The MTFS looked at the 
estimated financial position of the PCC over the next 4 years and the impact 
this had on the PCC’s ability to commission services. 

 

 
The following Police relevant information was announced in the December 
settlement;  
 

 A £0.812m cash reduction in Police Revenue funding for 2017-18, a 1.4% 
cut in funding for Wiltshire.  

 

 An increase in top slicing of Policing Funding in 2017-18 from £571m to 
£812m (mainly for Police Technology Programmes and Transformation 
Fund).  

 

 The setting of the council tax referendum threshold level at 2%.  
 

 The announcement that PCC’s with funds in the lowest quartile nationally 
can increase the council tax up to maximum of £5 per band D property 
without triggering the requirement for a referendum (Wiltshire are not in the 
lowest quartile).  

 

 
 Council Tax Options 
  

 Option A – To increase council tax by 1.9%.  
 

 Option B – To maintain council tax at the 2016-17 level. 
 

 
Reserves  
 

 The reserves held by the PCC had been reviewed. The value of the general 
reserve had been considered and the Commissioner advised that £2.6m 
(2.5% of the revenue budget) was acceptable. A complete review of 
reserves had taken place, some reserves had been removed or reduced to 
free up funds. With these plans it was estimated that revenue reserves 
would be £4.9m by 31 March 2018.  

 
 
Conclusion  
 

Page 557



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 That a £3.17 Band D increase per household per year is appropriate, with 
the Commissioner now consulting the public on this.  

 
The Chairman thanked Clive Barker for his presentation. 
 

7 Police and Crime Plan 
 
The Commissioner outlined the refreshed Police and Crime Plan 2017-20 for 
Panel comments. 
 
The plan was contained in the agenda pack. 
 
Points raised by the PCP included: 
 

 Not enough detail on the role of the Commissioner. 
 

 The diagram, (Typical daily demand in Wiltshire Police) could be clearer. 
 

 More publicity re community policing would be welcomed. 
 

 That the plan conveys only positives, and no negatives. 
 

 More publicity of community policing and pubwatch etc. 
 

The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for his presentation. 
 

8 Tri-Force collaboration programme 
 
Kieran Kilgallen gave a brief verbal update. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That Avon and Somerset Police had withdrawn from the programme, 
Wiltshire would continue to work with Gloucestershire. 
 

 That Wiltshire would still gain some benefits from the funds that had 
been invested in the programme. 
 

 That Gloucestershire and Wiltshire forces would now look at developing 
a joint cloud based IT system. 
 

 
The Chairman thanked Kieran Kilgallen for his update. 

  
 

9 Member Questions 
 

Page 558



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Question raised by Cllr Richard Britton, (report contained in the agenda pack) 
were noted. 
 

10 Task group updates 
 
The Chairman requested that the OPPC would provide the PCP with more 
information on the Review of Community Policing. 
 
 
 

11 Forward Work Plan 
 
The Forward Work Plan was noted with the following additions: 
 
March meeting – add Community Policing Review and remove Tri-Force 
Collaboration Program from the FWP. 
 
 

12 Future meeting dates 
 
Future meeting dates were noted as: 
 

 Thursday 2 February 2017 – Monkton Park Offices, Chippenham - 10am-
2pm 

 

 Thursday 2 March 2017 – City Hall, Salisbury- 10am-2pm 
 

 Thursday 29 June 2017 – Corn Exchange, Devizes - 10am-2pm 
 

 Thursday 7 September 2017 – County Hall, Trowbridge - 10am-2pm 
 

 Wednesday 7 December 2017 – Swindon Borough Council Offices - 
10am-2pm 
 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 1.00 pm) 
 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kevin Fielding, of Democratic 
Services, direct line01249 706612, e-mail emily.higson@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 559



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 560



Not Protectively Marked  
 

 

 

DRAFT Minutes of the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire Authority Committee  

held at 11:30 hours on Wednesday 14 September 2016 at the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Salisbury 

 

Members present: Cllr Rebecca Knox (Chairman), Cllr Abdul Amin, Cllr Mark 

Anderson , Cllr Les Burden, Cllr Steve Butler, Cllr Mike Byatt, Cllr Ernie Clarke, Cllr 

Ronald Coatsworth, Cllr Malcolm Davies, Cllr Beverley Dunlop, Cllr Peter Edge, Cllr 

Spencer Flower, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Colin Jamieson, Cllr Susan Jefferies, Cllr 

Bob Jones, Cllr Trevor Jones, Cllr John Knight, Cllr Nick Martin, Cllr Christopher 

Newbury, Cllr Graham Payne, Cllr Garry Perkins, Cllr Christopher Rochester, Cllr 

Ricky Rogers, Cllr Ann Stribley, Cllr Joe Tray,  

 

Officer attendance: Chief Fire Officer Darran Gunter, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Mick Stead, Assistant Chief Fire Officer John Aldridge, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Ben Ansell, Director of Finance and Treasurer Phil Chow, Director of People 

Services Kay Williams, Director of Corporate Services Derek James, Head of 

Democratic Services and Corporate Assurance Jill McCrae, Monitoring Officer and 

Clerk Jonathan Mair.  

 

1  Welcome  
 

1.1  The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed Members.  
 

 

2  Apologies 
 

2.2  Apologies were received from Cllr Phil Eades, Cllr Bridget Wayman and Cllr 
Chris Devine.  
 

 

3  Declarations of Interest and Notifications of Any Other  Business 
 

3.1  There were none. 
 

Page 561

Agenda Item 51



Not Protectively Marked  
 

4  Minutes of Dorset & Wiltshire Fire Authority meeting on 23 June 2016 
and matters arising.  
 

4.1  Members approved the minutes from the previous meeting. 
 

4.2  The Chief Fire Officer provided an update for members, referring them to 
point 5.6 of the minutes and noting that the proposed terms of reference 
had been agreed for the Governance Working Group along with a schedule 
of meetings. 
 

 

5  Verbal report from the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee 
meeting held on 14 September 2016.  
 

5.1  The Chairman provided Members with an overview of the Policy and 
Resources meeting that had taken place prior to this meeting. 
 

 

6  Review of the minutes of the Finance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 6 July 2016   
 

6.1  The minutes were reviewed by Members. 
 

6.2  Members asked if unused grants had to be returned to the originator or if 
instead they could be added to balances. The Director of Finance and 
Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow, advised that it very much depended upon the 
conditions of the grants. 
 

6.3  Members also noted that Cllr Christopher Newbury was in both the 
apologies and attendees for the meeting. The Head of Democratic Services 
& Corporate Assurance advised that this would be corrected.  
 

6.4  Action: Head of Democratic Services & Corporate Assurance to 
correct the minutes to remove Cllr Newbury from the apologies list. 

 

7  Chairman’s Announcements  
 

7.1  The Chairman outlined the on-going national campaign on sprinkler 
systems in schools, highlighting that sprinkler systems are not considered a 
compulsory requirement for new builds.  She went on to note the national 
comparisons and benefits of sprinkler systems and confirmed that Fire and 
Rescue Authorities would like tighter regulations. 
   

7.2  The Chairman asked Members for their views on the current situation and 
noted that Assistant Chief Fire Officer, Ben Ansell, was part of the national 
lobbying group.   
 

7.3.  Members discussed the situation and reflected upon the impact of previous 
school fires, including the cost of re-building schools. 

Page 562



Not Protectively Marked  
 

 
7.4  Members noted that in the absence of a specific agenda item a motion 

concerning sprinkler systems could only be put to the Authority as an item 
of urgency with the agreement of the Chairman.  
 

7.5  The Chairman having confirmed her agreement to the urgent consideration 

of the Authority’s position on sprinkler systems in schools members went on 

to consider urgent item 7A.  

 

7A  Urgent Agenda Item – School Sprinkler Systems 
 

7.1a  The Chairman asked Members to confirm the Authority’s support of the 
campaign for sprinkler systems to be compulsory in school new builds.  
Members voted unanimously in favour of supporting the campaign. 
 

7.2a  Members also supported the Chairman’s suggestion that letters explaining 
the Authority’s support for the campaign should be sent to the: 
 

 constituent councils as local education authorities 

 individual council lead members for education 

 local Members of Parliament 

 other relevant stakeholders  
 

and that the Authority’s position should be reinforced through a press 

release.  

 
7.3a  Action: That letters and a press release be issued in accordance with 

minute 7.2a. 
 

   
7.4a  Resolved: That the Authority support the campaign for sprinkler 

systems to be compulsory in school new builds. 
 

 

8  Appointments to Committees  
 

8.1  The Monitoring Officer and Clerk, Mr Jonathan Mair, reported on the need 
to appoint a member to represent the Authority on the Dorset Community 
Safety Partnership Board and the need to appoint a member to the vacancy 
left by Cllr Colin Lovell on the Authority’s Appeals Committee.    
 

8.2.  The Chairman proposed that Cllr Steve Butler be the representative for the 
Dorset Community Safety Partnership and Members agreed unanimously.  
 

8.3  The Chairman noted that a Conservative Councillor would be required for 
the Appeals Committee and confirmed that Cllr John Haines had been put 
forward.  Members agreed unanimously that Cllr Haines be appointed to the 

Page 563



Not Protectively Marked  
 

Committee.  
 

8.4  Resolved: That Cllr Steve Butler be appointed as the Authority’s 
representative on the Dorset Community Safety Partnership Board. 
 

8.5  Resolved: That Cllr John Haines be appointed to the Appeals 
Committee.  

 

9  Efficiency Plans 
 

9.1  The Director of Finance and Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow, took Members 
through the paper and highlighted how the Efficiency Plan will support the 
application for a four year grant settlement.  
 

9.2.  Members discussed the plan and identified a reference to Trowbridge Fire 
Station on page 8 of Appendix A, point 4.4.  Members requested that this is 
removed. 
 

9.3  Members discussed the references to co-responding and the impacts upon 
the Service following the recent changes made by the ambulance services.  
The Chief Fire Officer assured Member that the Service is reviewing this 
and considering alternative options.  
 

9.4  Members asked where the monitoring and scrutiny of this plan would take 
place and Mr Phil Chow confirmed that this would be via the Finance & 
Audit Committee.  
 

9.5  The Chairman took Members to the recommendations in the paper and 
Members approved Appendix A for submission to the Home Office with the 
removal of the reference to Trowbridge Fire Station and with consideration 
of the future of co-responding.  
 

9.6  Resolved: That Appendix A be approved for submission to the Home 

Office with the removal of the reference to Trowbridge Fire Station. 

 

10  Approval of CFO Appointment 
 

10.1  The Chairman informed Members that the Appointments Committee, with 
the additional advice from Peter Holland, Chief Fire and Rescue Adviser 
and Steve Mason, Realworld HR, had met and shortlisted candidates for 
the post of Chief Fire Officer and confirmed that the shortlist comprised both 
external and internal candidates. She went on to advice that following the 
interview process the committee recommended the appointment of 
Assistant Chief Fire Officer, Ben Ansell. 
 

10.2 
 
 
 

 The Clerk explained that the Authority’s pay policy required that an 
appointment to any post with a salary above £100,000 must be put to the 
full Authority for approval. The recommendation of the Appointments 
Committee was that ACFO Ansell be appointed Chief Fire Officer on a 

Page 564



Not Protectively Marked  
 

 salary of £132,814, rising to £137,814 and then £142,814 on satisfactory 
completion of a development plan to be approved by the Chairman after 
consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Clerk. 
 

10.3  Members asked for the number of applicants and number of shortlisted 
candidates and the Chairman confirmed that of the 4 Applicants, 3 had 
been shortlisted.  
 

10.4  Members asked for confirmation of the anticipated development plan and 
the Chairman confirmed that this would be taken over a six month period. 
 

10.5  The Chairman asked Members to confirm their support for the appointment 
of Assistant Chief Fire Officer, Ben Ansell to the position of Chief Fire 
Officer and Members agreed unanimously.  
 

10.6  The Chairman asked that the Authority’s thanks be extended to Peter 
Holland and Steve Mason for their support throughout the appointment 
process.  
 

10.7  Resolved unanimously: That ACFO Ben Ansell be appointed as Chief 
Fire Officer. 

 

11  Local Government Review 
 

11.1  The Chief Fire Officer took Members through the paper, noting that both he 
and the Chairman had received correspondence regarding a consultation 
process which is being under taken across the 9 councils in Dorset on the 
future of local government.   
 

11.2  The Chairman asked Members to consider whether a response from the 
Fire Authority is required and if so what key messages should be included.  
 

11.3  The Chairman’s own approach was one of welcoming partnership working 
with all councils and representatives across the Authority’s area, 
irrespective of whatever local government structures are in place but she 
wished to hear the views of other members before responding to the 
consultation.  
 

11.4  Members discussed the paper and confirmed unanimously that a response 
to confirm the Authority’s willingness to work with and support the decisions 
made within the review should be sent by the Chairman, however the 
decision is one for the people and authorities of Dorset.   
 

11.5  Action: The Chairman to respond to the consultation.  
  

11.6  Resolved: That the Chairman respond to the consultation on the basis 
set out in minute 11.4. 

 

Page 565



Not Protectively Marked  
 

12  Demonstration of Members Dashboard. 
  

12.1  The Chairman welcomed the Head of Strategic Planning, Mr Bob Ford, to 
the meeting.  
 

12.2  Mr Ford provided the Authority with a demonstration of the Members’ 
dashboard and confirmed how it would be maintained and updated, noting 
that Members will be able to share this with their communities and review 
the performance of the service, thereby assisting members in their role on 
Local Performance and Scrutiny Boards. 
 

12.3  The Chairman thanked Mr Ford for attending and provided her thoughts on 
how use of this system represents best practise for fire authorities.  
 

12.4  Members asked how overall Authority performance will be reported and Mr 
Ford confirmed that this would be via the 6 month performance reports 
which would be brought to the Fire Authority meeting.  
  

12.5  Members confirmed their satisfaction with the performance reporting 
structure and system.  
 

 

13  Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority quarterly Video 
 

13.1  The Chairman welcomed the Head of Information Management and 
Communication, Mrs Vikki Shearing, to the meeting. 
 

13.2  Mrs Shearing introduced the video advising that in compiling the video her 
team had engaged with the full workforce to achieve a wider audience. She 
also confirmed the intention for its use on social media. 
 

13.3  Members expressed their appreciation for the video and asked if a shorter 
version could also be made available for them to use locally.  
 

13.4 
 

 The Chairman thanked Mrs Shearing and her team. 

13.5  Action: Head of Information Management and Communication to 
provider a shorter version to Members of all future videos.  
 

 

14  Date of next meeting  
 

14.1  The chairman confirmed with members the date of the next meeting of the 
Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority, to take place Thursday 15th 
December 2016 at Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Headquarters, Five Rivers Health & Wellbeing Centre, Hulse Road, 
Salisbury SP1 3NR from 10am.  

 

 

Page 566



Not Protectively Marked  
 

15  Exclusion of the Public 

15.1  The Chairman addressed all attendees to confirm the closure of the 
meeting to the public with the following statement: 
In accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
exclude the press and public for the business specified below because it is 
likely that, if members of the public were present, there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt  information as defined in paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act 
 

 

16  Business Continuity – Industrial Action 
 

16.1  The Chief Fire Officer took Members through the paper and the associated 
appendix and provided a presentation on the Services Industrial Action 
arrangements for assurance.  
 

16.2  The Chairman took Members to the recommendations within the report and 
Members confirmed that they had reviewed and noted the report.  
 

16.3  Resolved: That the report be noted.  
 

 

 

Page 567



This page is intentionally left blank



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 23 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

 

 

DRAFT Minutes of the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority meeting 

held at 10:00 hours on Thursday 15 December 2016  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Salisbury 

 

These are draft minutes prepared by officers to be approved by the Committee at their next 

meeting. 

 

Members present: Cllr Abdul Amin; Cllr Mark Anderson; Cllr Les Burden; Cllr Steve Butler; 

Cllr Ronald Coatsworth; Cllr Chris Devine; Cllr Peter Edge; Cllr Spencer Flower; Cllr Mollie 

Groom; Cllr Colin Jamieson; Cllr Susan Jefferies; Cllr Bob Jones: Cllr Trevor Jones; Cllr 

John Knight; Cllr Rebecca Knox (Chairman); Cllr Christopher Newbury; Cllr Graham Payne; 

Cllr Christopher Rochester; Cllr Ann Stribley; Cllr Joe Tray, Cllr Vikki Slade 

 

Officer attendance: CFO Benjamin Ansell; ACFO Mick Stead; ACFO John Aldridge; 

Treasurer and Director of Finance, Phil Chow; Director of Corporate Services; Derek 

James, Monitoring officer and clerk, Jonathan Mair; Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy 

Clerk, Ms Grace Evans; Head of Democratic Services and Corporate Assurance, Mrs Jill 

McCrae; Democratic Services Officer, Marianne Taylor; SM Adam Martin (Part) 

 

1  Welcome 
   
   
1.1  In opening the meeting the Chairman welcomed Members and CFO Ben 

Ansell to his first meeting as the new Chief Fire Officer of the Dorset & 
Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service.  

   
1.2  The Chairman also welcomed Cllr Vikki Slade, who replaces Cllr Philip Eades 

as a Member of the Fire and Rescue Authority appointed by the Borough of 
Poole. 

   
1.3  The Chairman welcomed Grace Evans to the meeting and Mr Jonathan Mair 

introduced her as Deputy Monitoring Officer and Deputy Clerk for the Authority, 
in place of Lisa Pharaoh. 

  

Page 569

Agenda Item 52

TaylorMarianne
Typewriter
Item 4



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 24 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

2  Apologies 
   
2.2  Apologies were received from Cllr Mike Byatt; Cllr Ernie Clark; Cllr Malcolm 

Davies; Cllr Beverley Dunlop; Cllr John Haines; Cllr Garry Perkins; Cllr Ricky 
Rogers; Cllr Bridget Wayman.  

 

3  Code of Conduct, Declarations of Interest and Notifications of Any Other  
Business 

   
3.1  The Chairman asked the meeting for any disclosures of pecuniary interests 

under the Localism Act. 
 

3.2  There were none. 
 

4  Minutes of the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority meeting  
   
4.1  Members confirmed their approval of the minutes of the meeting held on 14 

September 2016, with no amendments.  
   
4.2  The Chairman thanked Members for their efforts in raising awareness about 

impacts of a proposed lessening of Department of Education guidance for 
installation of sprinkler systems in schools.  The Chairman provided a brief 
update on the progress of this work.  

   
4.3  Resolved: Members approved the minutes for the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire 

and Rescue Authority meeting held on 14 September 2016.  
 

5  Minutes Policy & Resources meeting 
   
5.1  Members reviewed the minutes of the Policy & Resources Committee meeting 

which took place on 14 September 2016. 
   
5.2  CFO Ben Ansell assured the Members that the Service’s culture change 

programme had been aligned to the outcomes of the Adrian Thomas review.  
   
5.3  The Chairman provided Members with a verbal update on the discussions held 

at the Policy & Resources Committee meeting which took place on 29 
November. 

   
 

  

Page 570



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 25 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

 

6  Minutes Finance and Audit  
   
6.1  Cllr Bob Jones, the Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee, took 

Members through the minutes of the 21 September and 17 November 2016 
meetings. 

   
6.2  There were no recommendations from the 17 November 2016 meeting but a 

recommendation from the 21 September 2016 meeting in relation to approval 
of the Statement of assurance was to be taken separately later on this agenda. 
No questions were raised on the minutes. 

 

7  Note Group Leader Nomination to Policy and Resources 
   
7.1  Jonathan Mair, Monitoring Officer & Clerk confirmed that the Liberal Democrat 

Group Leader, Cllr Peter Edge had nominated Cllr Vikki Slade to the Policy & 
Resources Committee, to replace Cllr Phillip Eades.   

   
7.2  Noted: Members noted the nomination of Cllr Vikki Slade as a member of 

the Policy & Resources Committee 
 

8  Appointing an External Auditor 2018/19 
   
8.1  Mr Phil Chow, Director of Finance & Treasurer outlined the need to appoint an 

external auditor for the period 2018/19 and took Members through the four 
options outlined which Members discussed. 

   
8.2  The options provided were:  

 remaining with the current auditor short term or; 

 procuring an external auditor either on an individual basis; or  

 on a joint collaborative basis with other Authorities;  

 opting into a national scheme operated by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) as the ‘appointing person’. 

   
8.3  Mr Chow advised Members that the Authority must appoint an auditor by 

December 2017 for the following year’s account and strongly recommended 
the approval of option 4: Sector led Approach. 

   
8.4  Members discussed the options, the various costs and the possible effects 

following the Adrian Thomas Report. 
   
8.5  The Chairman took Members to the recommendation of the paper and 

Members unanimously agreed that option 4 was their preferred option. 
   
8.6  Resolved: Members approved Option 4, ie opt into a ‘sector led body’ 

arrangement.  
 

Page 571



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 26 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

9  Revised Capital Programme 
   
9.1  Mr Phil Chow, Director of Finance & Treasurer presented the paper to 

Members and highlighted that this is a review of the capital programme for 
2016/17 taking account of changes required. 

   
9.2  Mr Chow took Members through a number of areas where changes had 

occurred, and due to the nature of capital and a number of reviews being 
undertaken, in particular in relation to the Integrated Risk Management Plan 
(IRMP), delivery dates of some orders have been put back, and some orders 
have been deferred until the reviews have been completed.   The new impact 
was to defer capital spend into future years.  

   
9.3  Mr Chow also highlighted that the replacement of firefighter helmets had been 

added to the capital programme as replacements were now required which 
included much needed improvements, providing greater comfort and enhanced 
operability, improved health and safety and enabled the Service to align a 
significant element of its Personal Protective Equipment (PPE).   

   
9.4  SM Adam Martin was welcomed to the meeting and he provided Members with 

a demonstration of the performance and benefits of the new helmets. 
   
9.5  Mr Chow advised Members that current helmets, once replaced, would be 

recycled and used for training and for such events as Salamander, SPARC 
and Safe Wise.  

   
9.6  Resolved: Members approved the revised Capital Programme for 2016/17 

of £5.423m including the Direct Revenue Financing of £99k. 
   
9.7  Resolved: Members approved the revised prudential indicators – 

Appendix A, as a result of the change in the Capital Programme 2016/17. 
   
9.8  Resolved: Members confirmed their agreement to the proposal for 

replacement firefighter helmets. 
 

10  Safety Centre update 
   
10.1  ACFO John Aldridge introduced Group Manager (GM) Kathy Collis to the 

meeting and advised that the Policy & Resources meeting, which took place on 
29 November, had approved moving this project to the next stage.  

   
10.2  An updated copy of the plans was tabled for Members’ approval and GM Collis 

took Members through the Safety Centre presentation with artist impressions 
of how the village is likely to look once planning had been agreed, highlighting 
that the design includes a health suite, police station, fire simulating areas and 
a water safety area.  

   

Page 572



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 27 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

10.3  GM Collis advised Members that Brandon Lewis, MP, had been shown the 
presentation and was impressed with the plans. 

   
10.4  GM Collis confirmed to Members that work-streams have been planned with 

Wiltshire Council’s involvement. 
   
10.5  Mr Chow confirmed that the Safety Centre will go ahead, with some items 

being reliant on sponsorship from other agencies and businesses. 
   
10.6  Members raised concern in relation to section 6.4 of the report (estimated 

costs) focussing on the approach to be taken if sponsorship was not 
forthcoming and asking where else funding might be obtained. Members asked 
if the use of the combination grant would be an option. The Chairman asked 
Mr Chow to review this and report back to Members within the update at the 
next Fire Authority meeting. 

   
10.7  Members congratulated GM Collis on the work she is doing and the contacts 

made. Cllr Graham Payne added that he was confident that the Service should 
move ahead as planned. 

   
10.8  Resolved: Members reviewed and noted the contents of the report and 

approved the updated plans. 
   
10.9  Action: Mr Chow to review the arrangements for the use of the 

Combination Grant where sponsorship is unavailable and to include this 
within the Members update report at the next Fire Authority meeting. 

 

11  Approval of Statement of Assurance 
   
11.1  Mrs Jill McCrae, Head of Democratic Services and Corporate Assurance 

presented the paper and reminded Members of the requirement of fire and 
rescue services to provide an annual Statement of Assurance. 

   
11.2  Mrs McCrae confirmed to the meeting that the Finance and Audit Committee 

had recommended its approval at their meeting on the 21st September 2016 . 
   
11.3  The Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee, Cllr Bob Jones confirmed 

this recommendation and his support of the paper and its recommendation. 
   
11.4  The Chairman took Members to the recommendation of the paper and 

Members approved the Statement of Assurance for publication. 
   
11.5  Resolved: Members approved the 2016 Statement Of Assurance as 

recommended by the Finance & Audit Committee. 
   
11.6  Action: Head of Democratic Services & Corporate Assurance to publish 

the Statement of Assurance on the Services website. 

Page 573



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 28 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

 

12  Service Performance Report – 1 April to 30 September 
   
12.1  CFO Ben Ansell took Members through the Service Performance Report and 

presentation for the first six months. The CFO added that the report highlighted 
that the Service has become safer, stronger and more financial sustainable as 
a result of combination. 

   
12.2  The CFO referred Members to the performance dashboard on the website and 

took Members through the strategic priorities and underlying key lines of 
enquiry. He added that the Service ensures that KLOEs are aligned with the 
forthcoming national inspection programme. 

   
12.3  The CFO gave Members a debrief on the Manchester Road fire in Swindon 

which occurred on 6 November, highlighting how he was encouraged by the 
follow up prevention work carried out by the teams in Swindon immediately 
after, and the safe and well visits which have subsequently been undertaken. 

   
12.4  Members discussed the presentation and the CFO confirmed that he felt the 

Service was on track and performing well and whilst there has always been 
room for improvement in some areas we should not underestimate the 
immense work undertaken in the first six months following combination. 

   
12.5  A discussion took place about response Standards. Members noted that they 

would like to see more explanation on the response times within the next 
report. The CFO confirmed that this detail is taken on a quarterly basis to the 
local performance and scrutiny committees. An aggregate position is then 
presented at Authority level on a six monthly basis. 

   
12.6  Members suggested that representatives from the two Local Resilience Forums 

(LRF) be invited to an Authority meeting in the future to help with Members’ 
understanding of the LRF’s role.  Members were advised that the (CCU) Civil 
Contingencies Unit of the Dorset LRF is currently undergoing a review and that 
an invitation to a future Authority meeting could be arranged once the review 
was completed. Members confirmed their agreement to this arrangement. 

   
12.7  The Chairman suggested that a summary of what LRFs do would be helpful for 

Members and it was agreed that ACFO Mick Stead would provide this to 
Members at a future meeting. 

   
12.9  Resolved: Members reviewed and noted the content of the report. 
   
12.10  Action: A presentation and summary of the role of LRF to be provided to 

Members by ACFO Mick Stead at the Fire Authority meeting on 8 June 
2017. 

 

  

Page 574



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Page 29 
Initials: _______ 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

 

13  Date of Next Meeting 
   
13.1  The Chairman confirmed the date of the next Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and 

Rescue Authority meeting as 9 February 2017 at 10:00am at Five Rivers, 
Health and Wellbeing Centre, Hulse Road, Salisbury, SP1 3NR.  

   
 

 

 

 

Signed: ______________ 

Page 575



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Cabinet
	Minutes

	2 Cabinet
	Minutes

	3 Cabinet
	Minutes

	4 Cabinet
	Minutes

	5 Cabinet Capital Assets Committee
	Minutes

	6 Cabinet Capital Assets Committee
	Minutes
	67 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors
	Agenda
	5 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors
	Question and Response - Richard Hames - for publication
	Question and Response - Anne Henshaw - for publication
	Question and Response - Kim Stuckey - for publication
	Question and Response - Nick Murry - for publication
	Question and Response - Stephen Eades- for publication



	7 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	8 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes

	9 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Minutes
	18 Wiltshire Council's Financial Plan Update 2017/18

	11 Children's Select Committee
	12 Children's Select Committee
	13 Environment Select Committee
	Minutes

	14 Environment Select Committee
	Minutes
	66 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes


	15 Health Select Committee
	Minutes

	16 Health Select Committee
	Minutes

	17 Strategic Planning Committee
	Minutes

	18 Strategic Planning Committee
	19 Strategic Planning Committee
	Minutes
	 Appendices
	Questions -Cllr Chris Caswill


	20 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	21 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	22 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	23 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	24 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	25 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	26 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	27 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	28 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	29 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	30 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	31 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	32 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	33 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	34 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	35 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	36 Standards Committee
	37 Audit Committee
	Minutes

	38 Staffing Policy Committee
	39 Staffing Policy Committee
	40 Joint Strategic Economic Committee (SWLEP)
	41 Joint Strategic Economic Committee (SWLEP)
	Minutes

	42 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	43 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	44 Local Pension Board
	Minutes

	45 Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	46 Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	47 Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	48 Police and Crime Panel
	49 Police and Crime Panel
	Minutes

	50 Police and Crime Panel
	Minutes

	51 Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority
	52 Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority



